If you are reading this electronically, the Council has saved £15.79 on printing.
For more information on the Mod.gov paperless app, contact Democratic
Services

Merton Council
Planning Applications Committee

Membership

Councillors Substitute Members:
Linda Kirby (Chair) Eloise Bailey

Najeeb Latif (Vice-Chair) David Chung

Billy Christie Stephen Crowe

David Dean John Dehaney

Joan Henry Edward Foley
Rebecca Lanning Daniel Holden

Russell Makin
Simon McGrath
Peter Southgate
Dave Ward

A meeting of the Planning Applications Committee will be held on:
Date: 20 August 2020
Time: 715 pm

Venue: This will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in
a physical location, in accordance with S78 of the Coronavirus
Act 2020

This is a public meeting and can be viewed at
www.youtube.com/user/MertonCouncil.

If you wish to speak please see notes after the list of agenda items. For more
information about the agenda and the decision making process contact
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3616

Press enquiries: communications@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3181.

Electronic agendas, reports and minutes

Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on
our website. To access this, click https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-
democracy and search for the relevant committee and meeting date.

Agendas can also be viewed online in the Borough’s libraries and on the Mod.gov
paperless app for iPads, Android and Windows devices

For more information about Merton Council visit www.merton.gov.uk



http://www.youtube.com/user/MertonCouncil
mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
http://www.merton.gov.uk/

Planning Applications Committee
20 August 2020

1
2

Apologies for absence
Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Minutes of the previous meeting

Town Planning Applications

The Chair will announce the order of ltems at the
beginning of the Meeting.

A Supplementary Agenda with any modifications will be
published on the day of the meeting.

Note: there is no written report for this item

3 Alan Road, Wimbledon, SW19 7PT

Application number: 20/P1701

Ward: Village

Recommendation: GRANT Planning permission subject
to conditions

Tooting & Mitcham FC, Bishopsford Road, SM4 6BF
Application number: 19/P4094

Ward: Ravensbury

Recommendation: grant permission subject to conditions
and s106 legal agreement.

159 Commonside East, Mitcham, CR4 2QB

Application number: 20/P1060

Ward: Figges Marsh

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to a
section 106 agreement for off-site affordable housing
contribution, permit free development and carbon
offsetting and relevant conditions.

37-39 Cottenham Park Road, West Wimbledon, SW20
0SB

Application number: 20/P1463

Ward: Raynes Park

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to
conditions and the completion of a s106 unilateral
undertaking to secure:
1. 5 of the 8 new units are to be parking permit
free residential units.
2. The developer agreeing to meet the

1-10

11 -50

51-138

139 - 196

197 - 286



10

11

12

13

14

15

council’s costs of reviewing [including legal
fees] the unilateral undertaking.

3. The developer agreeing to meet the
council’s costs of monitoring the unilateral
undertaking.

115 Graham Road, Wimbledon, SW19 3SP
Application number: 20/P1275

Ward: Dundonald

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to
a S106 agreement and conditions

64-76 Kingston Road, Wimbledon, SW19 1LA

Application number: 19/P2120

Ward: Abbey

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to
conditions and S106 agreement.

8 Preshaw Crescent, Mitcham, CR4 3GA
Application number: 19/P4118

Ward: Cricket Green

Recommendation: the application is subject to appeal for
non-determination. Officers recommend to inform the
Planning Inspectorate that the Council would have
granted planning permission subject to conditions.

50 Tybenham Road, Merton Park, SW19 3LA
Application number: 20/P1732

Ward: Merton Park

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to
conditions.

33-39 Upper Green East, Mitcham, CR4 2PF

Application number: 19/P2747

Ward: Figges Marsh

Recommendation: Grant permission subject to Section
106 obligation or any other enabling agreement, and
relevant conditions.

Planning Enforcement - Summary of Current Cases

Officer Recommendation:
That Members note the contents of the report.

Reviews of recent changes to Town Planning legislation,

287 - 314

315 -394

395 - 428

429 - 452

453 - 550

551 - 556

557 - 568



and current MHCLG consultation

Declarations of Pecuniary Interests

Members are reminded of the need to have regard to the items published with
this agenda and, where necessary to declare at this meeting any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012) in any matter to be considered at the
meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the
meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter. If members consider they should not
participate because of a non pecuniary interest which may give rise to a
perception of bias, they should declare this, withdraw and not participate in
consideration of the item. For further advice please speak with the Council's
Managing Director, South London Legal Partnership.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interests — Members of the Design and Review
Panel (DRP)

Members of the Planning Applications Committee (PAC), who are also
members of the DRP, are advised that they should not participate in an item
which has previously been to DRP where they have voted or associated
themselves with a conclusion reached or recommendation made. Any member
of the PAC who has also sat on DRP in relation to items on this PAC agenda
must indicate whether or not they voted in such a matter. If the member has so
voted they should withdraw from the meeting.

Human Rights Implications:

The applications in this Agenda have been considered in the light of the Human
Rights Act 1998 and in particular, the First Protocol of Article 1 (Protection of
Property); Article 6 (Rights to a Fair Trial) and Article 8 (Private and Family
Life).

Consideration has been given to the impact of each application on the people
living and working in the vicinity of that particular application site and to the
impact of the proposals on the persons who have made written representations
on the planning merits of the case. A full assessment of material planning
considerations has been included in each Committee report.

Third party representations and details of the application proposals are
summarised in each Committee report. It may be that the policies and proposals
contained within the Development Plan and/or other material planning
considerations will outweigh the views of third parties and/or those of the
applicant.



Order of items: Applications on this agenda are ordered alphabetically. At the
meeting the Chair may change this order to bring forward items with the
greatest number of public speakers. The new order will be announced by the
Chair at the start of the meeting.

Speaking at Planning Committee: All public speaking at Planning Committee
is at the discretion of the Chair. The following people may register to speak:

Members of the Public who have submitted a written representation objecting to
an application. A maximum of 6 minutes is allowed for objectors. If only one
person registers they will get 3 minutes to speak, a second person will also get
3 minutes. If further people want to speak then the 6 minutes may be shared
between them

Agents/Applicants will be able to speak but only if members of the public have
registered to speak in opposition to the application. Applicants/agents will get an
equal amount of time. If an application is brought to Committee with an Officer
recommendation for Refusal then the Applicant/Agent will get 3 minutes to
speak.

All Speakers MUST register in advance, by contacting The Planning
Department no later than 12 noon on the day before the meeting.

PHONE: 020-8545-3445/3448
e-mail: planning@merton.gov.uk)

Ward Councillors/Other Councillors who are not members of the Planning
Committee may also register to speak and will be allocated 3 minutes each.
Please register with Development Control Administration or Democratic
Services no later than 12 noon on the day before the meeting

Submission of additional information before the meeting: Any additional
information relating to an item on this Agenda should be sent to the Planning
Department before 12 noon on the day before the meeting (using email above).

Please note:

There is no opportunity to make a visual presentation when speaking at
Planning Committee

That the distribution of any documents by the public during the course of the
meeting will not be permitted.

FOR ANY QUERIES ON THIS INFORMATION AND OTHER COMMITTEE
PROCEDURES please contact Democratic Services:

Phone — 020 8545 3356

e-mail — democratic.services@merton.gov.uk



mailto:planning@merton.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk




Agenda Iltem 3

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
16 JULY 2020

(7.15 pm - 11.42 pm)

PRESENT: Councillor Najeeb Latif (in the Chair), Councillor Billy Christie,
Councillor David Dean, Councillor John Dehaney,
Councillor Joan Henry, Councillor Rebecca Lanning,

Councillor Russell Makin, Councillor Simon McGrath,
Councillor Peter Southgate and Councillor Dave Ward

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Nigel Benbow

Neil Milligan (Development Control Manager, ENVR), Sarath
Attanayake (Transport Planning Project Officer), Tim Bryson
(Development Control Team Leader (North)), Jonathan Lewis
(Development Control Team Leader (South)), Catarina Cheung
(Planning Officer), Tim Lipscomb (Planning Officer), Louise
Fleming (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and Amy
Dumitrescu (Democratic Services Officer)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from the Chair, Councillor Linda Kirby. The
Vice-Chair, Councillor Najeeb Latif chaired the meeting in her absence and
Councillor John Dehaney was present as a substitute.

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda ltem 2)

There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

The Committee noted that Councillor Najeeb Latif from time to time chaired Design
Review Panel meetings. At these meetings he did not take any part in the debate nor
vote on the proposals.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda ltem 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2020 are agreed as an
accurate record.

4 TOWN PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Agenda Item 4)

Supplementary Agenda: Amendments and modifications to the Officer’s report were
published in a Supplementary Agenda. This applied to items 5, 6, 7, 8 and 11.

The Chair advised those present and viewing the meeting of the procedure for

considering the applications and that the order of items would be as they appeared in
the agenda.

Pager 1


http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

5 ABBEY WALL WORKS, STATION ROAD, COLLIERS WOOD, SW19 2LP
(Agenda Item 5)

Proposal: (1) Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of site to provide a
part three, part four, part five storey block of 54 flats and a commercial unit (204 sqm)
at ground floor level (comprising flexible A1 (excluding supermarket), A2, A3, B1 and
D1 uses) and associated landscaping, bin/cycle storage, parking, highway works
and alterations to listed wall.

(2) Listed Building Consent for demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of
site to provide a part three, part four, part five storey block of 54 flats and a
commercial unit (204 sgm) at ground floor level (comprising flexible A1 (excluding
supermarket), A2, A3, B1 and D1 uses) and an associated landscaping, bin/cycle
storage, parking, highway works and alterations to listed wall.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer, and the
modifications contained in the supplementary agenda.

Two objectors had registered to speak in objection and at the invitation of the Chair,
made the following points:

e The application would result in a loss of privacy due to overdevelopment. The
road was narrow and there would be limited parking. The application
conflicted with development plan policies. The concerns of the committee in
relation to the previous application for this site had not been addressed by the
new application.

e The application would have a negative impact on the Wandle Valley area and
the historical value of Merton Priory. The number of affordable homes
proposed was too low and too many were single aspect. The development
would be overbearing and contrary to planning policy.

e The impact of the proposed residential development on the Eddie Katz site
should also be taken into consideration.

The applicant’s agent spoke in support, addressing the concerns of the objectors and
outlining the benefits of the proposal.

The Development Control Team Leader (North) advised that there was no live
application on the Eddie Katz site. The listed building consent application in respect
of the Priory wall had received no objection from the Council’s conservation officer.
He drew Members’ attention to the changes to the scheme and the previous reasons
for refusal.

At the invitation of the Chair, the Senior Democratic Services Officer read out a
written statement on behalf of Councillor Nigel Benbow, submitted on behalf of the
ward residents. The statement made the following points:
e The new application still demonstrated height and mass and had not been
scaled back enough since the previous application.
e The area had historical links to Merton Priory and should be preserved.

Page 2



There were concerns over the inclusion of a commercial unit, noise and
pollution from Merantun Way, loss of light to residents on Station Road.
The forthcoming application at the Eddie Katz site should be taken into
consideration.

In response to Member questions, the Development Control Team Leader (North)
advised that:

The application was 16.5m at its tallest point, and the previous scheme was
19.5 at its tallest height.

The scheme had been subject to a viability assessment which had concluded
that the inclusion of affordable housing was not viable. Despite this the
developer was offering 3 affordable units.

Although single aspect units are discouraged, it is difficult in a development of
this size to not have any and this point was addressed in the officer report.
Each unit would have good natural light. The light would be better on the
south side than the north, however large windows and glazed doors were
proposed to mitigate.

The appeal against the previous refusal was currently going through the
process of being considered by the Planning Inspectorate. If the current
application was approved it would not prejudice the previous decision, and
there had been no indication from the applicant that the appeal would be
withdrawn.

Supermarket had been specifically excluded from the A1 commercial use and
this had been agreed with the applicant.

The affordable units would be 3 3-bed social rented properties on the eastern
side of the building, 2 at ground floor level and 1 at first floor above.
Overlooking was a matter of judgement. The previous reasons for refusal did
not include overlooking as a specific issue.

Members made the following comments:

There was not enough difference between this and the previous scheme and
there was concern that the issues had not been resolved. Single aspect units
were not reasonable and the number of affordable homes was too low. The
application should be rejected on the grounds of bulk, massing and height.
Current residents should be respected and also those residents who will live
there in the future. The site was a difficult site to develop.

The applicant had thought about how to address previous concerns. Although
it was regrettable that the number of affordable homes was so low, the viability
has been affected due to the reduction in size of development. It was
welcomed that the applicant was still offering 3 social rented units despite it
not being viable and therefore the application should be supported.

Although it was a shame that the number of affordable units was lower, if the
Committee is minded to refuse bigger developments then it must accept that a
smaller application will include less. The application should be supported.

It was welcomed that the developers had taken previous concerns into
consideration and therefore the application should be approved.

It was felt that the applicant had made changes to the application and the
appearance of the wall would be improved by the application. There were

Page 3



concerns over finding a registered provider willing to take such a low number
of units on. It was welcomed that the affordable units were 3-bed properties.
e The applicant should be invited not to progress with the previous appeal as a
gesture of goodwill in the event that Committee was minded to approve.
e |t was noted that the Committee did not have the authority to request that the
applicant not progress with the previous appeal.

At the conclusion of the debate, the Chair called for a vote and it was
RESOLVED that

1. Application 20/P1412 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject S106
agreement and conditions.

2. Application 20/P1672 be GRANTED Listed Building Consent subject to
conditions.

6 300 BEVERLEY WAY AND 265 BURLINGTON ROAD NEW MALDEN KT3
4PJ (Agenda ltem 6)

Proposal: Partial demolition of b1 office building and change of use of part of office
building car park to facilitate the reconfiguration of supermarket car park to provide a
total of 684 car parking spaces (a loss of 19 car parking spaces), to provide trolley
parking shelters, changes to white line marking and provision of a new servicing area
and alterations to office car park with a loss of 29 car parking spaces. The alterations
to the supermarket car park layout and associated works have been submitted in
connection with the concurrent planning application 19/p2387 for the erection of a
mixed use development comprising 456 flats and 499 sq.m of b1 floor space.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer, and the
modifications contained in the supplementary agenda.

The Chair moved to a vote and it was

RESOLVED that Application 19/P3085 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject to
conditions.

7 247 BURLINGTON ROAD, NEW MALDEN, KT3 4NF (Agenda Item 7)

Proposal: Demolition of building and formation of temporary road for the tesco car
park (2 year period), providing pedestrian and bicycle access plus vehicular egress,
with associated works including the relocation of bus stop.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer, and the
modifications contained in the supplementary agenda.

In response to Member questions, the Planning officer advised that there was no
restriction on the start of the construction which could begin immediately. There
would be no need for the access road until the point that an application was approved
for a wider development.

Page 4



A Member made a comment that there was concern that granting this application
could prejudice future consideration of applications for the wider development.

Another Member felt that the application should be approved.
At the conclusion of the debate, the Chair moved to a vote and it was

RESOLVED that Application 19/P2578 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject to
conditions and s.106 legal agreement.

The Development Control Team Leader (South) presented item 12 before the
consideration of items 8, 9, 10 and 11. For ease of reference, the items are listed
below as they appeared in the agenda.

8 ELM NURSERY CAR PARK, LONDON ROAD, MITCHAM, (Agenda Item 8)

Proposal: Erection of a five storey building to create 21 new residential units.
Comprising of one and two bedroom apartments, associate cycle parking, disabled
parking bays and public realm enhancements.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer, and the
modifications contained in the supplementary agenda.

An objector had registered to speak in objection and at the invitation of the Chair
made the following points:
e There was a lack of parking in the area for businesses and the application site
was currently used by patients of the GP surgery and the local businesses.
The nearby multi-storey car park was not considered safe. The proposal was
out of character and there were other suitable brownfield sites which could be
redeveloped.

The applicant’s agent spoke in support of the application, addressing the concerns of
the objector and stated that the site had been designated for residential use and had
a PTAL rating of 5 with spare capacity for parking in the area.

The Development Control Team Leader (South) advised that the Government’s
national planning guidance stated that developments must be determined in
accordance with the area’s local development plan. The Merton Plan had designated
the site for residential use. In response to Member questions, he advised the
following:
e As the quantum of affordable housing was across all four applications as a
package then if one or two of the applications were refused, the viability
assessment would need to be re-examined.

In response to a Member question, the Transport Planning Officer explained the
PTAL rating and how this was calculated. A PTAL rating of 5 was considered to be

Page 5



high and access to public transport in the area was good and therefore less parking
was required.

In response to a Member question, the Development Control Team Leader (South)
advised that

e the route from the dwellings to London Road will remain. The report set out
proposed improvements to the footpath.

e The presence of the flats on the site would create surveillance on the footpath
which could improve the sense of security for its users.

e The designation of the site for housing would have been the subject of
significant consultation as part of the development of the current and draft
local plan. The traffic and parking issues had been addressed in the report.

e Each application must be determined on its own merits, however the package
of affordable housing was based on all four applications being approved and if
Members were minded to refuse one or more of the applications, then the
financial viability of the package of four applications would be affected.

Some Members were concerned that each application should be considered on its
own merits and the ability of the developer to deliver affordable housing separately
should not be a concern of the Committee.

One Member welcomed the strategic approach of Mertantun Development Ltd and
the achievement of 21 affordable homes in Mitcham if approved. They felt that the
application was a good one which added positively to the neighbourhood.

At the conclusion of the debate, the Chair moved to a vote and it was

RESOLVED that Application 19/P4047 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject to
the completion of any enabling agreement and conditions.

9 FARM ROAD CHURCH, FARM ROAD, MORDEN, SM4 6RA (Agenda Item 9)

Proposal: Demolition of existing church buildings and erection of a four storey
development comprising 15 self-contained units (9x 1b and 6x 2b units), and
erection of 3 x three storey dwellinghouses (1x 5b and 2x 4b); provided with
associated cycle parking, refuse stores, parking bays and landscaping.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer.

At the invitation of the Chair, the Senior Democratic Services Officer read out a
written statement on behalf of an objector, making the following points:
e The proposed development would be too high and would result in a loss of
privacy.

The applicant’s agent addressed the concerns of the objector, highlighting the

distance between the two properties and addressed the approach taken by the
developer.

Page 6



The Development Control Team Leader (South) advised that the officer report
addressed the overlooking point and set out the separation distances.

In response to Members’ questions, the Transport Planning officer advised that the
area had a PTAL rating of two, however a car free development was proposed due to
existing pressures on parking in the area. The London Plan standard was to
discourage additional parking.

Members made the following comments:

e The development should be subject to a CPZ with all residents being treated
the same way in relation to access to parking permits.

e The architects had created a good development for the site.

e Occupiers should be able to purchase permits. There was no point in having
PTAL ratings for developments if they were to be ignored.

e The 9 1-bed and 6 2-bed units should not all be given parking permits as this
would impact the already busy roads nearby.

A proposal was made to approve the application but to remove the restriction on
residents being able to apply for parking permits.

In response to a Member question of clarification, the Development Control Team
Leader (South) advised that if Members were minded, officers could negotiate with
the Transport Planning officer, and a short report brought back to Members on the
parking permit issue. The Council had declared a climate emergency and a
commitment to reducing carbon emissions, and it was important that if an approach
was taken that was not in line with Council policy, then this should be balanced. The
recommendation of officers was that there was a restriction on parking permits,
however there may be some flexibility on this point and officers requested an
opportunity to consult with colleagues and report back to the Committee.

Following that clarification, a proposal was made to vote on the officer
recommendation with no amendment.

The Chair moved to a vote and it was

RESOLVED that Application 19/P4046 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject to
the completion of any enabling agreement and conditions.

The Chair adjourned the meeting at 9.47pm and the meeting resumed at 9.57pm.

10 DEVELOPMENT SITE NORTH OF 11 TO 17 MADEIRA ROAD, MITCHAM
(Agenda Item 10)

Proposal: Erection of a three storey development comprising 11 self-contained units
(7x 1b and 4x 2b), and erection of 7 x three storey townhouses (4b); with associated
cycle parking, refuse stores, 4 x parking bays (2 disabled bays) and landscaping.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer.

Page 7



An objector had registered to speak in objection and at the invitation of the Chair
made the following points:

e The development would break the link with the Canons and its historic
grounds. It was a poorly conceived design and visually intrusive and would
have a negative impact on the conservation area. Proposed amenity space
was not policy compliant. The pergoda tree would be pruned by 50%.

The applicant’s agents responded to the objections as follows:

e The site was underused and inaccessible and this development was an
opportunity to open this up. No objection had been received from Heritage
Lottery and the tree would be made a central point of the development. Care
had been taken to create a design sensitive to the conservation area.

The Development Control Team Leader addressed the comments in the report of the
Design Review Panel and responded to Members’ questions as follows:

e The tree would need to be properly maintained so as not to impact on
neighbouring properties, however the development had been designed to
make a feature of the tree.

e The officer report addressed the access to the site and the advice received
from the Transport officer on restricting parking on the site.

e Conditions were proposed in relation to landscaping and these could be
adjusted to incorporate in relation to management of the tree.

e The officer report addressed the shortfall in garden space. The developer had
sought to address through a unique design. In the round, the development
was considered to be positive.

In response to a Member question, the Planning officer advised that low level
planting was proposed at the boundary with Park Place to stop people stepping over
from the car park.

Members made the following comments:

¢ Mitcham Cricket Green and the oldest building in the borough was very close
to the site and the Council had worked to secure funding to enhance the area.
To destroy the vista would be highly damaging. It was felt that the style was
not in keeping with the area and the Design Review Panel had not awarded
the scheme a green rating. The scheme did not respect the Council’'s own
values.

e Part of what the Council stood for was delivering affordable family homes and
that is what this scheme delivered. The design is sensitive to the area and the
Design Review Panel had commended the application.

e The current site was underused and the proposal was sensitive to the area.
The scheme would deliver much needed affordable units which was central to
the Council’s aims and values and would be supported.

e There was some concern that the developer was using a small space to create
new homes, however the application would be supported due to the need for
new housing and the current condition of the site.

Page 8



At the conclusion of the debate, the Chair moved to a vote and it was

RESOLVED that Application 19/P4050 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject to
the completion of any enabling agreement and conditions.

11 CAR PARK, RALEIGH GARDENS, MITCHAM (Agenda Item 11)

Proposal: Redevelopment of existing car park to allow for the erection of a part five,
part six storey development comprising 36 self-contained units (29x 1b and 7x 2b);
with associated cycle parking, refuse store, 3x disabled parking bays and
landscaping.

The Committee noted the report and presentation of the Planning officer, and the
modifications contained in the supplementary agenda.

Two objectors had registered to speak in objection and at the invitation of the Chair,
made the following points:

e The need for development on this site and the provision of housing was
accepted, however the proposed development did not include any affordable
housing. The design was poor and the site would represent overdevelopment.
There would be a loss of light to the residents of Glebe Court, harm to the
conservation area and contrary to Council policy.

The applicant’s agents spoke in support of the application and addressed the
objections. The site was designated for residential and it was not felt that a
commercial use would be viable. The affordable housing provided on the other sites
allowed this site to be developed for private rent in a busy town centre location. It
was considered that the degree of loss of light was acceptable in a town centre
setting. The design had been developed in consultation with planning officers and
was considered to be sensitive.

The Development Control Team Leader (South) responded to the points raised by
the objectors and advised that the officer report addressed the light to Glebe Court.
The proposal did not deliver affordable housing but did diversify the Borough’s
housing stock and the overall package of affordable housing across the sites should
be kept in mind.

At the invitation of the Chair, the Senior Democratic Services Officer read out a
written statement on behalf of Councillor Owen Pritchard on behalf of the ward.
While sympathetic to the concerns of residents, he felt that the positives outweighed
the negatives and was in support. Part of his statement was given to a statement of
the Glebe Court residents association which set out concerns relating to loss of light,
density, height and overdevelopment.

In response to Members’ questions, the Development Control Team Leader (South)
advised as follows:
e The original pitched roofs on the site had been amended on the advice of
planning officers to reduce the height and it was felt that the design of the flat
roof was acceptable.

Rage 9



e Designers had created layouts with internal bathrooms to ensure that the most
used habitable rooms had the most light.

In response to a Member question, the Transport Planning officer advised that the
area had a PTAL rating of 4 due to it being a sustainable location. The multi-storey
car park could offer alternative parking provision.

Members made the comments:

¢ Residents in London Road used to have spaces until the CPZ was introduced
so used the car park at Raleigh Gardens. Something should be done to
improve St Marks multi storey car park as it was not currently fit for purpose.
The residents’ concerns were acknowledged however agreed with the
comments made by Councillor Pritchard and the proposal should be
supported.

e The Committee had received the views of all three ward members, and it was
recognised that there are issues but all were in support and the application
should be supported.

e The multi-storey car park was well used over the Christmas period.

e There was concern that the proposal did not make the contribution to the
public realm that should be hoped for and it did appear to be
overdevelopment. There had been much justification for elements that
Members were not happy with. Members were in a difficult position as the
Borough needed the affordable housing.

e Reassurance was sought that the multi-storey car park would be made secure.

e The proposal was not reasonable for the residents of Glebe Road and should
be looked at again.

At the conclusion of the debate, the Chair moved to the vote and it was

RESOLVED that Application 19/P4048 be GRANTED Planning Permission subject to
the completion of any enabling agreement and conditions.

12  MERANTUN AFFORDABLE HOUSING REPORT (Agenda Item 12)
The Committee noted the contents of the report.
13  PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS (Agenda Item 13)

The Committee noted the contents of the report.



Agenda Iltem 5

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20 AUGUST 2020

APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID

20/P1701 27/05/2020

Site Address: 3 Alan Road, Wimbledon, SW19 7PT

Ward: Village

Proposal: NEW BASEMENT EXTENSION, SINGLE STOREY

REAR EXTENSION WITH ROOF LANTERN,
REPLACEMENT OF SIDE GARAGE, REPLACEMENT
WINDOWS ON FRONT AND REAR ELEVATION, NEW
WINDOWS IN SIDE ELEVATIONS, ERECTION OF
DORMER ON FRONT ROOF SLOPE, REPLACEMENT
OF ROOF LIGHTS, REPLACEMENT OF TWO STOREY
REAR BAY WINDOWS AND FORMATION OF NEW
ORIEL WINDOW.

Drawing Nos: PL401 (Rev B), PL402, PL403, PL405, PL406, PL407,
PL407, PL411 (Rev A).

Contact Officer: Calum McCulloch

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT Planning permission subject to conditions

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Is a screening opinion required No

Is an Environmental Statement required No

Press notice Yes

Site notice Yes
Design Review Panel consulted No
Number of neighbours consulted 10
External consultations 0

Internal consultations 2
Controlled Parking Zone Yes - VOn

Page | 1
Page 11



1.1

2.1

4.1

4.2

INTRODUCTION

This application is being brought to Planning Applications Committee due to the
number and nature of objections received.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprise a large detached dwelling on the north side of
Alan Road, Wimbledon Village. Permission was obtained in September 2017
to convert the flats back to one dwelling. The property is within the Merton
(Wimbledon North) Conservation Area and the building is locally listed. A
former air raid shelter was located at the rear of the property but has already
undergone demolition.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

e Alterations to the roof including:

- Replacement of like for like roof lantern

- Installation of skylight serving the hall

- Replacement of three rooflights located on the front and rear rooflslope with
conservation grade rooflights

- New dormer on front roof slope

- New chimney pots

¢ New and replacement windows including:

- East elevation - three new timber windows and one replacement window at
first floor level

- North elevation — New oriel window replacing existing casement window,
replacement bay window with French doors beneath.

- West Elevation — replacement first floor windows reduced in size.

e Single storey rear extension with roof lantern finished in brick, crittal
windows

¢ Replacement side extension with pitched roof running from front to rear.
Involves retention of the wall on boundary of no. 1 but raising this 150mm to
the rear and 600mm toward the front. The ridge height would measure
6.23m from front to rear.

e Excavation of Basement extension partly under the house, and under the
rear terrace and new extensions.

PLANNING HISTORY

19/P0415- ERECTION OF FRONT GARDEN WALL, PEDESTRIAN AND
VEHICULAR GATES-Grant Permission subject to Conditions- 20/03/2019

17/P3899 - ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND
TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION-Refuse Permission-15/12/2017. Reasons
for refusal:

Page | 2
Page 12



4.3

4.4

5.1

e The proposed single storey rear extension by virtue of its bulk, scale and
positioning is an incongruous addition which would result in material harm to
the appearance of the locally listed building and the Wimbledon North
Conservation Area.

e The proposed two-storey side extension, by virtue of its bulk, scale, form,
design and positioning would result in an obtrusive and incongruous form of
development that would detract from the appearance of the original building
and be out of keeping with, and detrimental to the visual amenity of Alan
Road as a whole, and the Wimbledon North Conservation Area.

17/P3898-ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION-Grant
Permission subject to Conditions-25/01/2018

17/P1610 - REVERSION OF 3 X FLATS INTO 1 X DWELLINGHOUSE AS
ORIGINALLY BUILT INCLUDING THE REPLACEMENT OF WINDOWS TO
MATCH ORIGINAL HOUSE - Grant Permission subject to conditions -
13/09/2017

CONSULTATION
External

A total of 6 objections were received on the proposed application, including
objections from the adjoining occupiers nos. 1 and 5 Alan Road. Below
summarises the main points made by neighbours and the Wimbledon Society.

Neighbours

e The Heritage Statement included in the application is of poor quality and
factually incorrect:

- Inaccurate description of chronological development of Alan Road

- Unlike number 1, and the other original properties in Alan Road, number 3
Alan Road is not ‘a very good example of the arts and crafts style of
architecture but rather an example of domestic revival style architecture
likely designed by Amos Faulkner or Ernest Newton. The architecture of 3
Alan Road bares strong similarities to the Grade Il listed 8 Belvedere
Avenue designed by Amos F Faulkner. There is, arguably, a very good case
for it to be placed on the National Register and Grade Il listed.

e Errors in Design and Access Statement:

- The assertion that ‘No. 1 has a gap to (its east) side for rear access (it
touches the corner building on Belvedere Road’ on page 3. No. 1 does not
have a ‘gap’ because the space was enclosed by a single-storey flat -roofed
garage in the 1930s.

- The front part of this is a still a garage, but the back is a gym that was
added in 2008 and is accessed from the back garden. The corner house
referred to is on Belvedere Avenue. Belvedere Road does not exist.

e Adverse impact on heritage assets, conservation area and streetscape, with
the following concerns:

Page | 3
Page 13



- Development would result in the loss of the original 1909 motor car house, a
rare example of its type.

o The original motorcar house is 4.5m wide, it is 4.8m tall to the highest
point of its gable, (but lower to the shallow roofline) and is 5.4m long.
The nearby 1908-built suburban motor house at Good Hope, 2
Highbury Road (parallel to Alan Road) was considered so
exceptionally rare and important that it was Grade Il listed by English
Heritage.

o The demolition of the original motor house means it is both
disingenuous and wrong for the applicant to claim that ‘these
proposals make a very positive contribution to the heritage asset and
the conservation area. ‘No harm is done, minimal historic material is
lost and the functioning, plan, form and public views all remain
unchanged’. It is also incorrect to state that, if permission is granted
‘the front fagade is improved and unsightly alterations are removed.’
(Heritage Statement). The front fagcade would be damaged irrevocably.

- Scale and form of the proposed side extension

o Proposed side extension would be 1.5m higher than the apex of the
original, however, and more importantly, unlike the shallow roofs of
motor house at one end and the outbuilding at the other, this would run
unbroken along the entire length of the boundary and beyond, into the
garden.

o The building would be bulky and more than twice the height the
existing boundary wall (which runs for two thirds of the length of the
boundary and which (currently only 2.5metres). It would be an
enormous double-height brick construction extending into the garden
beyond the end of the original house. It is also proposed that the
massive roof structure be studded with nine new top-hung Velux
rooflights (presumably powder-coated aluminium frames), five of which
will face directly onto our property. These rooflights are architecturally
insensitive and the roof will obstruct the space between no. 1 and 3
Alan Road. It is strongly suspect the applicant plans to insert a floor
into the ‘garage’ at a larger date and thereby create a second storey
‘attic space’. The side extension would effectively eliminate the
important ‘gap’ that exists between our properties and is referenced in
the Character Assessment. The rhythm of the streetscape would be
ruined.

o The proposed side extension is bulkier and is disproportionately large
if it is only a garage.

- The proposed rear extension has no architectural merit. The roof lantern
would be a dated pastiche feature and the choice of building materials,
especially the juxtaposition of huge industrial-style crittal garden doors with
traditional stone mullions surrounding them is architecturally absurd and
completely inappropriate for an ornamental and decorative heritage asset.

- This application proposes numerous alterations (widening some and
shortening others) that will change the character of the property.
Furthermore it includes the addition of several ‘new’ windows on the east

Page | 4
Page 14



elevation that are unnecessary and without architectural merit, and would
damage irreparably the fabric of the building.

Objection to demolition of four original gateposts. Although it does not form
part of this application, It is very sad that permission to demolish and
replace the four original gateposts to the property, one bearing the name
‘Cranmore’ was granted by Merton Council in 19/P0415 on 20 March 2019.
We were unaware of that application and would have objected to it if we had
been because of the proximity of one to our property and their historical
importance.

The development would remove the gaps between properties and the
associated sense of spaciousness which is important for the character of
the Conservation Area.

Adverse impact on neighbour amenity:

The proposals are excessive in bulk, scale and massing that would have an
overbearing impact and resulting in a sense of enclosure at 1 Alan Road.
Adverse impact on light. Number 1 Alan Road has 12 windows facing the
boundary where construction of this 6 metre high ‘garage’ is proposed.
There is only one window on the east so it depends on that elevation for
light. No Daylight and Sunlight assessment or Right of Light Assessments
have been made to calculate its impact on amenity of 1 Alan Road. We
believe these plans are in contravention of policies DM D2 and D3. The
applicant should provide these reports.

Failure to provide section drawings creates a false impression of impact of
sense of enclosure on 1 Alan Road (the boundary wall will be 3.5 metres tall
and NOT 2.5metres along its whole 15 metre length). The false impression
of height, bulk and mass of this ‘garage’ disguises the overbearing impact
and sense of enclosure that would make 1 Alan Road feel cramped, dark
and overlooked. It would ruin our privacy and damage our mental health.
Addition of 9 metal roof lights and reduction is size of originals. The metal
Velux roof lights would be over 5 meters above ground (too tall to open or
close), overlook our property, enable us to look into theirs and are
architecturally insensitive.

Proposed basement would have a negative impact from drilling and dust -
neighbouring windows could not be opened nor gardens enjoyed for, we
understand, 24 months, two years. Proposed full-height basement at
1250sq ft, under the whole house, is huge (not ‘modest’), would create
approximately 500 cubic metres of waste/soil. No Traffic Construction
Management Programme is provided, but additional traffic horrendous on a
residential road with a serious ‘rat-running’ problem already. Huge lorries
would cause unacceptable pollution, noise and dirt affecting the physical
and mental health of neighbours We strongly urge that this proposal be
rejected and no basement of any size under this listed asset be allowed in
future.

The occupier of no. 5 Alan Road expresses concern that the developer shall
not take due care when it comes to i) damage to the environment; and ii))
the negative affect on neighbouring properties.

Concern over the extent of vibration and noise from the construction of the
basement, particularly on the ability of the occupiers’ very young children to
sleep.

Page | 5
Page 15



The single storey rear extension will have an adverse impact on the outlook
of no. 5. The occupier of no. 5 note they currently have a clear view of the
sky and the landscape will be compromised by the bulk of the building.

The proposed windows on the east side elevation.

Sustainability:

These plans do not include an Environmental Impact Assessment or any
reference to plans to mitigate their impact on the environment or of climate
change by meeting the carbon reduction requirement of the London Plan.
There does not appear to be an attempt to upgrade the house in energy
terms.

Justification of basement:

The occupiers of no. 5 question the need for a proposed basement in a
property that is already 7000 square foot. It seems to go beyond the needs
of a family and aimed towards maximising floor space and thus the value of
the property.

Concern over supporting material:

Basement Impact Assessment by Ground and Water at Appendix C
appeared to be missing.

The Arboriculture Report at annex D of the report makes comment about
the large Magnolia tree at the front out property that site near the east
boundary. Occupiers of no. 5 object to the RPA being adjusted on the basis
of a presumption particularly as the roots of this tree may be at grave risk
given its proximity of the area that is intended to be excavated for the
proposed basement.

Traffic and noise:

Concern the development will end up with even more traffic and blockages
on Alan Road particularly the removal of soil in digging the basement along,
which will result in numerous heavy load vehicles frequenting the property.
Concern that the path of no. 5 will be blocked up, particularly in times of
emergent.

Noise and disruption will have an adverse impact on health of surrounding
residents.

Wimbledon Society

e Character and appearance:

The high garage overfills the important street gap and appears to have a
first floor: the height should be significantly reduced. Additionally, the garage
eaves side wall on the site boundary is some 3.5m high and over 16m in
length: this could be considered very oppressive to the ajoining property.
Normal design guidance would limit this height to 2.5m (as now exists).

The placing of new windows in the boundary side wall, and facing directly
onto the neighbour property seems to be a gross invasion of privacy and
should never be countenanced.

Page | 6
Page 16



5.2
5.3

5.4
5.5

Proposed garage structure fails to respect the form of the main house on
the front elevation. The garage face should be set back a metre from the
front facade.

Any rear/side extension should also keep the important rear corner clear, so
that the character of the main ‘heritage’ building is fully evident and not
compromised.

The large proposed rear extensions is not convincing stylistically and does
not pick up on the more exuberant arts and crafts character of the building.

Basement construction

Introducing a basement to a Local List building raises major issues some of
which are set out in the Council’s policy DM D2 (b) and (c).

No cross sectional drawings were provided noting the basement levels and
how this relates to the buildings main structural elements.

Sustainability:

There is no attempt to upgrade the house for energy efficiency e.g. PV
panels, triple standard glazing, heat pumps and energy plan.

Internal

Environmental Health Officer: no objections subject to conditions

Conservation Officer:

Supportive of aspects of the application including the restoration of timber
windows and conservation rooflights. They note the design of the rear
extension is goof as it only goes partly cross the rear elevation noting this is
different to what has been proposed before.

Concerns over other aspects. They note the set back of the garage is
positive but would benefit from being set back 30cm more to be more
subservient. They have concern over the height of the garage roof which is
rather dominant and will have an impact on the neighbours. No mention is
made with regard to the air raid shelter. The CO tried to get this Listed but it
was not interesting enough for Historic England. CO Officer requests a
recording condition put on the air raid prior to demolition.

Flood Risk Officer: no objections subject to conditions

Tree Officer: no objections subject to conditions

POLICY CONTEXT

London Plan (2016)

Policy 5.12 Flooding
Policy 7.4 Local Character
Policy 7.6 Architecture

Page | 7
Page 17



7.1

7.2

Merton Core Strateqy (2011)

CS 14 Design
CS 16 Flood Risk Management

Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014)

DM D2 Design considerations

DM D3 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
DM D4 Managing heritage assets

DM F1 Support for flood risk management

DM F2 Sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) and; Wastewater and
Water Infrastructure

National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change

Chapter 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The key planning considerations for the proposed development include the
impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, host
building, impact on neighbouring amenity, basement construction and trees.

Basement Construction

Merton Sites and Policies Plan DM D2 (Design Considerations in all
Developments) outlines the following criteria for basement and subterranean
developments. Basements must:

Be wholly confined within the curtilage of the application property and be
designed to maintain and safeguard the structural stability of the application
building and nearby buildings;

Not harm heritage assets;

Not involve excavation under a listed building or any garden of a listed
building or any nearby excavation that could affect the integrity of the listed
building, except on sites where the basement would be substantially
separate from the listed building and would not involve modification to the

Page | 8
Page 18



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

foundation of the listed building such as may result in any destabilisation of
the listed structure;

e Not exceed 50% of either the front, rear or side garden of the property and
result in the unaffected garden being a usable single area;

¢ Include a sustainable urban drainage scheme, including 1.0 metre of
permeable soil depth above any part of the basement beneath a garden;

e Not cause loss, damage or long term threat to trees of townscape or
amenity value;

e Accord with the recommendations of BS 5837:2012 ‘Trees in relation to
design, demolition and construction recommendations’;

e Ensure that any externally visible elements such as light wells, roof lights
and fire escapes are sensitively designed and sited to avoid any harmful
visual impact on neighbour or visual amenity;

With regard to the above criteria, the proposed basement would be located
within the curtilage of the application site. The applicant has provided a
construction method statement which demonstrates there would not be damage
to adjoining structures or public road as a consequence of the proposed works
with the use of competent contractors.

The basement would be positioned under the existing footprint and to the rear
and would not exceed more than 50% of the front, rear or side garden of the
property. The Council’s Flood Officer is satisfied that the basement would not
have an adverse impact on flooding subject to surface and foul water drainage
scheme, and a drainage and groundwater management plan submitted and
approved by the Council prior to commencement.

The Council’s Tree Officer is satisfied that the proposed development would not
harm important trees onsite subject to conditions met.

Overall, the basement would remain largely concealed from view and the light
well is of a modest size located to the rear. Therefore, once complete, the
basement is not considered to cause undue harm to the appearance of the
locally listed building or the visual amenity in the wider context.

Whilst basement excavations are restricted under statutory listed buildings they
are not restricted under locally listed buildings.

For the points outlined above, the proposed basement is considered compliant
with the criteria set out in Policy DM D2 and is deemed acceptable.

Case officers are sympathetic to objections regarding potential disturbance
from noise associated with the basement development. However, Officers are
mindful that there is no development plan policy barrier that can refuse
basement development on the basis of disturbance associated with
construction. A construction management plan is conditioned to minimise
disruption to neighbouring properties, along with standard condition restricting
hours and days of construction.

Page | 9
Page 19



7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

Heritage, Character and appearance

Policy DM D2 and DM D4 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan requires
development to relate positively and appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale,
density, proportions, height, materials and massing of surrounding buildings
and existing street patterns, historic context (including conservation areas),
urban layout and landscape features of the surrounding area and to use
appropriate architectural forms, language, detailing and materials which
complement and enhance the character of the wider setting. The requirement
for good quality design and protection of heritage assets is further supported by
the London Plan London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6, 7.8 and Merton’s Core
Strategy Policy CS14. Policy DMD4 specifically requires developments not to
adversely impact the significance of heritage assets and their settings.

No. 3 Alan Road is locally listed and is located in the Wimbledon North
Conservation Area. The dwelling is a handsome early 19th century building with
ornate features but has been somewhat let down by unsympathetic alterations,
notably the white PVC windows. The wider area is characterised by similarly
sized detached two storey dwellings with accommodation in the roof and gaps
between dwellings. The Conservation Area Appraisal notes “Predominant
design features are the hipped and ridged roofs, some with curved pitches, the
tall chimneys, gable projections and bay windows. Dormers, barge-boards,
raked buttresses, porches and attached garages also feature, although the
latter are not always sympathetic in design terms. Again, there are varied sizes
and styles of windows, including arched, angled, square and curved bays,
mullion and small paned windows, and the use of leaded and stained glass”
(Wimbledon North Conservation Area Appraisal: Sub-Area 4: Belvedere).

The key elements of the proposal are discussed in turn below with regard to
their impact on heritage, character and appearance.

As noted above, the proposed basement would not have a significant impact on
the visual amenity of the dwelling itself or the wider conservation area and a
modestly sized single lightwell is proposed at the rear of the site.

Particular concern has been made with regard to the addition of the two-storey
side extension which will replace the existing garage. The proposed garage
would have a gable roof. The height of apex would be 6.23m with a parapet
wall height of 4.12m on the front elevation. As such, the height of the garage
would be 1.39m higher than the existing when viewed from the street. The
proposed garage would be set back by approximately 0.4m. The front elevation
of the garage would be finished in brick with stone coping to match the existing
dwelling. Unlike the existing garage, the ridge height would be consistent from
front to rear and a rear gable would project roughly 3.2m beyond the rear
elevation of the main dwelling. From front to rear, the eaves height would vary
from 3.41m at the front (for 5.35m in length) to 3.27m in height at the rear.

The architectural style would appear sympathetic to the appearance of the
surrounding area and the ridge height would retain suitable airspace above so
that a legible gap would remain between no. 1 and 3 Alan Road. The projection
of the roof to the rear would result in some change to character but given its
design and the fact that the rear elevation would not project beyond the building

Page | 10
Page 20



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

line of the existing side extension, this change is not considered harmful.
Taking into consideration the above, the overall scale, form and design of the
side extension would not cause material harm to the character and appearance
of the locally listed dwelling or the wider Conservation Area.

The single storey rear extension features brick fagade (to match existing), a
roof lantern and crittal windows. The extension would have an eaves height of
4.39m, depth of 6.81m and width of 6.95m. The proposed extension is
considered acceptable in respect of its appearance and given it would only
adjoin just under half the length of the rear elevation would appear subservient
to the proportions of the original dwelling.

The remaining alterations proposed comprise:

e Replacing a number of UPVC windows with traditional timber windows with
leaded casements on all elevations

e Four new windows on east elevation
e New dormer window on the front elevation

e New bay window and French doors, as well as new window above single
storey rear extension on rear elevation.

The above alterations are considered sympathetic to the appearance of the
locally listed building and acceptable in respect of heritage character and
appearance.

For the reasons above the proposed development is not considered to cause
material harm to the character and appearance and heritage significance of the
host dwelling or Wimbledon North Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore
compliant with Policy DM D2 and DM D4 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan.

Impact upon neighbouring amenity

SPP Policy DM D2 states that proposals must be designed to ensure that they
would not have an undue negative impact upon the amenity of neighbouring
properties in terms of loss of light, quality of living conditions, privacy, visual
intrusion and noise.

Impact on No. 1 Alan Road
Proposed side extension

As noted above, the side extension would have a ridge height of 6.23m running
from front to rear projecting approximately 3.2m beyond the rear of the main
dwelling. From front to rear, the eaves height would vary from 3.41m (for 5.35m
in length) to 3.27m in height.

Effort has been made to keep the eaves broadly similar to the existing garage,
although they would still be higher with the existing eaves which currently
measure 3.18m towards the front and 2.7m towards the rear. The increasing in
massing towards the boundary with no. 1 will primarily result from the new
gable roof which replaces a part gable, part flat, part hipped roof (please refer
to existing and proposed west elevation).

Page | 11
Page 21



7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

During the site visit, both 1 and 3 Alan Road were visited allowing officers to
gain a thorough understanding of the conditions along the boundary. There is
currently a gap between the eastern side elevation of no. 1 and the boundary
with no. 3. There are four windows located along the east side elevation of no.
1. Two of these windows serve a WC and Utility Room. Officers have no
particular concern over these windows given they serve non-habitable rooms.
The two remaining windows serve a TV/Study room. There would be some
increased sense of enclosure and loss of light here from the increase in
massing of the proposed roof. However, some consideration has to be made to
the fact these side windows are enclosed to some extent already by the main
block of no. 3 and by the existing side extension. Furthermore, No. 1 benefits
from a principle living room space in the south western part of the house.
Taking this in to consideration with the proposed eaves height and pitched roof,
the impact on light and outlook is not considered significant enough to warrant
refusal of the application and is not considered materially harmful.

At first floor level no. 1 Alan Road has four east facing windows along its
eastern side elevation. Three of these windows serve a laundry room, linen
room and landing. The remaining window serves a first floor bedroom which
benefits from dual aspect with an additional window facing the rear. The side
extension would result in a change in outlook in respect of the first floor side
facing bedroom window. However, the proposed pitch roof would maintain a
suitable degree of openness at first floor level and given the bedroom is dual
aspect, there is not considered to be any material harm to the amenity in
respect of these first floor rooms. There will similarly be some change in outlook
for the two second floor side facing windows at no. 1. These windows would be
located above the ridge line of the side extension therefore would not be
significantly impacted by the side extension.

Five rooflights are proposed on the pitched roof of the proposed side extension
facing number 1. Given the side extension shall be used as a garage and is
single storey, the rooflights are not considered to cause a harmful overlooking
relationship. That said, case officers recognise concerns over the potential to
incorporate a second storey within the building. The application can be judged
on proposed plans only, however should a second storey be incorporated this
could change the overlooking relationship in respect of the rooflights. Therefore
a condition is attached which requiring the occupier to obtain planning
permission from the council for such a change.

Two replacement side facing windows are proposed within the ground floor of
the side extension. A condition is attached requiring these to be obscure glazed
to match the existing obscure windows and maintain the existing overlooking
relationship.

Proposed single rear extension

The proposed single storey rear extension would be set 5.25m away from the
boundary no. 1 and although it would cause some change in outlook, due to the
gap to the boundary, there would be no material harm to the amenity of no. 1
from the rear extension.

There remaining alterations in proximity to no. 1, including the replacement
windows and lightwell would not have any significant impact on the amenity of

Page | 12
Page 22



7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

no. 1.
Impact on no. 5 Alan Road
Proposed new windows on eastern side elevation of no.

Three new windows and one replacement window are proposed at first floor
level on the proposed eastern side elevation. Two of these new windows would
serve a first floor bedroom and the remaining two would serve a dressing room.
Given the use of these rooms, a condition is attached to ensure the bottom
panels of all four windows would be obscure glazed thereby avoiding a harmful
overlooking relationship with the adjoining neighbour.

Proposed single storey rear extension

The proposed basement would cause some change in visual outlook from the
rear of no. 5 however, given the distance of the rear extension from the
boundary with no. 5 of approximately 12m, this impact is not harmful.

Impact on other surrounding properties

The proposed alterations to the front and rear of the dwelling would increase
overlooking towards the rear of properties on Church road and towards the
front of properties on the opposite side of Alan Road. This is a common
relationship already and this impact is not considered harmful. The restoration
to front elevation will likely benefit the outlook of residents on Alan Road and
improve the street scene.

Sustainability and Flooding

Policy CS15 requires developments creating new dwellings to implement
specific measures to address climate changes e.g. by meeting energy and
water efficiency targets. However, there are no sustainability requirements
required for householder applications of this type, with the exception of
demonstrating suitable sustainable drainage in relation to the construction of
basements in accordance with SPP DMD2, DMF1 and DMF2. This is
addressed by way of condition in accordance with guidance received from the
Council’s Flooding Officer. Therefore, the proposal is acceptable in respect of
sustainability and flooding.

Trees

London Plan Policy 7.1 and Policy 7.21, Merton Core Strategy Policy CS1 and
Sites and Policies Plan Policy DMO2 require development proposals to
conserve and enhance biodiversity and trees.

An arboricultural report was submitted with the application. Two ornamental
hedges are proposed to be removed at the front of the site to facilitate works
which has been approved already (18/T3134). The tree officer has reviewed the
supporting arboricultural information and is satisfied the proposals would not
cause material harm to trees of value subject to conditions met.

Page | 13
Page 23



8.1

9.1

CONCLUSION

The proposed development would serve to improve the overall aesthetic of the
locally listed building which has, over the years, been subject to unsympathetic
alterations. The proposed basement is compliant with Council’s policies in this
regard. The proposals are considered to be acceptable in respect of character
and appearance, neighbouring amenity, sustainability and flooding and trees.
Therefore it is recommended to grant planning permission, subject to
conditions.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant permission subject to conditions

Conditions

. A1 Commencement of development (full application)

. A7 Approved Plans: The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in

accordance with the following approved plans: PL401 (Rev B), PL402, PL403,
PL405, PL406, PL407, PL407, PL411 (Rev A)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning

. B1 External Materials: No development shall take place until details of

particulars and samples of the materials to be used on all external faces of the
development hereby permitted, including window frames and doors
(notwithstanding any materials specified in the application form and/or the
approved drawings), have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval. No works which are the subject of this condition shall be carried out
until the details are approved, and the development shall be carried out in full
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to comply
with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.6 of the London
Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM
D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014

. D11 Construction Times: No demolition or construction work or ancillary

activities such as deliveries shall take place before 8am or after 6pm Mondays -
Fridays inclusive, before 8am or after 1pm on Saturdays or at any time on
Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and the occupiers of
neighbouring properties and ensure compliance with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.15 of the London Plan 2016 and policy DM EP2
of Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

. Obscure Glazing: Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, the

bottom panels of the first floor windows in the eastern side elevation, with the
exception of the sidelights serving the rear bay window, shall be glazed with
obscured glass and shall be maintained as such thereafter.

Page | 14
Page 24



Reason: To safeguard the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton:
policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan
2014.

. Demolition and Construction Method Statement: No development shall take
place until a Demolition and Construction Method Statement has been submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the demolition and construction
period.

The Statement shall provide for:

- hours of operation

- the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

- loading and unloading of plant and materials

- storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

- the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative -
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

- wheel washing facilities

- measures to control the emission of noise and vibration during construction.

- measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction/demolition

- ascheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works

Reason: To protect the amenities of future occupiers and those in the local
vicinity.

. Tree Protection: The details and measures for the protection of the existing
trees as specified in the hereby approved document ‘“Trees and Construction
BS5837:2012 Tree Survey, Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Method
Statement and Tree Protection Plan’ reference 20171/A2_AIA AMS’ and dated
'March 2020’ shall be fully complied with. The methods for the protection of the
existing trees shall fully accord with all of the measures specified in the report
and shall be installed prior to the commencement of any site works and shall
remain in place until the conclusion of all site works.

Reason: To protect and safeguard the existing retained trees in accordance with
the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.21 of the London
Plan 2015, policy CS13 of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies
DM D2 and 02 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan 2014;

. F8 Site supervision: The details of the approved ‘Trees and Construction BS
5837:2012 Tree Survey, Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Method
Statement’ shall include the retention of an arboricultural expert to monitor and
report to the Local Planning Authority not less than monthly the status of all tree
works and tree protection measures throughout the course of the demolition and
site works. A final Certificate of Completion shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority at the conclusion of all site works. The works shall be carried

Page | 15
Page 25



out in accordance with the approved Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree
Protection Plan.

Reason: To protect and safeguard the existing retained trees in accordance with
the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.21 of the London
Plan 2016, policy CS13 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy
DMO2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Surface and foul water drainage scheme: Prior to the commencement of
development, a detailed scheme for the provision of surface and foul water
drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority for both phases of the development. The drainage scheme will dispose
of surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) at the
agreed runoff rate (no more than 2I/s), in accordance with drainage hierarchy
contained within the London Plan Policy (5.12, 5.13 and SPG) and the advice
contained within the National SuDS Standards

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk does
not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2 and the
London Plan policy 5.13.

10.Drainage and groundwater scheme: Prior to the commencement of

11.

development, the applicant shall submit a detailed proposal on how drainage and
groundwater will be managed and mitigated during and post construction
(permanent phase), for example through the implementation of passive drainage
measures around the basement structure.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk does
not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2 and the
London Plan policy 5.13

C02 No Permitted Development (windows and doors): Notwithstanding the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no window, door or other opening other than
those expressly authorised by this permission shall be constructed in the side
elevations without planning permission first being obtained from the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of nearby
properties and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton:
policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan
2014.

12.First floor restriction: A first floor shall not be installed within the side extension

herby permitted containing the garage and scullery unless first otherwise
approved in writing by Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of nearby
properties and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton:
policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning

Page | 16
Page 26



Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan
2014.

13.Informative: No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public highway
including the public footway or highway. When it is proposed to connect to a
public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final
manhole nearest the boundary. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a
public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be
required (contact no. 0845 850 2777).

14.Informative: No waste material, including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats,
oils and chemicals shall be washed down on the highway or disposed of into the
highway drainage system.

15.Informative: The applicant is advised to check the requirements of the Party
Wall Act 1996 relating to work on an existing wall shared with another property,
building on the boundary with a neighbouring property, or excavating near a
neighbouring building. Further information is available at the following link:
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/buildingpolicyandlegislation/
current legislation/partywallact

Page | 17
Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31

CORYTUGHT AND LIASLITY NOTES:

rarran (2 propey
Doaign T cla forthis prcect wi e Roasaec 1o zue Bl e et
Tha

reprred
Pask Archsachrs + Dengn.

‘e D Lt comamisioried by e clus. 1| VEFLY
IMECATANT fuat 51 Simarmcr s chachad camhily bafors amy werk

Fla tna cortact Pask Archibectuss. * Dauige frrssdiaaly

DO KOT SCALE LISE FIGUNED CIMENSIONS OHLY
it

A
ek or Fia prostaction oy step dmerg.

Enginesrs crasngs anc any oter s ik

11250 @A3 ° 123 @3 s m
LN S —

o5 Exioe - nisaas
SEPT 2018 AH
Architecture
+ Design Ltd




This page is intentionally left blank



T T i = e e | - A e

Snoensy | M3 ...®

LT

o D ookt ¥ Wrd  oEed
oy S i i
NYld LNSWISVE GE80d0¥d

FIBUBSTY O] SIS MoU

winpsds sfeurem Ay
I SEE mpRiun

BRI VIIITWIN

nnoqe .
SN0y BOYS TuA) PSD

00D wifimy gy pur
il o e e
P 370G U
IO ENID
s s g fm sty

Lr i

Buamen days dow o sosnpeat v = yom

AT BMOIENGMID D3UEMS 35N IWOS LON 00 (many n nBuTy | soNs
s ubna - riay YA S s el iy

Ve o 8 RIS PR A LRI Y R | WL
KB 1 g ) o heag ety
-

ieng o mryERy .y
F vemniind my o s o w3 P perpE
v o g baim e e v s 1 s

n.
!».bl.ﬂa!nil._s.lli:.l.inl.» vy
. L

FALOW ALTRIVYY QMY LHMALDD

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



.

lightwell to basement !
level with spiral stair |

case and metal railings
)

large stale roof
lantern|over ]

1

1

|

1

I

1

I

I
[

TERRACE / PATIO

T ————
Line of small velux rooflights over M W
' | |Tmeer
|
Infill small | -
outside area |
and new roof [ _— o
| ) T
over | e 1o | v
I | ~ -
! N
| N
| UEST e
1 LOAKS ¥

BACK-OF-HOUSE - BOOTROOM
ENTRANCE HALL N

i
I
I
I
I
|
|
I
I
I
|
I
I
|
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
|
I
I
I
I
|
I
i
I
I
I
I
|
I
Existing windows to be replaced. GARAGE

FAMILY ROOM

i
i
i
i
i
i
i ST
See elevations for further | p— ! !
information. [ - !
. ! \\ //
! 1 P—
QJ Ll P be
Lo N
Existing windows to be replaced ;o L I e k3 N
D See elevations for further Lo \ . \
information. ro Y., o 1
P ANTI-ROOM / -
w i e GUESTWC LIBRARY
i | [
(@)} o
Line of small velux rooflights over . I T |« [ S I S
Pl a
! 1
! 1
! T srore v S
i
i B "
[
! HALL
i
i
! 2
!
i
|
‘
i
i
i
!
i
i
i
i
i
i

Garage set back from existing position,

RECEPTION

300mm, and walls/glazed brick = . .
refurbished. 'Up and over' doors in T
traditional timber style. Aco drain to front -4 I o i
of garage
Modern UPVC windows replaced with

STUDY

new traditional timber casement leaded R § ﬁ Bz
windows

(front wall and gate etc as per
previous permission)

COPYRIGHT AND LIABILITY NOTES;

The design and drawings remain the property of Peek Architecture +
Vertical glass panels  Design. The client for this project will be licensed to use this design and
for light into basement documents on this site only upon full payment of architectural fees. This

below

Peek Architecture + Design.
Garden landscaped 9

license is non-transferable.The design and drawings shall not be
reproduced, up-loaded to the interet or traced without the permission of

with stone steps down This drawing has been prepared from a survey drawing from Peek
from raised terrace Architecture and Design Ltd commisioned by the client. It is VERY
IMPORTANT that all dimensions are checked carefully before any work
commences or any materials are ordered. If any discrepencies are
) noticed between this drawing and any other contract document then
New two tone brick (t0 please contact Peek Architecture + Design immediately.

match existing) to

extension with crittal DO NOT SCALE USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY
doors and fan lights Al dimensions to be verified on site prior to the commencement of any

work or the production of any shop drawing

This drawing to be read in conjunction with all related Architect's and
Engineer's drawings and any ofher relevant information

GENERAL NOTES:

New bay with matching
doors and windows

New side gate to access
the rear

New stairs to basement
to match existing

Scale bar
New timber framed 0 5m
traditional style window,
l02:0320| C | General amendments. D
o |3 E—— § ¢
L tE
3 Alan Road , London, SW19
DRAWING NAVE:
PROPOSED GROUND PLAN
PROJECTNO:  DRAWINGNO:  REVISION: SCALE @SIZE:
P925 PL401 B 1:100 @ A3

START DATE: FIRST AUTHOR:

FEB 2020 GT

PEEK ‘ Architecture
+ Design Ltd

Addross: 1213 Poland Stroet, London, W1F 8QB.

| Tel0207 734 3094




This page is intentionally left blank



)€ abed

COPYRIGHT AND LIABILITY NOTES:

The design and drawings remain the property of Peek Architecture +
Design. The client for this project wil be licensed to use this design and
documents on this site only upon full payment of architectural fees. This
license is non-transferable. The design and drawings shall not be
reproduced, up-loaded to the internet or traced withou the permission of
Peek Architecture + Design

This drawing has been prepared from a survey drawing from Peek
Architecture and Design Ltd commisioned by the client. It is VERY
IMPORTANT that all dimensions are checked carefully before any work
commences or any materials are ordered. If any discrepencies are
noticed between this drawing and any other contract document then

+ please contact Peek Architecture + Design immediately.

DO NOT SCALE USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY
Al dimensions to be verified on site prior to the commencement of any
work or the production of any shop drawing.

This drawing to be read in conjunction with all related Architects and
Engineer's drawings and any other relevant information

GENERAL NOTES:

New kitchen extension with lead roof \K
and stone coping and painted timber
roof lantern

wp wp ’
New ralif goods [o] o |
Tiled roof to garage to match existing I l Existing window opening widened to five casements
| and converted to oriel window with traditoinal lead
flat roof and brick under. Modern UPVC windows
= r replaced with new traditional timber casement
l leaded windows
Conservation grade top hung roof lights ’
Existing window enlarged and converted to bay
wp |+ window, existing modern UPVC windows replaced
fps Qo Soins S e & | [ with new traditional timber casement leaded
'IV =3 windows
g L !
Conservation grade top hung roof lights { \ T
Existing sill height raised, window \ New window to match existing and in line with
height to rear bedroom reduced. ‘ above/below
1 R
BEDROOM |
Existing sill height raised, and window |
made wider to match that of the other T BEDROOM
window to Bed 03. -- - I
o o e 777773 New window to match existing and in line with
Existing fat roof here has lower ) ! L || above/below
eaves S g | |
z ‘ ] v
! ] o |
BATHROOM|  o\ricoom = ; s 4’%}
__ Existing sill height raised, window iy ‘ | E % -
height reduced. (see section DD below) s LANDING oy o New window to match existing and in line with
i | | I b ~ above/below
Conservation grade top hung roof light ] - -
- ] | = Scale bar
X — . . C 1
S | 0 5m
Conservation grade top hung roof lights ‘
| DRESSING
BEDROOM | BATHROOM 020320 G | Gonerat Amendments oW
| H g |8
L i 2 REVISION COMMENTS: § §
| 3 ¥ [
parapet with decorative shaped cs(;glr;‘eg ‘ | l 3 Alan Road, London, SW19
77777777777 |
777777777 - ‘ Madern UPVC windows to be DRAWING NAME:
Existing line of garage, proposed to replaced with new traditional
Step back to be subservient to house ‘ tirr tlljef leaded PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR
windows
| PROJECTNO:  DRAWINGNO:  REVISION: SCALE @ SEZE:
Modern UPVC windows replaced with P925 PL402 1:100 @ A3
new traditional timber casement leaded | STRRTBATE TR TR
windows with Acoustic glass
‘ FEB 2020 GT
R Architecture
7 )
(A + Design Ltd
L
‘Adiess. 1213 Poland Sireel, London, W1F 605
ol 0207 734 2004




This page is intentionally left blank



6€ abed

Proposed oriel window with kead flat

raod, under main saves

Replacemnent traditional timber
casement lsaded wirndows.

MNew bay

window bo exesing

/7 opening if bradiional style

Exmsting rpaf light position

i

Ersting kape roof &
mnd made good havich on
plifisy re-locaded)

— 1

retamed.
e one

Meve roaf

Roaflight replaced with

and misal glared hatchipuey

Enisting U

Linckar

IPYC minsiows replaces]

with traditional imbes windows.

Mew Diorny

Ewmsting o
marich ewi)
timber wirjdaw

Exdsting g

her i match existing.

prmer returbshed o
fting with new traditional

with rmw

;ﬂhfﬁhbem

(ECP ST AN LB T NOTER:

1- mmnngs 1 fw Eopeny of Fesk Acterios T
it far bhin ropars will B brarmand i o o clmage
J-n—u-uf-—mq-umdnu-uui— T
—-n—-—-l:-l-n-—nnmmt—l_l-

mmi-_ﬂ-hnﬂ it e
Famt Mizzure © Oamge

Tlut—qr—_mm mLress cruwrra rrars Fess

H br;--l.u:'.lﬂl!
mmu-:a—-nmn-:-mr:d-m-
ETErCE @ sy TEET we o H e

‘=nhoad Setem fn ey wx ﬂ-mi-:lnn_h
ptwa conbu it Pesh A trmstes Lu'n-—.

DOHOT SCE LEE FRUHED [RWE NSNS (LY
&} Erammorn b me verbed on e in B ST ey
sk e pcicson ab sy st dreeg

Tinn simmry b b i o e garcon ks of el A=
Emgresr 1 TIIwETH BT ST DFW (MR DTTTT——

CERERAL ROTES:

a &m
fo= ] & | sem— o f
ll — ”

3 Alan Road, London, SW19

arwer oee e )

Architecturs
+ Design Ltd

[T ——_— i T

| i




This page is intentionally left blank



W chamnay pots o replace
anlsting

Msw consarsaion ool kgnts o
front slope o replace eeisiing.

Existing modum UFVC windows o
b d with e iradsianal

COFRICHT A L/ 1T NOTES

Thm e g et o Fush Arcisuciun +
Lwngn :I--’Ih st wil b s i o chme it
LIELTIETIL I ms Sy Lo bal ST o W RErnTm b
Enrnm & e Tha L] weal ot b
e

[ra——— Pry— e

Fumt Sr=ziwrturw = (emy
Thes cruserej.Frm S i prrast ferrs o merwry ity s Pask

Aociamciz and Lie oo by e cere b SERT
WECHTANT b wit rw fachad comuby Talrs e weis

DOHOT S0AE LSE RCURED DIMERECMHE DHLY
il EreweE—TY e erithed O mis e 0 S o ey
wnth o e pratucson af ey g ey

Thea o o 1 N Wl o st ARty
e —— P T e -

mmmm:m

Euxishing domeen iohuisshad & maick tha

‘aniEng wih niw wincaws i maloh

Wirs Coma mindce i malch e

Ambar casEmend loaded wandows

Doermer 10 1uar o i faced i
Mo to malch rosf

;1%“““’“‘""‘"“"
Q [ ;ui; mal fivsa of

@D
PIEN'MI’J. ' 50 ot only

FrnT‘.l.IllDl:l.l.llntﬁ:lmmllﬂl.
wilh tracklional

HHHHHUEHHHER

Une of proposed B i

aisang dealing

Gacty o Fra Hircwgh e wnoow bsioe
By Mfoce doss

M (Tl on of leasea window
1eplaca Exisiing

Existing modam LPWE winoows ruplaced wik
naw tradsonal lmber catamen sadod noows

Ttan

Bl i

—
i

o i ] 2 | e a— e c— FaC

i -l

3 Alan Road, London, SW18

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

=T Ak LR L AL RE @ RS

P2 PL&0S 1-100 3 A3

FEE 20 aT

PEEK | “5esoniis

Srmren i 15 Pt s s W
= | -




This page is intentionally left blank



COFYRCHT a0 LinE Ty NOTES

'lr-ﬂ g et o Fush Arcisuciun +

n ke R e il o Fon cieesg and
mmh—mmum = wrepsrursd s The
e & e renete Tha weal it b
remmsad up om0 P he pmre
Fumt Sr=ziwrturw = (emy

hnn—qr-s-mm---pa—qrunP—

i s oy dw cere hoa SERT
lF.‘l'l'uHTu-l-t m Aackad carbaby vabs mT W
CITTRRITNL F @T TWENEE B roewr W ary Seemagennes e
roloed ameen s BN ey B ﬂ-:nt:ln:'-ﬂhn

DOHOT SEALE LEE RICURED DAVERECHE WY
Al ey o e eried o0 mis e o Se CrTer ey
wnth o e pratucson af ey g ey

Thin ot B e CoTRChR Wi e st A e sty
o — T T O e T

Mgay Ehamiiy Dols b0 FEplCELD SRILNRG

i e replaced
wmwmmﬂmmrw
s

Extsfing maoaem LIFVC sincows [ = =] =
reraced with now adSonal mbar

DakEmd Baded windnes 3 Engling window DRang widenad 10 T
= 1 Emotmromm e A CEGSMEns and Tonverid & onel window wih
Ir.‘.l:ll\:l'l.lllﬂml'll et and bk wrdder, Modem
UPVC wvrinvs raplansd with new radilional
THTEST CRSETPEAT Rarar Windows

m:wlnwu Emhar ani glass rool

lantsrey betind
Emistirgg wantow evdmrgad and =z = =
mnwﬂn:gbu AT, ?:Ih 14 [AEE| T TITJ_'LrI.T‘ e L e vy | Oy Ll Ly L Ly
-U modam ArAHAE {o0k H == == i
with Fay rmckbioral tmbor casemand F T R ] T e ] - = o | [T PR
(@] 5] || Eein 5 225 Tl | EEHEHIEE T | . e AT A, _
. i E r 1 e — TR ] G P AT i
o O
m g R T T e Ty T e D T e Ty Ty Ly iy L T FL ririn e Lo AT ety L PRy R r—|L-- o B e 18 h e i Drick, with. peall
e z = = 1 = AN 7o trattonal
'h 5 S L T T I T L o e LOLT b = = t 3 Ascussed guiter with siepnod brcs parapat io
w — = ’ o i saa wal
i) R pARREL i
— - = ) AT 1 M AT 17 - it
g EREEiana Rk ] s LA E o 3 (H]
= £ ﬁﬁ AT T FCEA AT i Ewiging lunca
E"“W o b TepCEd i iy 4 s A RE g 2 . = 4 e i b M T U @ ovar cos i iraaibona
with s onal lasded window " “1 4 v L B H styla
windiw openig et |4 T T i i i il a - i bl 3 i
“’ﬂ“ﬁ, T h ¥ » 3 ” Traditioral riack rafings SUToGn i
wc 10 b dronpod. e i R s = i1 B 4 i e e
Mo Nenoh doony amd i i Tk i i i
mgﬂlm casaman i 5 I iomanm
o T T | | = 1
1 I I T I T B s
ko ria larTace and landscaping ! - '
o pardan e B e B T od
[ (B -4 b
[ [ ] (] [
(] [ (] [
[ [ [ [
[ (] i [
: " [ ] 1§ [
Lirg: of propossd b b Lrpchar el r [ b — [
asiing dwsding [ [ [ o
[ [ ] 1§ [ AT CE—
(] [ (] [ l
[ [ [ [
[ (] i [
T R xR N N | T
T B T Ty | 3 Alan Road, London, SW18
e e e e H
E——
PROPOSED ELEVATION
Proposot TOAT QRSN (IGpaong Whiee REAR
Ol Boemill Shaled wal] now Iwo s brck (i
rI'I.I'J'It:I‘.Iﬂn m?mm:mwm LT DR RS SRR RN R
R b Naw N s
castelatod thing sl o maich auising PEIS  PL40G 1-100 3 A3
Frias e [
FEB 2020 aGT

Architecturs
+ Design Ltd




This page is intentionally left blank



%mﬁa | v_m_m_n_

19 iﬂ

s e
Ok B00d g
e v o ok owoE
'NOLIWATTE LS3M J38040Hd

BHMS ‘UopuoT ‘PeOY eI €

=

[ Y

—————r—| ¥

wedins
Bupineg U yaw oy
Burdoa mucs, _!..u..ucnhm.urz
subsons ngjosd
famdoid

__________

..............

T TF T JTTTTT L7

aigl:u!lﬂ?uuﬂ.g

eosmigs s e e e
:lilnallll!lu..!_:lﬂﬂnnm.lalc

MO SHOIENINI (EMN0H 350 TS 10K 00

+ iy ey dyckad g e s

FELON 4 LWENT] O LHOA0D

| A

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



P o] ——

| v_mmn_

.—USE
[EE—, e p—

Ok ord  seed

a® e o owmw o

BHMS ‘UopuoT ‘PeOY eI €

£ o3 spued =90 moued
wanoq moysg/esnge waneq mopg e
g poungm oy - DU oy
SRODAN BDE (UG SRy Ul e Busme woiew uy pur fiupses g
U SI00D UDUS MaN O ope maN 08 MOpUI WER
IIIIIIIIIIII _
g o spued. A BRI
| wopoq wopgmecgE  py o Ruoos oo
| ype Bug ©4 'BUN LY pUT BAogE
P Buses yoww OO LM YD 0
| ] wOpam waN  ADTUS O O map
|
|
|
|
|
|
/_ i
_______ )

B | AR R |

i T L e e
i ik i e A G | p i
- * - =
MU DepER| JILIBETD B
U e s preye)
MU TN Lepow B
1T = I
LLILITI LILIILIINIIITILT LLL
WNITTTT ________________ [T ___._
T11 T
T : TT
= AR
. - 2 LA wmoeipe sy
. - - SIRe e X UDEAYD LA O, OGRS
— 7 IT1L LLT] i
i
i
o sikeeuns o sod feuwrs won

eosmigs s e e e sy
P ey P e L P 4 A 0
S S A |2 ucaorpsd

5 O L T W O L] I L P 3G BRI
MO SHOIENINI (EMN0H 350 TS 10K 00

p— o peroer:
- g paces = s e
7ot et Ve s e ] A e
-
g
+ mryRasy ey 5 e mg s Ry ey
BEUON A LIENT] ONY (KO0

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



P o] ——

| v_mmn_

.—USE
[EE—, e p—

Ok ord  seed

a® e o owmw o

BHMS ‘UopuoT ‘PeOY eI €

£ o3 spued =90 moued
wanoq moysg/esnge waneq mopg e
g poungm oy - DU oy
SRODAN BDE (UG SRy Ul e Busme woiew uy pur fiupses g
U SI00D UDUS MaN O ope maN 08 MOpUI WER
IIIIIIIIIIII _
g o spued. A BRI
| wopoq wopgmecgE  py o Ruoos oo
| ype Bug ©4 'BUN LY pUT BAogE
P Buses yoww OO LM YD 0
| ] wOpam waN  ADTUS O O map
|
|
|
|
|
|
/_ i
_______ )

B | AR R |

i T L e e
i ik i e A G | p i
- * - =
MU DepER| JILIBETD B
U e s preye)
MU TN Lepow B
1T = I
LLILITI LILIILIINIIITILT LLL
WNITTTT ________________ [T ___._
T11 T
T : TT
= AR
. - 2 LA wmoeipe sy
. - - SIRe e X UDEAYD LA O, OGRS
— 7 IT1L LLT] i
i
i
o sikeeuns o sod feuwrs won

eosmigs s e e e sy
P ey P e L P 4 A 0
S S A |2 ucaorpsd

5 O L T W O L] I L P 3G BRI
MO SHOIENINI (EMN0H 350 TS 10K 00

p— o peroer:
- g paces = s e
7ot et Ve s e ] A e
-
g
+ mryRasy ey 5 e mg s Ry ey
BEUON A LIENT] ONY (KO0

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20th August 2020.

Item No:
UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
19/P4094 22.11.2019
Address/Site Imperial Fields Tooting & Mitcham Football Club
Bishopsford Road
Morden
SM4 6BF
(Ward) Ravensbury
Proposal: ERECTION OF 6 STOREY RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

COMPRISING 77 RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND LANDCAPING

Drawing Nos; Site location plan and drawings 17/640/P006 Rev E,
17/640/P600 Rev B, 17/640/P601 Rev A, 17/640/P602 Rev A,
17/640/P603 Rev B, 17/640/P604, 17/640/P605, 17/640/P606
Rev D, 17/640/P008 Rev B 17/640/P610, 17/640/P611,
17/640/P612, 17/640/P613, 17/640/P614, 17/640/P615 &
17/640/P620A Rev A.

Contact Officer: Neil Milligan

RECOMMENDATION

1) Grant Permission subject to conditions and S106 legal agreement.

CHECKLIST INFORMATION.
e Heads of agreement: Yes
e Is a screening opinion required: No
e |s an Environmental Statement required: No
¢ Has an Environmental Impact Assessment been submitted: No
e Design Review Panel consulted: Yes,
e Number of neighbours consulted: 116

Page 51



1.1

2.1

2.2

Press notice — Yes

Site notice — Yes

External consultations: Yes. LB Sutton, GLA, Metropolitan Police, Thames
Water, Environment Agency, National Trust, Bat Conservation Trust, GLAAS,
Sport England

Archaeological Priority Zone — Yes

Flood risk zone - No

Controlled Parking Zone — No

Number of jobs created: N/A

Density 157 Dwellings per hectare

PTAL 2 (Poor) on a scale of 0 to 6B where 6B is highest.

Adjacent to the Wandle Valley Conservation Area

INTRODUCTION

The application has been brought before the Committee at the request of
Councillor Martin Whelton. The application was due for determination by
members at the June 18" 2020 meeting but was withdrawn from the agenda
by the applicant. For the time being, the decision of Merton’s Planning
Committee is not the final decision as the major application is required to be
referred to the Mayor of London for any direction.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The application site is an undeveloped parcel of land with an area of approx.
0.4847 hectares and is located at the western corner of the wider TM United
Hub site facing the A217 Bishopsford Road. The site has the clubs’ sporting
facilities directly to the north and is surrounded to the east and south east by
Poulters Park, which as with the application site are designated as
Metropolitan Open Land. Housing located within the LB of Sutton on Hillfield
Avenue is located to the south of the site whilst a mixture of houses, flats and
commercial premises face the site along Bishopsford Road.

The site provides a number of sporting facilities and is a Registered Ofsted
provider for ages 14-16 and id a dept for Education Accredited Alternative
Education Provider. The applicants have won a number of awards including;

2019 - Playfinder — Outstanding Sports Facility Award

December 2018 — Playfinder — Outstanding Facility of the Month Award
Merit Award Centre

Fair Train Bronze Award for work experience placements

2007 MJ Local Government Achievement Awards — Best public-private
partnership

Page 52



2.3

2.4

The site has recently hosted a number of events including;

Mental Health First Aid — Imagine Independence

Gangs, County Lines and Systematic Youth Violence and Interventions —
MVSC

First Aid — Job Centre

Job entry — Job Centre

Adverse Childhood Experiences Film — Metropolitan police

The applicant requested that members be aware of the following facilities on
site

Merton College, Aurora Centre

The Aurora Centre work with young adults with learning disabilities and /or
ASD. TM united provide work experience opportunities for the students in
gardening and cleaning.

Merton Council

TMCSC works with Mellissa Stewart, Commissioning Manager for Alternative
Education and RPA to provide career advice for academy students. Member
of Merton Council economic and wellbeing committee.

Merton Voluntary Service Council

TMCSC works in partnership with MVSC and sits on the local youth
partnership group.Venue for the start/finish of the inaugural Wandle 2.5k walk/
fun run for Homestart Merton

Mitcham Job Centre
Mitcham Job Centre utilise the venue for training courses and annual disability
job fair.

National Trust

TM United has worked in partnership with the National Trust on their Green
Academies project both at Imperial Fields and Farm Road. They offer training
via the AQA Merit Award System to unaccompanied asylum seekers; students
form the Aurora Centre and Generate a local disability group.

Sutton and District Training

Vocational training and qualifications for the TM United football scholarship
programme are run through Sutton and District training.

Sutton Young Care Leavers

Activity and workshop sessions for Sutton Young Care Leavers.

United Living
Delivering vocational training and qualifications for the community from Farm
Road.

Functions, training & events at TM United
The function room caters for up to 200 people and is used for meetings,
courses, workshops, functions and events. The facility has provided a space

Page 53



for funeral and wakes for the local Tamil, Hindu and Nepalese community,
teacher training, South London Nepalese Gurkha Association cultural events,
Ghanaian Independence celebration, Friends in St Helier parties, Merton
Volunteer Service Council workshops and awards evening, Club
presentations evenings, Christenings, Weddings and Birthday parties.

TM United Kickers
Fun football sessions run by TMCSC for 4-10-year-olds every Tues eve 5-6
pm and Sat morning 9-10 am. Average attendance 15.

TM United Youth

Mixed youth football teams run by TMCSC for children aged 11 to 16-Year-
Olds, teams have training from qualified coaches one night a week and play in
the Tandridge League on a Sunday. This season teams included 2 x U12, 2x
U13, 2 x U14, 2 x U15, 1 x U16 totalling 250 children.

TM United Football Scholarship Programme

A full-time education programme delivered by TMCSC for 16-18-Year-Olds
providing opportunities to study BTEC Sport level 2 or 3 or vocational
qualifications in plumbing or construction. The current programme has 62
boys registered. Next year the programme will expand to include a degree
programme.

Tooting and Mitcham Under 18’s

The students within the academy programme have opportunities to play for
Tooting & Mitcham United FC at U18 level in the Tandridge League, Isthmian
Youth League and in the Virtual Learning UK (VLuk) league.

Tooting and Mitcham Under 23’s

Providing a pathway from the youth teams into the first team the U23’s team
bridges the gap and provides competitive opportunities playing in the Isthmian
Development League. The U23’s squad consists of 35 players.

Tooting and Mitcham United FC

The senior team at TMUFC play Step 4 football in the Isthmian South Central
League, with home games taking place at Imperial Fields 3 pm on Saturday
and 7:45 pm on a Tuesday evening. Average attendances to games this
season have been over 200. The club has a track record of developing young
players to a good standard as demonstrated by the progress of the following
players, Abraham Odoh (Charlton Academy), Lexus Beeden (Reading
Academy), Saidou Khan (Maidstone first team) and Tope Fadahunsi
(Loughborough University).

TM Walking Football

Walking football delivered by TMUFC takes place every Monday evening from
5:30-6:30 pm providing physical and social activity for adults over the age of
50. Average attendance 15.

Tooting Bec FC

Page 54



Tooting Bec FC ground share with TMUFC, with their first team play at Step 6
in the Combined Counties League. They run 2 other adult men’s teams, a
women’s team, playing in the Greater London Women’s League, and a
veteran’s side.

AFC Wimbledon
AFC Wimbledon delivers training for their scholars aged 13-16 years at
Imperial fields 3 times a week.

AFC Wimbledon Girls and Ladies
Various youth teams train at Imperial Fields totalling 3 sessions a week.

AFC Wimbledon Foundation

AFC Foundation uses the facilities at Imperial fields to deliver various
activities including Walking Football on a Wednesday evening (20) and a
Friday Night League (Kicks sessions) for 14 to 21-year-olds.

Fulham Foundation
Fulham delivers a Saturday Skills Training session for 5-11-year-olds every
Saturday.

Elite 10 Coaching

Run a Development Centre every Tuesday 5-6:30 pm and an Elite Centre
every Thursday 5-6:30 pm at Imperial Fields as well as an Academy
programme for 16-19 years olds which has 40 students.

St George’s Medical School
St George’s Medical School use the artificial pitches for training and matches
for their 4 men’s teams on the at Imperial Fields

Disability Football

Several disability organisations use the facilities at Imperial fields for training
and matches including Care Management Group (Adult Male Learning
Group), Generate (Adult Male Learning disability) and St Georges Mental
Health team. In partnership with AFC Wimbledon, a pan-disability league
operates from the facility 4 times a year providing local competition.

Annual charity match

Held at the end of the season TMUFC organise a charity match to raise fund
for Bloodwise, the UK's leading blood cancer research charity

Football Training for local clubs

The artificial pitches at Imperial fields enable local clubs to run training
sessions including, Ahmadiyya Muslim Youth (AMY) FC (Adult Male), Cheam
Sports (Adult Male), KFC Club (Adult Male), Morden Shooting Stars FC (Male
11-16 yrs), PRL White Eagles (Polish group, Adult Male), Wimbledon Town
FC (Youth), Worcester Park Colts (Youth Male).

Merton School Sports Partnership

Page 55



3.1

3.2

Merton SSP uses the facilities to host their primary school games
competitions including the Year 5/6 Tag Rugby finals (16 teams), Key Stage 2
Inclusive Football Festival (30 teams), Year 5/6 Football Finals (16 Boys and
16 girls teams).

Schools

Several schools use the facilities for PE curricular sessions, extra-curricular
activities and matches including Graveney school (male & female matches),
Glenthorne High School (PE sessions, summer term), Cricket Green School
(disability coaching with AFC Wimbledon)

DSActive

DSActive run a multisport summer camp for people with Down’s Syndrome
aged 5+ increasing their physical activity, confidence, social skills &
Wellbeingengaging over 50 participants (see case study 1)

Rugby at TM United
Harlequins and Old Rutlishians regularly use the facilities at Imperial Fields for
training sessions.

Lacrosse at TM United

The artificial pitches are also suitable for Lacrosse and several teams use
Imperial Fields for matches and training. Hillcroft Lacrosse Club has their
home games at Imperial Fields using the front artificial pitch. They have 3
men’s teams and 1 women’s team using the facilities on a regular basis.
Putney Ladies and English Lacrosse team request use the facilities on an ad-
hoc basis for matches or training.

Cycling Proficiency

CURRENT PROPOSAL

This application involves the erection of a 6 STOREY RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING COMPRISING 77 RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND LANDCAPING. During the application process the quantum of
parking to be provided on site has been reduced from 77 to 55 spaces.

This proposed brick finished block has four storeys facing Bishopsford Road
rising to six storeys towards the rear. The block would be surrounded to the
east and south by a revised layout of 55 parking spaces including disabled and
EV facilities. The parking would be split into smaller sections through the
provision of landscape features with most of the landscaping in the form of trees
being located to the north and west of the block with 160sgm playground to the
east. A 375sgm communal roof terrace is also proposed at fourth floor level to
provide a variety of uses with the remainder of the roof on the higher levels
being used to provide PV panels.

Page 56



3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Although originally stated as providing 31 affordable units and 46 private units
the proposals are now stated to be 100% affordable on the basis of all the units
being shared ownership. The unit mix is indicated as being 15 x1 bed 2 person,
16x 2b3p and 46x 2b4p with 8 as wheelchair accessible or easily adapted for
wheelchair use with three of these units at ground floor level, three at first floor
and two at second floor level.

The applicant states that the proposals are to be an enabling development to
provide new sports facilities on site, namely; 1)A New Entrance Block/Sports
Hall:- This is proposed to house the main reception. The ground floor will
incorporate changing rooms and amenity space for the front All Weather Pitch
(AWP). The first floor is proposed to be a flexible space which will cater for a
wide range of sporting activities including:- basketball; futsal; volleyball;
badminton; netball; indoor cricket; handball; gymnastics; dance; martial arts
and aerobics. & 2) A New Changing Block and education facility:- This would
provide changing facilities for the AWP at the rear of the site, together with a
clubroom and changing room for a local running club, training, seminar and
common rooms for in house education, volunteering and apprenticeships. The
applicant also states that the proposals would facilitate funds to cover the
associated annual costs with managing and maintaining a biodiversity area in
the south east corner of the site. The viability has now been independently
verified and shown that the proposals can enable the provision of the sports
facilities. The relevant partially implemented planning consents are 07/P0258,
10/P0390 and 14/P2487.

Refuse facilities in the form of 9x 1100Itr Eurobins would be located at the rear
of the site. 86 Cycle storage spaces would be provided in a mixture of open and
secure stores.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

19/P3061 pre-application advice for the erection of a 6 storey residential
apartment block comprising 77x self-contained flats with associated car
parking and landscaping.

17/P2550 Non Material Amendment approved to vary condition 2 of 16/P2204

17/P0592 Planning permission granted for erection of a stand with canopy
along the southern boundary of the south eastern pitch.

16/P2204 Planning permission granted for erection of dome structure for
gymnastics use (three year temporary period sought).

16/P1486 Planning permission granted for replacement of existing grass
football pitch with artificial surface.

Page 57



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

5.1

5.2

14/P2487 Planning permission granted for replacement of existing grass
football pitch with artificial surface.

14/P2478 Application granted for non-material amendments to LBM planning
permission 07/P0258 (dated 20/07/2009) comprising at ground floor; the
replacement of open hall on north elevation with 12 pitch side storage rooms
and the provision of new atriums, and at first floor; the reduction in number of
seats from 620 to 616 and positioning of seats across full length of north
frontage, alterations to corporate/sports boxes including omission of north
facing gallery and relocation of galleries and studios to south elevation.

10/P0390 Planning permission granted for Proposed amendment to
application 07/P0258/FUL (set out below) granted 16-7-09 comprising

a) Extension of the multi purpose sports facility by 3m towards Bishopsford
Road;

b) Extension of the changing rooms by 30m2.

10/P0389 Planning permission granted for extensions to the gym and function
room to the front of the stadium facing the pitch adding an additional 170m2
floorspace to the existing stadium

07/P0258 Planning permission granted for;

1) Erection of a sports hall to the north of the existing artificial pitch and two
storey building for use as a health centre/sport injury clinic or for other
community and recreation/leisure purposes to the south adjacent to
Bishopsford Road.

2) Erection of a second stand to the south of the existing football pitch to
incorporate multi-function sports and social facilities.

3) Creation of a second artificial multi-purpose pitch and changing rooms
towards south eastern end of site.

4) Associated works involving the relocation of existing utilities facilities and
new vehicular access onto Bishopsford Road at the north eastern corner of
the site.

CONSULTATION

The application was advertised by means of a Major Site Notice and Press
Notice, letters to Merton residents in the vicinity of the site and a cross border
consultation notification to LB Sutton.

PUBLIC OBJECTIONS

Page 58



In response to the consultation 26 letters of objection and a petition signed by
63 residents was received and further objections received after the parking
was reduced and more information submitted by the applicant. The objections
raised the following concerns relating to;

The site is MOL and not appropriate for residential development. It will take
away from the openness currently available.

Development is in a conservation area and results in a loss of greenbelt

The proposed site was wild grassland enjoyed by the local community before
it was fenced off by the applicant.

The MOL is for playing sport and recreation and the scheme is mostly for the
benefit of T&M FC.

The application fails to demonstrate the Very Special Circumstances.

The proposed plans changes the intended purpose and mission of The Hub
which is currently a not for profit organisation.

Tooting & Mitcham Football Club Ltd is a “not for profit” organisation that
provides sports, recreation and related community facilities to increase health,
well-being and sports participation in a Borough. However, the Applicant for the
scheme is a Director and the ultimate controlling party of the sister Company -
Tooting & Mitcham Sports & Leisure Limited by virtue of his shareholding. The
principal business of this Company is renting and operating Investment
properties to earn rentals and capital gains. Therefore, the Scheme is not set
out for the ultimate benefit of local communities but for the long-term benefit of
related parties, one of which is the Director of Tooting & Mitcham Sports &
Leisure Limited. He is also associated with Goodwin Associates Limited as he
is the ultimate controlling party of that Company. In its last filed accounts for
Tooting & Mitcham Sports & Leisure Limited, for 2018 financial year, the
Company owes Goodwin Associates Limited £1.8 million plus the interest
showing a related party transaction.

Tooting & Mitcham Sports and leisure Ltd is a private company limited by
shares rather than a not for profit organisation. The Company’s nature of
business at Companies House is listed as ‘renting and operating of Housing
Association real estate’. Further checks on the company status show that there
is one Director with “significant control”, Steven Adkins. Mr Adkins is a “property
developer” and is the “ultimate controlling party”. The company is only a going
concern by virtue of related party loans. There is an outstanding loan of £1.16m
from Steven Adkins by virtue of his control of Goodwin Associates which
provides the loan to Tooting and Mitcham Sports and Leisure Ltd according to

Page 59



Note 12 of the accounts submitted on 2 May 2019. This does not seem a sound
basis on which to use development to fund further work on sports facilities.

Area does not need more homes and tarmac, more trees and greenery
instead

Proposals too high and will block light, completely engulfing properties on
Hillfield Avenue

Size and height is overly dominant and unsympathetic to the character of the
local area. Does not respect the character of the immediate area, will be too
dense, over developed and visually over-bearing.

The design is unattractive, out of proportion and character with the immediate
area.

Applicant has failed to address Merton’s policy on ‘Street Scene’ showing the
relationship between the proposed building and the existing buildings on
Hillfield Avenue.

Misleading to compare the flats to an approved geodesic sports dome which
a temporary sports use with the same hours as the club. It does not compare
in size or proposed purpose.

Misleading claims in relation views from Sutton with pictures depicting lots of
green space which is not shown on the drawings.

Misleading of their website to describe the site as ‘unused scrubland’, failing
to give its true designation or why it is protected

Misleading claim that the site sits 1.5m below the Sutton Council land to the
south, this is not true for Hillfield Avenue.

Misleading to say that the scheme has carefully considered residents on
Hillfield Avenue, they are not on the list of neighbours and were not consulted
at any stage.

Misleading for The applicant to state in the detail of its application that the
development will not fund all of the work it proposes, yet in the public
information at its web site is very unclear about this, and it would be easy to
infer that the new build would fund all of the work. This could easily influence
some people to support the scheme on the basis of a false impression given
by the applicant.

Overlooking and loss of privacy for Hillfield Avenue including directly into
bedrooms, bathrooms, dining rooms gardens.

Page 60



Accessway between the site and neighbours is only an 11 foot wide track, not
a road as suggested by the applicant.

Very little space for and no detail of border landscaping to the south of the
site

Not in keeping with the beauty of the meadowlands park
Deprives the neighbourhood of their playing fields
Devalues properties nearby

The development will bring the area down further, the area needs more trees,
coffee shops, restaurants and facilities that local residents might actually like
to use.

We need more 3 bedroom units and family homes
No lifts provided for the upper five floors
There are restrictive covenants but these are not mentioned in the application

Lack of pre application consultation with residents, residents in Hillfield
Avenue did not receive the two stage consultations (Oct 17 to Jan 18 & Oct
18 to Jan 19).

Failed to meet the requirements for community involvement.

Increased pressure on public transport, parking, drainage and local services
such as schools and GP surgeries

1 parking space per flat is not enough

Increased safety risk with two busy vehicle entrances to the overall site.
Increased noise and pollution during the construction phase.

Existing Hub noise can be excessive and can be operating until 2am

Noise of 262 potential residents and 77 cars along with delivery and service
vehicles will create unacceptable amounts of noise, light pollution and
disturbance. Contravenes Human Rights Act.

Increased smell from large quantity of refuse that would be collected
fortnightly.

Increased risk of anti social behaviour

Insufficient space for more than one fire tender to access the rear of the site

Page 61



5.2.1

It will have a negative impact on people and wildlife and reduce the amount of
green space

Will the building be at risk from flooding.

Large building and hardstanding around it will increase risk of flooding. The
Risk of Flooding from Surface Water, the Risk of flooding from the
Groundwater and the Risk of Flooding from Sewers was not addressed by
the Flood Risk assessment

No concern provided there would be no impact on the provision of the football
pitches

Many previous promised developments never came to fruition
Needs green credentials, acoustic fencing and more tree planting

The proposals are to make money not enhance lives, the neighbourhood and
environment

Objections to the latest revisions

We disagree with comments that the Scheme has carefully considered to
respect the local occupiers of houses especially those along Hillfield
Avenue. The proposed development is going to negatively impact the
quality of life of the current residents of the area on many levels - primarily
light and noise pollution 24 hours a day 7 days a week, this is NOT
ACCEPTABLE and these concerns are still not addressed:

Noise pollution - the reduction of a number of car parking spaces from 77
to 55 is not sufficient. The car park will be c. 2 meters from the Hillfield
Avenue fence line. Our bedrooms and living accommodation face the
proposed site. It will be too intrusive.

Light pollution - the pictures of views from Hillfield Avenue now depict trees
that are 10 meters high. Is the Applicant planting trees that are 10 meters
high? This should be put as a condition of any unfortunate planning
approval and applicant's legal obligation. The Applicant has previously not
lived to his promises.

When they were upgrading the Hub with one million pounds of public
money in 2013, the designs promised replanting trees removed during the
build and luscious flowers and trees round the perimeter. It also promised
acoustic baffles. What the area ended up with was the removal of 30 or 40
mature trees which masked the noise and pollution from the road and the
site and instead they planted gorse twigs which they did not water or
maintain in any way so most are dead.

Page 62



There were also issues with the collapsed Willow Tree which fell down in
August of 2014, on the site immediately next to Bishopsford Road. The
Applicant has not made any effort to clean up despite Bishopsford House
Residents Association approaching them as well as Merton MP.

The application for the DOME was only approved without objection
because even on that occasion we were not notified by either the London
Borough of Sutton or Merton, the same scenario as the current application
about which we learned through 2019 Christmas Card. The light and noise
pollution from the Dome or 6 storey 77 dwelling is not comparable on any
level. It is farcical to even draw comparison of the two as both would
produce different noise and light pollution at different times, except the
residential dwelling will be here 24 hours a day 7 days a week.

The footprint of the 6-storey development is still too big and still not in
keeping with the immediate surrounding post war houses. The Applicant
should look to the neighbouring Bishopsford House in Poulter Park for a
sympathetic style of development rather than something which resembles
1970s student accommodation block.

The quoted 6 storey examples are NOWHERE near the immediate area.
The closest examples are only 4 storeys high.

The development is still on the Metropolitan Open Land - Merton’s Open
Land Policy DMO1 and London Plan Policy 7.17 and Policy G3 Metropolitan
Open Land (New London Plan) all state that the Metropolitan Open Land
(MOL) is afforded the same status and level of protection as Green Belt.

The development still does not demonstrate "very special circumstances”
as only the small part of the plan will be financed from the scheme, any
development should be entirely for the community benefit. Therefore, MOL
boundary should not be changed under any circumstances.

We disagree with comments about closeness to shops — there are no “real
shops” on our doorstep and closest big shops are a car or a bus ride away,
therefore encouraging more traffic and pollution in already busy and built
up area.

We also wanted to point out that a number of disparaging and derogatory
comments and references have been made about the area in a number of
documents which is very unprofessional. As mentioned above the Applicant
has not been a good neighbour and has not delivered on any of his past
promises or made any effort to improve the area.

Page 63



e Because of all of the above, the local residents still strongly object to this
Application.

5.3 The London Borough of Sutton’s Strategic Director for the Environment,
Housing and Regeneration objected to the proposals on the grounds;

¢ The applicant should have to demonstrate ‘very special circumstance’ which
clearly outweigh the substantial harm to the MOL or Green belt. London
Borough of Sutton does not consider that the applicant has in this instance
demonstrated very special circumstances which clearly outweigh the harm to
the openness of the MOL. From the accompanying Planning Statement,
amongst other things, the ‘enabling development would allow for the “clearing
the Organisation’s outstanding financial obligations”. It is acknowledged that
one of the applicant’s subsidiaries is a charity and the other a sports club,
however financial support of such organisations should never amount to very
special circumstances. No details have been provided of the “Biodiversity
Enhancements” so it cannot be ascertained whether these would offset the
loss of ecological value of the site, nor have any other details been provided in
relation to the other benefits. Whilst it is acknowledged that these would be
secured by a S106 legal agreement, some indicative details of these works
should be submitted with the application to provide comfort that the
cumulative benefits of the enabling development amount to very special
circumstances as required by national regional and local policy.

e The proposal would step up in scale towards the MOL making the taller
elements of the development, the most conspicuous and visible from the MOL
and adjacent MOL in Sutton.6 stories would be a scale completely out of
character with the surrounding area and would be readily visible from both the
MOL in Merton and MOL in Sutton.

e This represents substantial harm to the openness of the MOL and associated
Metropolitan Green Chain and the Wandle Valley Regional Park and the
design in no way tries to alleviate any harm to the openness of the MOL. As
such the London Borough of Sutton considers that the proposal is
inappropriate development and the scale, massing, siting of the development
results in significant harm to the openness of the MOL.

5.4 Campaign for the Preservation of Rural England objected strongly on the
grounds that;

e Residential development is inappropriate on MOL

Page 64



5.5

Impact views of the MOL from both Sutton and Merton and supports LBM
Sutton’s view that it will harm its essential openness.

Will reduce the ecological value and amenity of the Green chain.

No clear assessment made of harm to the green chain, only benefits are
discussed.

There are no ‘very special circumstances’ to justify the development. Enabling
sets a precedence that undermines the principle of permanence.

Not clear if alternatives to the proposals have been thoroughly investigated,
could funds have been raised through foundations, lottery funding etc.

Mitcham Cricket Green Community & Heritage Group objected to the
proposals on the grounds that;

The applicant has not engaged with the local community prior to submission
of the planning application.

The applicant’s subsequent approach to consultation by hosting events at
their own venue will fundamentally distort the results, with a higher level of
attendance from those advocating the development and a one-sided
promotion of its benefits.

The proposals have not been reviewed by the Design Review Panel

A six storey residential development is clearly inappropriate development for
the purposes of Metropolitan Open Land and so must demonstrate “very
special circumstances”. We can find no very special circumstances for the
proposals.

In planning policy terms there is a world of difference between the consent in
1997 for sports facilities and associated built infrastructure which might be
considered an appropriate use for open land and the development of a six
storey block of residential flats which is clearly “inappropriate”. The reasons
for recognising “very special circumstances” for sports facilities in 1997 do not
apply to a major residential development in 2020.

We also do not believe that “very special circumstances” exist in respect of
the investment that may be provided for delivery of TM United’s strategic plan.
The applicant’s Planning Statement confirms that the residential development
will in reality only fund a small part of the strategic plan comprising a new

Page 65



entrance block, changing block and club room. It will not provide for the new
south stand, additional seating or “pods” for starter businesses despite the
prominence of these aspects in the publicity associated with the scheme. The
development proposal will therefore bring only a small part of the benefit
envisaged by the TM United strategic plan which, given the stated view that
this development is the only means by which it can be funded, must therefore
be considered undeliverable.

The Planning Statement and the promotional video and other documentation
also reference the role of Tooting and Mitcham Community Sports Club as “a
‘not for profit’ organisation with charitable aims”. Instead, Companies House
shows this to be a “private company limited by guarantee without share
capital.” It has a sole director with significant control, Jackie Watkins. The
stated “charitable aims” of this private company are unclear and it is not
registered with the Charity Commission. Despite the impression given in its
publicity Tooting and Mitcham Community Sports Club is not a charity.

There is a lack of detail on the commitment to reinvest funds. The applicant
has not even brought forward in the same application those aspects of the
strategic plan which could be delivered through the returns on this
development in order to allow the proposals to be considered together.

We do not support the allocation of land within the draft local plan and the
development is premature and would result in a net loss of Metropolitan Open
Land.

The proposals are not policy compliant and even in the absence of
Metropolitan Open Land designation, they are based on flawed consultation,
convincing evidence of public benefit is lacking, they are of limited design
quality and they have not been brought forward in a single application.

The proposed scheme presents an incongruous, bulky elevation to
Bishopsford Road. It will also be visually damaging to the open spaces of both
The Hub and Poulter Park and disrupt the visual relationship between these
open spaces.

The proposed six storey development has no local precedent and would
manifestly be visually intrusive.

The design approach lacks distinction and does not respond to the character
of the surrounding neighbourhood. It will not add positively to the area.

Page 66



5.5.1

Extensive surface car parking will dominate the setting of the new buildings
and further reduce the area of green land. The provision of electric charging
points is meagre.

The internal design is poor with a significant number of single aspect
dwellings in conflict with emerging London Plan Policy D6 which states that
“Housing development should maximise the provision of dual aspect dwellings
and normally avoid the provision of single aspect dwellings.”

The provision of limited green walls appears tokenistic, does not extend to the
use of the large area of roof, and is no compensation for the significant loss of
green space.

The group made additional comments following the withdrawal of the
application from the June 18" agenda.

We welcome the Heads of Terms for core and potential s106 obligations
agreed by the GLA. But they do not, however, address objections to the
scheme or make it policy compliant.

The matters addressed by the Heads of Terms do not amount to
demonstrating the “very special circumstances” necessary to permit
inappropriate development on Metropolitan Open Land.

The scheme cannot provide both affordable homes in a policy compliant
manner and the investment in sports facilities which underpins the claimed
“very special circumstances”.

The investment in sports facilities is modest and even the ability to secure this
has not been independently verified. It will not provide the south stand,
additional seating or starter business pods which feature so strongly in the
scheme publicity

It would establish a precedent resulting in further applications for
inappropriate development of Metropolitan Open Land to fund delivery of
other aspects of the strategic plan. There is no evidence supporting the claim
by the applicant that other funding will become available if the investment
provided by this enabling development proceeds.

It is of inadequate design, visually intrusive, overbearing by virtue of its bulk
and height and harms the Wandle Valley Conservation Area and protective
designations including Protected Open Land, Green Corridor and the Wandle
Valley Regional Park.

Sutton Council has highlighted the particular impact of the scheme on Poulter
Park.

Page 67



5.5.2

The scheme also fails to provide affordable housing in a policy compliant
manner and it does not meet the Agent of Change principle (London Plan
Intend to Publish Policy D13). Sport England’s assessment demonstrates a
clear risk of the development resulting in “a noise abatement order and result
in reduced playing capacity on the AGP "if the specification changes or there
are construction issues

Sport England’s acoustic assessment confirms that the residential balconies
could not be used at the same time as the adjacent sports facilities

It is notable that the scheme has not been considered by Merton Council’s
Design Review Panel and it is our understanding that this is an expectation of
any major scheme considered by the Mayor.

Neither Merton Council’s Design Officer nor the Council’s Conservation
Officer support the design.

Around half of the flats to be provided are single aspect, it should provide dual
aspect homes as a minimum throughout. The scheme has also failed to
demonstrate it will avoid overheating

The applicants rebutted the group’s comments stating;
The objection has not considered the proposals in the context of Mo3 (the
emerging allocation for ‘enabling’ residential development) and the new draft
Local Plan which has been through two extensive consultation exercises

The site has received significant community support through this process so
far and is firmly in line with ‘the direction of travel’ of the Council’'s emerging
Local Plan. This should be given significant weight in favour of the proposals;
the objection does not acknowledge this.

Site is not in either the Mitcham Cricket Green or Wandle Valet Conservation
Areas.

Claims of setting a precedent is misfounded, their case does not acknowledge

that there is already a precedent established at the subject site for release of
MOL land in terms of the stadium development and masterplan.

proposed release is specific to the circumstances of this site and the ‘harm’
versus ‘benefits’ of developing in this particular location

criticism of lack of community consultation is unfounded over 300 leaflets
delivered and three community events hosted.

Applicant has been very clear about the very special circumstances which
involve the delivery of two specific community building elements

Page 68



5.6

criticised for referencing the history of the site and the 1997 planning
permission in particular; the objector however fails to highlight the more recent
planning history and the 2007 masterplan consent.

The structures of the organisation and ‘not for profit’ status will be addressed
within the forthcoming viability report. The Section 106 agreement will provide
the safeguards that the objector is concerned about.

It is alleged that the proposals are of an excessive height and mass; the
applicant does not accept this. There are many other tall building blocks
nearby (ranging from four to six storeys in height) and the proposals will sit
comfortably within the street scene.

Proposal seeks to make the most efficient and effective use of the land

the profile and footprint of the building has been designed to minimise its
impact on the openness of the MOL, and it has maximised the amount of
green space and landscaping within it. It has been designed by an award-
winning architectural practice who have integrated sustainable design
features at the outset of their work and incorporated the use of high-quality
materials throughout.

the use of brickwork specifically responds to the advice received at the pre-
application stage.

objection also fails to acknowledge the existence of the houses along Hillfield
Avenue and the physical break that those houses already creates with nearby
open land, noting that the open space in Poulter Park doesn’t physically
adjoin the application site until beyond the rear fagade of the proposed new
building. The views from the adjoining MOL have been carefully considered
as demonstrated within the D&A.

Wandle Valley Forum raised objections;
Concerns at the precedent that would be set by permitting enabling
development on this kind of MOL

The applicant claims it is a not for profit organisation which will invest profits
from the development in enhanced community and sporting facilities at The
Hub. In reality the applicant is a private company which is neither not for profit
nor charitable. There is no guarantee of the investment being put into local
sporting and community facilities and the funds generated will only support a
small part of what is needed to deliver the strategic plan for The Hub. The

Page 69



5.7

5.8

5.8

application does not include those elements of the strategic plan for The Hub
which it is stated it will fund.

We are also concerned by the visual impact of the proposed scheme on
Metropolitan Open Land in both Sutton and Merton and support the view
expressed by Sutton Council that this will harm its essential openness. This
network of green space is integral to the character and value of the Wandle
Valley

We note the applicant’s consideration of future management of land between
The Hub and the river and its intention to collaborate with the National Trust.
We welcome the opportunities this provides but there is a lack of detail for what
is proposed in an area with sensitive recreational and wildlife considerations.
The land also lies outside the ownership of either the applicant or the National
Trust.

Elliot Colburn MP representing the Sutton residents wrote objecting to the
proposals on the grounds of;
Negative impact on MOL

Unacceptable loss of biodiversity to the area and impact on the Wandle Valley
Regional Park,
Unsound building design and impact on residential amenity.

The applicant undertook their own consultation after the application was
submitted. Over 3,000 leaflets were distributed to local residents and business
on Wednesday 11" and Thursday 12" December 2019. A consultation session
took place on Saturday 14 December from 12-6 pm, which coincided with a
free festive football event and 84 people completed forms. Further sessions
took place on Friday 10" January 4-8 pm and Thursday 16" January 4-8 pm
and took place in the café bar, A further 18 people attended one of these
sessions. An online survey was available from 12t December 2019 until 17t
January 2020 and received 33 responses. The applicant also undertook a
diversity survey.

PUBLIC SUPPORT

156 letters of support were received following the applicants’ own consultation
commenting; ( 8 from Morden SM4)

The development will improve the facilities for the disabled

Support additional housing that will enable community facilities to be built
Support more affordable housing and feel this type of accommodation will
provide a good opportunity for young people to get onto the housing ladder.
Provides affordable housing in a deprived area

Page 70



e More community facilities will be built at The Hub which will be a welcome
addition to the site.

e Benefit the local community

e New Sports Hall is a great idea

e |tis a real step forward

e The proposed low cost housing is on a currently overgrown area and would
provide much needed accommodation in the borough. It meets both the
Borough’s housing plan and wider needs across London.

e Land will otherwise go unused and become a waste land.

e Land is unused piece of scrubland with no landscape or ecological value.

e Logical piece of land to release from MOL.

e Site has good accessibility to public transport.

e |t will provide greater opportunities and new facilities that are much needed in
the borough.

e The sense of community is fantastic and all are made welcome.

e Investment in these facilities can provide opportunities for local youths.

e Bringing different backgrounds together

e There will be a drop in crime and Anti-Social behaviour

e |t will enable the development of two further community based buildings (new
entrance block/sports hall and new changing block with educational facilities.

e Provides financial stability for T&M

e Will bring in money to the club which benefits lower league teams

e |t will increase positivity and health and well being to the entire area and
people that use it.

e Helps support our children’s education and give them a better environment to
study and learn.

e Benefit to local small businesses.

e They have supported my small business to develop and grow.

e Strengthen enterprise opportunities through the facilities.

e Great opportunity for LBM to enhance its community facilities.

e Proposed sports hall educational suite will help provide more opportunities for
young people with disadvantaged backgrounds

e There are simply no negatives to the local community

e They spend money on football boots and food for disadvantaged youngsters

e |t will provide the financial stability required to deliver TM United’s Strategic
plan including the significant community benefits and facilitating social
enterprise.

¢ More grass pitches would be great

e Supports grass roots football

5.9 Siobhan McDonagh MP wrote stating her support for the provision of housing
and sporting facilities.

Page 71



5.10 AFC Wimbledon Foundation stated their support

5.11 Tooting Bec FC stated the proposals would;
Allow for more teams to be provided and increase club membership

e Will provide more homes and better facilities for local youth opportunities
e New changing block will help with overuse of current facilities

e New business pods will bring in more business & facility will become a
community hub.

e Land serves no purpose and is wasteland with no environmental benefit.

5.12 The Surrey FA supported the proposals;
e The area needs further football facilities.

e The existing pitches on site exceed the amount of changing provision on offer
and this prohibits the participation of plays particularly women and girls which
has seen an exponential growth in the area.

e TMFC is a large part of the community and offers football for many young
people in the area.

5.13 Hillcroft Lacrosse Club listed the same benefits as the circular letter and
that it is a unique opportunity to deliver a truly sustainable development that
hugely benefits the Merton community.

5.14 Merton School Sport Partnership also signed the circular letter

5.15 Councillor Nick Draper supported the proposals stating;

e The application covers 72 apartments in an attractive block to the roadside
south of the pitches. The intention is that all the accommodation should be
affordable, and the number of flats is entirely in keeping with Merton’s and
London’s needs: | believe that negotiations have met with enthusiastic
responses from across the Housing Association sector. The selling of the land
will also help to finance a transformation of the facilities available at the ground,

Page 72



making it even more reflective of the needs of the local community, in particular
children, people with special needs, and the financially disadvantaged. Should
the project go ahead it will make an enormous positive difference to our
community in Morden and beyond.

e | believe there have been objections to the application over its massing. |
personally don’t see any alternative to Merton building upwards if it is to comply
with the Mayor’s, and our, aspiration to house the people of London; but a
staggered 6 storeys in this location, mirroring in height developments on the
other side of Bishopsford Road, is scarcely massing on the scale that London
is used to. | believe that architecturally it fits well with the rest of the planned
development.

e | also see the opportunity to provide residents with decent, affordable
accommodation as one not to be turned down lightly and would ask Planning
to approve the application.

He did however raise concerns that there is an over—-emphasis on parking
spaces stating “l would like to see a reduction of the space allocated to parking,
and instead use that part of the land to enhance what is currently a nondescript
piece of MOL into a natural vista that the residents of the flats and their
neighbours will truly cherish”.

5.16 STATUTORY EXTERNAL CONSULTEES

5.16.1 GLA Comments

On March 23 2020 the GLA issued a Stage 1 report which concluded;

London Plan and the Mayor’s Intend to Publish London Plan policies on;

Metropolitan Open Land, sports facilities, the agent of change principle,

housing, affordable housing, urban design, inclusive access, heritage,

sustainable development and transport are relevant to this application. The
application complies with some of these policies but not with others as set out
below:

* Principle of development: The housing proposal on Metropolitan Open Land
is inappropriate development as it does not preserve the openness of the
MOL. The applicant’s very special circumstances case including the need for
‘enabling development’ to fund the new sports and community facilities,
could outweigh the harm caused, but further information is needed on these
matters. The applicant must demonstrate that the 77 housing units are the
minimum necessary to ‘enable development’ and demonstrate how the value
generated by its proposals would be fully used towards the delivery of
enhanced sports and community facilitates.

« Affordable housing: The applicant’s confirmation that it is proposing a 100%
affordable housing scheme without grant is welcomed, but different tenure

Page 73



splits should be explored to comply with London Plan policy. All affordable
housing products must meet London Plan definitions, and these and their
delivery must be secured through a S106 agreement.

» Urban design: The scheme must deliver high quality design and minimise
impact on its MOL setting.

» Heritage: The applicant must submit a heritage impact assessment and the
mitigation measures it proposes, which should be secured.

* Sustainable development: Additional energy efficiency measures and a
calculated urban greening factor must be provided; all measures must be
conditioned.

* Transport: A manual PTAL assessment and changes to onsite parking must
be agreed, cycle parking should be increased, and a CLP and DSP must be
secured.

5.16.2 The applicants have stated that the ‘GLA have now provided their full support

(subject to the necessary s106)’. The GLA have actually stated that “very
significant progress has been made since March to address the Mayor’s
Stage 1 concerns - to the extent that a positive recommendation to the
Mayor might now be possible. However the issues involved are complex and
require careful balancing, and GLA Officers have not reached a settled view
on the application as a whole — which would only be possible for example
when the final terms and detail of any S106 had been agreed and all
consultation comments received and fully considered.”

5.17 Sport England were consulted and stated an interim position of issuing a

5.18

5.19

holding objection on the grounds that there was not enough information
provided by means of an acoustic report to show that the occupiers of the new
dwellings would not be adversely affected by the existing artificial grass pitch.
Following the submission of further noise reports the objection was removed
on the proviso that appropriate conditions were attached to any consent
relating to noise impact mitigation.

Historic England confirmed that they considered that there would be no
harm to Archaeology as a result of the proposals.

The Environment Agency raised no objections to the proposals subject to
the imposition of appropriate conditions relating to contamination, SUDS and

piling.

5.20 Thames Water raised no objection subject to suitable conditions.

5.21

The Metropolitan Police Safer by design officer commented;
The orientation of the ground floor units should be reconsidered so the front
doors promote activity

Page 74



5.22

5.23

Ground floor unit amenity spaces are easy to access and susceptible to
burglary

Areas of undercroft parking lack natural surveillance and should be eliminated
from the design.

Bin and bike store walls susceptible to graffiti and bike store doors are not
well overlooked

No mention of car parking management

Access control systems and CCTV are needed to prevent anti social
behaviour

LB MERTON Internal consultees

The Council’'s Conservation Officer commented;

e It’s a big thing, the loss of MOL when the original permission was to
allow sports use on the land. Residential is quite a different matter. Itis
a massive development adjacent to conservation area, open land and a
nature reserve.

o If we were to allow any residential development on this site what is
proposed is out of proportion to anything in the vicinity. The height for
a start. They quote other developments but they are a long distance
away and visually out of site. The closest residential are two stories.
Blocks of flats up Bishopsford Road are only four stories. Therefore to
build anything to relate to the context it should not be more than four
stories.

¢ | disagree with their heritage statement where they state the proposal
will not impact on any Listed or Locally Listed buildings. The Grade Il
Listed cottages are just across the Wandle and their views out of the
conservation area will be negatively impacted. Views, generally, out of
the conservation area will be negatively impacted by such a dominant
large development.

e The letters of support undervalue the value of the open land that will be
lost by referring to it as scrubland which sustains wild life. The adjacent
Astroturf pitch will have already caused a loss of wildlife. This
development will cause further damage.

e The development seems to lack communal outside space, play space
for example, | like the green walls. how will they be maintained?

e |tis my opinion that this proposed development will cause harm to the
open aspect of the site and wider area and should be refused despite
the social arguments in support of it. Once this open land is lost there is
no reclaiming it.

Page 75



5.24  Merton’s Design Officer described the proposal as “an office block
surrounded by a car park” and had particular concern relating to the number
of single aspect units especially given the North-South facing arrangement of
the block.

(Officer comment: it is acknowledged that the design officers comments do
not discuss the proposals in great detail. See the design considerations
section of the report below)

5.25.1 The Council’s Climate change officer commented that “The applicant has
provided all the supporting SAP outputs and conversion spreadsheet as
requested. However, the applicant has not addressed the following
comments from the email | sent in March:

- Be Lean - the applicant states that it is not possible to achieve the 10%
improvement against Building Regulations through energy efficiency alone
at this stage in the design. Savings from energy efficiency are not limited to
fabric efficiency. The applicant should consider other measures such as
waste water heat recovery which could help improve the energy efficiency
of the units.

- Overheating — the applicant has requested to undertake the overheating
analysis as part of a planning condition. However, given that there are
such a high number of single aspect units and that the outcome of the
overheating analysis could potentially have design and energy use
implications, the dynamic overheating modelling should be carried out
before permission is granted.

5.25.2 “My main concern at this stage is the lack of dynamic overheating
modelling given that the proposed scheme has a number of single aspect
units and uses a communal heating system which can increase the risk of
overheating. The GLA’s comments echo my points regarding the
requirement to meet the Mayor’s energy efficiency target and to undertake
dynamic overheating modelling.

5.25.3 The applicant is saying that they aren’t able to improve the fabric efficiency
due to space limitations within the unit. However, the applicant will need to
clarify why they cannot extend the units outward to meet the requirements.

5.25.4 The applicant should address these issues before the scheme is approved
given that the potential mitigation measures required could result in
fundamental changes to the design. Pre-commencement conditions to
secure the evidence demonstrating that the applicant has mitigated the risk

Page 76



5.254

5.25.5

5.25.6

5.25.7

5.26

5.26.1

of overheating and maximised savings through energy efficiency will be
required..

A pre-occupation condition will also need to be attached to ensure that the
applicant delivers the development in accordance with the updated energy
statement dated April 2020 which sets out the improvements they have
already made in response to my other comments. Please note, this pre-
occupation condition will need to be reviewed at pre-commencement
stage once the overheating and energy efficiency comments have
been addressed, as the energy statement will have been updated.

In addition, the applicant has not provided internal water use calculations to
demonstrate that the proposed development will achieve internal water
usage rates not in excess of 105 litres per person per day so this will need
to be secured with a pre-commencement condition.

The GLA has also recommended including a condition to secure post-
construction monitoring for the heat pumps to ensure that they are
achieving the expected performance approved during planning.

If the pre-commencement assessments result in the scheme requiring
design changes to achieve the energy efficiency target or to mitigate the
risk of overheating (or both), then there is potential for the Section 106
carbon offset to change.

Future Merton’s open space policy team commented that, the site is
designated as MOL, open space, green corridor and is within the Wandle
Valley Regional Park and 400m buffer area. It is also adjacent to the Upper
River Wandle SINC and a green chain. The applicant would need to
demonstrate very special circumstances in order to outweigh the harm the
proposed development would have on the land designated as MOL. Merton
Playing Pitch Strategy Action Plan (adopted in October 2019) identifies the
following opportunity for the site “The main priority for the site at the
moment is to establish a two storey DDA compliant ancillary facility for the
AGP at the rear of the site” with an indicative cost of £240,000 - £400,000.
While the applicant has stated that the proposed residential development
will enable a number of strategic items to be delivered on site, there is
limited information or details provided on such proposals.

In response , The applicants have stated ‘The comments from Future
Merton’s open space policy team are both surprising and disappointing.
The Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) is factually incorrect and the applicant
has made formal requests (both in person and in writing) to amend it,
based on analysis undertaken by the former CEO of Surrey FA. There has
been no acknowledgement from the Council. The reference to Farm Road
is completely irrelevant to the subject planning application.” Merton’s

Page 77



playing pitch strategy is jointly prepared with Sport England, the National
Governing Bodies for sport and Merton Council. Many different sporting
clubs including Tooting and Mitcham Hub participated in its creation. It was
published in October 2019. In October 2019 the applicant received a
response from the Football Foundation which covered many of the
concerns they raised, including the applicant’s promotion of the Farm Road
site. The inclusion of the Farm Road site in the officer’s report is relevant as
the applicant has recommended this site be included in various strategies
for investment including Merton’s Playing Pitch Strategy’.

5.26.2 The PPS also identifies that the T&M Hub lease and manage a second site
in the borough for football at Farm Road, Morden. From the information
provided, it is not clear exactly how the applicant is proposing to use any
funds from the proposed development to invest in the sporting facilities on
the main site or on the Farm Road site. The applicant should be asked to
demonstrate why the proposed development is required, given the use of
this second site for sporting purposes and how any profits from the
proposed development will be used to fund sporting facilities at one or both
sites, specifically the DDA complaint ancillary facility identified in the PPS.

5.26.3 The Planning Statement describes a “Biodiversity Area” in the south east
corner of the T&M hub site, for which the annual management and
maintenance costs will be funded through profits from the proposed
development. The applicant refers to a “joint management plan between
TM United, The Environmental Agency and National trust”, however has
not provided any details for these works. Further details should be sought
to indicate how the proposal will be minimising impacts on and providing
net gains for biodiversity, in accordance with NPPF 170(d). Any
biodiversity maintenance and management costs should be checked with
the viability assessment review and would need to be secured through a
relevant s106 agreement, should the application be approved.

5.27 Highways. No objections received

5.28 Transport planning commented that the proposal is unlikely to have
significant impact on the adjoining highway and raised no objection subject to:

- Car parking as shown maintained.
- The condition requiring cycle parking.

- The condition requiring Refuse collection.

Page 78



5.29

5.30

- Demolition/Construction Logistic Plan (including a Construction Management
plan in accordance with TfL guidance) should be submitted to LPA for
approval before commencement of work.

Flood Risk Manager: no objection . Initial concerns were raised but
following protracted discussions with the applicant’s flood risk consultants and
the submission of new details for the realignment of the water course the
officer has no objection

Future Merton Housing officers commented In principle the proposal for
100% shared ownership does not appear to accord with the council’s adopted
statutory development plan. In particular Core Strategy Policy CS8 (housing
choice) and Sites and Policies DM H3 (support for affordable housing)
requires an affordable housing tenure split of 60% social and affordable rent
and 40% intermediate rent or sale. This policy requirement reflects and
supports addressing Merton’s local housing needs as set out in Merton’s
Strategic Housing Needs Assessment published in July 2019, which
acknowledges that whilst affordable home ownership helps address identified
housing needs excessive provision would impact the delivery of affordable
housing for those in a more acute need.

5.30.1 The council’s affordable housing provision requirements are caveated by the

6.1

6.2

council needing to have regard to a number of relevant considerations which
include financial viability issues and other planning obligations, therefore the
submission by the applicants of the viability appraisal for independent
assessment will be an important consideration in determining the acceptability
or not of the proposal’s departure from these requirements

POLICY CONTEXT

NPPF (2019). Key sections:
5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes.
12. Achieving well-designed places.

16. ‘Conserving and enhancing the historic environment’. Paragraph 189

Relevant policies in the London Plan 2016 are; 3.3 (Increasing housing
supply), 3.4 (Optimising housing potential), 3.5 (Quality and design of housing
developments), 3.6 (Children and Young people’s play space), 3.19 (Sports
facilities), 5.1 (Climate change mitigation), 5.2 (Minimising carbon dioxide
emissions), 5.3 (Sustainable design and construction), 5.7 (Renewable
energy), 5.13 (Sustainable drainage), 5.17 (Waste Capacity), 6.9 (Cycling),
7.5 (Public realm), 7.6(Architecture), 7.8 (Heritage assets), 7.17 (Metropolitan
Open Land) & 7.21 (Trees and woodlands).

Page 79



6.3
6.4
6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.1

7.2

London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance 2016
GLA Guidance on Preparing Energy Assessments (2018).

DCLG Technical standards 2015

Relevant polices in the Merton Core Strategy 2011 are; CS 9 (Housing
targets), CS 13 (Open Space, Nature conservation), CS 14 (Design), CS 15
(Climate change), CS 18 (Transport) & CS 20 (Parking, Servicing & delivery).

The relevant policies in the Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2014 are; DM C1
Community facilities, DM D1 (Urban Design and the public realm), DM D2
(Design considerations in all developments), DM D4 (Heritage assets), DM
EP 2 (Reducing and mitigating noise), DM EP4 (Pollutants), DM H2 (Housing
mix), DM 02 (Trees, hedges and landscape features), DM T2 (Transport
impacts of development) & DM T3 (Car parking and servicing standards).

Intend to Publish 2020 London Plan policies include; GG2 Making the best
use of land, GG3 Creating a healthy city, D 2 Infrastructure requirements for
sustainable densities, D 3 Optimising site capacity through design-led
approach, D 4 Delivering good design, D 5 Inclusive design, D 6 Housing
quality and standards, D 7 Affordable housing, D 8 Public realm, D 12 Fire
safety, D 13 Agent of change, H 1 Increasing housing supply, H 4 Delivering
affordable housing, H 5 Threshold approach to applications, H 6 Affordable
housing tenure, H7 Monitoring of affordable housing, S 1 Developing
London’s social infrastructure, S 4 Play and informal recreation, S 5 Sports
and Recreation, HC 1 Heritage conservation and growth, G 4 Open space, G
5 Urban greening, G 6 Biodiversity, G 7 Trees, Sl 1 Improving air quality, S
2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions, S| 3 Energy infrastructure, S| 8
Waste capacity, SI 12 Flood risk management, T 3 Transport capacity,
connectivity and safeguarding, T 4 Assessing and mitigating transport
impacts, T 5 Cycling, T 6 Car parking, T 6.1 Residential parking & T 7
Deliveries, servicing and construction.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main planning considerations in this case relate to the principle of the use
of Metropolitan Open Land for residential purposes, the impact on the MOL of
such use, the design and appearance of the proposed building, quality of
accommodation provided, affordable housing provision, provision of sports
facilities and the impact on neighbour amenity.

Use of Metropolitan Open Land

Issues related to the appearance and impact on the appearance of the MOL
are discussed further on in the report.

Page 80


https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/energy_assessment_guidance_2018_-_update.pdf

7.3

7.4

7.5

London Plan policy 7.17 states that the strongest protection should be given
to London’s MOL and inappropriate development should be refused, except in
very special circumstances giving the same level of protection as in the Green
Belt. Essential ancillary facilities for appropriate uses will only be acceptable
where they maintain the openness of MOL.

Merton Policy CS13(a) aims to “protect and enhance the borough’s public and
private open space network including Metropolitan Open Land, parks, and
other open spaces.” Due to the large amount of green and open space in the
borough, the emphasis is on protection and long term management of the
existing space (21.2).

Under the Sites & Policies Plan Policy DMO1 Open space states:

b) In accordance with the NPPF (74), existing designated open space should
not be built on unless:

i. an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open
space, buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or,

ii. the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable
location; or,

iii. the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the
needs for which clearly outweigh the loss.

¢) Development proposals within designated open spaces, which have met the
conditions set in part b) above, will be required to meet all the following criteria:

i. the proposals are of a high quality design and do not harm the character,
appearance or function of the open space;

ii. the proposals retain and/or improve public access between existing public
areas and open spaces through the creation of new and more direct footpath
and cycle path links; and,

iii. the character and function of leisure walks and green chains are preserved
or enhanced.

The applicant is justifying the application with reference to site proposals in the
Draft Local Plan which have identified the site as being potentially suitable for
residential development provided that the development is able to demonstrate
very special circumstances through the provision of greater sporting facilities.
However this is only a Draft proposal and officers in Future Merton have advised
that only very limited weight can be given to the principle of development and

Page 81



7.6

7.7

7.8

that any future development would also have to meet other policy requirements
in relation to the quality and standard of the design and its visual impact on the
MOL as well as neighbour amenity. However, it is also recognised that the Draft
plan has been in preparation for several years now and has gone through 2 major
publication exercises. The NPPF is clear that greater weight can be attached as
a plan is advanced through the stages.

The applicant claims this part of the subject land does not perform any of these
functions and has already been released for development and it would therefore
not cause any harm to the wider character and function of the borough’s MOL.

In their Stage 1 report the GLA noted “The applicant asserts that the principle of
development in this part of the MOL was established by the Secretary of State’s
decision in 1997 and that the very special circumstances that were
demonstrated at that time still exist. This is not accepted as the application the
Secretary of State found acceptable did not include housing and was fora
different development. The present application must also be assessed against
the current development plan and other relevant material considerations

It is also noted that the applicant has cross-referenced the Council’s emerging
‘New Local Plan 2020’. However, as this plan is at an early stage, it has only
limited weight and cannot be accepted as a very special circumstance in its
own right. Furthermore, the nature of any enabling development is not
confirmed in the draft plan and is envisaged as only contributing towards
sporting facilities. Furthermore, the Mayor objected to Merton’s proposed site
allocation as it did not set out any very special circumstances case when he
commented on the draft plan in January 2019

7.9 The applicant has also asserted that the proposed development will be located

within previously developed land. However, the proposal will be located on an
open space which appears as a formal or informal playing field, which cannot
be classified as previously developed.

7.9.1 The applicant states that at no stage, have they ever asserted that the’

proposed development is sited on previously developed land (pdl). Rather, the
application site is part of the wider hub site that does include pdl’. However in
their stage 1 response the GLA stated in section 21 that “The applicant has also
asserted that the proposed development will be located within previously
developed land. However, the proposal will be located on an open space which
appears as a formal or informal playing field, which cannot be classified as
previously developed’.

7.9.2 ltis acknowledged that the GLA have sent a further update to their stage 1
response which is more supportive of the development subject to a

Page 82



secured S106.However, the stage 1 formal comments are still relevant in the
context of the overall scheme

7.10 Finally, the applicant argues that the proposed 77 homes would help meet the

increased housing target identified in the Mayor’s Intend to Publish London
Plan and has referred to the provision of ‘a purely affordable housing scheme
in excess of normal policy requirement’. However, these arguments are not
accepted as Merton Council’s housing target did not presume building on
MOL.

7.10.1 The applicant has stated ‘The Council’s projected housing targets must surely

7.11

712

be aligned with its new emerging Local Plan work, of which the application site
is a fundamental part of. For Officers’ to suggest otherwise and that the
affordable housing proposal does not contribute towards meeting housing
needs in the borough is simply bizarre’. One of the reasons that 100% shared
ownership does not meet Merton policy requirements on this specific scheme
is that the 100% shared ownership is modelled on having an income of
£51,000 - £71,000 per annum. The average income in the Mitcham area is
£35,000 per annum — so not very affordable. 100% shared

ownership modelled on an annual income of at least over £50,000 does not
meet with current policy requirements.

In relation to the issue of Very special circumstances the GLA concluded
“The housing proposal on Metropolitan Open Land is inappropriate
development, as it does not preserve openness. The applicant’s very special
circumstances case including the need for ‘enabling development’ to fund the
new sports and community facilities, could outweigh the harm caused.
However, further information and clarifications are required on the extent of and
means by which the intended community benefits will be guaranteed and tied
into any potential planning permission. The applicant must also demonstrate
that the 77 housing units are the minimum necessary to fund specified sports
and community facilities. As set out below, it will also be necessary to
understand and ensure that the proposed housing would be of the highest
possible standard and design, and fully accords with design policies of the
London Plan and the Mayor’s Intend to Publish London Plan”.

Several weeks after the submission of the planning application the applicant
submitted a viability report which states that the proposals, subject to grant
funding for the affordable housing, could generate sufficient funds to enable the
provision of the additional sports facilities in the form of a new Entrance
Block/Sports Hall and new Changing Block and Education facility. The
independent viability assessment confirmed that the proposals could enable the
provision of the sports facilities and provide a level of affordable housing

Page 83



7.12.1 The GLA advised that the proposals could not be based on Grant funding for
the affordable housing and consequently a further viability appraisal was
submitted. This confirms that a section 106 could secure the sport facilities
based on the viability of the housing being provided and this could therefore
consitute very special circumstances

7.14 Affordable housing

A residential development of this scale would be required to provide 40%
affordable housing provision in order to be policy compliant. The applicants own
initial viability assessment showed “A development providing 35% affordable
housing is not financially viable and that a development providing 100%
affordable housing for London Shared Ownership tenure is not viable without
recourse to GLA grant funding, as this results in a negative Residual Land
Value. In order to produce a viable position, this option would require a saving
of approximately 15% in the construction costs relating to the Community Hub
facilities’. The initial viability report provided by the applicants was based on
grant funding being forthcoming. The applicants were reminded that the
provision had to be based on no funding and provide 35% affordable housing
and that funding should be used to increase the level of provision beyond that.
The applicants submitted a further viability assessment that stated that 100%
Shared ownership would now be viable and that with funding the proposal could
then provide 17% of the units for London Affordable Rent and 83% Shared
Ownership.

7.14.1 Policy officers noted that In principle the proposal for 100% shared ownership
does not appear to accord with the council’s adopted statutory development
plan. In particular Core Strategy Policy CS8 (housing choice) and Sites and
Policies DM H3 (support for affordable housing) requires an affordable
housing tenure split of 60% social and affordable rent and 40% intermediate
rent or sale. This policy requirement reflects and supports addressing
Merton’s local housing needs as set out in Merton’s Strategic Housing Needs
Assessment published in July 2019, which acknowledges that whilst
affordable home ownership helps address identified housing needs excessive
provision would impact the delivery of affordable housing for those in a more
acute need.

7.14.2 The independent viability assessment considered the applicant’s build costs
for the sports facilities to be excessive and even allowing for costs for the
repositioning of the watercourse the proposals could provide that 3x London
Affordable Rent homes and 74x Shared Ownership homes which should form
the base position for the enabling development. If grant becomes available the
position should change to 21x LAR homes and 56xshared ownership. The
report advises that the based position and the grant funded position should be
secured by way of a legal agreement. The report also recommends the

Page 84



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

application viability review mechanisms at early and late stage of development
as outlined in the Draft London Plan and Mayor’'s SPG and this is considered
appropriate in this case.

The GLA has commented that “officers will continue to engage with the
applicant and the Council to explore the implications of different tenure splits
and grant to deliver a more diverse affordable housing mix in line with Policy
H6 of the Mayor’s Intend to Publish London Plan. An early stage review must
also be secured in any S106 agreement and a late stage review may also be
required depending on the final level and form of affordable housing.”

Need for additional housing

The emerging London Plan, now accorded moderate weight in recent appeal
decisions issued by the Secretary of State, and anticipated to be adopted in the
coming months, will signal the need for a step change in the delivery of housing
in Merton. While AMR date shows the Council has exceeded its current 411
target, the target of 918 units per year will prove considerably more challenging.
The relaxation of the earlier target (1300+ units) for Merton following the
Inspector’s finding following the London Plan Examination in Public Panel
Report Appendix: Panel Recommendations October 2019 was predicated on
not adopting a particular GLA formula to delivering significant new housing on
small sites, with larger opportunity sites such as the application site rising in
importance.

The National Planning Policy Framework requires Councils to identify a supply
of specific ‘deliverable’ sites sufficient to provide five years’ worth of housing
with an additional buffer of 5% to provide choice and competition.

Table 3.1 of the London Plan identifies that LBM has an annual housing target
of 411 units, or 4,107 over the next ten years. However, this minimum target is
set to increase significantly to 918 set out in the ‘London Plan Examination in
Public Panel Report Appendix: Panel Recommendations October 2019’, and
which is expected to be adopted later this year. This significant increase will
require a step change in housing delivery within the LBM.

Policy H1 ‘Increasing housing supply’ (Draft London Plan Policy) and Table 4.1
of the draft London Plan sets Merton a ten-year housing completion target of
13,280 units between 2019/20 and 2028/29 (increased from the existing 10-
year target of 4,107 in the current London Plan). However, following the
Examination in Public this figure of 13,280 has been reduced to 9,180. Merton’s
overall housing target between 2011 and 2026 is 5,801 dwellings (Authority’s
Monitoring Report 2018/19). The latest Monitoring report confirms that all of the
completions this financial year were on small sites of less than 0.25 hectares in
size. All of the schemes except one delivered 10 homes or fewer, with one

Page 85



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

scheme of 11 homes. There were no large schemes that completed this year,
which resulted in a lower number of new homes built in the borough. Merton
has always exceeded the London Plan target apart from 2009/10 and this year
2018/19 where there was a 34% shortfall although in total Merton has
exceeded the London Plan target by 987 homes during this period 2004/5-
2018/19.

Policy H1 of the emerging London Plan sets out that boroughs should optimise
the potential for housing delivery on all suitable and available brownfield sites
through their Development Plans and planning decisions, especially the
following sources of capacity: b) mixed-use redevelopment of car parks and
low-density retail parks.

Members may consider that the proposal to introduce residential use to this
MOL site responds positively to London Plan, draft London Plan and Core
Strategy planning policies to increase housing supply and optimise sites and
support the application to provide additional housing.

Residential density

Table 3.2 of the London Plan identifies appropriate density ranges based on
a site’s setting and PTAL rating. The area has a public transport accessibility
level (PTAL) of 2, where 1 is poor and 6 is excellent. It is considered that the
site is located within an suburban area for the purposes of Table 3.2 of the
London Plan, given the nature of surrounding built form and the criteria set out
in the supporting text to Table 3.2 (density matrix) of the London Plan.

The proposed development would have a density of 157 dwellings per hectare
with a Ptal of 2 and smaller sized units the density of 157 u/ha is significantly
above the London Plan policy 3.4 recommendation of 50-95 u/ha which may
be considered to demonstrate an over development of the site.

In terms of the emerging London Plan, Policy D6 (Draft London plan Policy)
sets out that: “Development proposals must make the most efficient use of
land and be developed at the optimum density. The optimum density of a
development should result from a design-led approach to determine the
capacity of the site. Particular consideration should be given to:

1. the site context

2. its connectivity and accessibility by walking and cycling, and existing and
planned public transport (including PTAL)

3. the capacity of surrounding infrastructure”

Page 86



7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

The emerging London Plan does not include a density matrix as it does not
necessarily provide a consistent means of comparing proposals. Density has
been measured and monitored in London over recent years in units per
hectare (u/ha). Average density across London of new housing approvals in
the monitoring year 2015/16 was 154 u/ha with the highest average density
being recorded in Tower Hamlets at 488 u/ha. However, comparing density
between schemes using a single measure can be misleading as it is heavily
dependent on the area included in the planning application site boundary as
well as the size of residential units. Planning application boundaries are
determined by the applicant. These boundaries may be drawn very close to
the proposed buildings, missing out adjacent areas of open space, which
results in a density which belies the real character of a scheme. Alternatively,
the application boundary may include a large site area so that a tall building
appears to be a relatively low-density scheme while its physical form is more
akin to schemes with a much higher density.

Therefore, whilst density is a material consideration, it is not the overriding
factor as to whether a development is acceptable; London Plan paragraph
3.28 states that it is not appropriate to apply the density ranges mechanically.
The potential for additional residential development is better considered in the
context of its bulk, scale, design, sustainability, the impact upon neighbouring
amenity, living standards for prospective occupants and the desirability of
protecting and enhancing the character of the area and the relationship with
surrounding development.

Whilst the density is above the suggested range in the London Plan Table 3.2,
density guidelines should not be applied mechanically and a more suitable
approach to assessing whether the scheme is appropriate in this location and
following the direction of travel of emerging London plan policies, which no
longer rely on the density matrix, requires further and more detailed
consideration of context, connectivity and local infrastructure. It is a matter of
judgement for members to decide whether the significant community and
sporting benefits of the scheme would justify the quantum of development
proposed.

Housing mix

London Plan Policy 3.8 ‘Housing Choice’, draft London Plan Policy H12 and
associated planning guidance promotes housing choice and seeks a balance
of unit sizes in new developments. London Plan Policy 3.11 states that
priority should be given to the provision of affordable family housing. The
GLA commented “The applicant is proposing 15 one-bed and 62 two-bed
homes; hence, no family housing is proposed and the Council should
confirm whether the scheme’s housing mix would meet its identified needs
and the scheme’s ability to deliver a mixed and inclusive neighbourhood.”

Page 87



7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

Proposed | Sgqm | GF | 1st |2nd | 3d |4t | 5th | Total | %

2 Bed flat | 70 8 9 10 |10 |7 2 46 59.74
(2B4P)

2 Bed flat | 61 0 |4 |4 |4 |2 |2 |16 20.78
(2B3P)

1Bedflat |50 |2 |2 |2 |2 |2 |5 |15 19.58
(1B2P)

Total 10 |15 |16 |16 |11 |9 77 100

Design/Bulk and massing/Appearance/Layout.

Design of new buildings should ensure appropriate scale, density and
appearance, respecting, complementing and responding to local
characteristics (London Plan policy 7.6, LDF policy CS.14 and SPP policy DM
D2).

Bulk and massing.

London Plan policy 7.4 and SPP policy DM D2 require developments to relate
positively and appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale, density and proportions
of surrounding buildings and the pattern and grain of existing streets.

. Housing in the local area is predominantly low rise in the form of two storey

suburban housing although there are some higher four storey blocks opposite
the site. This proposal would have four storeys closest to Bishopsford Road but
would increase to six storeys towards the back of the building. Whilst this may
mitigate some of the impact from Bishopsford Road, the six storeys would still
be visible when viewed side-on from Bishopsford Road and would be readily
visible from the houses in Hillfield Avenue and from the MOL in Poulters Park.
The application has generated a number of concerns and objections from
neighbouring residents, the LB Sutton and the CPRE who consider that the bulk
and massing of the proposals are inappropriate and overly dominant in this
setting. Officers consider the scheme has been designed with the local context
considered and the stepped back approach reduces the overall impact. It is a
matter of judgement whether the provision of new housing and sports facilities
outweighs these concerns.

Design- Appearance.

Page 88



The proposals have been designed using a light-coloured palette of materials
and it may be considered that the use of landscaping would mitigate the impact
of the lower level whilst the upper levels are set back to reduce the impression
of bulk and two sections of green walls are proposed on the southern elevation
to break up the massing. A significant concern relating to the design was the
car parking proposals. The London Housing SPG Standard 19 — states that
‘Careful consideration should be given to the siting and organisation of car
parking within an overall design for open space so that car parking does not
negatively affect the use and appearance of open spaces’. Following officer
concerns that the site was dominated by the level of proposed parking
surrounding the block revised drawings were submitted for 55 spaces with
planting breaking these into smaller bays of typically 4 or 5 bays. The applicants
did not request the proposals be considered by the Design Review Panel and
neither the Council’s Design officer or Conservation officer were supportive of
the design of the proposals in this location.

7.32.1 Members may consider that the dominance of the car parking is not considered
to have a detrimental impact on the appearance of the proposal, exacerbated
by its setting in the MOL. It is a matter of judgement whether the identified
issues with design, size and bulk is outweighed by the benefits in terms of the
provision of housing and sports facilities being provided.

7.32.2 Since the withdrawn June report the applicants state “Significant changes have
been incorporated into the design to mitigate the issue of the ‘single aspect’
units as set out in the updated Design & Access Statement (see Section 9).
These have not been reflected in the Officer’s report”. Officers considre that
these mitigations relate to making a smaller footprint and keeping it away from
neighbours. They do not address issues of resultant over heating, monotony of
the view etc which can result from single aspect units.

7.32.2 It is accepted that alternative designs could allow for less single aspect units.
Courtyards for instance would assist, however it is acknowleded that they would
significantly increase the footprint of the building and consequently its visual
impact on the MOL

7.33 Design layout

Although the proposed units all meet the minimum space standards for GIA
and amenity space, SPP Policy DM D2, Core Strategy 2011 policies CS 9
Housing Provision and CS 14 Design and London Plan policies 3.3 Increasing
Housing Supply, 3.4 Optimising Housing Potential, 3.5 Quality and Design of
Housing Developments are all policies that seek to provide additional good
quality residential accommodation including the provision of a safe and secure
layout.

Page 89



7.34 The applicants were advised at the pre application stage that officers were
concerned about the single aspect nature of most of the units, London Housing
SPG Standard 29 states ‘Developments should minimise the number of single
aspect dwellings. Single aspect dwellings that are north facing or exposed to
noise levels above which significant adverse effects on health and quality of life
occur, or which contain three or more bedrooms should be avoided.” Around half
the units are single aspect. Concerns were also raised about the use of long
internal corridors, London Housing SPG. Standard 14 - states ‘Where dwellings
are accessed via an internal corridor, the corridor should receive natural light and
adequate ventilation where possible.” The corridors and the cores receive no
natural light or ventilation, however these have now been reduced in length to
30m. Itis acknowledged that the design of the scheme has its shortfalls. However
, again, it is a matter of judgement whether the provision of housing and sports
facilities outweighs these considerations

7.35 A number of issues were identified by the Metropolitan Police Safer by Design
Officer; The orientation of the ground floor units should be reconsidered so the
front doors promote activity, Ground floor unit amenity spaces are easy to access
and susceptible to burglary, areas of undercroft parking lack natural surveillance
and should be eliminated from the design, Bin and bike store walls susceptible
to graffiti and bike store doors are not well overlooked. These design flaws were
not addressed by the applicant but members may consider that the provision of
housing and sports facilities outweighs these considerations.

7.36 Playspace and amenity space provision. London Housing SPG Standard 5
(and London Plan Policy 3.6) — For developments with an estimated occupancy
of ten children or more, development proposals should make appropriate play
provision in accordance with the Mayor’s Play and Informal Recreation SPG
which expects a minimum of 10 sg.m. per child to be provided in new
developments, and makes clear that play space should not be segregated by
tenure. In accordance with the above, the scheme has been calculated to
generate a child yield of 32, given this there is a requirement to provide 320 sq.m.
of play space across all age groups. The proposals the minimum of 160 sq.m. of
play space for 0-4-yearolds, which given the location of the development within
playing fields which may be suitable for the other age groups

7.37 In addition to the playground the proposals provide 495sgm of amenity space, as
shaded dark green on drawing 006 E, which comprises of the garden spaces to
the back of the accommodation block and the park area. The ground floor units
would all have self-contained amenity spaces of around 30sgm whilst all the
upper floor flats would have policy compliant balconies in addition to which there
would be 375sgm of Communal roof terrace. The 1255sgm of general
landscaping is shown as the lighter green spaces on the updated plan 006 E. A

Page 90



7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

calculation has been undertaken by the applicant to show that the site achieves
a 0.4 Urban Greening Factor, and as such complies with the London Plan.

Neighbour Amenity.

London Plan policies 7.4 and 7.6 and SPP policy DM D2 relate to amenity
impacts such as loss of light, privacy, overshadowing and visual intrusion on
neighbour amenity and the need for people to feel comfortable with their
surroundings.

A large number of objections were received in relation to the impact of the
block on the amenity of neighbouring residents. Residents overlooking the site
currently enjoy relatively open views across the site. It is acknowledged that
the block has been located as far from the houses on Hillfield Avenue as
possible. The block will still be clearly visible with 4, 5 and 6 storey elements.

Concerns were raised in relation to loss of privacy. The communal terrace
would be located to the front of the site and the distance between the
Communal Terrace and the back gardens of the houses on Hillview is 30m.
Amenity balconies for the flats on the south side of the building would look
towards neighbours on Hillfield Avenue at a distance of between 38-40m
from the rear garden fences of those properties. Officers consider that at this
distance issues of privacy, overlooking and loss of light would not warrant a
refusal of the application.

Objections were received raising concerns that the proposals would result in a

loss of light to neighbouring properties. However a combination of the
separation distance and relative positioning of the block to the north of the
closest neighbouring properties means that officers consider that the
proposals would not materially harm the amenity of neighbours from a loss of
light.

Parking, servicing and deliveries.

Core Strategy Policy CS 20 requires proposals to have regard to pedestrian
movement, safety, serving and loading facilities for local businesses and
manoeuvring for emergency vehicles as well as refuse storage and collection.

The revised proposals involve the provision of 55 car parking spaces
including 8 dedicated for disabled parking and 11 for electric vehicle
charging. The GLA noted the applicant should provide 20% of all car spaces
with active electric vehicle charging points (EVCP), with the remainder
provided with passive provision.

Page 91



7.44

7.45

With a proposed 168 cycle spaces the proposals exceed the required 147
long stay cycle parking spaces and 3 short stay spaces. All cycle parking
should be provided in line with the London Cycle Design Standards (LCDS),
short stay spaces should be located close to building entrances and
integrated into the public realm. A minimum of 25% of cycle parking provided
should be Sheffield stands at the conventional spacing of 1.2 metres. A
further 5% of the parking should be Sheffield stands spaced more widely
(1.8 metres between stands) to accommodate larger cycles. A condition
requiring details of the cycle parking should be provided, which reflect both
the Mayor’s Intend to Publish London Plan policy and the LCDS is
recommended.

Communal and sports facilities

London Plan Policy 3.19 (Sports facilities) encourages the provision of
sporting facilities and the proposals have generated a lot of support from users
of the current facility as well as local sports bodies who would welcome the
provision of new facilities that the applicant states can be provided as a direct
result of this enabling development which were approved but never fully
implemented.

7.46 The GLA recommended full details of the affordable and accessible usage of

7.47

7.48

7.48.1

the new facilities must be agreed with and secured by the Council. This
should include details of pricing and levels of provision in the form of a draft
community use agreement which should be submitted prior to any Stage 2
referral to the Mayor.

Flood risk and drainage

Following the submission of revised details and information and subject to
the imposition of appropriate conditions there are no longer any objections
to the proposals on the grounds of flood risk.

Heritage impact.

Chapter 16 ‘Conserving and enhancing the historic environment’. Paragraph
189 of the NPPF 2019 states:- ‘In determining applications, local planning
authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of any
heritage assets affected, including any contribution made by their setting.
The level of detail should be proportionate to the asset’s importance and no
more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on
their significance’.

The applicants submitted a Heritage Impact Assessment that they compiled
themselves as the proposals have the potential to impact views from the

Page 92



7.48.2

7.48.3

7.48.4

7.49

Wandle Valley Conservation Area and a very small section of the CA is within
the applicant’s wider site ownership. This area of land is occupied by a
biodiversity sanctuary area where the club are working in partnership with
the National Trust to maintain an area of refuge for wildlife that has been
created, particularly focusing on habitats for local species of importance.

The HIA includes a set of 12 views from the CA towards the site and
determined that “from 5 out of the 12 locations, the new development will not
be seen. There are only two views (at locations 2 and 4), where the new
development will be reasonably prominent, but those views are not harmful
to the WVCA or its setting”.

The applicants’ own HIA concluded “For all of these reasons, we conclude
that the relevant conservation policies, both at local and national level, are
satisfied and accordingly no harm will be caused to the heritage asset of
WVCA”.

There have been a large number of objections from various officers, local
people, local interest groups, Sutton council and National organisations such
as the Campaign for the Preservation of Rural England but Members many
consider the provision of affordable housing and sports facilities outweighs
the impact on this heritage asset.

Noise impact

Sports England raised concerns relating to the impact of noise from the All
Weather Pitch on the amenity of the occupiers of the new units. A noise
impact assessment was therefore commissioned and this sets out mitigation
measures that can be taken to allow all flats and residents within the scheme
not to be adversely impacted by the proximity to the AWP and how all
apartments will comply with the Sport England Guidelines

7.49.1 The Sport England’s acoustic data was derived from 9 separate measurements

7.49.2

including Hockey, football and rugby matches. The use of the Sport England
Guidance and associated data included within it addressed the concerns of
the Sport England objection.

An area source was therefore plotted and calculated (prior to the introduction
of the buildings) within the IMMI noise modelling software and calibrated to
ensure that the sound source, ie the AWP pitch met 58dB LAeq, 1 hour.
Residential properties as well as boundary conditions, were then added to the
model to ensure that it was as robust and realistic as possible. With the
residential receptors of the proposed scheme placed into the mapping
software, reception points were added at the Northern fagade closest to the
AWP, as well as East, West and Southern positions for comparison. Due to

Page 93



the limited traffic flow because of the nearby bridge collapse In order to
overcome this, the Calculation of Road Traffic Noise (CRTN) dated 1988 was
used within the IMMI noise modelling software. Specific inputs included a 2018
road traffic count (18 hour) to be 161,186 vehicles, with 5.5% heavy goods
vehicles and using 50kph, as detailed in the reference documents for roads
lower than 30mph. With closed windows utilising triple glazing, all habitable
spaces (ie bedrooms and living room areas) will meet the reduced criterion
discussed in Section 2 of the report. Rapid/Purge ventilation and background
ventilation will be provided by mechanical ventilation as detailed within the
accompanying Calford Seaden Energy report dated November 2019.

7.49.3 The report concluded that noise modelling approach demonstrates that future

7.49.4

7.50

7.50.1

residents within the scheme, with the mitigation measures recommended, will
not be impacted by sport related sounds from the AWP and/or road traffic
noise from the A217.It is suggested that to provide background ventilation of
the residential scheme, MVHR will be considered, avoiding the need for
residents to open windows. Additionally, there will be a requirement to
upgrade the glazing to protect future occupants from noise with an Rw of 33
dB and an RTraffic value of up to 37 dB depending on the location of the
habitable spaces. This should future proof the development.

If members are minded to recommend approval of the application a condition
that the works are undertaken in accordance with the recommendations of the
Noise Impact Assessment compiled by Acoustic Associates dated January
2020 and those required by Sports England is recommended.

Fire safety and resilience

In accordance with Policy D12 ‘Fire safety’ of the Mayor’s Intend to Publish
London Plan, all major development proposals should be submitted with a
Fire Statement, which is an independent fire strategy, produced by a third
party, suitably qualified assessor. The GLA have stated that the Council
should ensure this statement is submitted, shared with GLA officers and
secured through appropriate planning conditions and/or S106 clauses.

The application was submitted with a Fire Strategy which made a number of
design recommendations including;

As the escape route from the apartments bordering the atrium on the first
floor is not separated from the void each apartment should be provided with
an alternative exit which can be an escape window.

The common corridor should be separated from the atrium by an FD30S

fire door.

The problem with this design is that it creates 4 single end corridors each
that would have to be independently vented with a 1.5m2 natural shaft as

Page 94



7.50.2

none have access to an outside wall allowing fitting of a simple AOV.
Venting would also be needed to the longer corridor i.e. 5 shafts in total.

A more advantageous layout principle is shown in the sketch below
involving the use of a linking corridor. (this can be reflected at the other end

as well).

Given that over half the wheelchair accessible units are not on the ground
floor, which is not referenced in the strategy and design changes would be
required, the need for a full Fire Statement is self evident for occupier and
fire fighter safety and a condition is recommended. .

8. SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
REQUIREMENTS.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

The proposal does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly there is no requirement for an EIA submission.

The GLA were satisfied that the applicant has provided the relevant
modelling output sheets for the Be Lean and Green stage of the energy
hierarchy. The carbon dioxide savings meet the on-site target set within
Policy 5.2 of the London Plan for domestic uses.

However, despite the application being submitted with an Energy Statement
the Council’s Climate change officer considered that the proposals failed to
demonstrate the required 10% improvement through energy efficiency. This
requirement has been flagged in the GLA’s guidance on preparing energy
assessments since 2018. However, the proposed development would only
achieve a 6.43% improvement through energy efficiency measures.

The applicant has not adequately assessed the risk of overheating and has
requested to undertake the overheating analysis as part of a condition which
is reomended. However, if the overheating analysis finds that the risk of
overheating is unacceptable with the current design, significant changes to
the scheme may be required, which would then have knock-on effects on the
energy statement and the carbon offset contributions.

CONCLUSION
The site is located on land designated as Metropolitan Open Land and as

such any development on the land is required to demonstrate Very Special
Circumstances to justify this. Sutton Council and others are of the opinion

Page 95



9.2

9.3

9.4

that the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the test of very special
circumstances has been met and concerns relating to the harm to the
openness and character of the MOL have also been raised by neighbouring
residents as well as the Campaign for the Preservation of Rural England,
The Wandle Valley Forum and the Mitcham Cricket Green Community and
Heritage Group as well as neighbouring residents. Others support the
application due to the benefits of the scheme. It is also acknowledged that
the site has provided significant community facilities over the years to the
benefit of residents. The applicant states that the proposals would be able to
provide a 100% affordable shared ownership housing development that
would also enable the provision of;

i) A New Entrance Block/Sports Hall incorporating changing rooms and
amenity space with a flexible space which will cater for a wide range of
sporting activities including:- basketball; futsal; volleyball; badminton; netball;
indoor cricket; handball; gymnastics; dance; martial arts and aerobics

ii) ) A New Changing Block and education facility:- This would provide
changing facilities for the AWP at the rear of the site, together with a
clubroom and changing room for a local running club, training, seminar and
common rooms for in house education, volunteering and apprenticeships.

iii) The applicant also states that the proposals would facilitate funds to cover
the associated annual costs with managing and maintaining a biodiversity
area in the south east corner of the site.

Following independent verification of the viability of these proposals it has
been confirmed that they would enable the provision of the sports facilities
and at least 3x LAR units and the remainder in shared ownership. If
members consider that the tests for very special circumstances have been
met then it is recommended that the provision of these enabled projects be
subject to a legally binding s106 agreement.

It is acknowledged that the scale, bulk and massing of the proposed block at
up to six storeys has been considered by some to be excessive for this
sensitive location. It is clearly visible and will be seen in the context of the
relative openness of the MOL

The proposals will however provide 77 predominantly shared ownership
affordable housing units and subject to a legally binding s106 a number of
previously approved but not fully implemented sports facilities will be
provided for the benefit of the overall community. As is always the case with
planning applications the relative benefits of a proposal needs to be weighed
against any detrimental impacts. This report has demonstrated that these
issues in relation to this site are finely balanced and officers consider that
significant weight can be attached to the provision of housing and the

Page 96



9.5
10

10.1

sporting facilities to be provided. It is a matter for Members to judge
whether those competing interests outlined in the report are sufficiently
reconciled to follow the officer recommendation

Approval is recommended: subject to conditions and s106 agreement.
Conditions and Legal Agreement Heads of Terms

s106 Heads of terms

Affordable housing provision including early and late stage review
mechanisms.

A New Entrance Block/Sports Hall
A New Changing Block and education facility

funds to cover the associated annual costs with managing and maintaining a
biodiversity area in the south east corner of the site.

The carbon offset contribution proposed is £78,392 in accordance with the
applicant’s latest Energy Strategy dated April 2020.

Subiject to the results of the planning condition number 16 relating to energy
efficiency and overheating, the applicant may review the carbon offset
contribution in line with the new Energy Statement. This sum will be agreed at
the time of the assessment and would need to be agreed prior to
commencement of development as this would allow the applicant to amend
the scheme to optimise energy efficiency and mitigate overheating.

full details of the affordable and accessible usage of the new facilities must be
agreed with and secured by the Council. This should include details of pricing
and levels of provision in the form of a draft community use agreement

which should be submitted prior to any Stage 2 referral to the Mayor.

Fire Statement

10.1.1 The GLA recommended the following heads of terms if Members were

minded to recommend approval,

Core s106 issues:
A guarantee that the full value of the enabling housing would be used to
deliver identifiable and agreed new sports and community facilities — which
might be best achieved by an updated viability assessment being submitted to
Merton Council prior to implementation to transparently demonstrate this.
Delivery of the sports and community benefits prior to occupation/housing
start on site and robustly secured going forward.

Page 97



10.2
1)

2)

Any additional sports or community funding would be used to provide
additional facilities, not to part fund those elements that it had been agreed
would be funded from the profits from the housing.
The submission of a new or updated Community Use Agreement that
included full details of the affordable and accessible usage of the new facilities
prepared in conjunction with Sport England.
The delivery of the 3xLAR units and 74 shared ownership affordable housing
units (without grant).
A requirement to seek affordable housing grant to “improve” the AH tenures
through a named Registered Provider ideally to deliver at least 35%
affordable rented or social rented accommodation.
Full incorporation of London Plan affordable housing definitions and
requirements.
Payment of any carbon off-setting contribution.

Other potential S106 matters and/or conditions:
Provision of 8 wheelchair accessible units across all floors and close to lifts.
Provision of the children’s play space.
Delivery of safe and secure pedestrian routes through the site.
Implementation of mitigation measures as outlined in the Fire Strategy
Statement.
Implementation of all energy, drainage and UGF (0.4) measures.
Delivery of Blue Badge parking, cycle parking and Heathy Streets initiatives in
accordance with relevant Mayoral standards.

The applicant agreed these matters as potential Heads of Terms for any S106
agreement to in order to address Mayoral concerns. The GLA strongly
suggested the applicants discuss them with you as LPA.

Conditions

A1 Commencement Reason: To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

A7 Built to plans Site location plan and drawings 17/640/P006 Rev E,
17/640/P600 Rev B, 17/640/P601 Rev A, 17/640/P602 Rev A, 17/640/P603
Rev B, 17/640/P604, 17/640/P605, 17/640/P606 Rev D, 17/640/P008 Rev B,
17/640/P610, 17/640/P611, 17/640/P612, 17/640/P613, 17/640/P614,
17/640/P615 & 17/640/P620A Rev A

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3) Standard condition [Materials]: The facing materials to be used for the

development hereby permitted shall be those specified in the approved
drawings unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to

Page 98



4)

5)

7)

comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.6 of
the London Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011
and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Standard condition [Landscaping]: Full details of a landscaping scheme shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and these works shall be
carried out in the first available planting season following the completion of the
development or prior to the occupation of any part of the development,
whichever is the sooner. The details shall include on a plan, the size, species,
spacing, quantities and location of the plants, such details shall include the
replacement TPO tree. Any trees which die within a period of 5 years form the
completion of the development, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased or are dying, shall be replaced in the next planting season with
others of the same approved specification, unless the LPA gives written
consent to any variation. Reason: To enhance the appearance of the
development in the interest of the amenities of the area, to ensure the
provision sustainable drainage surfaces and to comply with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: policies 5.1, 7.5 and 7.21 of the
London Plan 2016, policies CS13 and CS16 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2, DM F2 and DM O2 of Merton's Sites and
Policies Plan 2014.

Standard condition [Hardstandings]: The hardstanding hereby permitted shall
be made of porous materials, or provision made to direct surface water run-off
to a permeable or porous area or surface within the application site before the
development hereby permitted is first occupied or brought into use. Reason:
Reason: To reduce surface water run-off and to reduce pressure on the
surrounding drainage system in accordance with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: policy 5.13 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS16 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DMF2 of Merton's Sites and
Policies Plan 2014.

Standard condition [Refuse storage]: The development hereby approved
shall not be occupied until the refuse and recycling storage facilities shown on
the approved plans have been fully implemented and made available for use.
These facilities shall thereafter be retained for use at all times. Reason: To
ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the storage of refuse and
recycling material and to comply with the following Development Plan policies
for Merton: policy 5.17 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS17 of Merton's Core
Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM D2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan
2014.

Standard condition [Cycle storage]: The development hereby permitted shall
not be occupied until the cycle parking shown on the plans hereby approved

Page 99



8)

9)

10)

11
12)

13)

14)

has been provided and made available for use. These facilities shall be
retained for the occupants of and visitors to the development at all times.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory facilities for cycle parking are provided and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 6.13 of
the London Plan 2016, policy CS18 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011
and policy DM T1 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Parking facilities to be implement prior to occupation including 20% of all car
spaces with active electric vehicle charging points (EVCP), with the remainder
provided with passive provision. Reason: To ensure the provision of a
satisfactory level of parking and comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policy 6.13 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS20 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T3 of Merton's Sites and
Policies Plan 2014.

Standard condition [Timing of construction]: No demolition or construction
work or ancillary activities such as deliveries shall take place before 8am or
after 6pm Mondays - Fridays inclusive, before 8am or after 1pm on Saturdays
or at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Reason: To safeguard the
amenities of the area and the occupiers of neighbouring properties and
ensure compliance with the following Development Page 35 Plan policies for
Merton: policy 7.15 of the London Plan 2016 and policy DM EP2 of Merton's
Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

Details of site access and road junction layout to be approved: Reason: In
the interests of the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and to comply with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies CS18 and CS20 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM T2, T3, T4 and T5 of
Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014

) H12 Delivery and Servicing Plan to be Submitted
H13 Construction Logistics Plan to be Submitted (major development)

The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with
the recommendations of the Noise Impact Assessment compiled by Acoustic
Associates dated January 2020.Reason to protect the amenity of occupiers
in accordance with Policy DM EP 2 of the Merton Sites and Polices Plan
2014

Prior to the practical completion certificate being issued, sound testing shall
take place inside the flats which face on to the Artificial Grass Pitch and are
most exposed to pitch activity noise to ensure that the sound levels do not
exceed 30dB LAeq,16hr or 31.3dB LAeq,1hour, whichever is higher. If the

Page 100



15)

16)

17)

18)

results fail to meet those set out in the report, remedial work will be carried
out and retesting will be carried out in the affected area(s), prior to the
occupation of the affected flat(s).

Reason: To protect the Artificial Grass Pitch’s availability of use and to
accord with Development Plan Policy DM EP 2 of the Sites and Policies Plan
2014

The mechanical ventilation system to provide background and purge
ventilation mentioned in the planning application is to be commissioned and
tested prior to occupation of the flats, and thereafter maintained in
accordance with the manufacturers” instructions.

Reason: To protect the Artificial Grass Pitch’s availability of use and to
accord with Development Plan Policy DM EP 2 of the Sites and Policies Plan
2014

Energy Strategy & Overheating Assessment
‘No development shall commence until the applicant submits to, and has
secured written approval from, the Local Planning Authority an updated
energy strategy and supporting evidence demonstrating that the proposed
development has maximised savings through energy efficiency and mitigated
the risk of overheating in line with the GLA’s guidance on preparing energy
assessments (2018)

REASON:

To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability,
makes efficient use of resources and minimises the risk of overheating, and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: Policies 5.2
and 5.9 of the London Plan 2016, and Policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011.

District Heat Networks — London Heat Networks Manual

‘No development shall commence until the applicant submits to, and has
secured written approval from, the Local Planning Authority evidence
demonstrating that the development has been designed to enable
connection of the site to an existing or future district heating network, in
accordance with the Technical Standards of the London Heat Network
Manual (2014).

REASON:

To demonstrate that the site heat network has been designed to link all
building uses on site (domestic and non-domestic), and to demonstrate that
sufficient space has been allocated in the plant room for future connection to
wider district heating, in accordance with London Plan policies 5.5 and 5.6.

Internal water usage rates

Page 101



20)

21)

No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until
evidence has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority confirming that the development will achieve internal
water usage rates of no greater than 105 litres per person per day.

REASON:

To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability
and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.15 of the London Plan
2016, and with Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

19) Carbon reductions and internal water usage rates

‘No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until
evidence has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority confirming that
the development has achieved CO2 reductions in accordance with those
outlined in the Applicant’s Energy Strategy dated April 2020, and internal
water consumption rates of no greater than 105 litres per person per day.

REASON:

To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability
and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.15 of the London Plan 2016,
and with Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

The development hereby permitted by this planning permission shall ensure
that finished floor levels for all residential units shall be set no lower than
300mm above the 1 in 100 year plus climate change flood level (in metres
above Ordnance Datum) as agreed in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment
and Addendum. The measures shall be fully implemented and subsequently
maintained, in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied
within the Flood Risk Assessment and Addendum or within any other period
as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and
occupants.

Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed drainage
investigation and inspection (via CCTV survey) of the existing drainage ditch
shall be undertaken to check its capacity, condition and any lateral
connections and flow direction. As the proposed scheme includes realignment
of the drainage ditch, no culverting must be undertaken and this inspection is
required to be done before any realignment or diversion work to ditch takes
place. Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development is
not increased and the capacity and condition of the ditch is not compromised
before any diversion takes place.

Page 102



22) No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a
detailed scheme for the provision of surface and foul water drainage has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The drainage
scheme will include detailed drainage layout construction drawings and dispose
of surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system (including green
roofs, permeable paving, SuDS tree pits and Raingardens) at a restricted runoff
rate (no more than 3l/s) and attenuation provision of no less than 328m3, in
accordance with drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan Policy
(6.12, 5.13 and SPG) and the advice contained within the National SuDS
Standards. Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the
proposed development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood
risk does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2
and the London Plan policy 5.13.

Informatives:

The prior written consent of Merton Council as Lead Local Flood Authority, under the
Land Drainage Act is required for any proposed works to the existing ditches
(Ordinary Watercourse) including any proposed realignment or diversions. Any
proposal for culverting other than for access via a small bridge will not be permitted.

No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public highway including the
public footway or highway. When it is proposed to connect to a public sewer, the site
drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the
boundary. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior
approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required (contact no. 0845
850 2777).

No waste material, including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats, oils and chemicals

shall be washed down on the highway or disposed of into the highway drainage
system

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



=P ¢

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Koy

55 Parking space (oia)

OUTLINE OF GROUND FLOOR

Ee—

Page 109

Spaces

5ot stay Cycie spaces

160sam Chicien' Poy Area

UGt Cacuiation

‘Groon Root 375 sam (08375 = 300)

Parmeabs Paviag - 2010 sam (0.1 x201

201

Amenty Spoce 95 sam (0.4x 95 = 198)

Lanascaping 1255 sam (1 x 1255+ 1255)

Sto Avoa- 4929 sam

Total area (1954) /St area 4929) = 0.4 UGE

TOOTNG & ICHAM FOOTBALL CLLR.
ACZONMODATION BLOCK

PROPOSEDSTEPLAN




This page is intentionally left blank



Winecicnor accesite ot Whasichar occosstie for

i e
54
N /
N 2
\ / a

N

Entrance a

(Agium)

RN

AN
N

IE==R=EREERE &

8in store (9 11001t Euro Bins)

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



‘ | I
. DEEOEE

= ] DODOEO

- OOREOREE

® |- pppoopEon R [G
| \ HEF

\
\

\
\
\

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



[ 1 [

(ITTT] [T

[0 OO0 | OO0 0o
@) 0 OO0 | 000 OO0 OO0 OO
B e [0 OO0 | OO0 OO0 OO0 OO
e (IITD OO0 OO0 | (00 OOE0 OO0 GO
@ 0 [0 OIrfe CCEEd T [(ITTT] [TTTT
) Boiler Flue 2no. e Boiler Flue
¥ | o oo o | D OOD OO O
| = :
W= ‘ EEREN
(@B \ EEEEN
)
@ \ EEREN
\

Page 123




This page is intentionally left blank



ORI RO oD
AD0T NOUYOOWNO DY  — — L1tk
B0 TIWRICCH WHDIN T ONICO) ROUVATTS S 200 D900,

Page 125

s T o R IR - v



This page is intentionally left blank



. oo o merasmn

T0ING & MITCHAM FOOTEALL CLUB
ACCOMMODATONBLOCK

PROPGSED FRONT/WEST BEVATION

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129

If




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



e

T0ING & MITCHAM FOOTEALL CLUB
ACCOMMODATONBLOCK

PROPCSED SDENORTH EEVATON

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



—

Page 137

& MITCHAM FOOTEALLCLUB
/CDATON BLOCK

PROPGSED SECTION




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20th August 2020.
Item No:
UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
20/P1060 07.04.2020
Address/Site Former Sparrowhawk site, 159 Commonside East, Mitcham,
CR4 2QB
Ward: Figges Marsh
Proposal: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND THE ERECTION

OF BUILDINGS TO CREATE 25 SELF-CONTAINED
RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING

Drawing Nos; Site location plan and drawings P101C, P102B, P103B, P104,

P105, P201B, P202A, P301A, P601, P602A, P701, SH/SP103 &
SH/SP101

Contact Officer: Leigh Harrington (020 8545 3836)

RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission subject to a section 106 agreement for off-site affordable
housing contribution, permit free development and carbon offsetting and relevant
conditions.

CHECKLIST INFORMATION.
e Heads of agreement: Yes
¢ |s a screening opinion required: No
e Is an Environmental Statement required: No
e Has an Environmental Impact Assessment been submitted: No
¢ Design Review Panel consulted: Yes at Pre App stage
e Number of neighbours consulted: 85
e Press notice — Yes
e Site notice — Yes
e External consultations: Metropolitan Police & Historic England

Page 139



1.1

2.

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

Archaeological Priority Zone — Yes

Controlled Parking Zone — Yes, along Commonside East frontage
Number of jobs created: N/A

Density 131 Dwellings per hectare

INTRODUCTION

The application has been brought before the Committee due to the level of
public interest.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The site is an irregular shaped plot of land located at the junction of
Commonside East and Hallowell Close in Mitcham. The site comprises a
detached house and a disused scrap yard. The site is surrounded by
predominantly residential properties with two storey interwar terraced houses
and a garage area along Hallowell Close and a converted public house on
Commonside East and a block of flats being the adjacent neighbours whilst the
bridge on Commonside East screens much of the site from Mitcham Common
which is opposite the site. The site is now adjacent to a CPZ that has been
implemented along Commonside East and prohibits parking for non-permit
holders between the hours of 8.30am and 6.30pm. The site is adjacent to the
Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation Area. It is located within a Tier 2
Archaeological Priority Zone and has a Ptal rating of 3. The site is within Flood
Risk Zone 1 and therefore deemed to be at low risk of flooding.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

Following a previous refusal of permission for flats on this site, this application
seeks planning permission for the demolition of all buildings on the site and
the erection of a new part three storey part four storey apartment block. With a
proposed quantum of 25 units the proposals represent a reduction in numbers
by three units over the refused scheme.

The vehicular access to the site leading to 17 parking spaces and including 2
disabled and 4 EV capable spaces will be from Commonside East via a gated
entrance which also serves the cycle storage for 35 bicycles in a secured bike
storage shed. The refuse store would also be located alongside this access.

The main pedestrian entrance to the block would also be via Commonside
East . At ground floor level this elevation provides three x 1 bedroom units (2x
wheelchair capable) with ground floor amenity gardens to the rear with a two
bedroom (also wheelchair capable) unit with ground floor garden in the south

Page 140



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

east corner of the block. Four x duplex units would face the Hallowell Close
elevation all set behind small front gardens and with rear ground floor
gardens. As submitted, the existing pavement configuration would have been
be altered to provide 6 parking spaces to replace the more informal on
pavement parking along Hallowell Close in front of the site. The applicant has
since confirmed that whilst they will pass that land to the control of the Council
they consider paying £25k towards providing the bays unreasonable and
therefore will not be providing those spaces.

Access to the upper floors would be via a combined stairwell and lift shaft
accessed at the end of the main pedestrian entrance. At first floor level these
open out onto an access deck that serves the five units facing Commonside
East. There being no access from here to the duplex units on Hallowell Close.

At second floor level the deck access would serve five units facing the
common and to the four one bedroom units facing Hallowell Close.

At third floor level the deck access would serve the top three units facing
Commonside East along with a communal roof terrace area in the south east
corner of the building.

The block would be finished in a mixed palette of materials including the
predominant finish of light buff brickwork with light coloured mortar, fluted pale
concrete panels and grey-green zinc for the roofs with this colour carried over
into the door and window framing.

3.8 Accommodation Mix

4,

Unit type Number %
Studio 1 4

1 Bed 2 Persons 13 52
2 Bed 3 Persons 1 4

2 Bed 4 Persons 4 16
3 Bed 4 Persons 2 8

4 Bed 6 Persons 4 16
Total 25 100

PLANNING HISTORY

Page 141



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

06/P1778- Planning permission granted for erection of single storey rear
extension

90/P1098 1136 — Planning permission granted for the construction of a mono-
pitch roof above existing flat roof of warehouse building.

17/P2574 Planning permission refused by PAC and appeal dismissed for
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND THE ERECTION OF
BUILDING TO CREATE 28 X SELF CONTAINED RESIDENTIAL UNITS
WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING.

Reasons; The proposals by reason of their size, siting massing and bulk
would result in an unneighbourly overdevelopment of the site, and
would be unduly dominant and unduly prominent, failing to relate
positively and appropriately to local character to the detriment of
neighbouring occupiers and the visual amenities of the area. The
proposals would be contrary to policies 3.5, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London
Plan (2015), policy CS.14 of the Merton Core Planning Strategy (2011),
and policy DM.D2 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014).

The proposals by reason of their design and layout would fail to provide
a satisfactory standard of accommodation for future occupiers arising
from a failure to provide adequate outdoor amenity space for all units,
and failing to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Council that the
number of single aspect units has been minimised. The proposals would
be contrary to policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2015), policy DM.D2 of the
Merton Sites and Policies Plan and Standards 26 and 29 of the Mayor's
Housing SPG 2016 (as amended in 2017).

The proposals by reason of the number of units proposed would be
likely to exacerbate pressure on kerbside parking locally to the
detriment of the amenities of existing residents. The proposals would be
contrary to policy CS20 of the Merton Core Planning Strategy (2011).

In dismissing the appeal the Inspector concluded; ‘/ have found that the
proposal would contribute toward the supply of housing in the area, re-use a
brownfield site, the traffic and parking relating to the proposed flats would not
harm the safe and efficient operation of the highway network and there would
be contributions toward carbon offset projects and to the local highway.
However, these factors are not sufficient to outweigh the harmful effect the
works would have on the character and appearance of the area and the flats
would not provide adequate living conditions for prospective occupiers. Given
that results in conflict with development plan policies, | conclude that the
proposal would be contrary to the development plan as a whole. As such, |
conclude that the appeal should be dismissed’.

Page 142



5.1

5.2

CONSULTATION

The applicants undertook their own public engagement on the scheme
comprising of the delivery of 127 consultation leaflets to homes in the
immediate area surrounding the site. Face to face meetings and
discussions have also been held with Ward Councillors, including a
meeting with Councillor Stanford and Councillor Akyingyina. The
application was accompanied by a Statement of Community involvement

The application was advertised by means of Press and site notices and
letters to 85 neighbouring occupiers. As a result 14 neighbouring residents
objected raising concerns relating to;

BULK AND MASSING

As with previous applications the height of the building is still too high, The 4
storey building (GROUND ,1st , 2nd and 3rd ) Makes this higher than any
neighbouring structure.

Reducing the height of the building would mean fewer residence and this may
mean they would have enough spaces.

Tthe communal balcony compromises the privacy of at least the first three
houses on Hallowell close as the balcony will allow residents to look straight
into the bedroom windows.

This development as planned is not suitable for the plot, a far smaller and
lower development is required.

the property proposed is still too high for this residential street

It is a 4 tier building including the ground floor

The building is still too tall in relation to its environment. The area of
Commonside East and Hallowell Close is obviously not a high rise area

The front axonometric diagram shows how much the development dwarfs
surrounding houses. Therefore, as noted in the previous appeal rejection
letter ‘The impact of the proposed development on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area’ remains unchanged, and the reduction in
the number of dwellings has not been reflected in a reduction in the
developments height.

The reduced number of units still leaves the development vastly
overpopulated, the area cannot cope with the overcrowding

The structure is still too high it will be totally out of character with the
surrounding houses which ae mainly 1930's terrace houses and even older
cottages,

Just setting back the flats on the third floor does nothing to alter the fact it is
still far too high and it will overshadow most of Hallowell Close and be leaving
half of the residents having to look out at this obscene structure.

Page 143



DESIGN & APPEARANCE

The corner of the building on the very junction of Hallowell Close and
Commonside East is a wall that sticks out and is 9-10m in height, this needs
to be shaped better to fit more with the building:

The lift shaft that is used for the flats on the 4th floor is not settled into the
design of the building looks more like an after thought. This is an eyesore as
this also creates a pillar wall that reaches 12-13m in height

The new plans show less entrances to the flats from Hallowell close than the
previous plans. This was one of the designs ideas that came with praise for
the idea that private entrance doors would allow for more of a community feel
of these flats that are on Hallowell Close, as the main entrance to the building
in on Commonside East.

The building would have a harmful effect on the character and appearance

of the surrounding area even though the plans have been amended.

It is our opinion that the current vista has not been taken into consideration of
the developers.

the new build will be out of character and be far too big

These ‘penthouses’ look like sheds, and while they would provide those who
purchase them views of the common over beehive bridge, they add to the
height of the building, again illustrated in the south elevation drawing.

They appear to be served by a lift shaft between the blocks, which extends to
the roof dwellings. | have looked at other blocks locally, eg at Bond Road, and
note that they do not have these rooftop constructions.

PRIVACY

With a communal space we envisage gatherings here which will have an
impact on local residents, this should be removed.

This building will impose hugely on their human right to privacy, also blocking
out the sunshine we enjoy now making it very dark and depressing.

PARKING

Since the previous application double yellow lines are down the full length of
one side of the street so parking has become even more cramped. The
spaces allocated to development wouldn't be enough and it should be stated
that the new development shouldn't have access to permits for the
surrounding streets

Even without permits residents and their visitors would still park in the Close,
there is not enough room for the residents now.

Not enough spaces are available

Page 144



They have not planned for enough parking to accommodate that number of
dwellings. There is enough pressure on parking in this street.

Potentially, there could be 50 additional cars.

this will impact on the already overcrowded parking

There is no facility for deliveries of materials and the large plant that would be
needed to carry out this development

Refuse collections are already hampered by residual traffic. This could be
further hampered by parked material delivery vehicles

The 17 onsite parking spaces are also inadequate, two are reserved as
disabled bays bringing it down in real terms to 15, which is nowhere near
enough,

We have already had the benefit of pavement parking taken away by Merton
Council and the shortage of on street parking will most definitely lead to an
altercation between a once friendly community.

OTHER COMMENTS

The actual proposed images of the development are attractive but the number
of units should be reduced to a more realistic proposal that accommodates
parking for say 2 vehicles per unit.

How are they intending to compensate the current residents for the disruption
caused by the endless comings and goings of truckloads of building
materials? They have not specified a projected time for completion. It could go
on for months and months.

The land should be developed but do they really have to shoehorn people in
at such high density? It should be done sympathetically with the surroundings
here. These plans smack of maximising every last buck and they have not
considered people’s welfare.

Without the 4th storey, the roof dwellings this is an acceptable development. It
is good that it has been confirmed that the residents will be unable to apply for
residential parking permits. Even with parking restrictions in place, parking is
still difficult on the road and is a major concern for those living there already.
Suspect that the timing for submitting this highly controversial planning
application forward now is G&L homes know that whilst the country is in the
middle of a global pandemic and is in lockdown, it will be extremely difficult for
the residents of Commonside East and Hallowell Close to be able to talk, and
hold any meetings or to take action, as we have previously to get this
application rejected, as it has been twice before at both council appeal level,
and housing and regeneration level.

As we border the Mitcham conservation area this will change the character of
the whole area, and possibly ruin the close community spirit the residents
have now.

Page 145



5.3

5.4

5.5

Merton council should reject this development or at least suspend it until the
current pandemic is over and residents have the opportunity to unite against
it, something the developers are trying to avoid.

Policy CS8 in the council's core planning strategy sets a borough-wide
affordable housing target of 40% for developments of 10 or more units. The
applicant's application form states that none of the 25 units will be affordable
housing. We ask the Council to require that its 40% target be met.

The Mitcham Cricket Green Community & Heritage;

= No objection to a residential use.

= Design welcomed for additional design details, use of recessed balconies
and dual aspect units throughout.

= Massing & height remains excessive and will still be as prominent as the
refused scheme

= Only marginally lower and retains issues of a flat roof above ridge line of
145 Commonside East and incongruous relationship with houses on
Hallowell Close that lead to appeal being dismissed

» Intrudes negatively on the Conservation area and detracts from No 145
which makes appositive contribution to the CA

» Fails to provide any affordable housing relying on a flawed assessment

» Fails to address impact on parking and should not assume that the Town
Green can be legally parked on.

= Poor quality blank frontage on N & E elevations

= This is an Archaeological Priority Zone and consent should be conditional
on archaeological investigations.

The Metropolitan Police Safer by Design Officer

The site is on the periphery of Mitcham Town Centre which is Merton
Boroughs crime hot spot having a high volume of crime and antisocial
behaviour. Security should be of paramount concern with robust security
measures incorporated into the design and build. There is no mention of
security or crime considerations within the Design and Access Statement. The
Officer’'s recommendations are addressed in the design section of this report

English Heritage-

The development could cause harm to archaeological remains and field
evaluation is needed to determine appropriate mitigation.

However, although the NPPF envisages evaluation being undertaken prior to
determination, in this case consideration of the nature of the development, the
archaeological interest and/or practical constraints are such that | consider a
two stage archaeological condition could provide an acceptable safeguard.

Page 146



5.6

This would comprise firstly, evaluation to clarify the nature and extent of
surviving remains, followed, if necessary, by a full investigation. | therefore
recommend attaching a pre-commencement condition which is necessary to
safeguard the archaeological interest on this site. Approval of the WSI before
works begin on site provides clarity on what investigations are required, and
their timing in relation to the development programme. Without this pre-
commencement condition being imposed the application should be refused as
it would not comply with NPPF paragraph 199.

Design Review Panel.

On 30th January 2020 the pre application drawings were submitted and the
design received a GREEN verdict

The Panel were unanimous in their praise for the appearance and architecture
of the proposed design. They felt was it carefully thought through and well
considered. It had good levels of detailing and responded well to the two
different streets. The Panel also liked the proposed materials and reserved
palette, though did question the white colour of the railings. The dual aspect
nature of the flats was praised. However one deck did have bedrooms
directly onto the deck without a privacy buffer and it was felt this should be
provided. The Panel did also note the relatively high level of parking provided,
despite no policy requirement for this amount. This issue was discussed and
in the context of a possible CPZ being introduced. It was felt there was a
possible alternative which reconfigured the rear layout. This could provide
less parking and more private amenity space as well as some communal
space. Reducing parking could also effect a more significant change by
maximising the number of units facing the common by rationalising internal
flat shapes and relocating the vehicular access to Hallowell Close. This could
also bring more efficiencies with bin and cycle provision.

INTERNAL CONSULTEES

5.11 Transport planning officer

Permit free option would be acceptable subject to the applicant enters into a
Unilateral Undertaking which would restrict future occupiers of the units from
obtaining an on-street residential parking permit to park in the surrounding
controlled parking zones to be secured by via S106 legal agreement.

The development proposals are set back along the Hallowell Close site
frontage. The set back has allowed for the introduction of a 2m wide footway
that will connect with the existing footway provision. This will allow the existing
footway provision to be converted to on-street car parking, which can form
part of the recently introduced CPZ, ensuring residents of the site will not be
able to access the spaces if supported by a parking permit restriction, which is
accepted by the Applicant.

Page 147



5.12

5.13

5.14

The layout would entail the reconfiguration of the pavement and carriageway
in front of the site in order to provide for a safe and continuous footpath and
for loading/unloading. This would require the dedication of land as highway
and for the applicant to cover the Council’s costs of such works and any
necessary road traffic orders.

The proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on the adjoining highway.

The officer raised no objection subject to conditions and agreements
requiring:

Car & cycle parking to be maintained.

Demolition/Construction Logistic Plan (including a Construction Management
plan in accordance with TfL guidance) should be submitted to LPA for
approval before commencement of work.

Prior to occupation of the development the applicant shall enter into and
complete an agreement under S278/S38 of the Highways Act with the Council
as local highway authority, to provide for a scheme of works to deliver the
layby and footway as shown on plan.

The applicant is willing to dedicate land to allow highways improvements but
not fund them.

Environmental Health

No objections subject to the imposition of conditions relating to site
contamination given the use of the site for scrap dealing, noise impact on
future residents, construction management and hours of construction and
external lighting.

Climate change officers

Satisfied the proposals would meet current policy requirements for a 35%
reduction in CO2 emissions although London Plan policy seeks for major
developments to achieve 100% improvement. Where that can’t be achieved
through savings on site a cash contribution for carbon offset can be secured
through a s106 agreement which in this instance equates to £35,460.

Arboricultural officer.

Initial concerns relating to the impact of the proposals on the Ash tree at the
adjoining property on Hallowell Close and that to leave it in place and
construct this block would render the tree a safety hazard. The applicant has
provided evidence that they have attempted to contact the owner of the tree to
agree its removal, with the applicant willing to meet the costs of removal but
no response was received from that neighbouring owner in this regard. The

Page 148



5.15

5.16

officer was otherwise satisfied with the proposals and considered the
landscaping would enhance the locality.

Council’s Flood Risk Manager
| have reviewed this application in terms of flood risk and drainage and find the
report acceptable and in accordance with policy.

Nimbus Engineering have produced a SuDS report to accompany the
application. The proposed development will include an increase in impermeable
drainage area in the form of buildings, access and car parking. In order to
comply with policy, flow control will be used and attenuation provided on site to
accommodate storm events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus 40%
climate change event.

Surface water will be discharged into the 229mm public surface sewer located
immediately north of the site at a rate of 2 I/s. A gravity connection appears
feasible subject to utilising shallow depth attenuation storage techniques.
Attenuation will be provided within the sub-grade of permeable paving. The
sub-grade can be formed from geo-cellular units to limit the depth and facilitate
gravity drainage”.

Council’s Design officer.
This remains a generally good scheme although with some differences with the
scheme presented to DRP.

5.17 Following the submission of revised elevations on the Hallowell Close

elevation the proposals were reconsulted upon. No further neighbour
responses were received.

Metropolitan Police Safer by Design Officer.

Amendments to the window design would be of benefit security wise -
increasing the chance of natural surveillance onto the street scene. Safety
design features should include;

The residential entrance lobby should be ‘air locked’ by a second set of
access controlled .

Mailbox provision needs to be considered in the entrance lobby, preferably
externally delivered and internally collected.

A zoned encrypted fob controlled system should be installed to control access
throughout the block..

the design of the cycle storage should be to LPS1175; STS202 or LPS2081
standards .

The design of the bike store and the bin store should eliminate the chance of
seating.

Page 149



The gardens that abut the rear parking area should have a boundary
treatment of a 1.5 metre fence supplemented by trellis to a height of 1.8 metre
to promote natural surveillance.

Access control should be applied to the vehicular and pedestrian gates to
prevent unauthorized access into the car park and the rear of the block. The
rear car park gates should be automated, capable of being operated remotely
by the driver whilst sitting in the vehicle, the operation speed of the gates
should be as quick as possible to avoid tailgating by other vehicles.

Plants should be selected to have a mature growth height no higher than 1
metre, trees should have no foliage, shoots or lower branches below 2
metres, thereby allowing a 1 metre clear field of vision.

Theft of motorcycles, scooters and mopeds is a major problem in the Mitcham
area and dedicated motorcycle parking facilities should be designed into the
car parking area. The incorporation of ground anchors and/or metal support
stays can provide a firm and immovable object to affix the rear wheel where
the rider can add their secondary measures.

Space should be created between any seating and any footpaths to help
reduce the fear associated with having to walk past and also all seating
should be located where there will be a chance for natural surveillance.

Any seating should be designed to include centrally positioned arm rest
dividers to assist those with mobility issues.

CCTV would be of benefit for this development. Any lighting fixtures should
not be in conflict with the CCTV cameras field of view. All CCTV systems
should have a simple Operational Requirement (OR) detailed to ensure that
the equipment fitted meets that standard

Lighting across the entire development should be to the required British
Standards, avoiding the various forms of light pollution (vertical and horizontal
glare), the public space lighting should also meet the current council
requirements.

5.17.1 The officer is concerned about the safety of the development given the high

6.1

6.2

6.3

crime figures for the area and therefore suitable secure by design conditions
are recommended.

POLICY CONTEXT

NPPF (2019). Key sections:
6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes.
7. Requiring good design.

Relevant policies in the London Plan 2016 are; 3.3 (Increasing housing
supply), 3.4 (Optimising housing potential), 3.5 (Quality and design of housing
developments), 3.8 (Housing choice), 5.1 (Climate change mitigation), 5.3
(Sustainable design and construction), 5.7 (Renewable energy), 5.13
(Sustainable drainage), 6.9 (Cycling), 7.5 (Public realm), 7.6(Architecture) &
7.21 (Trees and woodlands).

London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance 2016

Page 150



6.4

6.5

6.6

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

DCLG Technical standards 2015

Relevant polices in the Core Strategy 2011 are; CS8 (Housing choice), CS 9
(Housing targets), CS 11(Infrastructure), CS 12 (Economic Development), CS
13 (Open Space, Nature conservation), CS 14 (Design), CS 15 (Climate
change), CS 16 (Flood risk), CS 18 (Transport) & CS 20 (Parking, Servicing &
delivery).

The relevant policies in the Sites and Policies Plan 2014 are; DM D1 (Urban
Design and the public realm), DM D2 (Design considerations in all
developments), DM D4 (Heritage Assets), DM E3 Protection of scattered
employment sites, DM EP4 Pollutants, DM F1 (Flood risk management), DM
F2 Sustainable urban drainage systems DM EP 2 (Reducing and mitigating
noise), DM EP4 (Pollutants), DM H2 (Housing mix), DM 02 (Trees, hedges
and landscape features), DM T2 (Transport impacts of development) & DM T3
(Car parking and servicing standards).

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main planning considerations in this case relate to the loss of the scattered
employment site, the principle of development, the suitability of
accommodation and design of the new flats, the impact on occupier and
neighbour amenity, the impact on the character and appearance of the local
area and servicing of the development.

Loss of the scattered employment site

Sites and Policies Plan policy DM E3 Protection of scattered employment sites
seeks to ensure that there is a diverse mix of size, type, tenure and location of
employment facilities which can support a range of employment opportunities
within the borough. For the purposes of this policy ‘employment’ and business
refers to premises or land that operates within the B1 (a), B1 (b), B1 (c), B2 and
B8 Use Classes.

Applications proposing a loss of a scattered employment site will have to show
that full and proper marketing has been undertaken to demonstrate that
employment uses are no longer viable on the site. Applicants should
demonstrate that:

the site has been marketed for 30 months unless otherwise agreed with the
council;

Site is in a predominantly residential area

Size, configuration and access make it unsuitable and financially unviable for
whole site employment use.

Page 151



7.4

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

the site has been marketed using new (on the internet) and traditional
marketing tools available; and

the site has been marketed at a price which is considered reasonable (based
on recent and similar deals or transactions).

Based on information submitted with the 2017 application officers are satisfied

that the site has been marketed for more than 5 years. The site is within a
residential area and its use as a scrap yard is not one that would now be
considered suitable for such a location and the constrained access limit its
suitability for regular traffic from larger commercial vehicles. There were no
concerns at the loss of the scrapyard use on the previous application and
therefore in view of these considerations there would be no justification for
resisting the change of use to a residential one.

Provision of and need for housing.

The emerging ‘intend to Publish London Plan’, now accorded moderate weight
in recent appeal decisions issued by the Secretary of State, and anticipated to
be adopted in the coming months, will signal the need for a step change in the
delivery of housing in Merton. While AMR data shows the Council has
exceeded its current 411 target, the target of 918 units per year will prove
considerably more challenging. The relaxation of the earlier target (1300+
units) for Merton (following the Inspector’s finding following the London Plan
Examination in Public Panel Report Appendix: Panel Recommendations
October 2019) was predicated on not adopting a particular GLA formula to
delivering significant new housing on small sites, with larger opportunity sites
such as the application site rising in importance.

The National Planning Policy Framework requires Councils to identify a
supply of specific ‘deliverable’ sites sufficient to provide five years worth of
housing with an additional buffer of 5% to provide choice and competition.

Merton’s overall housing target between 2011 and 2026 is 5,801
dwellings (Authority’s Monitoring Report 2018/19). The latest Monitoring report
confirms that all of the completions this financial year were on small sites of
less than 0.25 hectares in size. All of the schemes except one delivered 10
homes or fewer, with one scheme of 11 homes. There were no large schemes
that completed this year, which resulted in a lower number of new homes built
in the borough. Merton has always exceeded the London Plan target apart
from 2009/10 and this year 2018/19 where there was a 34% shortfall although
in total Merton has exceeded the London Plan target by 987 homes during
this period 2004/5-2018/19

Page 152



7.5.3

754

The proposal to introduce residential use to this site is considered to respond
positively to London Plan, draft London Plan policies and Core Strategy
planning policies to increase housing supply and optimise sites, is supported
by Officers and the Planning Inspector who commented “the proposed
development would contribute an additional 27 dwellings toward the mix and
supply of housing, including a financial contribution to the supply of affordable
housing, and this is a material consideration of considerable weight in favour
of the proposed development.”

The proposals currently before members would provide 25 new dwellings in a
variety of units sizes including family sized units of accommodation on the site
given the demolition of the existing vacant house on the site. With increased
housing targets for the borough the ability of the site to deliver a meaningful
contribution to future housing supply is significant.

7.5.5 In relation to unit mix 56% would be studio and 1 bed units, 20% 2 bed and

7.6.1

7.6.2

24% 3 and 4 bed units. Whist it is acknowledged that this differs from policy
goals for approximately 33% for each size type officers consider that this mix
would optimise the development potential for the site helping to deliver flats of
a variety of sizes to meet the requirements of a range of households in a part
of the borough where there is currently a greater concentration of three
bedroom family housing.

Density/Bulk/Massing/Design/Appearance/Layout.

Density. Policy on development density seeks to optimise housing output on
sites.

The proposals involve a density of 131 dwellings per hectare. With a ptal of 3
in a suburban setting this does exceed the current recommended range of 50-
95 units set out in the current London Plan.

7.6.3 Whilst density is a material consideration, it is not the overriding factor as to

7.6.4

whether a development is acceptable. The density would be higher due to
the development being flats but the scale and massing are considered
acceptable, the appearance along the Hallowell Close elevation is softened
with the set back gardens and duplex units and these factors are considered
to combine to mitigate any harm from the higher density whilst still optimising
the use of the site.

Design-Appearance Sites and Policies Plan policies DM D1 (Urban design),
DM D2: (Design considerations) as well as LBM Core Strategy Policy CS14 are
all policies designed to ensure that proposals are well designed and in keeping

Page 153



with the character of the local area. Given that the application is for a block of
flats and the majority of the housing in the area is terraced family homes and
form of development that is not terraces of houses will be at odds with the
character of the area. However new developments of flats in areas such as this
are becoming increasingly common and are blending into the new character of
those areas. To reduce the visual impact of the building the proposals
incorporate the use of lighter coloured brickwork and exterior materials whilst
the planting and set back along Hallowell Close is considered to help tie this
elevation into the existing street. A condition requiring samples of proposed
materials to be approved is recommended.

7.6.5 The design of the proposals at pre application stage secured a Green from the
Design Review Panel and the applicants made a small number of changes from
that design to the one currently before members that included;

e Relocating of secondary windows to improve privacy;

e Colour of boundary treatment;

e Suggestion that the scheme should be future proofed so that there is potential
to reduce the number of car parking spaces and change this to amenity space
in the future if required

¢ More prominent windows on the Hallowell Close elevation.

The changes are not considered to detract from the design to the degree that
they would warrant a refusal of the proposals.

7.6.6 Design-Layout
Safety and design

SPP policy DM D2 requires proposals to provide a safe and secure layout. To
this end the Safer by Design officer has advised that a number of safety features
be incorporated into any finished design and conditions are recommended to
ensure this.

7.6.7 Design-Bulk and Massing

In determining the appeal the Inspector made comments that the flat roof
above the third storey would be higher than the ridge of the neighbouring
former public house, separated from the building by the access to the car
park. This would result in the building being prominent in views along
Commonside East. Although the height remains the same with this application
the use of horizontally wider balconies and the set back from the front elevation
and a much smaller width of the third-floor element. mean that visually the
structure will have a greater horizontal rather than vertical emphasis.

Page 154



7.6.8 The Inspector also raised concerns about the bulky nature of the proposed
statement building but officers consider that as stated above the changes to
the third floor have made a significant reduction in the bulk of the scheme to
the degree that the block could not sit suitably in this position with no
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the wider setting.

7.7 Standard of accommodation and the amenity of future occupiers.

7.7.1  SPP Policy DM D2, Core Strategy 2011 policies CS 9 Housing Provision and
CS 14 Design and London Plan policies 3.3 Increasing Housing Supply, 3.4
Optimising Housing Potential, 3.5 Quality and Design of Housing Developments
are all policies that seek to provide additional good quality residential
accommodation.

7.7.2 In determining the appeal the Inspector considered that as eighteen of the
proposed units were single aspect or were not provided with outside amenity
space in accordance with the standards that this would provide a poor standard
of accommodation and this was cited in his dismissal of the appeal. The
applicants has now revised the design such that there are no single aspect units
and all units exceed the minimum external space standards and as shown in the
table below all units exceed the minimum internal space standards. In view of
that officers consider that the proposals will provide a high standard of residential
amenity for future occupiers.

7.7.3 Schedule of accommodation

Unit Type Proposed Minimum Proposed Min Req’d
GIA Req’d GIA | Amenity Amenity
GF 1 1B/2P 56m2 50m2 8m?2 5m2
GF 2 1B/2P 68m2 50m2 14m2 5m2
GF 3 1B/2P 66m2 50m2 8m2 5m2
GF 4 2B/4P 93m2 70m2 74m2 7m2
GF 5 4B/6P 142m2 106m2 6+18m2 5m2
GF 6 4B/6P 124m?2 106m?2 6+21m2 9m2
GF 7 4B/6P 122m?2 106m?2 5+21m2 9m2
GF 8 4B/6P 140m2 106m2 8+34m2 9m2
1stF 9 3B/4P 77m2 74m2 7m2 7m2
1stF 10 1B/2P 55m2 50m2 6m2 5m2

Page 155



18t F 11 1B/2P 55m2 50m2 6m2 5m2
1stF 12 2B/4P 72m2 70m2 11m2 7m2
1stF 13 2B/4P 71m3 70m2 7m2 7m2
2" F 14 3B/4P 77m3 74m2 7m2 7m2
27 F 15 1B/2P 55m2 50m2 6m2 5m2
2" F 16 1B/2P 55m2 50m2 6m2 5m2
2NDF 17 | 2B/3P 72m2 61m2 10m2 6m2
2ND F 18 1B/2P 51m2 50m2 29m2 7m2
2NDF 19 1B/2P 51m2 50m2 10m2 5m2
2ND F 20 1B/2P 50m2 50m2 8m2 5m2
2ND F21 1B/2P 51m2 50m2 8m2 5m2
2ND F22 Studio 40m2 37m2 10m2 5m2
3RD F23 1B/2P 55m2 50m2 22m2 5m2
3RD F24 1B/2P 56m2 50m2 18m2 5m2
3RD F25 2B/4P 74m2 70m2 25m2 7m2
Comm’ 85m2

terrace

7.8 Neighbour Amenity.

The application has been assessed against adopted planning policies
London Plan policy 7.6 and SPP policy DM D2 which require that proposals
will not have a negative impact on neighbour amenity in terms of loss of light,
privacy visual intrusion or noise and disturbance.

7.8.1 The proposals were accompanied by a daylight sunlight assessment. As part
of the initial assessment two existing neighbouring properties were identified
that could be affected from the proposed development. Calculations
confirmed that the existing properties will still receive adequate annual
probable sunlight hours and adequate sunlight hours during the winter
period.

7.8.2 In relation to summer sunlight the report found that from all neighbouring
properties only one window, located at 147 Commonside East at ground
floor level will not receive the recommended sunlight hours throughout the
year. The proposed development can still be considered as appropriate for
the site due to the fact that a total of 37 neighbouring windows comply with
the BRE requirement of receiving more than 371.5hours of sunlight during
the year. For winter sunlight results showed that only one window will not

Page 156



7.8.3

7.8.4

7.8.5

7.8.6

achieve the recommended 74.3hours of sunlight during the winter period.
However, the window does achieve 72 hours and therefore the difference
has been kept to a minimum.

An open space/garden was also identified at the rear of the neighbouring
residential property and therefore, an overshadowing assessment was
carried out. A detailed model study in Ecotect Analysis demonstrated that
more than 50% of the rear garden will receive a total of 6.25hrs of sunlight
on the 21st March. Therefore, the proposed development will not have an
impact on the amenity space.

In relation to neighbours the assessment of daylight, sunlight and
overshadowing indicates that the proposed residential units will not cause a
change in light levels to existing occupants and therefore, the proposal is
considered appropriate for the specific site.

For future occupiers the final analysis also showed that the proposed
habitable internal spaces of the residential scheme will achieve all the
minimum daylight factor standards set by BRE and will be adequately daylit

In view of these considerations the proposals are not considered detrimental
to the amenity of neighbouring residents or future occupiers

7.8.7 With regard to loss of outlook the combination of the reduced quantum of third

floor accommodation and its set back positioning mean that the proposal would
not therefore be considered visually intrusive.

7.9 Parking, servicing and deliveries.

Core Strategy Policy CS 20 requires proposals to have regard to pedestrian
movement, safety, serving and loading facilities for local businesses and
manoeuvring for emergency vehicles as well as refuse storage and collection.
The proposals did generate objections regarding parking however the scheme
will provide 19 on site parking bays and this ratio of 0.68 cars per unit is the
same ratio as that found to be acceptable by the Planning Inspector. Given the
introduction of a CPZ since the last decision by members, officers consider it
would be unreasonable to resist the latest proposals on the grounds of parking
impact.

7.9.1 The applicant is willing to pass ownership of some of the land along Hallowell
Close in order to provide bays for up to six cars to park as noted by the

Inspector but will now not offer a contribution of £25,000 towards the cost of

these works. Notwithstanding the applicant’s refusal to pay for the highway
improvement the dedication of the land will allow the Council the opportunity

to make those improvements in the future if conditions permit.

Page 157



7.9.2 In view of these factors members may consider the parking provision for
the development is acceptable.

7.10 Cycle Parking:
The London Plan cycle parking standards for residential development are one
space per one bed units and two spaces per unit for all other dwellings.
The proposal provides 33 resident’s spaces and 3 visitor cycle parking spaces
in the form of stacked cycle stands, within an external shelter accessed via the
parking area / access road. The no. of cycle spaces provided is satisfactory.

7.11 Refuse Collection:
Refuse collection at the site will take place on-street.
The bin storage areas for the apartments are located on the ground floor
adjacent to the main flat entrance. A separate door provides access to the bin
store, allowing the bins to be located within 10m of the public highway. Each
flat / house with a front door onto Commonside East and Hallowell Close is
provided with their own refuse storage area, outside the property allowing on-
street collection to occur.

7.12 Sustainable design and construction.

Any new building must comply with the Mayor's and Merton’s objectives on
carbon emissions, renewable energy, sustainable design and construction,
green roofs, flood risk management and sustainable drainage as set out in
policies in the London Plan (2016) — Chapter 5 and the Council’s LDF Core
Planning Strategy (2011) policies CS15 and CS16). Climate change officers
were satisfied the design was policy complaint in terms of achieving a 35%
reduction in CO2 emissions whilst the carbon offset contribution will assist
towards the Mayor’s zero carbon goals .

7.13 Affordable Housing
Policy CS 8 within the Core Strategy states that for new development
involving housing of 10 or more dwellings the affordable housing target
is for 40% of the units to be affordable of which the desired tenure mix
should be 60% social Rented and 40% intermediate. The proposal was
submitted with an Economic Viability Assessment that has been
independently assessed. Based on the information supplied, the assessors
agreed with the applicant that delivering 40% affordable housing on a policy
basis is unviable; and the revised sales values indicate no affordable housing
can be provided on site save for a contribution of £61,000 towards affordable
housing to be paid on implementation of the scheme.
The assessors recommend the following in accordance with the Mayors SPG
and the intention of the government consultation on ground rents:

Page 158



7.14

7.15

8.

8.1

8.2

9.1

- Early and late stage reviews to be included within the s106 agreement based
on the Altair appraisal;

- Homes to be identified by plans to be delivered on site in event viability
allows for affordable housing delivery;

- Restrictive obligation that ground rents are not be charged on the
development.

Flood risk

The application was submitted with a drainage strategy that has been
assessed by the Council’s Flood Risk manager who is satisfied that, subject to
the imposition of suitable conditions, the proposals involve no risk to flooding
or issues in relation to surface drainage of the site and are therefore
considered acceptable in this regard.

Archaeology

The site is located within an archaeological priority zone and Historic England
consider that the scale of the works would be such that they could cause harm
to archaeological remains and field evaluation is needed to determine
appropriate mitigation. Their officers recommend mitigating pre-
commencement conditions be imposed to ensure that the site is thoroughly

investigated in order to record any information and finds that may be on site
are not lost.

SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
REQUIREMENTS.

The proposal does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly there is no requirement for an EIA submission.

In order to ensure that the development is policy compliant a condition to that
effect requiring CO2 reductions of not less than a 35% improvement on Part
L regulations 2013, and internal water usage rates of not more than 105
litres per person per day is recommended in addition to the carbon offset
payment that would be included within the s106 agreement.

CONCLUSION

The proposed development will provide 25 new flats of which 6 would be 3
and 4 bedroom family units for which there is an identified need in the
Borough. The previous partial use of the land for a scrap merchants, whilst
historic, would not be a use that would now be considered acceptable in
such close proximity to residential properties and the site has been marketed

Page 159



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.

without success and the issue of residential use for the site is considered
acceptable.

The proposals provide each unit with excess of the minimum internal floor
area and unlike the previous application there are no single aspect units.
Additionally the scheme now provides each unit with private amenity space.
Although a large development, supporting documentation demonstrates that
there should not be an unacceptable impact on neighbour amenity in terms
of loss of light and outlook.

The site is in a location with high levels of on street parking stress but the
proposals will provide 19 parking spaces (which the Inspector has previously
deemed to be acceptable) so that all the larger units would have a parking
space and cycle space provision meets the required standard.

The issue of affordable housing has been independently assessed and only
a small off site contribution would be viable. As part of the relevant s106
clause this would require viability review mechanisms at early and late
stages of development including a review of viability if a future application is
made to amend the number of unit. A contribution towards carbon offsetting
would also be dealt with by means of the section 106 agreement.

The applicants have agreed the dedication of land to the Council but will not
pay for the provision of parking bays. In order to ensure the integrity of the
highway and the appearance of the finished development the s106
agreement should ensure that the applicant pays for upgrading the
pavement area on the dedicated land in front of the building to LBM
standards before the land is transferred to the LBM control. The applicant
will have to cover the cost of hardsurfacing this area even if they do not
dedicate it. If they refuse to undertake this they can keep the land and
maintain it themselves.

Subject to the completion of the section 106 agreement and the imposition of
suitable planning conditions, the proposal is considered to be acceptable
and in compliance with relevant planning policy and is therefore
recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
GRANT PERMISSION SUBJECT TO SECT 106 AGREEMENT FOR

CARBON OFFSETTING, AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND CONDITIONS
Heads of terms

Page 160



i)  That the developer makes a contribution of £35,460 towards carbon
offsetting

i)  Affordable housing contribution of £61,000 in lieu of on site provision

iii)  Affordable housing- viability review mechanisms at early and late
stages of development, including if future permission is sought for
changes to unit numbers

iv)  Dedication of land to the council including the cost of upgrading the
pavement on this land in front of the building up to LBM standards
before a transfer takes place.

v)  Permit free development

vii) The developer agreeing to meet the Councils costs of preparing,
drafting and monitoring the Section 106 Obligations.

Conditions

1 Commencement of works

2 In accordance with plans; P101C, P102B, P103B, P104, P105, P201B,
P202A, P301A, P601, P602A, P701, SH/SP103 & SH/SP101

3. B1 External materials to be approved;
4. B5 Boundary treatments to be approved;
5. D11 Construction Times

6. H9 Construction Vehicles Prior to the commencement of the development a
working method statement (Construction Environmental Management
Plan) (compliant with Chapter 8 of the Road Signs Manual for temporary
Works) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority to accommodate:

(i)Parking of vehicles of site workers and visitors;
(ii)Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
(iii)Storage of construction plant and materials;
(iv)Wheel cleaning facilities;

(v)Control of dust, smell and other effluvia;
(vi)Control of surface water run-off;

(vi)Removal of waste materials from site.

Reason; To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities of
the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policies 6.3 and 6.14 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS20
of Merton's Core

7. F1 Landscaping

Page 161



8.

9.

10.

11

F5 Tree protection
F8. Site supervision

Non standard Noise Prior to the occupation of the development details of noise
attenuation and noise management methods to mitigate against the likely
impact of the existing noise environment on the development shall be submitted
to and approved by the local planning authority. The approved methods shall
be implemented in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the first
occupation of the development. The standards should comply with
BS8233:2014 as a minimum. Reason; To safeguard the amenities of the future
occupiers of the development and ensure compliance with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.15 of the London Plan 2011 and
policies DM D2, DM D3, DM EP2 and DM EP4 of Merton's Sites and Polices
Plan 2014.

.A desk study, then an investigation shall be undertaken to consider the potential

for contaminated-land, and if necessary, a detailed remediation scheme to bring
the site to a suitable state for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks
to health and the built environment, and submitted to the approval of the
LPA. Reason: To protect the health of future users of the site in accordance
with policy 5.21 of the London Plan 2016 and policy DM EP4 of Merton’s sites
and policies plan 2014.

12.The approached remediation shall be completed in accordance with the details

approved by the Council and a verification report, demonstrating the
effectiveness of the remediation shall be provided to the Council for approval
by the LPA prior to occupation. Reason: To protect the health of future users
of the site in accordance with policy 5.21 of the London Plan 2016 and policy
DM EP4 of Merton’s sites and policies plan 2014.

13.Non standard Contaminated Land

If during construction works, contamination is encountered which has not
previously been identified and considered, the Council’s Environmental Health
Section shall be notified immediately and no further development on that part
of the site shall take place until remediation proposals (detailing all investigative
works and sampling, together with the results of analysis, risk assessment to
any receptors and proposed remediation strategy detailing proposals for
remediation) have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority and the approved remediation measures/treatments implemented in
full. Reason; In order to protect the health of future occupiers of the site and
adjoining areas in accordance with the following Development Plan policies for
Merton: policy 5.21 of the London Plan 2011 and policy DM EP4 of Merton's
Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

14.External lighting Any external lighting shall be positioned and angled to prevent

any light spillage or glare beyond the site boundary. Reason; To safeguard the
amenities of the area and the occupiers of neighbouring properties and ensure

Page 162



compliance with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies
DM D2 and DM EP4 of Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

15.Provision of vehicle parking The vehicle parking areas shown on the approved
plans shall be provided before the occupation of the development
hereby permitted and shall be retained for parking purposes for occupiers and
users of the development and for no other purpose. Reason; To ensure the
provision of a satisfactory level of parking and comply with the following
Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 6.13 of the London Plan 2015,
policy CS20 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T3 of
Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

16.H1 New vehicle access
17. H3 Redundant crossover

18. H6 Cycle storage

19.Prior to any works commencing on site a detailed Construction Logistics Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
This shall identify the steps that will be taken to minimise the impacts of
deliveries and waste transport. It shall demonstrate compliance with Transport
for London’s guidance on Construction Logistics Plans July 2017 v3.0 and
the Borough’s Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, and shall be
implemented for the duration of the construction of the development. Reason;
To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities of the
surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan policies
for Merton: policies 6.3 and 6.14 of the London Plan 2011, policy CS20 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM T2, T3 and T5 of
Merton's Sites and Polices Plan 2014.

20.All Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) used on site during the course of the
demolition, site preparation and construction phases shall comply with the
emissions standards set out in the Borough’s Construction Code of Practice
and chapter 7 of the GLA’s supplementary planning guidance ‘Control of Dust
and Emissions During Construction and Demolition’ dated July 2014 (SPG) or
subsequent guidance. The developer shall keep an up-to-date list of all NRMM
used during the demolition, site preparation and construction phases of the
development on the online register at https://nrmm.london/ Reason: To ensure
the interests of vehicle and pedestrian safety and the amenities of neighbouring
occupiers and to comply with the following Development Plan policy for Merton:
policy CS20 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011

21.H 11 Parking management strategy

22. No development other than demolition approved by this permission shall be
commenced until a detailed scheme for the provision of surface and foul water
drainage has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The drainage scheme will include construction level drawings
showing drainage layout, attenuation calculations and will dispose of surface

Page 163



water by means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) at the agreed runoff
rate (no more than 2 I/s), in accordance with drainage hierarchy contained
within the London Plan Policy (5.12, 5.13 and SPG) and the advice contained
within the National SuDS Standards.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk
does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2 and
the London Plan policy 5.13.

23.Prior to installation, the detailed design and specification for the permeable

24.

paving and rainwater harvesting shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The design shall be carried out as approved,
retained and maintained by the applicant in perpetuity thereafter.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk
does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2 and
the London Plan policy 5.13.

No development other than demolition approved by this permission shall be
commenced until a scheme for the provision of surface and foul water drainage
has been implemented in accordance with details that have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the LPA. Before these details are submitted an
assessment shall be carried out of the potential for disposing of surface water
by means of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) to ground, watercourse or
sewer in accordance with drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan
Policy 5.13 and the advice contained within the National SuDS Standards.
Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be provided, the submitted details
shall:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the

method employed to delay (attenuation provision of no less than 13m3)

and control the rate of surface water discharged from the site to greenfield

runoff rates (no more than 5I/s), and the measures taken to prevent

pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the

development which shall include the arrangements for adoption authority

and any other arrangements.
Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding and to ensure the
scheme is in accordance with the drainage hierarchy of London Plan policies
5.12 & 5.13 and the National SuDS standards and in accordance with policies
CS16 of the Core Strategy and DMF2 of the Sites and Policies Plan.

25.'No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until evidence

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority
confirming that the development has achieved CO2 reductions of not less than
a 35% improvement on Part L regulations 2013, and internal water usage rates
of not more than 105 litres per person per day.’

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of
sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the

Page 164



following Development Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.2 of the London
Plan 2016 and Policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011

26.No demolition or development shall take place until a stage 1 written scheme

of investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no demolition or
development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI,
and the programme and methodology of site evaluation and the nomination of
a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works. If
heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for
those parts of the site which have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall
be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For
land that is included within the stage 2 WSI, no demolition/development shall
take place -other than in accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI which shall
include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme

and methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a

competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works

B. Where appropriate, details of a programme for delivering

related positive public benefits.

c. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent

analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material.

D. The post-investigation assessment shall be submitted to and approved in

writing by the local planning authority prior occupation.

27.The development hereby permitted shall incorporate security measures to
minimise the risk of crime and to meet the specific security needs of the
development in accordance with the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design. Details of these measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority prior to commencement (excluding demolition,
groundworks and substructure) of the development and shall be implemented
in accordance with the approved details prior to occupation.

Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by Design
to improve community safety and crime prevention in accordance with Policy
14 (22.17) of Merton Core Strategy: Design, and Strategic Objectives 2 (b) and
5 (f); and Policy 7.3 Designing out Crime of the London Plan.

28. Prior to occupation a Secured by Design final certificate shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by Design to
improve community safety and crime prevention in accordance with Policy 14 (22.17)
of Merton Core Strategy: Design, and Strategic Objectives 2 (b) and 5 (f); and Policy
7.3 Designing out Crime of the London Plan.

Informatives:

Carbon emissions evidence requirements for Post Construction stage assessments
must provide:

Page 165



Detailed documentary evidence confirming the Target Emission Rate
(TER), Dwelling Emission Rate (DER) and percentage improvement of
DER over TER based on ‘As Built’ SAP outputs (i.e. dated outputs with
accredited energy assessor name and registration number, assessment
status, plot number and development address); OR, where applicable:
A copy of revised/final calculations as detailed in the assessment
methodology based on ‘As Built’ SAP outputs; AND

Confirmation of Fabric Energy Efficiency (FEE) performance where SAP
section 16 allowances (i.e. CO2 emissions associated with appliances and
cooking, and site-wide electricity generation technologies) have been
included in the calculation

Water efficiency evidence requirements for post construction stage assessments
must provide:

Documentary evidence representing the dwellings ‘As Built’; detailing:

the type of appliances/ fittings that use water in the dwelling (including any
specific water reduction equipment with the capacity / flow rate of
equipment);

the size and details of any rainwater and grey-water collection systems
provided for use in the dwelling; AND:

Water Efficiency Calculator for New Dwellings; OR

Where different from design stage, provide revised Water Efficiency
Calculator for New Dwellings and detailed documentary evidence (as listed
above) representing the dwellings ‘As Built’

Informative:

No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public highway including the
public footway or highway. When it is proposed to connect to a public sewer, the site
drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the
boundary. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior
approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required

(contact no. 0845 850 2777).

No waste material, including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats, oils and chemicals
shall be washed down on the highway or disposed of into the highway drainage

system.

Informative:
The applicant is advised of the need to enter into a s38 Agreement with the
Local Highways Authority in relation to the adoption of the footway on
Hallowell Close.

Page 166



Informative:
The applicant is advised of the need to enter into a s278 Agreement with the
Local Highways Authority in relation to new waiting and loading restrictions
that will be required near the main site access and for the undertaking of the
works to the existing and proposed vehicle access ways to the site and the
parking bays on Hallowell Close

Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a
suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance
with Historic England’s Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London.
This condition is exempt from deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

NPPF informative.

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



=P ¢

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



ey

55 Parking space (oia)

OUTLINE OF GROUND FLOOR

vjvjv|v|v[v|v|v|v|0

)
=
=

=

Page 173

Spaces

5ot stay Cycie spaces

160sam Chicien' Poy Area

UGt Cacuiation

‘Groon Root 375 sam (08375 = 300)

Parmeabs Paviag - 2010 sam (0.1 x201

201

Amenty Spoce 95 sam (0.4x 95 = 198)

Lanascaping 1255 sam (1 x 1255+ 1255)

Sto Avoa- 4929 sam

Total area (1954) /St area 4929) = 0.4 UGE

TOOTNG & ICHAM FOOTBALL CLLR.
ACZONMODATION BLOCK

PROPOSEDSTEPLAN




This page is intentionally left blank



00

[[] studio
1

1 Bed Disabled unit

| []2 Bedroom
\ - [] 2 Bed Disabled unit

[]3Bedroom
[] 4 Bedroom (duplex)

B .
Ground Floor Plan

T L c

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



A = [
i\ o = | | -
1 b a i | | [ /
‘ H
= = - = 0 / f
S = | Il e /
BB} 1 = /
= aya: < fai
= - - ks
T 3 wan| N = /
= i E = —dpc)
=|12N= 6] | ! y 4 B i | 7
FZi== = —— === ')
— = = = f‘ BED UNITS
S AAA A A A A A A A A A [sudo
‘ / ["]1Bedroom
L .
\ \
\ | |

["]2Bedroom
. []3Bedroom
\ \\\ [] 4 Bedroom (duplex)
\\ “
=~ Second Floor Plan
R

G

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING

I [

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



|

|

|

—_— E
=

——— &

= ==

\ \Kj
\ \ =—-

\ \ - Elpmmm LA

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



West Elevation
Oz

North Elevation
C) 11100

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



East Elevation - Hallowell Close
Oz

South Elevation - Commonside East
C) 100

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



Section 1
(O

Section 2
C) 7100

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank



iy

pppppp

C Axonometric - Bay

Ground Floor Plan - Bay
C) 150

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



() Reat Axsnometic

PLANNING

Rear Axonometric

iGN Pooza

SCHE notscale @AZ

wE  October 2019

BELSIZE ARCHITECTS

Page 193




This page is intentionally left blank



PLAN!

INING

Front Axonometric

Front Axonometric

ssssssssss

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
20/P1463 08/04/2020
Address/Site: 37 & 39 Cottenham Park Road

West Wimbledon

London

SW20 0SB
Ward: Raynes Park
Proposal: Demolition of existing two detached dwellings and

replacement with two x three storey building (with lower
ground floor) providing three houses and five flats,
alongside associated landscaping.

Drawing No.’s: PL-011.PL5; SK002; PL.005.PL5; SK001; PL-016.PL2; PL-
008.PL4; PL-010.PL5; PL-009.PL4; PL.004.PL5; PL.003.PL5;
PL.006.PL5; PL.002.PL7; PL.001.PL6; PL-012.PL4; PL-
013.PL3; PL-014.PL3; PL-015.PL3; SU.001.PL3; Tree Survey
—ref: CC/677 AR4155; Design and Access Statement — 5.0
Materials; Surface Water Drainage Strategy by Martin J.
Harvey, dated April 2020

Contact Officer: Jourdan Alexander (020 8545 3122)

RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission subject to conditions and the completion of a S106
unilateral undertaking to secure:
1. 5 of the 8 new units are to be parking permit free residential units.
2. The developer agreeing to meet the Council’s costs of reviewing
[including legal fees] the unilateral undertaking.
3. The developer agreeing to meet the Council’s costs of monitoring
the unilateral undertaking.

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

S106: Yes (restriction of parking within CPZ)

Is a screening opinion required: No

Is an Environmental Statement required: No

Has an Environmental Statement been submitted: No
Press notice: Yes

Page 197



2.2

23

24

2.5

Site notice: Yes

Design Review Panel consulted: No
Number of neighbours consulted: 9
External consultations: 0
Conservation area: No

Listed building: No

Archaeological priority zone: No
Tree protection orders: No
Controlled Parking Zone: Yes

Flood Zone: Flood Zone 1
Designated Open Space: No (albeit adjoins Holland Gardens Open Space)

INTRODUCTION
This application is being brought to the Planning Applications Committee for
determination due to the objections received. The application was also called into
committee by Councillor Adam Bush as the proposal has been recommended for
approval by officers.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprises two detached dwellings, 37 & 39 Cottenham Park
Road, set behind a brick wall. The site fronts Cottenham Park Road to the north and
backs onto Orchard Lane and Holland Gardens (designated Open Space) beyond to
the south. The site falls away from the front to the rear (north to south) to the extent
that Orchard Lane is significantly lower than Cottenham Park Road. The road also
slopes down from east to west. The site is broadly rectangular in shape, although it
tapers to the rear.

Both properties are two storey houses built in traditional style with brick and tile, and
have attached side garages that are accessed from Cottenham Park Road. No. 37
has an additional pitched roof and a first-floor rear terrace. The properties are set
back from the road frontage and both have a direct vehicle and pedestrian access
from Cottenham Park Road.

The immediate area is predominantly residential in character, mainly comprising
either detached or semi-detached properties. The property immediately to the west
(No. 41) comprises a single storey detached dwelling, with accommodation at roof
level and a partial basement (garage) to the rear. This property was granted planning
for demolition and erection of a semi-detached pair of 4 bedroom dwellings, with
accommodation on four floors (two storey - with basement level and accommodation
at roof level), with two off-street parking spaces, ref: 18/P2234 in Nov 2018. This
permission has yet to be implemented.

Further to the west are pairs of relatively modern semi-detached dwellings, with
accommodation arranged over four floors. To the immediate east of the site sits a
large detached house, No. 35. The northern side of Cottenham Park Road has
houses that are characterised by large houses of traditional and contemporary style.
To the south is Holland Gardens, which comprises a park with tennis courts and is
designated as Open Space.

The site has a PTAL (public transport accessibility level) of 3 (0 being the lowest and

6b being the highest), with bus routes going to Raynes Park Overground Station
which is approximately 1km from the site.

Page 198



26

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The site is not within a Conservation Area. The existing buildings on site are not
locally or statutorily listed. The site is within Controlled Parking Zone GC1. The site is
within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding).

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The proposal involves the demolition of the two existing detached dwellings (No. 37
and 39 Cottenham Park Road) and their replacement with two x three storey
buildings along with a part basement / part lower ground floor level. The proposed
building within the site of No. 37 would accommodate 5 flats (2 x 1 bed, 1 x 2 bed
and 2 x 3 bed) arranged over three floors, with a part basement / part lower ground
floor level. There would be no car parking spaces on the front courtyard, with this
area to be laid to lawn and a dedicated secure bike storage area and bin enclosure
installed. A brick boundary wall similar in scale to the existing would be formed along
the street frontage.

At No. 39, three terrace houses will be built, with accommodation arranged over three
floors along with a part basement / part lower ground floor level. Each terrace house
will have four bedrooms, and have space on its front forecourt for a single car to be
parked. The front gardens of the terraces houses would have pillars and small
sections of wall erected to ensure that each new house appears visually separated.
Landscaping would also be established within the front gardens.

The proposed buildings would have a larger footprint within the site than the existing
buildings. The proposed terrace houses at No. 39 Cottenham Park Road would have
a front building line set closer to the street than the present building, and each
building would extend deeper into the site than present. The western flank wall of the
houses and the eastern flank wall of the flatted building will be set approximately 1
metre in from western boundary with Number 41 Cottenham Park Road, and 1.2
metres from the boundary with Number 35 Cottenham Park Road. There would also
be an internal gap of 2.2 metres between the two buildings. The roofline would have
gable ends. The roof would have a ridge height that would be taller than the existing
buildings by approximately 1.2m, although the lower parts of the roof (valleys) would
be similar in height to the existing building.

The proposed buildings would have a contemporary design with projecting bays and
a materials palette that includes stock brick, timber cladding and calcium silicate
board. The buildings would have a similar form to the dwellings along the south-
western side of Cottenham Park Road, which have pitched roof forms with gables
facing onto the street

The applicant has revised the application from the proposal previously submitted ref:
19/P4214 and refused on the 16/04/2020 by officers. These revisions made to the
application are summarised:

Proposed houses (No, 39)

* House heights have been reduced by 450mm, so that they more closely align with
the heights of the adjoining properties in Cottenham Park Road.

* The rear elevation (footprint) has been reduced by 650mm so that the gardens to all
three houses now exceed the minimum 50 square metres.

* Glazing to the rear elevation has been reduced at 1st and 2nd floors (as seen from
Holland Garden).

Page 199



3.7

3.8

4.1

* The internal separation between the houses and the flats has increased from 2m to
2.2 metres to increase views through to the rear.

Proposed flats (No, 37)

* The height of the flats has been reduced by 450mm to align more closely with the
adjoining properties

* The rear elevation (footprint) has been reduced by 1500mm to create a larger
garden area and to reduce further the physical impact on the adjoining property
Number 35 Cottenham Park Road.

* The number of flats has been reduced by one to five, and the ground and basement
now comprises 2 x 3 bed duplexes, with the remaining flats including 2 x 1 bed on the
first floor and 1 x 2 bed on the second floor.

* Internally, the lightwells to the lower ground duplex have increased in width by
570mm, from 1400mm to 1970mm, to improve the level of amenity for future
occupiers of these flats.

* The rear garden has been largely dedicated to the use of the ground and basement
duplexes in order to protect the privacy of the occupiers of these flats.

* All on-site car spaces (three) have been removed to enable the frontage to be
walled with a gate, and additional trees and vegetation to be introduced into this
secure landscaped area.

* The side elevation on the Number 35 Cottenham Park Road has been reduced in
the depth by 1.4 metres.

» The glazing to the rear elevation has been reduced (as seen from Holland
Gardens).

» The separation between the building and the side boundary has increased by
200mm to 1.2 metres.

The applicant has confirmed that should the scheme be recommended by committee,

they would accept a requirement to enter into a section 106 agreement, in which 5 of
the 8 units would be made parking permit free, alongside associated monitoring costs.

PLANNING HISTORY

37 & 39 Cottenham Park Road

19/P4214 - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING TWO DETACHED DWELLINGS AND
REPLACEMENT WITH TWO X THREE STOREY BUILDINGS (WITH LOWER
GROUND FLOOR) PROVIDING THREE HOUSES AND SIX FLATS, ALONGSIDE
ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING.

Reasons for refusal:

1. The proposed development, due to the scale, height, massing and
design would, give rise to an overly dominant and cramped form of
development that would detract from the visual amenities of the Cottenham
Park Road street scene, and would mar the backdrop to the neighbouring
public open space. The proposals would be contrary to policies CS14 of the
Core Planning Strategy 2011, and policy DMD2 and DMO1 of the Merton Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

2. The proposals by reason of their design, massing relative to
neighbouring dwellings, layout and site coverage, in particular in relation to
the garden provision for house "2", would i) result in poor standard of
accommodation for future occupiers of the part lower ground/part basement
flats, due to their single aspect layout, with poor outlook, natural ventilation,
sunlight or daylight, and privacy issues, ii) result in a poor standard for
occupiers of house "2" with inadequate garden space failing to meet the
Council's adopted minimum standard, iii) result in an overbearing and visually

Page 200



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

dominant impact on neighbouring occupants at No. 35 Cottenham Park Road
to the detriment of their visual amenities. The proposals would fail to comply
with policy DMD2 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2014 and Policy 3.5 of
the London Plan 2016.

3. The proposals, by reason of a failure to provide the 1 metre of
permeable soil depth above the basement development, would not allow for
rainwater to be adequately absorbed thereby contributing to surface water
runoff and would fail to compensate for the loss of biodiversity caused by the
development. The proposals would be contrary to policy DM.D2 of the Merton
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

4. In the absence of a completed $S106 undertaking to ensure that
additional dwellings over and above the number of units currently on the site
are prevented from being able to obtain parking permits for the Controlled
Parking Zone, the proposal would result in an increased demand for on street
parking, resulting in a detrimental impact on highway and additional parking
pressure locally and be contrary to the Mayor and the Council's commitment to
reducing car usage and promoting more sustainable forms of transport. The
proposal would therefore be contrary to policy 6.13 of the London Plan 2016,
Policy DM T1, T2 and T3 of the Sites and Policies Plan 2014 and Policy CS20 of
the Core Planning Strategy 2011.

37 Cottenham Park Road
No relevant planning history

39 Cottenham Park Road

08/P1689 - ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION WITH GABLE END
AND SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, REPLACING EXISTING DETACHED
GARAGE & STUDIO. Permission Granted

11/P0603 - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DETACHED GARAGE AND STUDIO AND
ERECTION OF NEW PART SINGLE, PART DOUBLE SIDE EXTENSION WITH
INTEGRAL GARAGE (APPLICATION FOR A NEW PLANNING PERMISSION TO
REPLACE AN EXTANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 08/P1869, IN ORDER TO
EXTEND THE TIME LIMIT FOR IMPLEMENTATION). Permission Granted

14/P2446 - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DETACHED GARAGE AND STUDIO AND

ERECTION OF PART ONE PART TWO STOREY SIDE/REAR EXTENSION.
Permission Granted

CONSULTATION

Public consultation was undertaken by way of site notice and letters sent to 9
neighbouring properties.

Representations were received from 16 individuals. This number includes residents
associations and the Wimbledon Society who raised the following concerns:

- Out of keeping.

- Excessive density.

- Over development.

- Timber cladding can deteriorate quickly and look poor

- Increased noise.

- The proposed flats would change the character of the area, which is detached /
semi-detached houses.

Page 201



5.3

54

54

5.6

- Delivery vehicles and visitors to the site would cause noise and take up car parks.
- Roofline is too high.

- Overbearing/visually intrusive.

- Loss of daylight and sunlight.

- Loss of privacy.

- Adverse impact upon the Holland Gardens Open Space.
- Exacerbate parking pressure.

- Development would cause highway safety issues

- Removed trees should be replaced.

- Applicant’s traffic statement is not accurate

- External amenity space is insufficient

- Application is misleading

Residents' Association of West Wimbledon

- Failure to comply with the local pattern of development

- Failure to meet requirements for homes with basements, consent should include a
condition to comply the Water Drainage Strategy.

- The proposal would create poor quality living and amenity space because
bedrooms of lower ground flats would have poor light; gardens of the houses are
below 50sgm.

- Loss of amenity to users of Holland Garden

- Loss of amenity to the occupants of 35 Cottenham Park Road

- Parking pressure. There is already pressure on parking spaces in this CPZ. If this
application is approved no more than 2 of the 8 dwellings should have the right to
apply for parking permits.

Wimbledon Society

-Open space would be unreasonably visually dominated by this kind of development.
- The Society considers the energy saving proposals as inadequate as it only meets
19% above Building Regulations standard, which is out of date within a climate
emergency

-Removal arboricultural report indicates that 11 trees would be removed and 6 trees
replanted. These replacement trees are not sufficient to compensate for the loss.

South Ridgway Resident’s Association

- The proposed development, like its predecessor, by reason of its size, massing and
position would result in a massive over development of this site, totally out of keeping
with and indeed harmful to the character of this charming part of West Wimbledon. It
would be visually intrusive and unduly dominant to the neighbouring occupiers.

Internal consultees

LBM Climate Change Officer: raised no objection subject conditions. These

conditions relate to the following -

o Comply with Merton’s Core Planning Strategy (2011) Policy CS15 Climate
Change (parts a-d) and the policies outlined in Chapter 5 of the London Plan
(2016). All minor and major developments are required to demonstrate how
development proposals are making the fullest contribution to minimising carbon
dioxide emissions in accordance with the Mayor’s energy hierarchy (be lean, be
clean and be green).

e As a minor development proposal, outline how the development will achieve at
least a 19% improvement on Buildings Regulations 2013 Part L and submit SAP
output documentation to demonstrate this improvement.

Page 202



5.7

5.8

¢ Achieve internal water usage rates not in excess of 105 litres per person per day.

LBM Environmental Health Officer: No objection, subject to the standard Demolition
and Construction Method Statement condition, which should be secured prior to
development. Reason: To protect the amenities of those in the local vicinity during
the development.

LBM Transport Planner:

The site currently comprises of two detached houses both include a crossover to
allow for parking on site. The application site has a public transport accessibility level
(PTAL) score of 3 which is a ‘moderate’. The site lies in close proximity to a frequent
bus service and is located approximately 930 metres south of Raynes Park train
station.

Car Parking:

The council would agree for the provision of one off street car space for House 2 in
addition to off street spaces provided for Houses 1 and 3. The proposed five flats will
not be provided with off-street parking.

The site is located within controlled parking zone (RPC), which is active between
Noon — 1pm Monday to Friday restricting parking for permit holders only between
those times.

The development of the site will remove 20m of resident permit holder parking which
is equivalent to four car parking bays fronting the site in order to create accesses to
the proposed onsite parking.

Permit free option would be acceptable subject to the applicant enters into a
unilateral undertaking which would restrict future occupiers of all units of the
development from obtaining an on-street residential parking permit to park in the
surrounding controlled parking zones to be secured by via S106 legal agreement.

The existing Traffic Management order would need to be modified to secure the
necessary highway markings to remove the bays and provide yellow lines on the
highway between the proposed vehicle crossovers, where there is not sufficient
space to reincorporate a parking bay. The costs of the Traffic Management Order
would amount to £3,600.00. This does not include the costs incurred for the
suspension of works during construction.

Cycle Parking
The proposal provides 17 cycle parking which accords with the London Plan
standards.

Refuse Collection

Given there is an already established collection route along this road, it is not
considered the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the waste collection
services in the area.

The maximum distances that operatives should be required to wheel containers,
measured from the furthest point within the storage/collection area to the loading
position at the back of the vehicle, should not exceed 20 metres.

Recommendation: The proposal is unlikely to a have a significant impact on the
adjoining highway network. Subject to: Car Parking as shown maintained (Three off

Page 203



5.9

6.2

street spaces).Cycle parking provision maintained. Condition requiring refuse
collection. Demolition/Construction Logistic Plan (including a Construction
Management plan in accordance with TfL guidance) should be submitted to LPA for
approval before commencement of work. Construct new accesses and reinstate
existing accesses. The applicant enters into a Unilateral Undertaking which would
restrict future occupiers of all units from obtaining an on-street residential parking
permit to park in the surrounding controlled parking zones to be secured by via S106
legal agreement.

(An examination of parking matters is detailed within the Transport and Highways
assessment in the Planning Consideration part of this report).

LBM Tree Officer:

No arboricultural objection towards the development. However, the retained trees
should be protected in accordance with the submitted details. Recommended
planning conditions are to secure Tree Protection, Site Supervision (trees) and
Landscaping.

POLICY CONTEXT

National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

9 Promoting sustainable transport

11 Making effective use of land

12 Achieving well-designed places

14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

London Plan (2016)

Relevant policies include:

3.3 Increasing housing supply

3.4 Optimising housing potential

3.5 Quality and design of housing developments
3.8 Housing choice

3.9 Mixed and balanced communities

5.1 Climate change mitigation

5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

53 Sustainable design and construction

5.7 Renewable energy

5.12 Flood Risk Management

5.13 Sustainable drainage

5.17 Waste Capacity

6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

6.9 Cycling
6.10 Walking
6.12 Road network capacity
6.13 Parking

7.2 An inclusive environment

7.4 Local character

7.4 Local character

7.6 Architecture

7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature
7.21 Trees and woodlands

8.2 Planning Obligations

Page 204



6.3

6.4

6.5

7.2

8.3 Community Infrastructure Levy

Merton Local Development Framework Core Strateqy — 2011 (Core Strateqgy)

Relevant policies include:

CS8 Housing Choice

CS9 Housing Provision

CS13 Open space, nature conservation, leisure and culture
CS14 Design

CS15 Climate Change

CS16 Flood Risk Management

CS17 Waste Management

CS18 Active Transport

CS20 Parking, Servicing and Delivery

Merton Sites and Policies Plan — 2014 (SPP)
Relevant policies include:

DM O1 Open Space

DM O2 Nature Conservation, Trees, hedges and landscape features

DM D1 Urban Design

DM D2 Design considerations

DM EP4 Pollutants

DM F2 Sustainable urban drainage systems and; wastewater and water
infrastructure

DM H2 Housing mix

DM H3 Support for affordable housing

DM T1 Support for sustainable transport

DM T2 Transport impacts of development

DM T3 Car parking and servicing standards

Supplementary planning considerations

National Planning Practice Guidance 2014

DCLG Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard 2016
GLA Guidance on preparing energy assessments — 2018

London Housing SPG — 2016

London Character and Context SPG 2014

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The key planning issues towards this application are:
Principle of development

Character and appearance
Standard of accommodation
Neighbouring amenity

Highway, traffic and parking

Refuse storage and collection
Sustainable design and construction
Landscaping, trees and biodiversity
Basement development

Principle of development

The emerging London Plan, now accorded moderate weight in recent appeal
decisions issued by the Secretary of State, and anticipated to be adopted in the
coming months, will signal the need for a steep change in the delivery of housing in
Merton. The National Planning Policy Framework requires Councils to identify a

Page 205



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

supply of specific ‘deliverable’ sites sufficient to provide five years’ worth of housing
with an additional buffer of 5% to provide choice and competition.

Table 3.1 of the London Plan identifies that LBM has an annual housing target of 411
units, or 4,107 over the next ten years. However, this minimum target is set to
increase significantly as set out in the ‘London Plan Examination in Public Panel
Report Appendix: Panel Recommendations October 2019’, and which is expected to
be adopted later this year.

Merton’s overall housing target between 2011 and 2026 is 5,801 dwellings
(Authority’s Monitoring Report Draft 2017/19, p12). The latest Monitoring report
confirms:

All the main housing targets have been met for 2017/18.

665 additional new homes were built during the monitoring period, 254 above
Merton’s target of 411 new homes per year (London Plan 2015).

2013-18 provision: 2,686 net units (813 homes above target)

For all the home completions between 2004 and 2017, Merton always met the
London Plan target apart from 2009/10. In total Merton has exceeded the target by
over 2,000 homes since 2004.

Given the anticipated step change in the housing targets officers consider it would be
inappropriate to limit the densification of this site simply on the basis of current
targets being met by reference to historic outputs and to acknowledge the importance
of focusing on other planning maters including design, neighbour amenity and
parking.

The proposal would provide an additional six homes that would contribute towards
the housing stock of the borough. The density of the development would also be
consistent with the London Plan density thresholds.

In terms of the proposed housing mix of the development. The Merton Sites and
Policies Plan policy DM H2 has an objective; to create socially mixed communities,
catering for all sectors of the community by providing a choice of housing with
respect to dwelling size and type in the borough. The policy states clearly that the
residential development proposals will be considered favourably where they
contribute to meeting the needs of different households such as families with
children, single person households and older people by providing a mix of dwelling
sizes. The proposal would provide a mix of unit sizes ranging from between smaller
one-bedroom units, two bedroom units and larger three+ bedroom family sized
homes. The range of dwellings provided within the scheme would provide homes for
different sectors of the community and is therefore broadly consistent with the above

policy.

The proposed residential development is therefore supported in principle, subject to
compliance with other Development Plan policies.

Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the area

The NPPF section 12, London Plan policies 7.4 and 7.6, Core Strategy policy CS14
and SPP Policies DMD1 and DMD2 require well designed proposals which would
optimise the potential of sites, that are of the highest architectural quality and
incorporate a visually attractive design that is appropriate to its context, so that
development relates positively to the appearance, scale, bulk, form, proportions,
materials and character of their surroundings, thus enhancing the character of the

Page 206



7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

wider area. As per SPP policy DMO1, the visual amenities of open space must be
taken into account, this is relevant to this application given the proximity of Holland
Gardens to the south, which is designated open space.

The two existing houses on the site are not especially significant in their character or
appearance, and therefore no objections are raised towards the demolition of these
buildings. Cottenham Park Road is not considered to have a distinctive character,
comprising a wide variety of buildings in terms of their scale and architectural styles.
As such, the contemporary design approach taken in this scheme is considered
acceptable, subject to it being high quality.

Buildings along the southern side of Cottenham Park Roads predominantly have
pitched roof shapes with gables facing the street. A similar design has been followed
for the three proposed houses, with these architectural cues also replicated across to
the flatted block. The development would maintain the general rhythm of
development along Cottenham Park Road, owing to having a comparable ridge
height, pitched roofs and gables, and gaps between buildings. It is therefore
considered that the development would appear consistent with the prevailing
streetscene.

The materials palette is of high quality, using new stock brick and timber cladding on
elevations, with certain features accentuated by precast concrete to provide a natural
finish. On the front facades of both the terrace houses and upper floor flats, bay
window arrangements with notched glass-to-glass corners would provide an active
frontage to the street. The timber cladding would be thermally modified English Ash.
The developer has provided the manufactures details of this product, which details
that this hardwood would be durable. When first applied the timber would have dark
brown colouring, and would weather to a silvery grey. The weathering would be
largely consistent and relatively free of staining. The timber selected is therefore
considered appropriate by officers, given that it responds well to the street scene and
towards the UK climate. A pre-commencement condition requiring that particulars
and samples of the materials to be used on all external faces of the development are
submitted to the council before development has been recommended. This condition
would allow the precise details of materials to be checked and confirmed by officers.

The building line of the proposal would move forward from that existing. This would
move the massing on the site more in line with the dwellings immediately to the east
and west, fitting within the established front building line along this section of
Cottenham Park Road. In terms of the development’s impact upon the Cottenham
Park Road streetscene, the buildings are considered to fit appropriately within the
site. The proposed houses and flats would each sit separately within the site. Gaps
would be maintained through the buildings, including with neighbouring buildings, to
ensure views through to the rear are largely retained.

It is acknowledged that the built form and massing on the site would be greater
compared with that of the two existing dwellings. However, a development of the
proposed scale would not appear uncharacteristic within the street, and would
visually tie into the existing larger residential buildings to the west. The development
would also respond to the approved redevelopment at No 41 Cottenham Park Road,
which involves demolition of the existing detached building and the provision a larger
semi-detached pair also of a modern design.

With respect to building heights, the ridge-lines of the proposed buildings would

appear moderately taller than that of the existing houses on the site, by
approximately 1.2m, although the lower parts of the roof (valleys) would be similar in

Page 207



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

height to the existing building. The building heights of the development when viewed
against the prevailing building heights along the street would appear in keeping. The
new buildings would also provide a suitable transition of heights between buildings
from east to west, which respond to the descending gradient of this part of
Cottenham Park Road.

The proposal retains a representative length of front boundary wall, which is a
traditional feature that helps define Cottenham Park Road. The section of boundary
wall fronting the flatted block would be especially valuable given that it would act to
conceal items such as bin storage units, cycle storage units and lightwells within the
courtyard. The boundary wall would also have a beneficial role by helping to reduce
the new building’s visual mass as seen from the public pavement, which is positive.

The development as viewed from the rear would be of a relatively large scale.
However, the dwellings would achieve appropriate setbacks from Orchard Lane and
Holland Gardens, such that the development would not be considered to be
overbearing within the streetscene or to the open space. In addition, the apparent
bulk would be somewhat reduced given a significant portion of the dwellings would
be nestled within the bank to the north.

The building’s rear elevation has a coherent appearance, in which the pattern of
glazed and solid parts of the building are well balanced. Protruding balconies at the
rear have been kept to a minimum, particularly at upper levels, and instead Juliet
balconies and recessed internal amenity spaces (2nd floor) are proposed. It is
officer’s view that this approach would work well. Occupants to the dwellings would
have access to good quality external areas, whilst the building as viewed from
Holland Park would not appear unduly busy or distracting.

Given the degree of separation along with the high quality contemporary appearance
of the buildings, it is not considered that the development would cause harm to the
street scene of Orchard Lane or to the visual amenity of the adjacent open space of
Holland Gardens.

Subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal would respond well to the
character of the surrounding area, and is considered acceptable in appearance, in
compliance with London Plan policies 7.4 and 7.6, Core Strategy policy CS14 and
SPP Policies DMD2 and DMD3.

Standard of accommodation

London Plan Policy 3.5 states that all new housing developments should be of the
highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context. In order to ensure
that such development provide an adequate level of internal amenity, Table 3.3 of the
London Plan sets out the minimum floor areas which should be provided for new
housing. The DCLG publication: "Technical housing standards - nationally described
space standard" (2016) provides further guidance, which has been adopted by the
Mayor for London.

Sites and Policies Plan Policy DM D2 seeks to ensure good quality residential
accommodation with adequate levels of privacy, daylight and sunlight for existing and
future residents, the provision of adequate amenity space and the avoidance of
noise, vibration or other forms of pollution.

The scheme proposes the following unit sizes:

Page 208



7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

Type GIA London Plan | External
Unit (sqm) requirement for | amenity space
GIA (sgqm) (sqm)

House 1 | 4b/7p 227 129 64
House 2 | 4b/7p 220 129 53
House 3 | 4b/7p 234 129 52

Flat 1 3b/6p 144 102 58

Flat 2 3b/6p 144 102 50

Flat 3 1b/2p 53 50 5

Flat 4 1b/2p 53 50 5

Flat 5 2b/4p 107 70 7

All the dwellings would comply with or exceed minimum GIA standards.

The proposed development would have 2 x 3 bedroom flats arranged across lower
ground and ground floor levels. Due to the arrangement, approximately a quarter of
each flat’s total floor space would be set belowground. Although this arrangement is
not without limitations, both these flats would overall provide a good quality living
standard for the future occupants. Each of the flats would be served by a sizable
lightwell (widths of 1970mm), allowing sufficient natural light to penetrate the lower
level bedrooms. Due to the falling gradient of the site, the other half of each flat’s
lower ground floor would access directly onto private rear garden, and have large
south facing windows. The other half of these flat’s floor spaces would be arranged at
ground floor level, and contain the living areas. This level would be dual aspect, with
south facing external terraces. Overall, the ground and lower ground floor flats are
considered acceptable, responding to the falling topography of the site.

In terms of the other flats and houses proposed, each would provide high quality
living accommodation, with layouts that offer a high standard of living for a range of
family sizes. The dwellings would have good-sized rooms and convenient and
efficient room layouts, which are functional and fit for purpose.

In relation to external amenity space, The London Housing SPG and policy DMD2 of
the Council's Sites and Policies Plan states that there should be 5sqm of external
space provided for 1 and 2 person flats with an extra square metre provided for each
additional occupant. The two flats arranged over ground and lower floors would have
rear gardens, which would exceed minimum standards. All other upper flats would be
provided with adequately sized balconies or terraces that meet housing standards.

Policy DM D2. a.vi. seeks to ensure appropriate provision of outdoor amenity space,
whether public, private or communal which accords with appropriate minimum
standards and is compatible with the character of surrounding areas. To achieve this
50sgm, set out as a single useable regular shaped amenity space, is considered
adequate for a house. The three houses each provide amenity areas (garden and
ground floor level terrace) of 63.5sqm, 52.8sqm and 52.2sgm respectively.

It is acknowledged that 2 of the houses would have garden spaces of slightly less
than the 50sqgm detailed within the plan, once the external terraces at ground floor
level have been deducted (each terrace having a size of approximately 4.5sqm).
However, with consideration towards the location of the houses directly beside
Holland Garden, occupants would have considerable and close access to other open

Page 209



7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

spaces. This would compensate for the modest shortfall of private garden space. It is
considered that the external amenity spaces, available to the residents comply with
the intention of policy DM D2 that seeks to provide good quality living
accommodation. It is also worth noting that the garden’s south facing orientation and
natural topography of the site would provide considerable natural sunlight and
outlook for the users.

Overall, the proposed development would provide a high quality standard of
accommodation, compliant with the objectives the local plan and relevant planning
guidance.

Impact upon neighbouring amenity

SPP policy DM D2 states that proposals must be designed to ensure that they would
not have an undue negative impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties in
terms of loss of light, quality of living conditions, privacy, visual intrusion and noise.

The front elevation of the proposed building would share a similar front build-line to
the neighbour at No. 35 Cottenham Park Road, and therefore would not cause any
degree of encroachment to this neighbour’s street facing windows and front garden
spaces.

The existing building at the site protrudes past the rear building line of No. 35, by
approximately 3m. This depth would be increased to approximately 6.3m with the
proposed building also sited closer to the neighbour’s boundary. The new built form
would be a noticeable change from the existing situation as perceived by the
occupants of No 35. However, it is not considered that the proposed built form would
cause material harm to this neighbour’s living conditions. This because a sizeable
gap of 7.8 metres would be retained between the neighbouring building’s flank wall
and the flank wall of the proposed development, with an existing garage in between.
This gap would be sufficient to offset the potential impact created by the increased
building depth near the boundary. In addition, further visual relief would be provided
by the use of varying materials to the flank wall, which would help break-up the
perceived bulk. The proposal would partially reduce the side outlook of No. 35.
However, this would not be to a degree that would be harmful or warrant refusal
given that No 35 would still be afforded good views south across Holland Gardens

It is further noted that the application is supported by an overshadowing study that
has assessed the impact of the development on the amenity space of the two
adjoining properties, No. 35 and 41 Cottenham Park Road. The study concludes that
the impact of the development would not cause a harmful degree of overshadowing
to external spaces. No objections are made towards these conclusions.

The overshadowing study does not assess potential overshadowing of neighbouring
windows. However, it is not considered that the development would result in a
harmful loss of daylight / sunlight to neighbouring windows. At No. 35, there would be
sufficient space between the development and the neighbour’s windows, including
the side-facing window at first floor level, so that existing levels of daylight / sunlight
would not be harmfully impeded. The rear facing windows of this property are also
south facing with the building sited on elevated land to ensure good levels of natural
light continue to be received.

To the other adjoining neighbour, No. 41 Cottenham Park Road, the proposed

building would sit broadly in line with the rear of the neighbouring building and would
not cause harm to outlook or privacy. It is noted that No. 41 has a side dormer

Page 210



7.37

7.38

7.39

7.41

7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

window facing towards the development. However, this dormer serves the stairwell
rather than a habitable room and any loss of daylight to this room would not cause
material harm. There would also be no resulting reduction of outlook from this dormer
window that would be significant in planning terms.

The proposed balconies on the development would be south facing in which views
attained would be principally across Holland Gardens. The proposal, due to the angle
of views attained, would not create loss of privacy into neighbouring habitable spaces
that would be harmful in planning terms. It is noted that there is side-facing windows
within the flatted building towards No 35. A condition has been recommended to
require that these windows are obscure glazed and fixed shut at first floor and above.

In terms of noise, the site would continue to be used for residential use. The
proposed building along with external terraces are sufficiently separated from
neighbouring habitable rooms to ensure that any noise as a result of the increased
density on the site would not be unduly harmful.

Other neighbours, including those sited along the northern side of Cottenham Park
Road would not be impacted by the proposal, in terms of sense of enclosure, noise,
privacy or daylight received.

For the reasons set out above the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of
residential amenity and would comply with Policy DM D2.

Highway traffic and parking

Core Strategy Policy CS 20 considers matters of pedestrian movement, safety,
servicing and loading facilities for local businesses and manoeuvring for emergency
vehicles as well as refuse storage and collection. Core Strategy Policy CS 18
promotes active means of transport, and CS 19 promotes public transport.

The applicant has worked with council officers to reduce the development’s reliance
on private car use. The three terrace houses would each have a single on-site car
parking space, and would not be eligible for parking permits on street. The proposed
flats would have no parking onsite, with only three of the five flats eligible for parking
permits on street, with the remaining 2 flats restricted by way of S106 agreement.

The application is supported by a transport assessment, which indicates that there
would be a sufficient level of parking capacity on the surrounding streets to handle
the car parking requirements of the three flats eligible for parking permits. Whilst the
onsite parking spaces for the terraced houses would not give rise to highway safety
issues. The level of parking would therefore be consistent with the aims of Policy DM
T3, which seeks to ensure that the level of residential and non-residential parking
and servicing provided is suitable for its location and managed to minimise its impact
on local amenity and the road network.

The level of car parking afforded by the development needs to be carefully weighed
against the Council’s ambition is to reduce the boroughs environmental impact, in
part through reducing the borough’s reliance on private vehicles as well as promoting
public and active transport. In July 2019, Merton Council passed a motion to declare
a climate emergency, placing further support towards developments, which keeps car
ownership to a minimum. This ambition also feeds into the aims of the Emerging
London Plan and the Mayor’s Transport Strategy in reducing car use.

Page 211



7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

7.50

7.51

7.52

Notwithstanding the observations made by the Transport Planner officers consider
that the scheme warrants a pragmatic compromise in relation to parking control.
While making the scheme 100% permit free may further some of the Council’s
environmental planning goals, to refuse the scheme on the basis of a failure to make
the scheme 100% permit free would require the Council to demonstrate the harm that
would arise locally as a result. This would be particularly challenging given both on-
street parking availability and the length of the street frontage to the flats. The level of
car parking provided by the development is considered by planning officers to be a
reasonable compromise. The development is located within an area with a public
transport accessibility rating of 3, which is moderate but not high. Therefore, a small
level of parking provision would be reasonable, and be of high benefit to the larger
units, suitable for family occupancy. To insist upon a car free development would not
be considered practical at this location.

Overall planning officers are comfortable with the parking provision proposed, which
provides an appropriate balance of onsite, on street and car free units.

The London Plan requires one cycle parking space for 1 bed units and two spaces
for all other dwellings. The cycle spaces to be provided within the rear gardens would
meet policy requirements and no objection is raised. A condition has been
recommended requiring that details are submitted of the proposed cycle enclosures
to the Council before development commences to satisfy policy requirements that
enclosures are secure and covered.

The existing Traffic Management Order would need to be modified in order to secure
the necessary highway markings, to remove the bays and provide yellow lines on the
highway between the proposed vehicle crossovers, where there is not sufficient
space to re-incorporate a parking bay. An informative has been included to advise
the applicant to contact the Council's Highway Team prior to any work.

Refuse Storage and Collection

Refuse would be stored within storage enclosures within the front courtyards, with
collection to occur from Cottenham Park Road. This arrangement is considered to be
acceptable and would comply with policy 5.17 of the London Plan and policy CS 17 of
the Core Strategy.

A condition has been recommended requiring that details are submitted of the
proposed refuse storage facilities to the Council before development commences.
This is necessary given that the drawings submitted are not of a sufficient level of
detail for the council to be satisfied that refuse storage units would be practical and
functional.

Sustainable design and construction

London Plan policy 5.3 and CS policy CS15 seek to ensure the highest standards of
sustainability are achieved for developments which includes minimising carbon dioxide
emissions, maximising recycling, sourcing materials with a low carbon footprint,
ensuring urban greening and minimising the usage of resources such as water.

The applicant has submitted an Energy Statement, which details that the proposed
development could comply with Core Strategy policy CS15, minor residential
developments by achieving a 19% improvement on Part L of the Building Regulations
2013 and water consumption not exceeding 105 litres/person/day. The statement
concludes that renewable technologies in the form of solar PV would be the most

Page 212



7.53

7.54

7.55

7.56

7.57

7.58

7.59

7.60

feasible solutions to meet the Core Strategy requirements. The solar PV would also
be combined with a various energy efficient measures.

The proposal is therefore considered to meet sustainable design and construction
policies, and conditions have been recommended to secure this.

Landscaping and impact on trees and biodiversity

NPPF section 15, London Plan polices 7.5, 7.19 and 7.21, CS policy CS13 and SPP
policies DM D2 and DM O2 seek to ensure high quality landscaping to enhance the
public realm, protect trees that significantly improve the public realm, to enhance
biodiversity, encourage proposals to result in a net gain in biodiversity and to
discourage proposal that result in harm to the environment, particularly on sites of
recognised nature conservation. In addition and specifically in relation to basements,
policy DMD2 of the SPP states that basements should not damage the townscape,
including the loss of trees.

A Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been submitted to support
the application, and has been reviewed by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer. These
documents provide a survey of all the trees within the site, alongside their quality and
amenity value. It details the trees that would be removed during the works and tree
protection measures that would be adopted for the trees that would be retained.

No objections towards the proposal have been received by the Council’s
Arboricultural Officer. The Arboricultural Officer has concluded that the retained trees
should be protected in accordance with the submitted details. To secure this the
Council’s Arboricultural Officer has recommended relevant conditions:

- The works are conducted in accordance with the submitted ‘Tree Survey,
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Arboricultural Method Statement’

- The retaining of an Arboricultural expert to monitor the works and to provide a
report to the Local Planning Authority

- A landscape and planting scheme to be submitted for approval, and these works
carried out as approved.

Subiject to the above provisions, the proposal would have an acceptable impact upon
trees and biodiversity

Basement development

Policy DMD2 of the adopted Sites and Policies Plan states that proposals for
basements should be wholly confined within the curtilage of the application property
and be designed to maintain and safeguard the structural stability of the application
building and nearby buildings; basements should not exceed 50% of either the front,
rear or side garden of the property. Policy DMD2 b).v) also sets out that basements
must include a suitable drainage schemes including 1m of soil above the basement.

London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13, CS policies CS13 and CS16 and SPP policies
DMD2, DM F1 and DM F2 seek to minimise the impact of flooding on residents and
the environment and promote the use of sustainable drainage systems to reduce the
overall amount of rainfall being discharged into the drainage system and reduce the
borough’s susceptibility to surface water flooding.

A Surface Water Drainage Strategy Report has been submitted with the application,
this document details the proposed Sustainable Urban Drainage strategy to be
adopted, this includes, a drawing showing the direction of surface water through the
site, manholes with discharge controls, and the installation of a surface water

Page 213



7.61

7.62

7.63

8.2

attenuation tank. Other complimentary surface water drainage systems would also be
installed, including green roofs to the bike and bin stores, and a 200m granular
drainage layer above the front basement slab. No objections are raised toward the
surface water drainage strategy proposed which have been secured by condition.
The basement would also have the required 1m depth of topsoil above to allow
rainwater to be absorbed and to compensate for the loss of any biodiversity caused
by the development.

It is noted that over 50% of the front garden would be occupied by the proposed
basement. However, given the suitable drainage scheme proposed along with the 1m
of topsoil above the basement, it is considered that the intention of policy DMD2
would still be achieved.

A Basement Impact Assessment and Ground Investigation and Basement Impact
Assessment Report were submitted with the application. These documents set out
how the basement could be constructed in a safe and methodical manner without
affecting adjacent properties or the highway. This includes how structural stability is
safeguarded and potential impacts to neighbourhood amenity mitigated during the
development process. Should the application be recommended the following
condition would also be included:

No development shall commence until:

(A) a Chartered Civil Engineer (MICE) or Chartered Structural Engineer (Ml Struct.E)
has been appointed for the duration of building works and their appointment
confirmed in writing to the Local Planning Authority, and

(B) the name, and contact details of the person supervising engineering and
construction on site for the duration of building works have been confirmed in writing
to the Local Planning Authority.

In the event that either the Appointed Engineer or Appointed Supervisor cease to
perform that role for whatever reason before the construction works are completed,
those works shall cease until a replacement chartered engineer of the afore-
described qualification or replacement supervisor has been appointed to supervise
their completion and their appointment confirmed in writing to the Local Planning
Authority. At no time shall any construction work take place unless an engineer and
supervisor are at that time currently appointed and their appointment has been
notified to this Authority in accordance with this condition.

Community Infrastructure Levy

The proposed development would be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL). This would require a contribution of £220 per additional square metre of
floorspace to be paid to Merton Council and an additional £35 per additional square
meter to be paid to the Mayor.

CONCLUSION

The proposal would provide 8 new homes within the borough, in line with planning
policy. The scale, form and positioning of the two proposed buildings would be in
keeping with the established pattern of development along this part of Cottenham
Park Road. The development whilst contemporary in design would be of a high
quality that would complement the streetscene.

The proposed homes would provide a high standard of accommodation. Planning
conditions and a unilateral agreement for parking permit free for 5 of the 8 units have

Page 214



8.3

been recommended to ensure that the impacts of the development are adequately
addressed.

The proposal is considered to accord with the relevant National, Strategic and Local
Planning policies and guidance and approval could reasonably be granted in this
case. It is not considered that there are any other material considerations which
would warrant a refusal of the application.

RECOMMENDATION
Grant planning permission subject to the completion of a S106 unilateral
undertaking to secure:
4. 5 of the 8 new units are to be parking permit free residential units
5. The developer agreeing to meet the Council’'s costs of reviewing [including
legal fees] the unilateral undertaking.
6. The developer agreeing to meet the Council’s costs of monitoring the unilateral
undertaking;
and the follow conditions:

Standard condition [Commencement of development]: The development to which this
permission relates shall be commenced not later than the expiration of 3 years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town & Country Planning
Act 1990.

Standard condition [Approved plans]: The development hereby permitted shall be
carried out in accordance with the following approved plans: [Refer to the schedule on
page 1 of this report].

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

No development shall take place until details of particulars and samples of the
materials to be used on all external faces of the development hereby permitted,
including window frames and doors (notwithstanding any materials specified in the
application form and/or the approved drawings), have been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No works which are the subject of this condition shall
be carried out until the details are approved, and the development shall be carried
out in full accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to comply with
the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.6 of the London Plan
2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and
D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

No development shall commence until
(A) a Chartered Civil Engineer (MICE) or Chartered Structural Engineer (Ml Struct.E)

has been appointed for the duration of building works and their appointment
confirmed in writing to the Local Planning Authority, and

(B) the name, and contact details of the person supervising engineering and
construction on site for the duration of building works have been confirmed in writing
to the Local Planning Authority.

Page 215



In the event that either the Appointed Engineer or Appointed Supervisor cease to
perform that role for whatever reason before the construction works are completed,
those works shall cease until a replacement chartered engineer of the afore-
described qualification or replacement supervisor has been appointed to supervise
their completion and their appointment confirmed in writing to the Local Planning
Authority. At no time shall any construction work take place unless an engineer and
supervisor are at that time currently appointed and their appointment has been
notified to this Authority in accordance with this condition.

Reason - The details are considered to be material to the acceptability of the
proposal, and for safeguarding the amenity of neighbouring residential properties and
to comply with the Basements SPD and policy DM.D2 of the Sites and Policies Plan
2014. It is necessary for the condition to be on the basis that "No development shall
commence until" as compliance with the requirements of the condition at a later time
would result in unacceptable harm contrary to the policies of the Development Plan

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the surface water
drainage strategy as recommended by Martin J. Harvey, in the submitted document,
dated April 2020, has been carried out in full and confirmed as such in writing to the
LPA.

Reason: to reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface and foul flood risk does not
increase offsite in accordance with Merton's policies CS16, DMD2 & DMF2 and the
London Plan policy 5.13.

No development shall take place until full details of a landscaping and planting scheme
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
these works shall be carried out as approved before the commencement of the use or
the occupation of any building hereby approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include on a plan, full details of the size,
species, spacing, quantities and location of proposed plants, together with any hard
surfacing, means of enclosure, and indications of all existing trees, hedges and any
other features to be retained, and measures for their protection during the course of
development.

Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development in the interest of the
amenities of the area, to ensure the provision sustainable drainage surfaces and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies 5.1, 7.5 and
7.21 of the London Plan 2016, policies CS13 and CS16 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2, DM F2 and DM O2 of Merton's Sites and Policies
Plan 2014.

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until evidence has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority confirming
that the development has achieved COZ2 reductions of not less than a 19%
improvement on Part L regulations 2013, and internal water consumption rates of no
greater than 105 litres per day.

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability
and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.2 of the London Plan 2016 and Policy CS15 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

No development shall take place until details of all boundary walls or fences are
submitted in writing for approval to the Local Planning Authority. No works which are

Page 216



10)

11)

12)

13)

the subject of this condition shall be carried out until the details are approved, and the
development shall not be occupied / the use of the development hereby approved
shall not commence until the details are approved and works to which this condition
relates have been carried out in accordance with the approved details. The walls and
fencing shall be permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and safe development in accordance with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies 7.5 and 7.6 of the London
Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM D1
and D2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a Construction
Logistics Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved measures shall be implemented prior to the first occupation
of the development hereby permitted and shall be so maintained for the duration of
the use, unless the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority is first
obtained to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities of the
surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for
Merton: policies 6.3 and 6.14 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS20 of Merton's Core
Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

The development shall not commence until details of the provision to accommodate
all site workers', visitors' and construction vehicles and loading /unloading
arrangements during the construction process have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details must be
implemented and complied with for the duration of the construction process.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities of the
surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for
Merton: policies 6.3 and 6.14 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS20 of Merton's Core
Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

No development shall commence until details of secure cycle parking facilities for the
occupants of, and visitors to, the development have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved facilities shall be fully
implemented and made available for use prior to the first occupation of the
development and thereafter retained for use at all times.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory facilities for cycle parking are provided and to comply
with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 6.13 of the London
Plan 2016, policy CS18 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T1
of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

No development shall take place until a scheme for the storage of refuse and
recycling has been submitted in writing for approval to the Local Planning Authority.
No works which are the subject of this condition shall be carried out until the scheme
has been approved, and the development shall not be occupied until the scheme has
been approved and has been carried out in full. Those facilities and measures shall
thereafter be retained for use at all times from the date of first occupation.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the storage of refuse
and recycling material and to comply with the following Development Plan policies for
Merton: policy 5.17 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS17 of Merton's Core Planning
Strategy 2011 and policy DM D2 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, the windows in the
eastern flank wall, at first floor and above, within the building containing flats, shall be

Page 217



14)

16)

17)

18)

19)

glazed with obscure glass and fixed shut and shall permanently maintained as such
thereafter.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities and privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties and to comply with the following Development Plan

policies for Merton: policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2016, policy CS14 of Merton's Core
Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies
Plan 2014.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no extension, enlargement or other alteration of
the dwellinghouses other than that expressly authorised by this permission shall be
carried out without planning permission first obtained from the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: The Local Planning Authority considers that further development could
cause detriment to the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties or to the
character of the area and for this reason would wish to control any future
Development plan policies for Merton: policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2016, policy
CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM D2 and D3 of
Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

The development shall not be occupied until the existing redundant crossover/s have
been be removed by raising the kerb and reinstating the footway in accordance with
the requirements of the Highway Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and to comply with
the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies CS18 and CS20 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM T2, T3, T4 and T5 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the proposed vehicle
access has been sited and laid out in accordance with the approved plans

Reason: In the interests of the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and to comply with
the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policies CS18 and CS20 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM T2, T3, T4 and T5 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

The vehicle parking area shown on the approved plans shall be provided before the
commencement of the buildings or use hereby permitted and shall be retained for
parking purposes for occupiers and users of the development and for no other
purpose.

Reason: To ensure the provision of a satisfactory level of parking and comply with
the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 6.13 of the London Plan
2016, policy CS20 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T3 of
Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

The details and measures for the protection of the existing trees as specified in the
approved document 'Tree Survey Arboricultural impact Assessment Arboricultural
Method Statement' reference number: 'CC/677 AR4155' and dated '11th November
2019' shall be fully complied with. The methods for the protection of the existing
retained trees shall fully accord with all of the measures specified in the report and
shall be installed prior to the commencement of any site works and shall remain in
place until the conclusion of all site works.

Reason: To protect and safeguard the existing retained trees in accordance with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.21 of the London Plan 2015,

Page 218



20)

policy CS13 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy O2 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

The approved development shall retain an arboricultural expert to monitor and report
to the Local Planning Authority not less than monthly the status of all tree works and
tree protection measures throughout the course of the demolition and site works. A
final Certificate of Completion shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority at
the conclusion of all site works.

Reason: To protect and safeguard the existing retained trees in accordance with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.21 of the London Plan 2016,
policy CS13 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DMO2 of Merton's
Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



€1d _ ExnS _ rese
-~ —_— EY @ 00 E M YOO ONNOHD DNILLSTXG

oy o
Rme e

]

s:r e .,.hu.;h.h T e ||mV ........ |AV ............ -

Byt OVOH NHYd WYHNILLOD

ONINNY1d @

W p—

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



Ed _ wNS _ rese
- . EV @ 00z 5 HOOT 1541 DNLLSINI
i OO L5k TMLEEE
oamer _ J—
B50.0zME /.
WOk WLV WYHNILLOO 6E ¥ L€ = e
|
\
\
ot \
o |
i \
\
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
|
Y
|
|
|
\
|
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
|
|
1
1
|
E L
o iarcxassn-weriemaca e aci| RN | L
R s OVOH WHvd WYHNILLOD
o e e A bt .
DNINNY1d @
W 1n e

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



€1d _ Selns _ rese
. — .

WYl J00M BRSO

oy ot
Rme e

T

ONINNY1d

EY @ 0L 095 N S00H DNILSTNT

W p—— -

OVOH NHYd WYHNILLOD

Page 229



This page is intentionally left blank



E7d _ s00-ns _ z,um 5 o W vy e
i SE NOGHCT
VO N AL BE 22 =
Pty v g
o o et — ONINNYTd

Y @ 00T BEOE NOLYAT T3 INOHL DNLLSIX3

i m

EY & 00Z:| oy
(mwaw 19aa15) NOLLVAT TS INOHS DNLLSIXT

Page 231



This page is intentionally left blank



) o
- _ = S0 0ZME el — :
NOONCT
vom v perALLOS 8 § 22
o i
PR o Lo ONINNYTd

EW @ 0021 *m3 NOJILVAF T3 HY3H DNLLSIG

e st

=

P -

EY & 00T | oo
(maw 122015 NOILYATTS HY3H DNILSINT

e or 0

v Jn e

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



o | rooa | vesz
MYl OO
QN0 MO J350:00d
[— | —— S — SR e S ., )
| -
s

ONINNYId

s FRRRRRER

W

Ly o

OVOH NE¥d WYHNILIDD

TV @ 00Tl ees | NIWISYE 0350404

Page 235



This page is intentionally left blank



T @ oz e Y007 QNNOWD O350d0kd

SNINNY1d

W | v

OVOH WHYd WYHNILLDD

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank



[y

e i et g
e e ey e

o e T o ke &

mmmmmmmmmmmmm

EV @ 0024 #3400 LSHIH 0350d0Hd

ONINNY1d

W |

snpvs

Page 239



This page is intentionally left blank



EY @ 00Z4 %°% HOOTH ONOD3S 035040Hd

o |
n.isos e

\ =
1} __.
Smroand jo g .__,. |
|
4 |
4 |
1116 porEa e |
ek LN o e ___
ey 0 me |
e i \
|

\
I

-
—-——T—71m¥YV— 2 Ovouwuvd W¥EN3LLOS
g = == E
i m o | ow [om [ v
R — = ™ L T TH T T
A T D I3 (3T I
ONINNYTd S B B P e I e e

W

s g

Page 241



This page is intentionally left blank



s maa LT
i i ma_ - — BS00ZME
MUY B3N AvH
SHOLVATTS W3 § INDHS OW0H eV WYHMELLOD 6E 7 LE
Sy W) ey T i -
(BuE prEyaI0) O) UoNENST JEaY)
UBAST LIN0S pasodi
T 1 I I 1 1
L 5 [
= i
I
|
I
]
E I
1
|
]
I I .
Z
|
|'|
i "\
I
]
1
1
1
¥ ! i
1
| L,
£ |
- | Al
—_ - - e
i o - b ~
‘ e .
L-H'x '\__ - .", \"\ \‘\\ - H\‘I
N [ -~
s -~ L o et N
L—1 4 L8
o P o
A AR 0 B |
P
e . T MEmTE paEUGTE
NI LTI AL DR L L]
e Syrcinl Sumes 0 wepng

o SO e
o o T

o el U R SR T SR T
e T T o T T ep—

STWRALYA

Page 243



This page is intentionally left blank



..... T ] _ |
e —_— T —
S i s S
Mo e | CVOH N NYHNALLOS BE ¥ £ === = . M ==
o e Gz T ONINNYd
- = N ) — —

uoyeAs|3 1sam pesodoig

I T L, S
ni 1

e v s pasmd o s e e

Aaresna 1 g
sy

Page 245



This page is intentionally left blank



v ow P —
as0 ———
NOONCT Iluq
loaee 8 22 o === - :
g ER = e S~
CENT) = e ] e e o DNINNYId

uoEAa|3 1583 pasodaiy

Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



_____ = v . —

£d r_ E.a.._.nL ez | T ssmozme =2 et U ey ez
i — - sanouaTs | OWOM 310D 06 ¥ LE = ] M ey

190 e g e )y == nnns_._I- =t B T — ﬁ ————- s oy ' DNINNYd

-8 uopaeg pssodoig

Page 249




This page is intentionally left blank



9L0d | vesz wem .| = - e
...... ~] e et dertarmum ettt I T
e [ ] -~
~ oA SENINADR (5] | CVOM Meivid PvHNALLOO 62 § L8 . - — .
— s = | e — = s
e oy CH0s0NE L e e e o o i e o A e | SNINNY1d
o _— T e
(HdD SE 0N Wiy pama, sy
uoEAsg AIBpuUNDg 1583 pasodolg
7T 1 1
o L d
e o gy - Benaton 10
inevi oy et o sy um oy o
] [y
Pk g s
SN T, G 2w

Page 251




This page is intentionally left blank



- B50 0ZMS

NOOND ]

BNOUWITIHANGE THIMON | OVOH Ne¥d WWHNILLOD B2 ¥ LE

MUY SIAYH

ONINNY1d

(s preyouQ of uoeAs| Jeay)
uoEsa(3 wnog pasodoig

1

=]
s v oy e e e e -

e s o s

ey

by st mac

e —

B T e
et e

ST

1
]
Lk e itk

(pEoy Weg WeyuaRoy o) uonEAS|S U4}
UDREAS|S YUON pesodoid

ey T oy BN py I |

b

s
= =g

Page 253



This page is intentionally left blank



vamt | -
¥ ] - B30 02ME e |t w [T —
_ NOONCT S T
W NORLDES 1
B1y1 DI040 . ONINNY1d
saeiccll — o

WY uojiag pesodaig

P e -

g
e o 1 O

Page 255



This page is intentionally left blank



frbmass T ot Ly [Erarr—,,
- = e
P — WHYd SINAVH == :
NOUVATTI 13FELE TRNLNIUNDD OVOH WHYd WYHNILLOD 68 ¥ LE s [ A"
3600 =3 —— ONINNYId

Page 257



This page is intentionally left blank



n-oo dmioffel  pEws
b " 4

00.LL G¥.8 020 1

HXD 9M uopucr
PECH $OOUE PIOJLELS §
PI7 S21RI00%SY JON] ||amod

Ag pamedaig

€S0 0ZMS NOGNOT “ied saufey ‘peoH yied WeYusnod 6E - LE

{020z Wwdy) vogeapddy Buuue)y Ausdwoooy of uswsjels ssaooy ¢ ubsag

Page 259



This page is intentionally left blank



O7r LEND S1INVH
Pleysiaiag

PECH (B0 €
AanmH W

abeueiq s21eM acepng

Z41 8LMS NOGNOT
Aep ssudizug | ‘eenoy wijg
spueynsucy Bumey g oyer)
S3BIR0SY Majy [ned

Hr SHY A3ddNS
‘Bunpog ‘peoY WeysIoH
BEUEID) WIS POOMLLOH

Bugnsuag sauEyD

$23] § aunynouoqy

Noe 0271 100d443AN

‘epoog

‘Jeeus BUED ¥

“py] ABusugeseq

salpn}s Wibijung wBifeq % jueynsuog ABisug

AHE £ND ASHHNS
Guiepon

moipESp 06

P uBisaq aNY

WRwWssassy 1oedw) Juswaseg
VX6 VZND ATHHNS

“Bupjop ‘Rem Bwiey §

Buuely NOV

weynsuoy Bujuued

weaj Jueynsuog |z

“Base BuIpunouns sy} 0 JISIPEIBLD U SOUBYUS [IIM PUE PUEPUE]S

yby e o paufisap aq pm Guippng sy ufieep EQuapisal J0) SIPEYE YNoU-do) & UEJLE, JO BUO S8
ydeaBajs) Areq ey} i peyo eem SM BODZ U| "SPIEMY SSWOH USIUE 8y} Ul 128y, Su jo esnoy ebien, sy
10} PEPUSLLLLIDD B8I8M 8M 0L0E U] ‘seuobayes riean pue Aesodwsiuco eyl yiog u Jesk Jeg) 1oy W ey
Ul pjing mau j58q &y} 10} E00Z SprEmy Guiping eenoy ydeibejay Areq ey ) Bupnjou spreme AUELW uom
aney pue Aunos sy w sieubisep esNoY JS0LWEI0) BY) JO BUD PEISPISUCD SUE SBJEIDOSEY HON|-[|SMOd

s3jej20ssY ¥on]-jamed - siaubisaq pes ¥ 129Uy 02

B SSmp0ssy ¥onL sawa wbuiden

(D20E |udy jau) 9oL Buisnoy sjqepiayy - JusUSsesSY AUNGEIA, DU
(020E ludy yeu) Aewey r |y - Afespeng ebeurig JeEw ssBpng

{020z udy :421) pr) ubisag ONY - Juawssassy joEdw)| uEsLELISIGNG
(D202 UDIEW 2jau) S2)RIDOSEY MaJNY N - JUsWS)ElS uodsuel)

(D202 wdy -yau) Buluely NOY - ueweeg Buuue)g

syoday Jueynsuo)

(HdAD GE'ON Wouy pamein) uoyeas|3 Aepunog jse3 siel4 pesodoiy 1d 91077d
‘88 uoloeg sesnoy pesodoiy £7d 5107 d

uoEns|3 158 sesnoH pesodouy £1d Fi0d
uogens(d 5E3 sasnoH pesodoid Ed ELO I
‘SuONEASIT JESY § Ui SesnoH pesodouy £1d 210°d
¥ uones sield pesodoig ¥id L0d

suONEAS[] Jeel § Juold sjE4 pesodoly ¥id 0Ld
uonEAS|S 158N SIEl pesodoig £1d 60071d

uoheA=] 1583 Sl pesodoig £1d 80071d

uonEas|3 [Enpejucy feey pesodog Sid L007d
uoEAS|S [ENIXEUOD) Juol4 pesodoid ¥1d 90071d
SUE|d Jooy pesodoig ¥1d G007 1d

SUB|d J0O|4 pucoag pasodoly ¥d ¥00d

SUE|d 1004 puooes pesodoug ¥1d €007 1d

SUE|4 ool j5114 pesodoy ¥1d £0071d

BUE| Jo0j4 punoug pesodoiyg Sd 2007 1d

SUB| 10014 puncug) Jema] pesodoig g1d 10071d
sfumesg [esodoid

suoheg Bugsig £1d 800°NS

suoyens|3 Wed ¥ Buippng Jeey Bugsng £1d 200NS
suogenald 1eens 7 Buippng juasy Bugsig £1d 900'NS
suE|d jooy Bugsng £d S00°NS

SUB|g 10014 §sii4 Bunsig £1d ¥00NS

sUE|g J00|4 punoss Bugsg £1d E0ONS

uelg epg Buysng £1d 200'NS

uelg uoneso Gugsig £1d L00NS

sBuimelg Bupsixg

[RANANYDIY

‘spoday pue sBumelp Buwogoy sy yam uogauniuoo Ul pESd 8q pnoys
JUBLINOP SIY) (PSLIGLICD PEOY YIE WEYUSHOD BE F LE YIDG 18 SSUS 0} 518450 uoneonddy Buiueld s

Uapanpou) 0k

Page 261



This page is intentionally left blank



“(MopaA) uonEIg Suguseyy Yy saukey

pue (pay) uoaeoon aps Buwoys abow) AEEs B

B SRRPasEY ¥onL Bawad wbulden

-poda) podsues sjEsedas sy) i IE18p BI0W U
pequosep 51 usisinoud efieinis epAD aps ug “(80fo wwg | xosdde) AemE WNG INCOE POOKK SI84|00) WOI)
dn payoud eq uea g0 Aemyfiyiadng spAp pue sps woy woog xoudde =1 LEED N0y 8@k wopuo

sajpha

"PEOY Wied weyusKos) Buoje ‘sps woy 3N
auy o) wpsg xoudde doys younys 1suy H esdon auyy woyy ylines aq ues o puniod WEYaNR 1SsUean]
‘uonElS WEd seufey of BuleaBl sseng ypm (BHS WOy YEA SUIWZ =) peoy sfdey pue pEoY WiEd
WweyualoD o Jewo ey Ag 51 doig sng jseuseu ey | PEOY B4 WeyuayeD wo sdogs sng pog e Aup -

sasng

(¥rep sunuZg) puncufispun) ' SUWERY UONELS WOPSJQUIAY -
(MIEM SUILITE) UDELS YU SSLIEY | UOPSIqUIA -

(MiEp sunuZL) uoReEls suluEp yed seufey -

SUONELS UIRJ) JsaleaN

“(poog) £ jo |2re] Apqisseccy’ podsuel | Sgnd SBY SIS By} J0JEINNET Tyld aul|
-0 141 e of Buipscooy (sied seudey |ejue),) euE equwood woly wopg xoudde pajedo) s1ays By )
S§u Jodsues]

“BUISNoyY PaSEaIsUl 10) ‘UopUOT 550108 puE
‘yBnouog ey u pesu BuoBuo sy o SNQULCD 0} SPUSIU PEOY YIB 4 WEYUSHOD) 6E % LE 1B [Esodosd sy)
‘pEOY WE WEYUSHOD) CF § £F § PEOY MIEJ WEYUERoD) Ly Agejou ‘uossmwesd peureb Ajsudel axey Jo
NG uSaq 8By swayos pasodosd By} 0] S[E0S IBIWIS |0 SUSLID0EABD [EYUSHISa IS0 [RISASS AgiEay

"PEOY YiEd WEYUSHOD) §O YHop au) o} jsnf oes-ap-na i esdog ey puncie saxoq sbieq
Jo eajew jem jsod Bu uyum seuadosd UIE|LD PEEIDS] PUE (UDPSIQUIKA JSBA U2UNY D 1SUYD) y2unyD eu)
AigEioN "PEOI BU 0 PUS WEISES SN UD 50661 Byl sjep-aid jeuyl Guiping jo SiuBwae BIEl ale aiey)

JeyEw [Epueied sy jo =6 BHE} EqE} 0} useq aney sjoid Gursnoy
Jem jsod jo Jequnu B puE Jusudo{Snep J0j SMIDEIPE pECS Sy} Jo woipod Iy} SEYELW OS[E UOLWWOD
UOPS|GWIAN PUE EY By} ‘AEMIIE S13 0 PRI BUF J0 PUS SIy) By jo Apuixosd Buj of 8N SPIEMUC 50661 SU)
woy juswadejsasp pue Bursnoy yw paidnaoo fedound s1 peoY B WEYUSHOT 0 HEY LWsSEs Sy |

LBl
Ul Jpng UOETS WEd seudey wouy syulj AEmres sy jo UOEDIOSUCD Sy) 0} ssuosdal ul jing Agewnseid
“AnuaD Wog AEs pUB UIG | 898] BU) Jo Spouad UBIPIEMPT PUE UBLORIA B4 j0 Wed JaRE| 8y} O} pajep
80 UED ‘Bis YInos ay) uo AEnoued ‘peos sy) jo pus wsam ay) wo sbuping ‘Buyesds fEleusn

pEO)
ay) Guoje edeas jaaus By} 0] JUBLWLEEP OU Yim A810]S Uiy B BIEPOWOIOR UEd puE edeaspue) Burdogs ey
o abefuespe ayey jey) seuadoud jo saqunu B aue sy ey pes Buney sAauois g-z Buieq ‘ybusy
ny sp Buoge uens Aessust ase proy Wey weyueyo) Buoe sBuippng sy yo ey pue aEoas eyy

“nonuoy ssfdey U B WEYUSHDD PSUEBUEI SI8M S|BJSE DUE 8Snoy 8y} ‘1SgL
ul siedojesep Ag yfnog yiglo ey woy Bugep weyusyon jo peF i5| ey sAdey |jenwes Aq pausmo
BOUD BJEJSE BIDE §F B ‘8084 joadsoid j0 SjUBUSLWS) Sy} WOl padOjaAsp SEM BEIE YIE] WEYUSHOT) &Y |

“pueiBuz suosy
Aq pays you aue ays uo sBuppng ey “eery uopessucy pepEubisap B uyEm B JOU SB0p BYE Y|

“aBejA, jo
prem sjeedes auy) UM 8] PEOY YIEY WEYUSHOD J0 YHON 8y} UD 8s0L) pue jied ssuley jo abepuna
BU) LILEIM BIE PEOH WEJ WEYUSHOD J0 LINOg Sy} uo seipedoud ‘ainjausy | PEOY WEd WEYUSHOD jo
anusd ey Buope sun yrEp WEY seufey ay) jo AEpunog weypon 8y "uouspy jo ybnoiog uopuo ey
10 UBpUNOG WSISaAL UL UD PEJEDI0] SIYDIYM ‘PUEM YIEd S8UAEY BU) LM Sapisal ops uopexjdde ey

Bumag ¥ uoneaoy g

Page 263



This page is intentionally left blank



B0z ¥ voz ‘ozrson) [°°L ]
sagsadaxd Buuncquieu BUpUNoLNS - wan 19SS G o€ san) saiuadasd Buunogufiiau Bumunouns - wan 18288 fY)

DL Wit WSUSROD BEOM PUR LETON - WA 18a0S 1)

B samEpassy L amas wbuldon

l@cr ¥ (B0E ¥ v0E 0N Pros

Vot ‘BEF ‘wEr Son) samedasd BuunoguBiou Bupunouns - wean 19a0s g 10 9 sysodds Lo) sensdasd BuunonuBieu BuBUNCLIN - wan, 19305 2

i |

-soueieadde qeip 558 1Ay} Yum j8eugs ay) o} Buippe juswadoaep
mau 1o sbuljemp jusweseidas Bueq Aueyy -sousiesdde pewes pue sBunjes ssgo| ley) Yum pajsisse
are peol ey} jo apis epsoddo ey uo ‘sinogfeu eiEpswwn pey | “ededs jeeuls ey o) souasaud B
Yy Buning ‘iem & pulyeq uepply Aeed are (G § JE'S0N) 58PS 858y) jo sjuednooso Jing jusuna ey

‘sBulemp syeredes om) jo pewucy Buljjemp payosElap-IWes SBI0IS § B LIM
pacepdal pue peysiowsp &q 0} utissiussd pejuesb useq Ajueoal SEY L ON JO 8IS BU JEL) PajOU S1}|

“pEOY jEd Weyuaye] uonoes sy Buoe ying Buisnoy sem jsod
Jo waped juswapas papous mou ay) jo esdunb e sub ‘Eyebo) pamain B usym ‘sdeyad pue “‘seenoy
paysElap JdUDSSp- UoU “TEJILUIS SUE jS8pL SU1 0] | 0N PUB 1SET ay) 0} op o * ssiuadoud BuunogquBisu sy

QN0 SILLE) USEID) pUB|oH woy ssuepunog aps syl Bunernedss “aousy
uapsef meay ey o) |eued surnu yedioog sqgnd B pue papoom faeay Apre) =1 AEpUNDD UISUNOE 81

‘sagew J 1ea0 150l jo jeasy u ebueyo e 51 susyy uepseb Jeal
5,5E°0N |0 JBLI0D JSBAL NS BU pUE AIEPUNGG 5,/E 0N 0 JBLI0S 58T YUON BU) UBameq ‘siojalsy ]
‘uonIanp Apejses YINos B Ul 18ans sy) wouy umop Buidojs ‘jene) ul ebuBys pespew E sy es) a)s sy)

UL [EANISUYIIE YN
Buney s paguossep &g pinoo 8snoy Jaypay 18]e] sieal g uoissy naad =00 BEON ¥EUYL
sajou osje Jepsibe) Buuued suguo suopepy "g9GEL Jequenop W uopep Ag peuesd Bueg uossuued
Guiuue)d snjoedsons) WM S,0GH| PAU SUJ PUNCIE PEINISWU0D SEM /£'ON Jojd YJES uo Bsnoy peydjejsp
faiops omy ‘ejbuis B Ag pesdnooo Apusumo ale pEOY WEJ WEYUSHOD §E F LE J0 Seps uwogemdde syj

MSTE

Page 265



This page is intentionally left blank



el

2vON ¥ [owerees on) swowishiumue oo pue sy spese) Bk, gy

(aBepa) Aq pemmosco B8 ¥ L8 1R SesnoH Bunsme) wied LapieD PURIBOH WO Waou M3l )

B samEpassy L amas wbuldon

WOV AQ 1 Bumure)g Bu. ID0E B4} O} J8)8) SISJEL JUSQLUNDIUIL IS0 ||B PUE S{E3S
10 sune) Ul soueping Axjod Buruueld Jusuna (uouapy) s 1oUNCD PEIO| BY) PUE UoKE]EIGS ENOH MBN
(e uopuo By ) spwaio YI0g Yum Spuoose Juswdojasep pesodoud Ameu auj JEY) UDHEASUOWSP 104

-dopeasp of Jybu sseumo ey Burseuexe fepewepbe) snysm sBuppng Bugsxe ey
UD USWEIUELUS UE B ||EYS pue ‘fpuswe piay Apuesasd new uo Spuesgubs ssnuosdwoo sou foraud
sanoquieu sgeipawy) sy o fue uo fEuswigep ebuyw jou eys eswsyss sy Bumes (ueqngns)
UBQUN-ILUEE 81 j0 SNODU0D ey ‘sBupunouns sp o) seyedwis eq o) §enpoads peubisep useq sey
aweyss pesodoud ey 1ey) slEnsuowWep o) spusjul sabed snowasd ey JeAo pue enwoge sIsAEUE By

‘swoospaq fepe) § Aepuooss jooj seddn ey e sjusweses
B[EIS _ISSWOR, [EUOHIPE)} suow ‘seoeus) pue suspuel ypm diysuoyesy seyeq sop sBusedo Buipng
plo4-g Jebie) tezs o Ayoresely Bumey ose epysm eAcqe usAD SUDSEE) BUY) 10} PESILIINEW USS] BABY
sBuado Bupey seay “woyy Buvussgo soy uey ‘seceds [Eweu asoy) sop by [eingeu jo feues sepeaib
Bupnposu Joj siow ‘smopuim meia esdunB Js|ews e jsese [Ens uswb useq aaey suoqens(]
HUE|4 188NS 8] j0 (SoUB[EEAINS §) SMBIA Japim pue sjena| Jybidep peseaiow ypm suednoso apisosd
EIBLI0D BEE|E)-0]-SSE|D) PAYNOU yim sjuawabuele mopuip, Aeg “sied Jooj4 Jeddn) g seEnoy soBuBp
Bl Yjog Jo SepEIER JUOLY BuY uD YN [EINEU J0 S|EAS] JUSIYNE BABY SWOCJ BjgERgEY MU B Buunsus
apym smoqybeu jueuns pue Juednaoo sininy sy yyog Jop Asesud BuinEEEW Jo SUCHEISPISUCD [ENR
By wouy peausp useq sey Buemp yoes Joy Buwedo pezeb yoes Jo G 120d 8y} puE UoHENSaUE]

“Buipping 1E14 aypoy paesgdal
fyohw usy pue eoeus] pasodosd au 1oy pamoyo) uBaq SBY Sy SEalls By Buney segeD yum sadeys
yoou payopd eapy Apeunuopasd ‘epis uweinos SpEOY WEd weyualos uo uebe ‘sBuiping peysmep
8| S0 PIESUER J0 payDily spqeidnooo yum AydesBodo; Gudogs auyy Buipoe pue joedw g ying ey}
Buiuesss| |peE0J BUYY WOy uMop 85 sBUIpINg feIojs-2eay) - PEOY NIEd WELUSROD JO YUEY WISYIN0S Bu)
uo sBuemp jo sonsueoeeys Bupessud By wouy sweys weoy Buippng ciseq “pesiopus § paUEUEW
useq aaey sdeg 11 1 - smogqybeu 1 1 518y pue (s)Esodosd ey episbuoe
pue yBnouy smala SPIOYE S¥20|q unsip omy oju Jidg peoy yiEg weyuayoD uo ureld Buyesaid ey
smojjoy ‘BuppEng 114 By g 8oeLe)] eEnoH S8y | SU) ‘Swuoy Guippng osmg sy jo JuswaBueus § juswsoe]4

"|9aNs BwEs
ey uo Agresu pue Jusselpe Asepawwn sesnoy Jing Apuases ssow ypsm (£juo suus) seas w) snosbucou
edead Buueadde ssnoy adfy mojefiung Gunsixe syy ‘peoy Wed weyuepod jo Juswbes jenoged sy
1oy fopepes weap Guiuuelg vouayy Guippng apeos ay) jo afinef ge ‘peousis)al usaq os[E SEY oM 1B
swayos pajussuod Ajusoel ay) “ays uoheddde sy epsoddo Apoanp seawoy Asuednaoo sjbuis pajuoy
-s|gnop peyoejeq ebie ey o) (Gr-6 S.0N) bue) sfuuey syoo|g-unisuey fai0lg Baily) puE peoyY
WEYINGT Yim uoqaunl sy} WwWoy SS0U08 (Zi-pG 5,0N) SSRSU0SEW peseus) woly Suewdoensp pesodosd
Ay} jo 8[eds ey pauuoiul axey iy Fuuxosd esop feareias ul ‘suus) Buissew Eieush pue [BINeNYIIE
‘oneuyiser oo ul ‘sBulemp jo SBUES BPIM UPM SNOUEINWU 51 PECH WEJ WEYUSHOD) jo edesseas

suapeb meea) angoedsal ey 0} Jooy swes woy Buipesq sseooe jass|, Buneiyoe ays
B} O UBHUNS-IWLSE &g O} (100]4 pUNoUE) Jemo) mojeq Asiojs [Euopppe ue Bujgeus epym ‘Juswesed
wyeas aggnd wouy shuippng ay) e jo Sm00j4 punoug ASI0IE SIUENUS 8U) 0] SS8I0E papadunun smoe
urens) Buidos ay) wg 1ano Ag (5E 10id) aBpe Apeisam aapoadess SUBEPUNDY WSLINDS 0] J8ES WOL
wg saao Ag Jegp spass| [Bxpaa syl (L£ 10|d) afpe fpeises ay) ug "wg'| (sowE Ag (jSam 0] |SEa) SaUE
abeuoy peoy yed weyusyos sy Buoe wewsesed sy) “|aas) 1sans 1y Apesub ssuea Aydeibodo) epg

{10} Aoeaud g Buuessos [eingeu Bupaoud sueT preYSLD Wwoly
Buipes) Arepunog weynog ey Buoje saBpey abime| pue ssal] sunjew jo yueq &g pessyy ere suBpIED)
PUEJDH JO SUNOD) SIUUS] § WE- 550008 smawm Buoey \pnog -(seoeds Apuswy) suspien auy) ypm Buoe
ynos Guioey 1padse sejuune, sy aney Auenbesgns ssoeua] § S8UCHEG UiM Swoo sjgepgey Jabime)
By pue saoeds Suwm) Aay -(uByupon) yEfeq uane papioye eme sepese) (Guoe) jeens) juoy sBuping
B4 Bu) § SESN0H SIEUE] By} Yjoq 05 ‘SE yWnos yuop AyBno uo peyejusus sue (s)eps uogen|dde sy

ubjsaq Buipping ¥ sisfeuy =us ot

Page 267



This page is intentionally left blank



=000 SIEGUT SDIWLL PIOE 5]

SUSUSE RAUIOD ISEI-d P WG WIS MIN £

M
fakete
WL TECRHR
.‘ i El
e

A e il
’“‘%‘ﬁ Egl B8,
LR

(s 10 sumsing) Guippmo ieque paEasL Z

Irespuey Guidden [ejaw e yum sseb Aepes peusybino) jo pawuwoy
sapesjsnjeg Auoajeg

"BUIpEEN{EG PUE SSWEY MOPULM PSIEID0SSE SU 4L 0f (AsuB-piw) snojos ul paydde aq |Eys

(unEs) pralysisiEap), XnINQ Jo Ysiuy e|geinp Aguassyu wey) Buyew sioop souelue sBuippng yoes o)
pafoidws &4 By EYUEIG 100D 1agUWY 2100 pos ‘poamAld sulew speif [BLEIKS YIM PaRES AEXUEA
$400(] 33UBLUZ J2qUWIL PICS 90

“Buipying JEy puE s8sn0y BeLE) 8y} Yoq o) sayapd joos WiEew ey 10} pesodoud =1 SjES [BIMEN
uaud Jooy uley - AEIS 50

"SMOPUMA LIS MO8 S|BUEd DpESSEaal 10 5| Wuoy
0} pasy "epEIE} SUj Jo sjuswee urepsd Bunenusioe i jsIsse Im pue pesodosd 8IE SjUBWSS 1SBD-BI]
Fj2aU0 Ised-=24d F0

“PUDE JSUNSNG 40 SIS JBUNS Ul
PejeidoD ¥oUQ HOOIS M J0 BsudWOo |BYS SBSN0Y BIBLIS] PUE JE|| BY) WI0q 0f 8pE3e) BU) J0 HiNg ByL
Houg $2015 MaN €0

“daaydn (eI saunheas pue jUBISISa j0)

‘8|qE]S A|EUOISUSLIP SUMEWSI YIIyMm JoNPosd SWES SL} SAIS0SU [[EYS SUSSIOS § S80USY ‘'S8I0)S 8aRD B
asney ey} 5B 4ons ‘sjusLwus|s ey sousmadde 1ayos B Buipiaoad ‘epedey Buippng ey jo sped Joy pesn
80 [EYE SpIEOq JSqUI| PaIBLIEEM-81 ~ SIUSLUSIS UBBIISWIE |[B Joj pesodosd si Guippe)d Jequiy palppop
{2ejuns 10 g Jaquup 20

“BumppeR

USENISUIES X|j J2I0S5 B SE PB[EJSUL B ||W SSSU ] IN0jod ASuB yIEp B Ul paysiuy eq o} spaeoq sy} Jo)
pesodoud S1) “pUEoq 8]E3(IS WNIDMED LM peja eq of Buiping ey jo suoneas)a yuey wo sjuawepe Bunoslioiy
pieog Buippe|d 2j0B|IS WNI2ED 1)

S[eU=EN 05

Page 269



This page is intentionally left blank



6.0 Access

Existing Points of Access into the site are maintained. All new Steps and Staircases of the proposed
new Residential Units and associated Communal Areas shall be designed in accordance with current

UK Building Regulations. Also refer io Lifetime Homes Checklists for confirmations of compliance with
other Accessibility Criteria.

Copyright Fowel Tuck Associales Lin

Page 271



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 273



This page is intentionally left blank



T i

yoeqpaad [

Page 275

950 0ZMS UOPUOT#PEDY '
Nied Em::uﬂaﬂmﬂ.. i h

-

e
P ..n.

v w&.‘m e _ﬂ@

sj2qe

uopRN ‘uopuo]
‘puejbu3 ‘wopbury payun

wold 0208 @



Page 276



Page 277



This page is intentionally left blank






Page 280



Page 281



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 283



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 285



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20t August 2020
Item No:

UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
20/P1275 08/04/2020

Address/Site: 115 Graham Road, Wimbledon, SW19 3SP

(Ward) Dundonald

Proposal: Erection of an additional storey and creation of 2 x 1
bedroom flats

Drawing Nos: 2005 A L01.03(C), LO01.05(C), L03.02(C), L03.03(C),
L04.02(C), L04.03(C), L04.04(C), L04.05(C),

Contact Officer: David Gardener (0208 545 3115)

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT Planning Permission Subject to a S106 Agreement and Conditions

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Heads of agreement: Permit free

Is a screening opinion required: No

Is an Environmental Statement required: No

Has an Environmental Impact Assessment been submitted: No
Press notice: No

Site notice: Yes

Design Review Panel consulted: No

Number of neighbours consulted: 38

External consultations: None

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The application has been brought before the Planning Applications
Committee due to the number and nature of representations received as a
result of public consultation.

2. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The application site comprises a three-storey block of six flats, built in the
1970s, which is located on the southwest side of Graham Road, Wimbledon.

Page 287



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3
3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The block of flats features a flat roof and comprises brick and timber facing
materials.

Six off-street car parking spaces are provided in garages at the rear of the site
with vehicular access from Graham Road.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area. The site is also located in a
controlled parking zone (Zone W4) and has excellent access to public transport
(PTAL = 6a).

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The application proposes the erection an additional storey comprising 2 x 1
bedroom (2 person) flats.

Facing materials currently proposed comprise standing seam lead to front and
rear elevation dormer windows, slate tile to mansard roof, matching brick to side
elevations, and grey aluminium clad windows.

No off-street car parking spaces are proposed.

Amenity space for each unit would be a minimum of 5sgm. The application also
proposes to create private amenity space for the two ground floor flats at the
rear of the building.

Refuse storage would be located in front of the building and a new bicycle store,
with capacity for both existing and proposed flats would be located at the rear
of the building.

This is the second submission for the extension of the building following a
previous refusal (LBM Ref: 19/P3732) earlier this year. The key differences are
the proposed flats have been reduced in size from 2 to 1 bedrooms, The
extension has been reduced in size with the front elevation comprising a
mansard sloping at a slightly shallower angle, the roof now comprising a
shallow twin pitch element rather than being entirely flat, and a mansard on the
rear elevation which was previously a vertical brick facing wall. The current
proposal also comprises flats with private balconies at the rear which the rear
mansards are set back behind.

The proposal has been amended since it was first submitted with further
improvements proposed including new entrance doors, new windows to
centrally located stairway, existing window bay cladding replaced, and new
perimeter wall fronting the street. The bin storage area has been relocated from
in front of the building to the rear.

PLANNING HISTORY

The following planning history is relevant:

Page 288



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

1)

2)

3)

4)

MER1113/71 — Erection of 6 self-contained flats with off-street parking. Granted
-12/01/1972

MER730/72 - Extension at rear of 3 storey block of flats. Granted - 06/09/1972

In 2016 pre-application advice was sought (Ref: 16/P2669) for the erection of
an additional storey to existing building to create 2 x residential units.

19/P3732 - Erection of an additional storey to existing building to create 2 x 2
bed flats, including rear roof terrace. Refused, 20/12/2019, for the following
reasons:

The proposal would be excessive in terms of height, bulk, massing and would
have an unsympathetic design to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the existing building and the Graham Road streetscene contrary
to policies DM D2 and DM D3 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and
Policies Maps (July 2014).

The proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation
for future occupants with the flats providing insufficient sized private amenity
space contrary to policy DM D2 of the Sites & Policies Plan & Policies Map
2014, C.S 14 of the Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy 3.5 of the London
Plan 2016.

The proposal would be visually intrusive and overbearing to the detriment of
occupiers of No. 117 Graham Road contrary to policy DM D2 of the Sites &
Policies Plan & Policies Map 2014.

The proposed development would result in 2 additional residential units. Given
the site has excellent access to public transport and is located in a controlled
parking zone (Zone W4) the proposal would have a significant impact on on-
street parking in surrounding streets. As there is no legal agreement in place
for the units to be permit free the proposal would be contrary to the
requirements of policy CS. 20 of the London Borough of Merton Core Planning
Strategy (July 2011).

In February 2020 pre-application advice was sought for a single storey
extension to the block of flats (Ref: 20/P0508)

POLICY CONTEXT

The following policies from the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies
Maps (July 2014):

DM D1 (Urban design and the public realm), DM D2 (Design considerations in
all developments), DM D3 (Alterations and extensions to existing buildings), DM
F2 (Sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) and; Wastewater and Water
Infrastructure), DM H2 (Housing Mix), DM O2 (Nature Conservation, Trees,
hedges and landscape features), DM T1 (Support for sustainable transport and
active travel), DM T3 (Car parking and service standards)

Page 289



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.2

6.3

Adopted Core Strategy (July 2011)
CS.13 (Open space, nature conservation, leisure and culture), CS.14 (Design),
CS.15 (Climate Change), CS.20 (Parking, Servicing and Delivery)

London Plan (March 2016) are:

3.3 (Increasing Housing Supply), 3.5 (Quality and Design of Housing
Developments), 3.8 (Housing Choice), 5.3 (Sustainable Design and
Construction), 6.13 (Parking)

Mayor’s Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (March 2016)

DCLG Technical Housing Standards — nationally described space standard
March 2015

National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

CONSULTATION

The application has been publicised by means of a site notice procedure with
individual letters also sent to occupiers of neighbouring properties. In response,
seven letters of objection were received on the following grounds:

- Lack of engagement from freeholder

- Proposed private amenity areas for ground floor flats would encroach on
communal land

- Car currently park in front of garages so there would be no room to manoeuvre
cars

- Disruption of building work on existing occupants

- Inaccurate drawings

- Out of proportion with surrounding buildings/design not in keeping with existing
building

- Visually intrusive/overbearing/excessive bulk and height

- loss of daylight/sunlight and privacy

- Lack of space to rear to provide proposed amenities

- Highway safety during construction

- Impact on existing building infrastructure

Following receipt of the proposed amendments a further re-consultation was
carried out. In response one further letter of objection was received reiterating
previous concerns.

Future Merton - Transport Planning

No objections subject to conditions relating to bicycle parking, submission of
construction logistics plan, and S106 requiring the development is permit free.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Page 290



7.2

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

The main planning considerations concern the design and appearance of the
extension, standard of accommodation to be provided, impact of the
development upon residential amenity, and traffic/parking issues.

Design and Impact on Graham Road Steetscene

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that planning should
always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for
all existing and future occupants of land and buildings. The regional planning
policy advice in relation to design is found in the London Plan (2015), in Policy
7.4 - Local Character and 7.6 - Architecture. These policies state that Local
Authorities should seek to ensure that developments promote high quality
inclusive design, enhance the public realm, and seek to ensure that
development promotes world class architecture and design. Policies DM D2
and DM D3 seek to ensure a high quality of design in all development, which
relates positively and appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale, density,
proportions, height, materials and massing of surrounding buildings and
existing street patterns, historic context, urban layout and landscape features
of the surrounding area.

This part of Graham Road is characterised by buildings with relatively
consistent building heights. The current building is three storeys with a flat roof
whilst other buildings along the road are 2/3 storeys with twin pitch roofs. It
should be noted that the adjoining property, No.113 is two and a half storeys
with a twin pitch roof incorporating roof space accommodation, whilst the pair
of semi-detached properties, Nos. 117 and 119, located on the side of the site
are two storeys with twin pitch gable roofs addressing the street.

This is the second submission for the extension of the building following a
previous refusal (LBM Ref: 19/P3732) earlier this year. The previous application
was partially refused because it was considered that it would be excessive in
terms of height, bulk, massing and would have an unsympathetic design to the
detriment of the character and appearance of the existing building and the
Graham Road streetscene. The key differences between the current and
previous application include the reduction in size of the proposed extension with
the mansard sloping at a slightly shallower angle, the roof now comprising a
shallow twin pitch element rather than being entirely flat, and a mansard on the
rear elevation which was previously a vertical brick facing wall. The current
proposal also comprises flats with private balconies at the rear which the rear
mansards are set back behind. It is considered that these amendments are
suffiicient to address the previous concerns regarding the proposed bulk and
massing of the extension, whilst it should also be noted that the proposal would
not exceed the height of No.115.

It is also considered that the current proposal is a higher quality design than the
previously refused application. The existing building is a poor quality design
and it is considered that the previous design which would have had a similar
design approach would have simply compounded its negative impact on the
Graham Road streetscene. It is considered that the proposed design which
would have a high quality contemporary design approach featuring standing

Page 291



7.3

7.31

7.32

7.4

7.41

seam lead to front and rear elevations and grey vertical aligned grey aluminium
clad fenestration addresses this concern, improving the building’s appearance
when viewed from the street. It should also be noted that further improvements
to the front elevation including new entrance doors, new windows to centrally
located stairway, existing window bay cladding replaced, and new perimeter
wall fronting the street are proposed which will further modernise the building
when viewed from the street. Overall, it is considered that the proposal would
comply with policies DM D2 and DM D3 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan
and Policies Maps (July 2014) and as such is considered to be acceptable in
terms of visual amenity.

Standard of Accommodation

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016 and the Department for Communities and
Local Government ‘Technical housing standards — nationally described space
standard’ set out a minimum gross internal area standard for new homes. This
provides the most up to date and appropriate minimum space standards for
Merton. In addition, adopted policy CS.14 of the Core Strategy and DM D2 of
the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July 2014) encourages
well designed housing in the borough by ensuring that all residential
development complies with the most appropriate minimum space standards
and provides functional internal spaces that are fit for purpose. New residential
development should safeguard the amenities of occupiers by providing
appropriate levels of sunlight & daylight and privacy for occupiers of adjacent
properties and for future occupiers of proposed dwellings. The living conditions
of existing and future residents should not be diminished by increased noise or
disturbance.

The proposed flats would be 50sgm and 48sgm. Although the 48sgm flat would
be 2sgm below the minimum space standard for a 1 bedroom (2 person) flat it
is not considered to warrant a refusal of the application given it would be only
marginally below the required size and the development is restricted by the
current building’s floorplate. It should also be noted that each habitable room
provides good outlook, light and circulation, and as such it is considered the
proposal would provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation. In addition,
the proposed flats would provide a minimum of 5sgm of private amenity space
required by policy DM D2. The proposal would therefore comply with policy 3.5
of the London Plan (March 2016), CS.14 of the Core Planning Strategy (July
2011) and DM D2 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps
(July 2014) in terms of standard of accommodation.

Residential Amenity

Policy DM D2 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July
2014) states that proposals for development will be required to ensure provision
of appropriate levels of sunlight and daylight, quality of living conditions,
amenity space and privacy, to both proposed and adjoining buildings and
gardens. Development should also protect new and existing development from
visual intrusion.

Page 292



7.42

7.5

7.51

7.52

7.53

7.6

7.61

The rear elevation of the building extends beyond both the ground and first floor
rear elevations of No.117. The previous proposal was considered to be visually
intrusive and overbearing when viewed from No. 117 Graham Road due to its
excessive height, bulk, massing and unsympathetic design. It is considered that
the current proposal addresses these concerns with the rear elevation now
comprising a mansard roof which is set back behind the private balconies of the
proposed flats reducing its visual impact when viewed from No.117. It is
considered that due to the size and location of the extension in relation to
No.113, with No.113 also having a deeper rear building line, that it would not
be visually intrusive when viewed from this building. To reduce overlooking from
the rear balconies a condition requiring protective screening on the balcony
sides will be attached to any permission. The proposal therefore is considered
comply with relevant planning policy with regards to neighbouring amenity.

Parking and Traffic

Policy CS.18 of the Core Planning Strategy states that the Council will promote
active transport by supporting schemes that prioritise the access and safety of
pedestrian, cycle and other active transport modes. Policy CS.18 also
encourages design that provides attractive, safe, covered cycle storage, cycle
parking and other facilities (such as showers, bike cages and lockers). Policy
DM T3 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July 2014)
states that development should only provide the level of car parking required to
serve the site taking into account its accessibility by public transport (PTAL) and
local circumstances in accordance with London Plan standards unless a clear
need can be demonstrated.

No off street car parking is proposed which is considered acceptable as Policy
6.13 of the London Plan states that all developments in areas of good public
transport accessibility in all parts of London should aim for significantly less than
1 space per unit. The application site is located in an area of high demand for
on-street car parking spaces and as such on-street parking is regulated by
controlled parking zone W4. It should also be noted that it is considered that
the application site has excellent public transport accessibility (PTAL = 6a)
given its location close to Wimbledon Town Centre. It is considered that due to
the creation of 2 x 1 bedroom flats in an area of high existing car parking
pressures, as required by Merton’s adopted Core Planning Strategy policy
CS20 (Parking, Serving and delivery), it is necessary to the acceptability of the
development that it should be ‘permit free’.

A total of 10 secure bicycle spaces would be provided at the rear of the site.
This would provide the minimum number of spaces required by policy 6.13 of
the London Plan, including the provision of sufficient spaces for occupants of
existing flats. Overall, the proposal accords with relevant transport planning
policies.

Sustainable design and construction

London Plan policy 5.3 and CS policy CS15 seek to ensure the highest
standards of sustainability are achieved for developments which includes

Page 293



7.62

7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

minimising carbon dioxide emissions, maximising recycling, sourcing materials
with a low carbon footprint, ensuring urban greening and minimising the usage
of resources such as water.

The proposed development would need to comply with Core Strategy policy
CS15, minor residential developments by achieving a 19% improvement on
Part L of the Building Regulations 2013 and water consumption not exceeding
105 litres/person/day. The proposal would result in a large flat roof pane
which could likely accommodate solar PV in a south-westerly direction. The
Council’s standard condition is to be applied in order to secure compliance
with the policy.

SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
REQUIREMENTS

The application does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly, there are no requirements in terms of EIA submission.

LOCAL FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The proposal would result in a net gain in gross floor space and as such will be
liable to pay both the Mayoral and Merton Community Infrastructure Levies
(CIL). The funds will be spent on the Crossrail project, with the remainder spent
on strategic infrastructure and neighbourhood projects.

SECTION 106 LEGAL AGREEMENT

Permit Free

The development is to be ‘Permit Free’ in line with policy CS.20 of the Core
Planning Strategy, which seek to reduce reliance on private motor vehicles in
locations with good access to public transport facilities.

Further information in respect of the above, including details of supplementary
research carried out in justification of the S106 requirements, can be viewed
here:

http://www.merton.gov.uk/environment/planning/s106-agreements.htm

CONCLUSION

The proposal would provide an acceptable standard of accommodation, and is
considered acceptable in terms of design, massing and siting, and would not
have a detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity. The proposal would make
a small modest contribution to the housing supply, in a sustainable location.
Overall, the proposal is of a sufficiently high quality that would be acceptable in
the Graham Road streetscene and accordingly, it is recommended that
planning permission is granted.

Page 294



RECOMMENDATION

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
Subject to a S106 legal agreement with the following heads of terms:
1. That the residential units are ‘Permit Free’;

2. The developer agreeing to meet the Council’s costs of preparing,
drafting and monitoring the Section 106 Obligations.

And the following conditions:

1. A.1 (Commencement of Development)

2. B.1 (External Materials to be Approved)

3. B.4 (Details of Site/Surface Treatment)

4. B.5 (Details of Walls/Fences and screening to balconies)

5. B.6 (Levels)

6. C.10 (Hours of Construction)

7. F.1 (Landscaping/Planting Scheme)

8. F.2 (Landscaping (Implementation))

9. H6 (Cycle Parking — Details to be Submitted)

10.  H13 (Construction Logistics Plan)

11.  The proposed new entrance doors, new windows to centrally located stairway,
existing window bay cladding replaced, new perimeter wall fronting the street,
and two ground floor rear outdoor amenity spaces shown on the approved plans
shall be completed prior to occupation of the first flat hereby approved.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to
comply with policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies
DM, D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

12. Refuse and recycling — implementation

13. Sustainable design and construction.

Page 295



Page 296



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 297



This page is intentionally left blank



Brass
Architecture

Page 299



This page is intentionally left blank



<
i | e | e ez

Brass
Architecture | =

Page 301



This page is intentionally left blank



\ 8410

=1

Page 303



This page is intentionally left blank



[ | - B

A
i | e | e e

Page 305



This page is intentionally left blank



-------------------------- T e v
|||l| II|||||||||||||||| \\ —
. \Ill JUUU 7:LJ

T 1 1T 1T T T T T T 1
o > 10

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



1

T A “m
D 0 [

. —— — —— — — —
0 1 5 10

Page 309



This page is intentionally left blank



A
i | e | e e

Page 311



This page is intentionally left blank



CT L
C
I S

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

Page 313



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20t August 2020
Item No:

UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
19/P2120 06/06/2019

Address/Site: 64 — 76 Kingston Road, Wimbledon, SW19 1LA

(Ward) Abbey

Proposal: Restoration and extensions to the existing manor house
building (including basement extension) at No.76, and
redevelopment of the adjoining site at No.64 - 68 with the
erection of a new four storey residential block (plus
additional basement level) creating a total of 26 x self-
contained flats (7 x 3 bed, 4 x 2 bed 15 x 1 bed units)

Drawing Nos: KING-AB-EX-1, KING-A-PR-1.1D, 1.2D, 1.3C, 1.4C,
21D, 2.2C, 2.3C, 2.4D, 2.5D, 3.1E, 5D, KING-B-PR-1.1E,
1.2E, 1.3D, 2.1D, 2.2C, 2.3D, 4.2E, 4.3E, 4.4D, 4.5D,
KING-AB-PR-1E

Contact Officer: David Gardener (0208 545 3115)

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT Planning Permission Subject to Conditions and $S106 Agreement

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Heads of agreement: Permit free, Affordable housing, Carbon offset contribution
Is a screening opinion required: No

Is an Environmental Statement required: No

Has an Environmental Impact Assessment been submitted: No

Press notice: Yes

Site notice: Yes

Design Review Panel consulted: No

Number of neighbours consulted: 162

External consultations: Transport for London

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The application has been brought before the Planning Applications

Page 315



2.1

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

Committee due to the number and nature of objections received following public
consultation.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The application site (Nos. 64 — 76 Kingston Road) comprises a vacant two-
storey detached building with additional roof space accommodation located at
No.76 Kingston Road, which was formerly used as a Private members club (Sui
generis Use). Athough it’s not possible to confirm, it appears that the building
was also more recently used as a concert venue (Use Class D2). A two-storey
building with associated car parking is located at No. 64 - 68 Kingston Road,
which is currently used as a car show room (Sui Generis Use). The site is
located on the south side of Kingston Road at the junction with Brisbane
Avenue, Wimbledon. The surrounding area comprises a mixture of commercial
and residential uses with two-storey residential houses located immediately to
the south, east and south-west of the site. No. 78, which sits immediately to the
west is locally listed and is currently being converted into a church. A piece of
land at the rear of No. 76, which was formerly used as a bowling green is
designated Open Space.

The application site has good public transport links (PTAL rating of 5) being
sited in close proximity to South Wimbledon tube station and a number of bus
routes. The site is also located in a Controlled Parking Zone (Zone S1).

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The application proposes the redevelopment of 64 — 76 Kingston Road to
provide 26 self-contained residential units (15 x 1, 4 x 2 & 7 x 3 bed) involving
refurbishment and extensions to the existing building at No. 76 Kingston Road
(Building A) and demolition of the existing commercial building at 64 — 68
Kingston Road and replacement with a new four storey building which would sit
adjacent and abut the flank wall of the existing building at No.76 (Building B).
Private balconies are proposed for the majority of flats with a large outdoor
communal area proposed at the rear.

Note: The application has been amended since it was first submitted with
Building B reduced in height from five to four storeys above ground. The total
number of flats has also been reduced from 28 to 26. Further amendments have
been made to the external appearance of Buildings A and B. Proposed
materials for Building B includes yellow multi stock and red multi stock brick.

One off-street disabled parking space proposed which is accessed from
Brisbane Road. Secure cycle storage is provided at the rear of Building A and
in the basement of Building B. The permanent bin store would be located
between buildings A and B with a temporary bin store located to the side of
Building B fronting Brisbane Road (for collection from Brisbane Road).

PLANNING HISTORY

The following planning history is relevant:

Page 316



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

87/P1162 - Erection of a two storey side and rear extension to existing club
premises. Granted - 12/01/1988

88/P1106 - Erection of a single storey side and rear extension to club premises.
Granted - 09/09/1988

92/P0605 - Erection of a single storey rear extension to club premises. Granted
- 29/09/1992

In 2018, pre-application advice was sought for the redevelopment of 64 — 76
Kingston Road to create 35 self-contained residential units, involving
refurbishment and extensions to the existing building at No. 76 Kingston Road
and demolition of the existing commercial building at 64 — 68 Kingston Road
and replacement with a new six storey building. (LBM Ref: 18/P3868)

POLICY CONTEXT

The following policies from the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies
Maps (July 2014):

DM C1 (Community facilities), DM D1 (Urban Design and Public Realm), DM
D2 (Design considerations in all developments), DM D3 (Alterations and
extensions to existing buildings), DM D4 (Managing Heritage Assets), DM E3
(Protection of scattered employment sites), DM F2 (Sustainable Urban
Drainage Systems (SuDS) and Wastewater and Water Infrastructure), DM H2
(Housing Mix), DM H3 (Support for Affordable Housing), DM O1 (Open
Space), DM T1 (Support for sustainable transport and active travel), DM T2
(Transport impacts of development), DM T3 (Car parking and servicing
standards)

The relevant policies in the Adopted Core Strategy (July 2011) are:

CS.8 (Housing Choice), CS.9 (Housing Provision), CS.11 (Infrastructure),
CS.12 (Economic Development), CS.13 (Open Space, Nature Conservation,
Leisure and Culture), CS.14 (Design), CS.15 (Climate Change), CS.18 (Active
Transport), CS.19 (Public Transport), CS.20 (Parking, Servicing and Delivery)

The relevant policies in the London Plan (2016) are:

3.5 (Quality and Design of Housing Development), 3.16 (Protection and
Enhancement of Social Infrastructure), 5.2 (Minimising carbon dioxide
emissions), 5.3 (Sustainable Design and Construction), 5.9 (Overheating and
cooling), 6.3 (Assessing effects of development on transport capacity), 6.9
(Cycling), 6.13 (Parking), 7.2 (An inclusive environment), 7.4 (Local character),
7.6 (Architecture), 7.8 (Heritage assets and archaeology).

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019
The London Plan Intend to Publish Version (December 2019)

CONSULTATION

Page 317



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.41

6.5
6.51

The application was originally publicised by means of a site notice and
individual letters to occupiers of neighbouring properties. In response, 99
letters of objection and one letter of comment was received.

The letters of objection are on the following grounds:

- Excessive height of new building/out of character with local area/impact on
Manor Club building and surrounding terrace houses

- Loss of daylight/sunlight and privacy

- Increase traffic congestion/lack of parking

- Not sustainable

- Pressure on local infrastructure/too dense/too many flats proposed

- Poor design

- Visually intrusive

- Lack of consultation from developer with local community prior to
submission

- Set harmful precedent

- Does not provide the required 40% affordable housing

- Loss of existing social club

- Lack of greenery/private garden areas/new balconies not appropriate given
location fronting Kingston Road

- Poor housing mix and standard of accommodation

- Clarification required regarding location of refuse and recycling stores

Following the amendments to the proposed scheme, two further re-
consultations were carried out. In response, 4 further objections were received
on the following grounds:

- New block still out of character/too high

- Balconies would be inslightly due to occupants possessions being located
on them

- Density still too high/too many flats/overerdevelopment

- Proposal would be leasehond

- Loss of privacy

- Excessive pressure on infrastructure

John Innes Society

Raised concerns regarding the proposed new building as originally submitted
stating that it is completely out of keeping with its surroundings and with the
form, style, height, scale and character of the Manor Club and Merton Hall. The
balconies, which appear to be the main amenity space for most residents, would
be unsafe to use due to the level of air pollution, noise and disturbance from
traffic on Kingston Road. That would result in unsatisfactory living conditions for
the residents. It would also have the result, as it has at Plough Lane, of people
using their balconies for storage, leading to a very unsightly street scene. Also
object to the provision of on affordable housing.

Merton Green Party
Request that 40% of units are affordable to comply with planning policy.

Page 318



6.61

6.61

6.7

6.71

6.72

6.8

6.81

6.9

6.91

6.10

6.101

Future Merton - Urban Design Officer

Raised concerns regarding height and design of the new build element as
originally proposed. Concerns included the proposed 5 storey height above
ground level, stepping up of building height at corner of Kingston
Road/Brisbane Road given Brisbane Road is only a narrow side road, the twin
pitch roof feature fronting Kingston Road, large recessed balconies, lack of local
context, and no direct access to communal amenity area.

Council’'s Conservation Officer

The proposed front light wells are oversized. They should be reduced just to
give light into the front rooms. The oversized light wells will not serve a good
purpose. They will not form a useable outside amenity space unlike the rear
ones which could form a court yard garden. These may benefit by being slightly
enlarged. It is important for the integrity of the historic building that the chimneys
are maintained, rebuilt, even introduced to maintain the traditional roof line.
There are fine stained glass windows which should be preserved.

The proposed new build block (building B) needs to lose the top floor. The
current proposal is too high in the context of the adjacent buildings and would
overshadow them. This is in reference to the heritage assets; local listed
building and the Manor Club. It would reduce their significance. This is also in
reference to the Edwardian terraces at the rear and late Victorian terraces
across the road. The design of the building needs to be simplified. The gable
is not working and it would be better if it was removed. It would be better from
the street scene angle if the two building were independent of each other. The
single storey connecting wing should be removed or reduced so the two building
are separated.

Future Merton - Transport Planning

No objections regarding proposed impact on traffic and parking. The proposed
cycle parking and bin storage arrangement are also considered to be
acceptable. Recommends signing of S106 agreement requiring the residential
units are parking permit free, provided with a 3 year car club membership.
Conditions regarding submission of demolition and constructions logistics plan,
and service management plan are also advised.

Future Merton - Highways

No objection subject to appropriate conditions.

Future Merton — Flood Risk Officer

If seasonal fluctuations of groundwater does occur in this location perched
groundwater may exist), the lower parts of the proposed basement level may
sit within the water table and furthermore, dewatering maybe required during

Page 319



6.102

6.103

6.104

6.11

6.111

6.12

6.121

6.13

6.131

6.14

6.141

6.15

6.151

71

construction and appropriate waterproofing of the structure will be needed and
measures must be considered to prevent uplift.

Prior to construction, groundwater monitoring must be undertaken to take into
account fluctuations in groundwater levels due to seasonal variation.

The submitted GeoSmart Information Ltd Sustainable urban Drainage
Strategy(dated 31.05.19, reference 71518R1) states that the proposed solution
comprises of rainwater harvesting butts and lines permeable paving.
Hydrograph storage calculations were carried out for a 1 in 100 year storm
event plus 40% climate change allowance, and these show that a storage
volume of 51.9 m? is required and the proposal would be able to provide a total
of 53.8m3. This is compliant with the London Plan 5.13 and Merton’s policy DM
F2 and DM D2.

It is recommended that consideration of installation of non-return valves and a
FLIP device is installed on the foul drainage to prevent flooding and back up
from the sewer network.

Future Merton — Structural Engineer

The submitted CMS demonstrates that the proposed basement can be built
safely without affecting the surrounding natural and built environment.

Environmental Health Officer

No objection subject to appropriate conditions.

Future Merton — Climate Change

Confirms that the proposed energy approach to the development is policy
compliant and recommends that Merton’s Standard Sustainable Design and
Construction (New Build Residential - Major) Pre-Occupation Condition and
District Heating Condition are applied to the development.

Metropolitan Police

Many of the principles of Secured by Design appear to have been considered
in the design and recommend conditions if the LPA wish to approve the
application.

Transport for London (TFL)

No comments received.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of Development

Page 320



7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.2

Policies 3.16 of the London Plan 2016 and CS.11 of the Core Planning Strategy
2011 resists the loss of community facilities in areas with identified need. Policy
3.16 states that proposals which would result in a loss of social infrastructure in
areas of defined need for that type of social infrastructure without realistic
proposals for re-provision should be resisted. The suitability of redundant social
infrastructure premises for other forms of social infrastructure for other forms of
social infrastructure for which there is a defined need in the locality should be
assessed before alternative developments are considered. This is supported by
Policy DM C1 of the Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps 2014 which
states that any redevelopment proposal resulting in a net loss of existing
community facilities will need to demonstrate that the loss would not create, or
add to, a shortfall in provision for the specific community use; and that there is
no viable demand for any other community uses on the site.

The applicant has submitted a Marketing Report stating that the building was
used as a Private Members Club (Sui Generis Use) until 2012 and the building
has remained vacant since. The Council however understands that the site was
also used as a live music venue up until March 2016, with an approximate
capacity of 250 (Class D2 use), although it is unclear how frequently it was used
in this capacity.

It is considered that the proposed change of use is acceptable in this instance
because the previous community value of the building was somewhat limited
because it was restricted to private members before very briefly being used
intermittently as a concert venue. The applicant has stated that they did contact
a number of local community groups in March 2019 but other than one site visit
from a local nursery no offers were made. It is considered that the building has
not been in permanent use since 2012 and that it requires significant works to
upgrade and make the space commercially viable for any use. A change of use
to residential which would bring a vacant building that is of an age that requires
re-furbishment back into use, whilst also involve restoring some of the buildings
original features is therefore considered acceptable in this instance.

It is intended through Policy DM E3 (Protection of scattered employment sites)
of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July 2014) to protect
other uses located on scattered employment sites such as sui generis uses
where appropriate. The proposal would result in the change of use of No. 64 —
68 from a Car Showroom (Sui Generis Use) to residential use (Use Class C3).
It is considered that this is acceptable in this instance given the current sui
generis use is a low intensity commercial use which means there is only a small
number of employees employed on the site.

It is also considered the loss of the car showroom use and private members
club/concert venue use would be outweighed by the benefit of providing 26
residential flats (which include on-site Affordable Housing) which would help
contribute to the council’s housing provision in the Borough.

Design, impact on streetscene and wider area

Page 321



7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

Policy CS.14 of the Core Planning strategy promotes high quality sustainable
design that improves Merton’s overall design standard. Policy DM D2 of the
Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July 2014) states that
proposals for development will be expected to relate positively and
appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale, density, proportions, height, materials
and massing of surrounding buildings.

Following advice from Council Planning Officers, the applicant has made
significant alterations to the scheme since its original submission. The new build
block (building B) has been reduced in height from 5 to 4 storeys above ground
level. The buildings design has been simplified with the removal of the twin pitch
element fronting Kingston Road and large recessed balconies. The building
would also no longer step up to the corner of Brisbane Road on the building’s
Kingston Road elevation, and facing materials including detailing have been
amended. With regards to building A, original cornice detailing over the
entrance will be restored.

The proposed 4 storey building height of the new block is not considered to be
excessive and is proportionate to surrounding buildings along Kinston Road
and Brisbane Road. It should be noted that flatted blocks of similar heights have
been built in the surrounding area (such as 121 Kingston Road). The design
has been simplified with the building stepping up from the two-storey terraces
to four storeys on its Brisbane Road elevation at the corner of Kingston Road.
The top floor is set back with the use of different facing materials to further
reduce the building’s bulk and massing when viewed from both adjacent streets.
Balconies are also fully recessed and the use of yellow multi stock and red
mixture stock brick with a 45 degree pattern creates more visual interest whilst
incorporating some local context to the buildings elevations. All of the ground
floor flats fronting Kinston Road would have their own front doors which is
desired. It is considered that the proposed amended scheme to building B are
acceptable and would provide an appropriate building to the Kingston Road and
Brisbane Road streetscenes.

The proposed extensions to building A are not excessive in terms of their size
and are located at the rear of the building mirroring the profile of the existing
building above ground floor level, with matching materials, which means this
element will have very limited impact when viewed from the street. The
proposed front lightwells have also been reduced in size, which means they will
have only a very limited impact when viewed from the street. Original features
such as the stained glass windows on the side elevation will be retained and
some original features such as the cornices over the front entrance will be
restored. The extensions at the rear would also be of a suitable scale and
design that would not harm the setting of the adjacent locally listed building.
Further, the context with the locally listed building is such that the extensions
would be viewed adjacent to the new modern extension under construction on
the adjacent locally listed building, and thereby separated from the original
building. Overall, it is considered that the proposal accords with all relevant
design policies and the extensions to the building would be appropriate and
would maintain the buildings character. The extensions to the existing building
(Block A) are therefore considered to be acceptable.

Page 322



7.3

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.4

7.41

Residential Amenity

Policy DM D2 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July
2014) states that proposals for development will be required to ensure provision
of appropriate levels of sunlight and daylight, quality of living conditions,
amenity space and privacy, to both proposed and adjoining buildings and
gardens. Development should also protect new and existing development from
visual intrusion.

The rear elevations of properties located along Brisbane Road face the eastern
side boundary of the proposed communal area with the rear elevation of the
new build block facing the north facing flank wall and side boundary of No.1
Brisbane Road. The recently refurbished and extended Merton Hall (No.78
Kingston Road), which is occupied by a church is located to the west of the
Manor Club Building, which is being extended.

The bulk of the proposed new build block B would face the north facing flank
wall of No.1 Brisbane Road, which does not feature any windows. Part of the
new building block would extend beyond the rear wall of this property, however
it is considered that given the proposed set backs on the upper floors (2" and
31 floor levels), it would not be visually intrusive or overbearing when viewed
from No.1. It should also be noted that the building is located to the north of
No.1 which means any impact on daylight/sunlight will also be acceptable. It
should be noted that those windows and winter gardens in the rear elevation,
which could potentially overlook the rear garden of No.1 would either feature
screens, be obscure glazed or positioned so that this is not possible. All other
neighbouring residential properties are positioned further away and as such no
material harm would be caused by the proposal. The large outdoor communal
space would be to the rear and would be laid to lawn and would adjoin other
surrounding residential properties garden spaces, which is a common and
acceptable relationship. Overall, it is considered that the proposed development
would have an acceptable impact on residential amenity.

Standard of Accommodation

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016 and the Department for Communities and
Local Government ‘Technical housing standards — nationally described space
standard’ set out a minimum gross internal area standard for new homes. This
provides the most up to date and appropriate minimum space standards for
Merton. In addition, adopted policy CS.14 of the Core Strategy and DM D2 of
the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July 2014) encourages
well designed housing in the borough by ensuring that all residential
development complies with the most appropriate minimum space standards
and provides functional internal spaces that are fit for purpose. New residential
development should safeguard the amenities of occupiers by providing
appropriate levels of sunlight & daylight and privacy for occupiers of adjacent
properties and for future occupiers of proposed dwellings. The living conditions
of existing and future residents should not be diminished by increased noise or
disturbance.

Page 323



7.42

7.5

7.51

7.92

7.6

7.61

All the proposed flats would comply with minimum space standards. It should
also be noted that each flat is at least double aspect with habitable rooms
providing good outlook, light and circulation, and as such it is considered the
proposal would provide a satisfactory standard of accommodation. All the flats
in the new build block would feature balconies or terraces which comply with
minimum space standards. With regards to the extended building A, five of the
flats do not provide private amenity space (two basement/ground floor duplex
flats, one first floor flat and two second floor flats). This however is not
considered to warrant a refusal of the application given the constraints of the
existing building floorplate. It should also be noted that there is a large
communal amenity area (653sgm), including a 110sgm child play area,
provided at the rear which occupants of these flats can use. Overall, it is
considered that the proposal would comply with policy 3.5 of the London Plan
(March 2016), CS.14 of the Core Planning Strategy (July 2011) and DM D2 of
the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps (July 2014) in terms of
standard of accommodation.

Housing Mix

Policy DM H2 of the Adopted Merton Sites and Policies Plan and Policies Maps
(July 2014) states that residential proposals will be considered favourably
where they contribute to meeting the needs of different households such as
families with children, single person households and older people by providing
a mix of swelling sizes, taking account of the borough level indicative
proportions concerning housing mix. Therefore in assessing development
proposals the council will take account of Merton’s Housing Strategy (2011-
2015) borough level indicative proportions which are set out as follows:

Number of bedrooms Percentage of units
One 33%
Two 32%
Three + 35%

It is considered that the proposal provides an acceptable mix of properties with
15 one bedroom units (58%), 4 two bedroom units (15%) and 7, three bedroom
units (27%). It is noted that there is a disproportionate number of one bedroom
units however, this is generally at the expense of more 2 bedroom units rather
than larger family sized units which make up 27% of the proposed units.
Although the number of 3 bedroom units is below the recommended threshold
it is considered that this acceptable given it is only marginal.

Parking and Traffic

Policy 6.1 of the London Plan (2016) supports development which generates
high levels of trips at locations with high levels of public transport accessibility
and improves the capacity and accessibility of public transport, walking and
cycling. At a local level Policy CS.18 promotes active transport and encourages
design that provides attractive, safe, covered cycle storage, cycle parking and

Page 324



7.62

7.63

7.64

7.65

7.71

7.71

7.72

other facilities (such as showers, bike cages and lockers). Policy CS.20 of the
Core Planning Strategy states that the Council will require developers to
demonstrate that their development will not adversely affect pedestrian and
cycle movements, safety, the convenience of local residents or the quality of
bus movement and/or facilities; on-street parking and traffic management.
Developments should also incorporate adequate facilities for servicing to
ensure loading and unloading activities do not have an adverse impact on the
public highway.

Kingston Road is a main route. The application site has a PTAL rating of 5,
which means that it has very good access to public transport services. There is
a bus stop located outside the application site and South Wimbledon Tube
station is located a short walking distance away.

One off-street disabled parking space is proposed and this complies with
London Plan Policy 6.13 which states that all developments in areas of good
public transport accessibility in all parts of London should aim for significantly
less than 1 space per unit, and adequate parking spaces for disabled people
must be provided preferably on-site. Given the site is within a Controlled
Parking Zone (S1) and has a PTAL rating of 5 the development would be
subject to a S106 ‘permit free’ Agreement. Policy CS.20 of the Core Planning
Strategy states that the Council will support permit free developments in areas
within CPZ’s benefiting from good access to public transport (PTAL 4-6).

A total of 56 secure cycle spaces would be provided with 20 located to the rear
of Building A and 36 spaces provided in the basement of Building B, which can
be accessed using a bicycle ramp. This exceeds the 37 (17 for Building A and
20 for Building B) spaces required by London Plan Policy 6.9 (1 space per
studio/1 bedroom unit and 2 spaces per all other dwellings).

Refuse is to be stored between buildings A and B with refuse collection
proposed to be undertaken from a temporary bin collection area on Brisbane
Road which is considered acceptable. During the assessment of the
application, the Council’'s Transport Planner initially raised objection with
collection of refuse/recycling off Kingston Road as the refuse lorry would have
to stop in the Bus Stop. Therefore the solution was to provide a temporary bin
store for collection day only adjacent to the east elevation of building B so that
collection can take place from Brisbane Road. This was found to be acceptable
by the Council’s Transport Planner.

Sustainability

The submitted energy report indicates that the proposed development has been
designed to achieve a 35% improvement in CO2 emissions on Part L 2013 on
site, in accordance with the policy requirements of Merton’s Core Planning
Strategy Policy CS15 (2011) and Policy 5.2 of the London Plan.

As the proposal is for a major residential development, a S.106 agreement for

the carbon offset cash in lieu contribution will need to be finalised prior to
planning approval to achieve zero carbon compliance, in accordance with

Page 325



7.8

7.81

7.82

7.9

7.91

7.92

8.1

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan. The calculated carbon offset payment for the
development is £16,336. This will be secured by S.106 and paid upon
commencement of the scheme. The Council’'s Climate Change Officer has
reviewed the submitted details and finds the energy strategy for the proposal to
be acceptable.

Flood Risk

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 wherein principle residential development and
basement construction is acceptable, having regard to national and local
planning policy.

The submitted GeoSmart Information Ltd Sustainable urban Drainage Strategy
(dated 31.05.19, reference 71518R1) outlines a solution comprising of
rainwater harvesting butts and lines permeable paving. Hydrograph storage
calculations were carried out for a 1 in 100 year storm event plus 40% climate
change allowance, and these show that a storage volume of 51.9 m?is required
and the proposal would be able to provide a total of 53.8m?3. This is compliant
with the London Plan 5.13 and Merton’s policy DM F2 and DM D2. It is
recommended that consideration of installation of non-return valves and a FLIP
device is installed on the foul drainage to prevent flooding and back up from the
sewer network. Subject to conditions, the Council’s Flood Risk officer raises no
objection to the proposal. There are therefore no flood risk or drainage concerns
with the proposal, subject to conditions.

Affordable Housing

Planning policy CS 8 (Housing Choice) of Merton’s Core Planning Strategy
states that development proposals of 10 units or more require an on-site
affordable housing target of 40% (60% social rented and 40% intermediate). In
seeking affordable housing provision, the Council will have regard to site
characteristics such as site size, its suitability and economics of provision such
as financial viability issues and other planning contributions.

A total of 7 affordable units (5 x 1 bed & 2 x 2 bed) are proposed in block B
which equates to 27% of the total number of units and all of the units would be
intermediate housing units with no social rent proposed. This falls short of the
40% affordable housing target with a 60/40 split between social
rented/intermediate sought by policy CS.8 of the Core Planning Strategy. The
applicant has submitted an Affordable Housing Viability Appraisal, which the
Council has had independently assessed by viability consultants, who have
concluded that it is viable to provide the 7 shared ownership units only in this
instance. It is further recommended to apply the early and late stage reviews to
be built into the S106 Agreement in order to ensure the maximum amount of
Affordable Housing is secured for the development.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The application does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly, there are no requirements in terms of EIA submission.

Page 326



9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.51

10.6

10.61

11.

11.1

LOCAL FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The proposal would result in a net gain in gross floor space and as such will be
liable to pay a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The funds will be spent on
the Crossrail project, with the remainder spent on strategic infrastructure and
neighbourhood projects.

SECTION 106 LEGAL AGREEMENT

Permit Free

The development is to be ‘Permit Free’ in line with policy CS.20 of the Core
Planning Strategy, which seek to reduce reliance on private motor vehicles in
locations with good access to public transport facilities.

Carbon Offset Contribution

As the proposal is for a major residential development, a S.106 agreement for
the carbon offset cash in lieu contribution will need to be finalised prior to
planning approval to achieve zero carbon compliance, in accordance with
Policy 5.2 of the London Plan. The calculated carbon offset payment for the
development is £16,336.

Affordable Housing

A total of 7 affordable units (5 x 1 bed & 2 x 2 bed) are proposed in block B
which equates to 27% of the total number of units and all of the units would be
intermediate housing units with no social rent proposed. These are to be
secured within the S106 Agreement, along with early and late stage review
mechanisms.

Car Club Membership

Free car club membership will be funded by the developer for a period of 3
years and secured by a S106. Policy DM T3 states that car club schemes
facilitate lower levels of on-site parking provision thereby allowing developers
to achieve a higher level of development on-site.

CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed change of use of Nos. 64 — 68 and
redevelopment of No 76 to residential use is acceptable as it would bring both
a vacant building back into use and provide 26 new residential dwellings, whilst
delivering a high quality design and layout which preserves the character and
appearance of Kingston Road and Brisbane Avenue. The proposed
development is also considered to have an acceptable impact on neighbouring
properties, traffic/parking and provides a satisfactory standard of
accommodation. Overall, it is considered that the proposal would comply with

Page 327



all relevant planning policies and as such planning permission should be
granted.

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the completion of a S106
agreement covering the following heads of terms:

1) Permit free

2) Provision of 7 affordable housing dwellings in block B (100% intermediate
housing units), including early and late stage reviews.

3) Zero carbon cash in lieu financial contribution (£16,336)
4) Free Car club membership for each residential unit for a period of 3 years

5) Paying the Council’s legal and professional costs in drafting, completing and
monitoring the legal agreement.

And subject to the following conditions:

1.

2.

A.1 (Commencement of Development)

A.7 (Approved plans)

B.1 (External Materials to be Approved)

B.4 (Details of surface treatment)

B.5 (Details of Walls/Fences)

C.7 (Refuse and Recycling (Implementation))
C.8 (No use of flat roof)

D.11 (Construction Times)

No works will commence on site until the below documents have been
submitted and agreed by the local planning authority:

a) Detailed Construction Method Statement produced by the respective
Contractors responsible for the underpinning, piling, excavation and
construction of the permanent retaining wall. This shall be reviewed and
agreed by the Structural Engineer designing the basement.

b) Underpinning and piling sequence drawing produced by the respective
appointed Contractor/s.

Page 328



c)

d)

10.

11.

12.

Detailed design calculations and structural drawings of the cantilevered
reinforced concrete underpinning retaining wall submitted by the respective
Consultant/Contractor responsible for the design works. The design has to be
undertaken in accordance with Eurocodes.

Detailed design calculations and structural drawings of the cantilevered piled
retaining wall and the permanent lining wall submitted by the respective
Consultant/Contractor responsible for the design works. The design has to be
undertaken in accordance with Eurocodes. We would recommend using full
height hydrostatic pressure and at-rest soil pressures for the design of all
retaining walls and a highway loading surcharge of 20 KN/m2 (due to
traversing of abnormal loads on Kingston Road) where applicable.

Movement monitoring report produced by specialist surveyors appointed to
install monitoring gauges to detect any movement of the property under
development, highway, and the affected neighbouring properties from start to
completion of the project works. The report should include the proposed
locations pf the horizontal and vertical movement monitoring, frequency of
monitoring, trigger levels, and the contingency measures for different trigger
alarms.

The disabled parking space shown on the approved plan KING-B-PR-1.2E shall
be provided and demarcated as a disabled parking space before first
occupation of the block B and shall be retained for disabled parking purposes
for occupiers and users of the development and for no other purpose.

Reason: To ensure suitable access for persons with disabilities and to comply
with the following development plan policies for Merton: Policy CS.8 of the Core
Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM D2 of the Site and Policies Plan 2014.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the cycle parking,
washing and locker facilities shown on the approved plans have been provided
and made available for use. These facilities shall be retained for the occupants
of and visitors to the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities to promote sustainable
modes of transport and to comply with Policy CS18 (Active Transport) of the
Adopted Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011

Development shall not commence until a Delivery and Servicing Plan (the Plan)
has been submitted in writing for approval to the Local Planning Authority. The
Plan shall include details of loading and unloading arrangements. The plan shall
also include any necessary works to the highway to be carried out prior to
occupation of the extended building. The approved measures shall be
maintained, in accordance with the Plan, for the duration of the use, unless the
prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority is first obtained.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities of
the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan

Page 329



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

policies for Merton: policies 6.3 and 6.14 of the London Plan 2015, policy CS20
of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policies DM T2, T3 and T5 of
Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a
Construction Logistics Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the safety of pedestrians and vehicles and the amenities
of the surrounding area and to comply with the following Development Plan
policies for Merton: policies 6.3 and 6.14 of the London Plan 2015, policy CS20
of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011 and policy DM T2 of Merton's Sites
and Policies Plan 2014.

No external windows and doors shall be installed until detailed drawings at 1:20
scale of all external windows and doors, including materials, set back within the
opening, finishes and method of opening have been submitted to and approved
by the local planning authority. Only the approved details shall be used in the
development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to
comply with the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 7.6 of
the London Plan 2015, policy CS14 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011
and policies DM D2 and D3 of Merton's Sites and Policies Plan 2014.

The development hereby permitted shall incorporate security measures to
minimise the risk of crime and to meet the specific security needs of the
development in accordance with the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design. Details of these measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority prior to commencement of the development and
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to
occupation.

Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by Design
to improve community safety and crime prevention in accordance with Policy
14 (22.17) of Merton Core Strategy: Design, and Strategic Objectives 2 (b) and
5 (f); and Policy 7.3 Designing out Crime of the London Plan.

Prior to occupation a Secured by Design final certificate shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by Design
to improve community safety and crime prevention in accordance with Policy
14 (22.17) of Morton Core Strategy: Design, and Strategic Objectives 2 (b) and
5 (f); and Policy 7.3 Designing out Crime of the London Plan.

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until evidence
has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority confirming that the
development has achieved CO2 reductions in accordance with those outlined
in the Energy and Sustainability Statement (dated 30 July 2020), and

Page 330



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

wholesome water consumption rates of no greater than 105 litres per person
per day.

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of
sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the
following Development Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.2 of the London Plan
2016 and Policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

No development shall commence until the applicant submits to, and has
secured written approval from, the Local Planning Authority evidence
demonstrating that the development has been designed to enable connection
of the site to an existing or future district heating network, in accordance with
the Technical Standards of the London Heat Network Manual (2014).

Reason: To demonstrate that the site heat network has been designed to link
all building uses on site (domestic and non-domestic), and to demonstrate that
sufficient space has been allocated in the plant room for future connection to
wider district heating, in accordance with London Plan policies 5.5 and 5.6.

H3 (Redundant Crossovers)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a
detailed scheme for the provision of surface and foul water drainage has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
drainage scheme shall include detailed drainage layout construction drawings
and dispose of surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system
(SuDS) at a restricted runoff rate (no more than 2I/s), in accordance with
drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan Policy (5.12, 5.13 and
SPG) and the advice contained within the National SuDS Standards.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk
does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2 and
the London Plan policy 5.13.

Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall submit a
detailed proposal on how drainage and groundwater will be managed and
mitigated during construction and post construction (permanent phase), for
example through the implementation of passive drainage measures around the
basement structure.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users, and ensure surface water and foul flood risk
does not increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s policies CS16, DMF2 and
the London Plan policy 5.13.

Informative: No surface water runoff should discharge onto the public highway
including the public footway or highway. When it is proposed to connect to a
public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final
manhole nearest the boundary. Where the developer proposes to discharge

Page 331



to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will
be required (contact no. 0845 850 2777).

No waste material, including concrete, mortar, grout, plaster, fats, oils and
chemicals shall be washed down on the highway or disposed of into the
highway drainage system

Page 332



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 333



This page is intentionally left blank



Education
Facility

Education
Facﬂhy

‘ Fire

[ | statiog,
Az3s[RiNg ,uEiIl)

/_ Peter Pendleton & Associates REVISION:
= i 97 Lower Marsh
s A London SE1 TAB

www.pendleton-assoc.com G4-74 KIr

Page 335



This page is intentionally left blank



N st o ke
N BT

\
N —

|

\,
AP SRR —

Site

1) a0

‘engnoaring pupose

Day of collection point refuse
waiting area. Temporary area only

LT —

+

No. | Description | Date
PEL R

64-76 KINGSTON RD

SW19 1LA
+

Proposed Block Plan (A1)

[E— KING
[P oue 26-06-2020
e p— "

Checked by JP

KING-AB-PR-1E

S @AT

1:200

Page 337




This page is intentionally left blank



64-76 KINGSTON RD
SW19 1LA

BN

3D MODELS
[— KING
(5) 3D View 10 voe 26-06-2020
- fid H
— i Checked JP
(a)3DViews N

KING-AB-PR-2D g

soega UNT)

Page 339



This page is intentionally left blank



@] 3D View 1

(1) FRONT (CONTEXT)
(170 R

1

é \ﬁh m

z
g

Description | Date

64-76 KINGSTON RD
SW19 1LA

Proposed Front Context
Elevation & 3D view
(Building B) (A1)

[— KING
Date 26-06-2020
oty JH
Checked by JP
KING-B-PR-4.1E
s @t 1100

Page 341

20105246



This page is intentionally left blank



\2\‘ 3D Section

/1", Short section
1) 0

No. | Description | Date

ﬂﬂﬁ =T N
i o “NT ' | ] ‘ H

ﬂ =] |—| —
JNH ﬂ 64-76 KINGSTON RD
| =] - = SW19 1L/
P Sections (A1)
S ) il - | Py

[ KING
‘ Date 26-06-2020
ooty JH
‘Checked by JP

(a) I‘?ezg set back section (showing restricted balc. views) \3\‘ I;o‘rg section KING-B-PR-6E
scae @ 1:100

Page 343




This page is intentionally left blank



SWREB | DZEEDILL

[T ev@aeas | ar Aq paamy - -
HI g umeig & WL 6LMS Woo a0sse-unjajpuad mma
20 ‘peoy uoisbury ¢/-#9 ‘qnjd Jouepy
L R OZ0OZ-ZO-LL ]
QL L-"d-Y-ONIM R Sk gy, |38 uopuoT

ysiepy JomMoT L6

(v Buippng) ued Jooy. punoisy pasodolg sue|d pasodoig "NOISIAZY RPN A 0RPEd d d
0013 TIE Jd¥HE
e e e e e
" H L ] z I o
= ' —l_
g —
(uouy) o <. Ay . &
el Auswy % wn i A= B3 z
| s .23 3o = — E
g Auoojeg W i} m m m m = 2 M‘
Mg yeg z s:34%1¢ &
Wwzz|  agod e B gss
gl pog < 5Fii: % 3
sl pog L DEEED - . =
0074 ONNO¥9d 2 5 =)
ged9 xa8idnp ¥ 1eid E . =
=t =
B Auoojeg
W6 Aggo
Em pag
WL weg S EL Aggon =
AU gz al AU ueg 8s
HOOd ANNOXHD-d M2 as Elhrn
8£49 xsjdnp £ 1814 M EL pag PEUI R = 1
U ZE aMi .
HOOT4d ANNOYS-d . v
ME as ged9 xaidng | 1e1d4 - | 1
Ayl Aggol ie [ ©
T fuooeg =] | A
My yeg wgl  Aggon EE _ - o)
g peg Mg fagol 3 gt - 7 e = £ c
gL peg g Aago 2 = H . E =z
AUEL pag W 72 Aqgo 5 | = o
HOOTd ANNOYHD-d HOOTd ANNOYS-d =l = Bt | M
gaeds xaidnp zZ 1214 SE3UE [BUnLUWoD i @z w | ~
T e g
Baly | wooy Baly | Wooy - 2 = o T
~-gNPBaYoS WooY "3INPBYSS WooY h L] 8.2 | A8

“ssodind Buusawbus |

180 AUE 10 SORENOIED |EINDNYS 1o} peSN 34 10U PRoYS
sueyd 25| Y UD PAYISYD 3G PROYS SUSURAINSESLL [y
s ssaneud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

®

Page 345



This page is intentionally left blank



SWREB | DZEEDILL

00k 1 EvEeeag | dr Aq payaayg
Hr g umeig

Qz’ L-dd-Y-ONIM s sl
T saquinys 1oakosg

(v Buipyng) J0o|4 15| pasodoig

‘peoy uosBury #/-¢0 ‘gnjD Jouepy

YL 6LMS Woo a0sse-unjajpuad mma

8. |35 uopuoT —
ysiepy JamoT L6 ~
sueyd pasodag ‘NOISINGY S3IB0SSY g UOIS|PUad Ja3tad Z

AU fuooeg
Al G Auooeg
A ZL fggon
U9 uleg
WU B2 axi
H0O017d 1SHId-d
g 45
U EL pag
W El pag
HY3IY 0014 151-d
gedy £ 1814
Aug Auooeg
il as
g Aggo
AU uleg
M ZL pag
W 92 axi
3y 40014 ¥51-d
qidz 91eld
Pl as
W 0l Aggon
W L2 a1
A9 yeg
] pag
U 91 pag
H00O7d 1SHI3-d
gzdy G1Eld
ealy [ swen
Jooy 18214 (WIN) 3Inpayds wooy

“asod;nd Buusawbua

=10 Aue Jo swogegnoje:

“Ajea ssascud Buued sa; u asn o) ame sBumep asey )

D0L-4 TS DD

0 00L:1L \\_‘J
30014 1S¥Id-d

nys paxi4

paulelal
SMOpUIM
Bunsig

aziy 21e14 [
iz e [
aziy g e [
seaE _m_.__._EEnU_H_

H39INNN Lv14

Page 347



This page is intentionally left blank



m oI £v@aEas | dr fq payaayy

m. o e Wil 6LMS woooosse-uoja|puad mmm

g - ‘peoy uoisbury /-9 ‘qnio Jouepy

= L-d Y- DZ0Z-E0-E0 =g ki

g el Hd BN e o kg gv. 135 uopuo ~

uerapuag =15 /Qm\\ﬁ
uonoas jaaybiyuoneaa)s Juol4 pasodolg sueid pasodoig OIS b an b LI

TREm— T 1 meq sbew gpg| “Be swy u uod pegssbins
||||| | =EEEssy T = E ey je uopsod Jo SIEUSIEL SMYDIE BjgE|IEAE Uodn
paseq (uoneaydas joexa ue jou) uonewnoidde
SjEUDSES) B 8)ES1D o) Juswasnbey wodn peseq
pue (uogednaoo o) Joud) peuswsidw) VoIPUCS
pa|iElSp E 0} 128(gns YoM, ‘GDBLD ‘Suawse
Wiow sucys uonoeloud xoq jERUSD SiEISU-BY

AR

D013 TS THHED
e e e e
130 AUE IO SIEOHENDET [EINENGS 10} PRS0 34 10U FRoYS
sumpd 359y | IUS UD PIYISYD 3G PINOYS SIUAUSINSESW [y J g
e ssa20ud Buiwwied sus u) 95n 1o) ase sBumesp a5y |

Page 349




This page is intentionally left blank



ZE | 1°9 | DI A0

LU ey@9eo5 | dr ¥ P
W T umeig

" OZ0Z-Z0-E0 9

¥ L-dd-Y-DNIM ]
W-ENIH saquinu 1aslaig

§ uonaag pasodolg

Y1l 6LMS
‘peoy uosBury #-¢0 ‘gnjD Jouepy

sue|d pasodoig

‘NOISIASY

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

v/ 13§ uopuo’
ysiepy JamoT /G
S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad

\ia

i

“asod;nd Buusawbua
180 AUE 10 SLORENIJED [EINGINAS 10} PSSN 34 10U PNoYS

sumd 353y ] Y UD PSYISYD 3G PO

“Ajea ssascud Buued sa; u asn o) ame sBumep asey )

SWRIANSTW |y

(119m 11e38)6 UOI}IS 4

011 TS JHVED

Page 351



This page is intentionally left blank



VEBEB L DEEEDILL

: — prp=—

il svEes HMHU DHH.HM VL 6LMS woo oosse-uoiaipuad: mmm

T = ‘peoy uoisbury #2-¢0 ‘gniy Jouep
QL Z-HdV-ONI e T T s —
ysiepy JamMoT L6 /Q\ﬁ\ i
RN s posoiig ‘NOISIATY ssjerossy g uojsipUag J21ad ( |\\ ¢ _
004 : 1 @
uoneas|3 apis (3se3
1011 THOS v
e Bt [ s ™ s ™= s = s~ |
2130 AR 10 OGBSI EININS 10} fEEN 25 10U PCYS n 5 ]
Sp— ISy 3 PIROYS I

s ssaneud Bunied s u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

Page 353



This page is intentionally left blank



¥ 1 191 DEEDFD

00k: L EvEREIE | dr g payasyg : :
Hr g ueeig . Y1k 6LMS woo oosse-uoiajpuad mmm
> ‘peOy LoISBURY b2 ‘gniD Jouep
- R OZ0Z-ZO-E0 =;qeq
DZ°2-"d-Y-DNIM e P o p——
ysiepy JaMoT L6
(uonoas avabiy) uonenaig () Jeay pasodoig sue|d pasodoig ‘NOISINTY S2)E0ssy g Uoja|puad Jlag
01 THIE T
[ ™ s ™ s ™ s~ s s |
" § O T T 1 ]
00L:1L L

Jeay

Y

PR e T P R T R

g0 AU 10 SLOMEINI{ES [RINONGS J0} PSS 3] J0U FIICYS
sueyd 25| “IYS UD PAYISYD 3G PROYS SUSURAINSESLL [y
e wxascud Bunimd sus u 2sn io} ase sBumep asay )

“asodmnd Buusawbes

Page 355



This page is intentionally left blank



S&1 191 DEE DD

0ok- 1 EvEREIE | dr g payasyg

Hr g umeig

rond g DZ0Z-E0-E0 =g
OE'2-Hd-V-DONIM e —

uonens[g 1sap pesodold

Y1l 6LMS

‘peoy uaisBury ¥2-49 ‘anio Jouey

sue|d pasodoig

‘NOISIAGY

EOU.UOMW@:EO«B_UEUH_.E;

gv4 13§ uopuo]
ysiepy 1amo L6
S3jEI00sSY | UCI|PUSd J8lad

00k - L
uoneAs|3 apis (3saM) ®

“ssodmd Busaubue
=10 AUE J0 SESYERISIES [EINIS 0} PRS0 59 10U PRICYS

sum|d 353y - 43343 3G Pnays

s ssaneud Bunied s u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

iy

Page 357



This page is intentionally left blank



EFREE | DZEEDILL

004 4 evB@areas | ar a paaeig : .
Hr A umzg § YL 6LMS Woo a0sse-unjajpuad mma
= ‘peoy uoisBury /-9 ‘qnio) Jouepy
kA 0Tzt B
Q¥ Z-"d-¥-ONIM e e I —— =
Ysuepy 1amo L6 ﬁ\\. .
(v Buiping) Jeay Jooj4 puooag pasodoig sueyd pasodoig ‘NOISIASY SJEPosEY § UoAPUa 1alad 7

00k -1 L

dVv3d 114 dNZ-d

AT ns
Mg Aggo
£\ G| USp.IED JBJUIN |
g MUSIOM
oI I
Hv3 14 ANZ-d

xa)dnp q1.dz 6 1814

M Z 1s
AU g Aggon
£\ G| uspueD) JBjuIM |
g MUSIOM |
W OE [
H¥3d 14 ANZ-d

xa)dnp q|dz @ 1el4

_ o m_._ Aqgo| W~ J00|} 15| JBAD PIOA : 00|} 1S | J3AD PIOM,
[ W 02| faqo] ___
Hv3 14 dNe-d
SEBJE [BUNWWDD

eany I BlEN xaydnp
ardzged [
xepdnp
adz greid [
azdy e [
SEAJE [EUNWIWOD D

14 puoaas (vIN) ainpayas wooy |

“asod;nd Buusawbua
st 10 sy (Tt Jo rosn o 10 v d39NNN Lv1d

SRy 3538 | “SE UG FEYISYT 95 FINGYS SSRINEESU [Ty
e wascud Bunimd sus u 2sn io) ase sBumep asay )

Page 359



This page is intentionally left blank



EFREE | DZEEDILL

Y1l 6LMS

‘peoy uosBury #/-¢0 ‘gnjD Jouepy

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

00k 1 cy@aeag | dr Aq payaayg
Hr g umeig

QS Z-dd-Y-ONIM s sl
[P— Saquny 1aekaig

(j2na) ds) uonepowoaay jooy pasodolg

v/ 13§ uopuo’ =%
ysiepy JamoT /G ? -
S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad \\

sue|d pasodoig ‘NOISIAGY

N 001 :1 @
e (¥v3¥ 14 @ye ®) YOO14 ANzZ-d

T ¥ 3

M 9 ng/Aqgo

M E Aggo M Wood 1B

M Woo! 18 Gl pag

M Pl pag Hy3H HOOT4 O¥e-d

M Bl a1 x8idnp q1.dz 6 1814
(dw34 74 g”e 3) 4004 aNZ-d
qidi 1 ieid

TR Woos 18pA

A 9 4s/kgqon]

A Aggoq U G pag

M Z 15 Hy3H HOOT4 O¥e-d

MG uieg xaidnp q1.dz 8 1814
M L pag
W PE @i

(4vy3y 14 gYe B) HOOT4 ANZd |

M 6Z] fqgoT|

qLdz o1 1eld (yv3Y 14 gue %) HOOTd aNZ-d

SESJE [BEUNWLIOD

ealy [ alweN Baly

[ ENEY

400y (VIN) 8|npauds wooy

400y (VIN) 8Inpauds wooy

“ssodmd Busaubue
180 AUE 10 SORENOIED |EINDNYS 1o} peSN 34 10U PRoYS
sumpd S5y | “IUS UD PIYISYD 3G PINOYS SIUAUSINSESW [y

s ssaneud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

W' | J& "SO|ED BAJE LWOOJ
“|A] Jool} 8Aoge w, @) no sueld joou

LICTRTRLE |
aidz ob e [T

xepdnp
audzgEd [

weydnp
qudz g3 [

SEGUE [BUNLILOT _H_

39NN Lv1d

Page 361



This page is intentionally left blank



BOTE01 DZEEDED

| ook:y EvEaEag

iq

Ag payaayg

— V1l 6LMS

L E-dd-¥-ONID

‘peoy uosBury #-¢0 ‘gnjD Jouepy

=g

saqunys jaakasg

(v Buippng) wawaseq pasodolg

sue|d pasodoig

‘NOISIASY

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

gv4 135 uopuoT]
ysiepy JamoT /G
S2)BID0SSY § UDla|puad Jalad

W9 as [ 5 T i T v D
Mz 1S
(amayBiy)
gl Auswy A 5
W6 faqo7 liamuB
rTE % Aol Aewy
ETTE aunsug Pl o a)nsugj
A0l “ueg i s
wg 1
Pl pag :
% ol peg i Pog
i} =l
ININ3SVEd sl E
HEd9 Xo/dnp € 1814 e _
Augl| ansphggon AL qgo m
AUE MUSIDM IN3IW3SVE-d Mm., .
AUE aynsu3 0 2| slops/Aumn ged9 ¥aidnQ | 1eld Ik
(omaybi) (iramayBI)) £
_MIE] Auge|  Auawy <
Aug faqoq [wgl| fagqon
bunt| wy ag| | se| woonueg]
62|  UUID) Burap IN3n3sved
42 psg By SESJE [BUNWIWOD
INIW3SYa-d AU g Buinr g
g£dg xaidnp 1el4 uy g S
ANIW3SYE-d LU J | wood Js1ely m
gEdS xa|dnp Z 1ejd INIW3SYE-d
ealy [ wooy
Trainpeyds Wooy
saly | wooy ealy | wooy

“'3INPaYoS Wooy

m “B|NpayYIs Wooy
s

S Vi o5 5 &
Z §f s 8 8
= E2.8.8. 2
< §af 3§ % 38
C OO0 E E O

‘Ssodnd Bulsswbus

aocud Bunued sy w @sn so) ase sBumesp asay )

[Ealt N EH]

LLILLLL

Jritchen Living dining

Ame nihg_[ Iighma n
3m

b

AIN3IN3SVE-d

@ 00}

Page 363



This page is intentionally left blank



FEREE L DEZEEDILL

[STE TyESEag | dr g payamy - -
HI g umeig & WL 6LMS WOoD D0sSsE-uola|puad: mamm
v—r ‘peoy uoisbury ¢2-+9 ‘gniD Jouep

G-Hd-y- DZOZ-Z0-L =g P R

QS-Hd-¥-ONA E e gv4 138 uopuo] -

ysuepy Jamo L6 /Q\%\
ue|g Jooy pasodoig sueyd pasodoig NOISINTY sajeossy @ Uoi|pUad 191ad ( L_....AN _

-} FIVOS Ml
" 5 ¥ 3

e |
“ssodnd Busauboe
130 AUE IO SIEOHENDET (BRGNS 0} PRS0 34 10U FRoYS
sum|d 353y - 43343 3G Pnays I

s ssaneud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

Page 365




This page is intentionally left blank



BFDE | | DETE BN

fiq payay g

0oL L cy@aeag | dr
Hr

g umeig
3171 -"d-8-ONIA oo s

(g Buipyng) wawsseg pasodoig

Y1k 6LMS 0d NOLSDNIM 94-79

‘NOISIAGY

wooroosse-uoje|puad mmm

gy 13§ uopuo L R
ysiepy 1amo L6 :
sSjeDssY § UDIS|PUS 4919d (4

2150 AUE 10 SEOYENIIEI [EIMANNS 10} peSN 25 10U PRCYS
sumyd asay ] 43R 3G PROYS v
-0 ssac0ud Buiuied s ui @sn o) ae sumesp asay )

HEdg xedna £ 114 [
gedp xadna z 14 [l

vnoo [T
|Npayas wooy

00L:L /7y
AIN3IN3SVE aN

S3MIg gt
14171 J31SISsY
HOWH TTOAD H3IL OML

Page 367



This page is intentionally left blank



EZE0ET | | DETE BB

ooL-4 cy@aeag | dr fiq payasnyg
Hr Tiq umzig

32 L-Hd-g9-9ONIM| cwzmoaz pr
SNIX aquinu 1aelasg

(g Buippng) punai pesodoig

Y1k 6LMS 0d NOLSDNIM 94-79 Wod"00sse-Uoia|puad MMM

gV 138 uopuo e
ysiepy JamoT /G : .
S3JRID0SSY § UDI3|pUad J3lad \

‘NOISIAGY

0011 WIS THd¥HD

L 11 4 3 L

00L: |
aouesjul ‘'gN

UONIB|IOD JOYE BI0IS
asnjal ulew o} paLinyal

aq 0} suig "Ajuo uoRosjoa
4o fep uo pasn aq oy

“Kuo ease asnyay Aetodwa) ———

o
g
a
&

anasqg

(dHoHmIELdz ¥ 114 [
BEds *Kna € L1 (]
By xedng 2 174 M

(4HOTHMIELZ | h\.«.._u_H_

\ES_H_

a|npayos wooy

sumd asay ) YISYD 3G PINOYS iy’

S0 AUR IO SEORENIIED [EINGINS 10} PSS 3G 10U PRoYS

“asod;nd Buusawbua —

s ssancud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumep a5y

[SHOOA a3®J07 IDILHON

W'} Su8alds paze|b ainasqy 2
SHO0Q a3M201 300D

. uives
L)
’
! M._. _"p.:...._.__..”_ H : ._...-,u
= b
- 18

SNIE OHN3 00k XL
JHNSOTINT NIE

s OO

mapuim [2a2| Yy § anasqo

USpIES) JBILIM

LD AN e e e

SHOO0A d3M207 300D

\

Page 369



This page is intentionally left blank



LTFFDL DIE BB

0ok- 1 eI | dr #iq payaayg
Hr g umeig

ac’ -"dd-g-ONI | =eaeee mar
TN saqunu jaekasg

(g Buipping) Joo|4 15| pasodoig

Y1k 6LMS 0d NOLSDNIM 94-79

‘NOISIAGY

woooosse-uoja|puad mmm

gy 135 uopuo R
Ysiepy Jamo LG ;
S3]EIN0SSY R uojajpuad 1319 \

130 AUE IO SIEOHENDET (BRGNS 0} PRS0 34 10U FRoYS
s sy - 43343 3G Pnays I
A0 ssa00ud Bunuied sy ur 3sn soy ase sHumesp asay |

Sldz8 Iv14 ]
Sldz L v ]
HZdE0 Lv14 [
gzde s 114 [

wwoo [

9|Npayos wooy

ol
UBQIES) JSILIAL

Ay

SR

00b:b [
100]4 }S| €GN

]
uspueg) JAJUIAY

Page 371



This page is intentionally left blank



FEFFDL DI 05T

(g Buiping) Jo0|4 pug pasodoig

‘NOISIAGY

00k: 1 eI | dr fig payaay g - >
HP g umeig YL GLMS 0 NOLSDNIM 94-¥9 Wod"00sse-Uoia|puad MMM
Al 2-dd-g-9ONIM cwzmoaz =g
NI saquinu aakasg

gy 13§ uopuo b i
ysiepy 1amo L6 iy
sajenossy g UDJa|pUSd J81ad \\

“ssodnd Busauboe
130 AUE IO SIEOHENDET (BRGNS 0} PRS0 34 10U FRoYS
sum|d 353y - 43343 3G Pnays I

e ssa20ud Bunied sus u) 95n 1o) ase sBumesp a5y |

aldzze [0
Hidz b v ]
aidzor 1vi4 [l
gidi 6 v [l

oo [T
a|Npayds Wooy

J
L
..

Alp

EH

00} -1 l
100j} pug "dN

Wwee

wg

Peg

g

Page 373



This page is intentionally left blank



L1 ev@aeas | ar Ta P

SEFFDL DI 0BT

Hr T umeig V1L 6LMS 0H NOLSONIM 9L-+9 wooraosse-uoja|puad mmm
02 ¢-Hd-8-ONIH[ o=z e e
E saquinu 1elasg gv4 135 uopuoT] —»
YSIB JamMoT LG . -
(g Buiping) Jooj4 pg pasodoig ‘NOISIASY S3)BID0SSY § UDla|puad Jalad \

001 -1 L

I} PAC "GN

Sidi 5t 1v14 [0
sial vl v [0
searel 1v4 [l

WINOD ||

3|Npayos Wooy

130 AUE IO SIEOHENDET (BRGNS 0} PRS0 34 10U FRoYS
s sy - 43343 3G Pnays I
e ssa20ud Bunied sus u) 95n 1o) ase sBumesp a5y |

Page 375




This page is intentionally left blank



LEFFDL DITE 0BT

00l

—

cy@aeag | dr

Hr

ag e-dd-g-ONIM| w0z

DN

(g uping) ue|g jooy pasodoig

Y1k 6LMS 0d NOLSDNIM 94-79

‘NOISIAGY

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

v/ 13§ uopuo’ i
ysiepy JamoT /G ? -
S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad \\

“asod;nd Buusawbua

180 AUE 10 SORENOIED |EINDNYS 1o} peSN 34 10U PRoYS
sueyd 25| Y UD PAYISYD 3G PROYS SUSURAINSESLL [y
s ssaneud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

00L: 1
ueid jooy 'dN @

Page 377



This page is intentionally left blank



BEFFD I DIE 0N

00Z - | cy@aeag | dr fiq payay g } i
HE Tiq umzig V1L 6LMS 0H NOLSONIM 9L-+9 woososse-uojajpuad mmm
alL e-dd-g9- 02029092 =g . —
ki il o i V. 135 uopuo] :
(g Buipyng) ) ysiepy JamaT /6 §
W19 SiNpayas 815 18| puis) g juwsg pasodold ‘NOISIATY S3JEID0SSY P Uo3|puad Jalad ( I\.\
00z - L €

IN3JN3ISVE aN

00z:L (Z
souenuly ‘'gN

W Ig'SP W OE'LE
gedS ¥2dng £ 1¥1d  9edS X9idng g 1v1d

wbspg | siejo} xeiding ¢ 1el4

wbsQy | siejo} xeiding z 1eld

T9HOTHM §idz F IV 14

2150 AUE 10 SEOYENIIEI [EIMANNS 10} peSN 25 10U PRCYS
sumyd asay ] 43R 3G PROYS v
-0 ssac0ud Bunuind s ui @sn o) ae sumesp asay)

Page 379




This page is intentionally left blank



BEFFDI DI 0BT

-1 Ey@eeag | dr Aq payasy
r T YL 6LMS 0Y NOLSONIM 9L-49 woo oosse-uoja|puad-mmm
02 E-"Hd-9-DNIH| =0z 2 AP
NN saquinu aakasg gv4 13§ uopuo -3
5o | — T
19 SINPaYRS 5215 1814 Jool4 Pig § PUZ 15| pasodoig " \
2021 TWIE INdvHE
| ]
® [ Fi [] T []
-1 /o 00z 00Z :
I} PAC "GN o s
I3 PUZ "9N 14 3S1 GN
A L9'BG MW EGLG
AU JGTLE
Bidz et Iv 14 Bide I Iv1d Bldz g 1vid
8idL 6 1v1d
W L 6L _sWBLS
24 §5°8¥ HEdS EF IVTS Hidek By L g 2 Ly 29 W LyZ9
Fidr vt IvE AW GRS
Tal vE 1V 13 B — Bde 9 IV G2dec 1V g
“asodmd Buuaawbua
150 AUE JO SOMENIME (EINDNGS 10§ PRSN 39 10U PI0YS
sumd asay) - 43543 3g PNOYs ¥
“Ajea ssa0cud Buuind sy u 2sn ja) ame shumeip asay |

Page 381



This page is intentionally left blank



EFFFDL DI 905

(g Buipyng) uonens3 1eay pasodoig

‘NOISIAGY

[T ev@aeas | ar Aq pay - -
Hr i umeig YL GLMS 0 NOLSDNIM 94-¥9 wooraosse-uojajpuad mmm
32 -Hd-g-9ONIM| cwzmoae B
B saquinu 1elasg gv4 135 uopuoT]

ysiepy JamoT /G
S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad

\(Za

“sodmd Bussubue
S0 AUR IO SEORENIIED [EINGINS 10} PSS 3G 10U PRoYS
SURd 353y | WS UD PAYIST 3G PINOYS SISUAINSESW (Y

s ssaneud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

0013 TG JHYED

e e e e

T 3

T [ [

0oL ‘L l

1s (peoy aueqsug) Buioey jse3 ypnog o) Buize)b painasqo yim smopuim uy Jouaixg

wgLAepunocg @ JyB o) susasos Kseaud Burzelf paunosgo

dv3d

wanog Bugey g’} 0} pRINIsqo
mopuism uapseB sayupy

WHd-ONIN

aas asea)d waned ja)ja) yougE JO SiIEjEp 104

Page 383



This page is intentionally left blank



BFFFD L DI 905

(g

Buiping -py aueqsug jse3) uoneas|3 apis pasodolg

‘NOISIAGY

01: 4 evEars | ar Aq payaay - -
Hr T umeig | VL 6LMS T NOLSONIM 94-+9 Wod"00sse-Uoia|puad MMM

3¢ v-Hd-g-ONIM[ == ea]
B saquinu jelasd gv4 135 uopuoT]
ysiepy JaMoT L6

S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad

“asodmd Buuaawbua

15 AT 10 SIS [EIANGS 10} PeSn 5 10U PRCYS
sueyd 25| Y UD PAYISYD 3G PROYS SUSURAINSESLL [y
e wascud Bunimd sus u 2sn io) ase sBumep asay )

0oL -1

(ay anvasiyg) 3ais

U Hd-ONI
@as aseayd waped jaijal yaug Jo S|ElEp 104

Page 385



This page is intentionally left blank



ZSP¥D| DI H0NE

I EvEeIEE | ar TapeEea
r T g
Ay -dd-G-9NIM|[ cwzaoez —
SN saqunu jaekasg

(g Buippng - 15ap0) uoneas|a apis pasodolg

Y1k 6LMS 0d NOLSDNIM 94-79

‘NOISIASY

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

gv4 135 uopuoT] —
ysiepy JamoT /G
S2)BID0SSY § UDla|puad Jalad .\. /

00l -1

“asodmnd Buusawbua

52150 AUE 10 SEOHENIIED [EIMANNS 10} PESN 25 10U FNCYS
ey S5ay ] WS UC PIYISYD 3G PINOYS SIISURINEERL |y
“Ajea ssascud Buued sa; u asn o) ame sBumep asey )

(1sam) 3ais

"0'p-Hd-ONIN
sas asea)d uisyed §a1j31 YOUE §O S|1E3EP JO4

Page 387



This page is intentionally left blank



Y1k 6LMS 0d NOLSDNIM 94-79

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

[ £v@aEa5 | dr fq payaayy
HE Tiq umzig

n_m.wumn_lmloz_v_ 0Z0Z-80-92 g
Py aquinu 1aelasg

BEFFDL DIE BN

(g Buippng) uonesa|3 Juoi4 pasodolg

v/ 13§ uopuo’ =%
ysiepy JamoT /G ? -
S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad \\

“ssodmd Busaubue
180 AUE 10 SORENOIED |EINDNYS 1o} peSN 34 10U PRoYS
sumpd S5y | “IUS UD PIYISYD 3G PINOYS SIUAUSINSESW [y

s ssaneud Bunied sup u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

-E|

hONIN

O HUA-ONI
as aseapd waped jaijal YoUE JO S|EISP 104

Page 389




This page is intentionally left blank



EZESFDL DEE BB

PajEaR 5y cy@aweag | dr g payamy
HE Tiq umzig YL GLMS 0 NOLSDNIM 94-¥9

A9 t-"dd-G-9NIM| cezaoez =eg

fm— Saquinu 1aslaig

jejaq (exdA | Bumas mopuim g |Eanay waned ¥oug

‘NOISIAGY

WOo2 0SS B-Uola|puad Mmmm

v/ 13§ uopuo’ =%
ysiepy JamoT /G ? -
S3|BID0SSY § UDIa|puad 1alad \\

|le}ap SS8298] MOPUIM R [EBA3] }olig @

s szancud Bunaed sap u @50 1) ase SRR 351

—
488 UG

aped yaijas youg saibap gy
s(ejap

ny 1oy sads Buifuedwoose

BO5 SMOPUIM O0Z JEHBA

“{A=ub wo sexoq ¥oE|q)

suonesae ul seadde jm

moy saeqsn)) pue wayed

jenjas pajbue jo sease esey)

JEuEld

j0os usaped Ji019y

Gg:l

®

Page 391



This page is intentionally left blank



LESFDL DEE BN

LR EvEREIE | dr g payasyg : .
WP Tiq umzig YL GLMS 0 NOLSDNIM 94-¥9 wooraosse-uojajpuad mmm
A/L-"dd-8-ONI¥ [ cweeoee ] e
) aquinu 1aelasg gy |35 uopuoT e
Ysuepy 1amo L6 : Z
2Npayos S|EUSIEY SATEIIPU| ‘NOISIATGY S3JRID0SSY § UDI3|pUad J3lad \\

0S: 1 \_‘/
L INQURD 5 (IXILNOD) LNONH

& u Bugeos sjapmod
nEW Ul paysiu
sjaued

paze|b smopuim
pue ssoop aysodwos
00Z ABisu3 deyjep

¥ouq pau e Buisynn

PUE 55828 B UIyjMm

185 InQ yNEwWw o} wayed
Jaas ‘uogoun| peoy
woysBurnyjuoisiewey

e uawdojarap
Juasal woly abews)

.uun.
UIELU 0} YSIUY 2L §I0}S|
RINL MO{|aR Bjpuny ¥a0sqj

“reipuey
Kaub yiep paysmy
Hew ypm Bupensnieq
paze|b anbedp

E]
]

amibd;

e e

T uopipuon 1Ejap wees Buipueyg’

05:1 @
g o e 31NQ3HOS TVI¥ELYW SALyolant b INOIED - (G aNvasig) 3ais

s ssaneud Bunied s u @5 1o} are shumeip a5y L

Page 393




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20th August 2020.
Item No:

UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
19/P4118 20.11.2019

Address/Site 8 Preshaw Crescent
Lower Green West
Mitcham
CR4 2AE

(Ward) Cricket Green

Proposal: ERECTION OF 2 x RESIDENTIAL BLOCKS OF TWO AND
THREE STORIES, COMPRISING 9 x SELF-CONTAINED
FLATS, WITH NEW ACCESS ROAD FROM RUSSELL ROAD,
PLUS CAR PARKING PROVISION AND ASSOCIATED
LANDSCAPING.

Drawing Nos; Site location plan and drawings A165:P:1001, A165:P:1002 Rev

A, A165:P:1003, A165:P:1005 & A165:P:1006

Contact Officer: Leigh Harrington (020 8545 3836)

RECOMMENDATION

The application is subject to appeal for non-determination. Officers recommend to
inform the Planning Inspectorate that the Council would have granted planning
permission subject to conditions.

CHECKLIST INFORMATION.
e Heads of agreement: No
e [s a screening opinion required: No
¢ Is an Environmental Statement required: No
¢ Has an Environmental Impact Assessment been submitted: No
e Design Review Panel consulted: No

Page 395



1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

Number of neighbours consulted: 256

Press notice — Yes (CA)

Site notice — Yes

External consultations: Yes, GLAAS
Archaeological Priority Zone — Yes

Flood risk zone - No

Controlled Parking Zone — Yes

Number of jobs created: N/A

Density 90 Dwellings per hectare

PTAL 3 on a scale of 0 to 6B where 6B is highest.
Located within Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation Area

INTRODUCTION

The application has been brought before the Committee due to the level of
objections. The application is subject to a current appeal for non determination
and the opinion of members is sought as to whether the proposals are
acceptable and if not, to obtain a council position on them.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The existing site comprises an open area of land that has its southern
boundary with 8 Preshaw Crescent having previously formed the rear garden
of this property. To the east and most of the north of the site it is bordered by
houses on Russell Road with access out to the road that is currently blocked.
The west of the site faces the car park area of beadle Court and Vine Cottage
and the main vehicle access to the site would be via Harwood Avenue. The
land would appear to have never been built on.

The site is not designated with the Sites and Policies Plan 2014, there are no
locally or statutorily listed buildings on site or adjoining it and the Mitcham
Cricket Green is within 200m of the site.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

This application involves the ERECTION OF 2 x RESIDENTIAL BLCKS OF
TWO AND THREE STORIES, COMPRISING 9 x SELF-CONTAINED FLATS,
WITH NEW ACCESS ROAD FROM RUSSELL ROAD, PLUS CAR PARKING
PROVISION AND ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING

The proposals would provide 3x1 bed, 3x2 bed and 3x3 bed units within the
development.

Page 396



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

Entrance to the site would be provided through opening the access from
Russell Road and creating a new access road to the site.

The smaller of the two blocks would be located towards the entrance to the
site with a 1 bed/2 person unit on the ground floor. Adjacent to this unit would
be the main site refuse store accessed set within an undercroft arrangement
from the access road with the communal cycle store located to the rear of
that.

6 Parking spaces would be provided in an under croft of the main block. In the
middle of this block on the ground floor there would be 2x 2bed/4person units
with a 1bed 2person unit located in the SE corner of the site. Each of these
ground floor units would be provided with large amenity gardens and new
landscaping and trees would be provided.

The first floor of the smaller entrance block would accommodate a 2bed/4
person unit with rear amenity deck. This unit would be accessed via a
walkway from the main block.

That flat and the front two in the main block would be accessed via dedicated
stairwell. The front flat over the parking undercroft would be a 2bed/4person
unit with amenity balcony to the side. The third flat serviced by this stairwell
would be a 3bed/4person duplex unit. This flat would have amenity balconies
to the front and rear.

A second staircase to the SE of the main block would service the other
centrally located 3bed/4person duplex and another 1bed/2person unit with
amenity balcony in the SE end of the block.

The building would be predominantly finished in exposed brickwork
incorporating sections of articulated patterned brickwork. The gabled roofs
would be treated in tile work and include PV panels on the southern
elevations.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

17/P1942 Planning permission refused for DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
GARAGE REAR OF 8 PRESHAW CRESCENT AND ERECTION OF TWO
DETACHED BUILDINGS PROVIDING 9 x SELF-CONTAINED FLATS WITH
ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING WITH ACCESS FROM
RUSSELL ROAD. Reasons for refusal; The size, siting and design of the
proposed development would represent an unneighbourly form of development
that would be (i) visually intrusive, unduly dominant and lead to loss of light,
privacy, outlook and additional disturbance for neighbouring occupiers, (ii) fails
to relate positively and appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale, density and
massing of surrounding buildings and existing street patterns and (iii) fails to
conserve and enhance the historic context, local character and distinctiveness

Page 397



of this part of the Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation Area and would be
contrary to policies 7.4, 7.6 and 7.8 of the London Plan 2016, policies CS 13 &
CS14 of the Merton LDF Core Planning Strategy (2011), policies DM D2 and
DM D4 of the Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014) and the Mitcham Cricket
Green Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan 2013.

And

The proposals by reason of design and layout fail to provide a high standard of
design and layout of accommodation that would provide a safe and secure
layout and a high quality living environment to the detriment of the amenities of
future occupiers. The proposals would therefore be contrary to policy DM D2 of
the Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014) and Standard 10 of the London Plan
Housing SPG (2016).

And

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the positioning of the refuse store
and the layout of the site would allow for the collection of refuse by standard
Council refuse vehicles. The proposals are therefore contrary to policy 5.17 of
the London Plan 2016, policy CS 17 in the Merton Core Strategy 2011 and
Standard 22 of the Mayor's London Housing SPG 2016.

4.2 16/P1456 Application withdrawn by applicant for DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
GARAGE AT 8 PRESHAW CRESCENT AND ERECTION OF A DETACHED
BUILDING PROVIDING 15 x SELF-CONTAINED FLATS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE EXISTING DEVELOPMENT AT BEADLE COURT

15/P0290/NEW Pre application advice for Erection of a block of 15 affordable

homes linked to the existing properties of Beadle Court and Vine Cottages
with associated car parking.

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 The application was advertised by means of a Conservation Area Site Notice
and Press Notice and letters to 256 neighbouring properties.

In response to the consultation letters of objection were received from 22
residents which raised concerns relating to;

¢ Russell Road is extremely narrow so construction vehicles will have problems
entering the site - big vehicles will certainly have problems turning the bend
and will have to mount on a footpath. This will a dangerous hazard for
pedestrians and lead to cars being scratched.

Page 398



Russell Road is so narrow parking is only allowed on one side.

Access to the site should be through the existing house

building site having access in front of our door is unacceptable as it would
cause the potential risk to the health or life to our family

The construction method statement is flawed and unrealistic. Delivery
vehicles wont have room on site to turn around.

Previously in the Ground Investigation report put forward, the development
applicants have stated that a ‘cable percussion borehole was planned at the
site, but the access onto the site was too tight and the rig had to turned away
and the borehole abandoned’. If this is the case for just one vehicle, it would
be safe to assume that this will be an ongoing issue with many vehicles
coming to the site.

A 10m rigid truck is going to be difficult to manoeuvre on this road that is even
if it will fit down these roads, this could lead to complete gridlock and in
emergencies this could put people’s life’s at risk.

Refuse and delivery vehicles already have trouble accessing the area.
Emergency vehicles will struggle to gain access

Dispute parking survey results that there are ever spare spaces.

Impact on parking, not enough spaces on the site and now Love lane has
double yellow lines it is worse.

8 on site spaces is not enough, they will have two cars each

Disturbance from site access being in front of our house

Noise pollution from the construction process

Neighbouring properties will be vulnerable if the site is opened up.

Loss of privacy from the flats on the higher floors

Overlooking of gardens from the balconies contrary to human rights.

Will overlook 26, 28, 32, 34, 36 and 38 Russell Road.

The main building is simply too tall. The windows are also very large.
structure will also be overbearing, imposing and create a visual intrusion from
our garden

Loss of sunlight to gardens

development of two to three family houses would be better but 9 self-
contained flats is too many for such a small residential road

Very little outdoor space offered for children's play area

Very little space for landscaping

Loss of mature garden space it has been a garden since 1871.

This is garden grabbing.

Leave the garden as it is.

Harm to trees and biodiversity

Large number of mature trees removed from the site without consent, how
can residents have faith in a company that breaks the law.

Page 399



5.2

5.3

The removal of these trees was in no way necessary or in the interest of good
arboriculture practice; it was a blatant disregard for the council’s policies

No need to replace trees if they hadn’t cut them down in the first place

18 flats are too many

Building more than two stories is out of keeping with the area

the area is a conservation area and therefore should not be subject to felling
of trees and increased pollution

The proposed development is not in context with the surrounding area and the
design does not respect the other houses surrounding it, in particular, the
scale and proportions of surrounding buildings and would be entirely out of
the character of the area, and it would also be to the detriment of the local
environment.

The proposed dwelling would significantly alter the fabric of the area and
amount to serious ‘cramming’ in what is a low density road

When 24 Russell Road wanted to build up on her garage at the side of the
house this was refused. Now your looking for planning permission for 2 and 3
story blocks almost beside her house.

more people in and out of the road is detrimental to the people that live here
now

Russell Road has dangerous gas pipes close to the surface on the bend of
Russell Road where the access will be

The lorries will damage the already damaged sewers

Additional impact on water pressure

Additional demand on GP surgeries, schools, policing, emergency services,
waste services

The proposals will devalue our properties, will compensation be offered

The proposed application has already been turned down on two previous
occasions and | do not believe the reasons for refusal have changed

Historic England advised that the development could cause harm to
archaeological remains and field evaluation is needed to determine appropriate
mitigation. However, although the NPPF envisages evaluation being
undertaken prior to determination, in this case consideration of the nature of the
development, the archaeological interest and/or practical constraints are such
that they consider a two-stage archaeological condition could provide an
acceptable safeguard. This would comprise firstly, evaluation to clarify the
nature and extent of surviving remains, followed, if necessary, by a full
investigation. They therefore had no objections subject to the imposition of
suitable conditions

Mitcham Cricket Green Community and Heritage
Not opposed to the principle of some development on the site

Page 400



54

Applicants have not engaged with the local community for more than three
years

The matter of the illegal tree felling has not been resolved and site is now
largely bare earth

The proposed replacement trees are not sufficient to mitigate the lost trees.
The development should provide for trees of equivalent CAVAT value to those
lost as a minimum for permission to be granted

The species and proposed locations are also inappropriate

Proposals fail to preserve or enhance the Conservation Area and are in
conflict with development plan policies for the area.

proposals fail to demonstrate how they will overcome the loss of important
open space which makes a positive contribution to the urban scene and to the
character of the Conservation Area

proposals provide very little by way of open space or additional greenery and
much of the site is converted to car park

proposals intensify development in an already congested area and damage
the outlook from neighbouring residences at significant loss to local amenity.
lack evidence that they will not have an unacceptable impact on local amenity
and nearby residential properties

fails to respond to the rich character of the surrounding neighbourhood and
will not add positively to the Conservation Area

proposed is everyday and ubiquitous and no examples of local references of
sources of design inspiration are provided in the Design and Access
Statement

continues to be a lack of any contextual study, despite this being cited as a
gap in the officer’s report refusing planning consent for the previous scheme
intrusive balconies and the honeycomb detailing and mixed shades of grey (or
brown) bricks and roof tiles combined with brown edging has no local
references.

The buildings lack greenery and there is no provision for either green walls or
a green roof by way of compensation for the loss of existing green space.
Issues of site access and integration with surroundings

Site access extremely limited especially for larger vehicles.

Details of the proposed sustainable urban drainage system and how it will be
maintained are unclear

poor quality information presented with this application. Many of the
architectural drawings are accompanied by images of people and animals that
are out of scale.

Conservation officer commented that the applicants are trying to squeeze
too much on the site with not enough amenity space with just not enough
breathing space around the development. The loss of trees is a concern, and
the proposed replacement trees do not really make up for the loss. It is loss of

Page 401



5.5

5.6

5.7

6.

a green space which will be a negative impact on the conservation area.

Therefore if they reduced the footprint and the volume of development it

would be more acceptable in my mind. No concerns with the height and
general proportions of the buildings.

Transport officer The proposal provides 6 car parking spaces including one
disabled bay with one space provided with active charging facilities, with the
remaining five spaces provided with passive provision which satisfies the
London Plan Standards.

Vehicle swept path analysis has been undertaken which demonstrates that
cars can access/egress the site in forward gear.

A total of 18 cycle parking spaces is to be provided in sheltered and secure
storage within the curtilage of the building in the form of Josta two-tier racks.
The total provision of cycle parking satisfies the Draft New London Plan
minimum parking standards.

Whilst on street parking is at a premium the level of likely trip generation
means that the proposal is unlikely to have significant impact on the
adjoining highway. No objection raised subject to conditions:

- Car parking as shown maintained.
- The condition requiring cycle parking.
- The condition requiring Refuse collection.

- Demolition/Construction Logistic Plan (including a Construction
Management plan in accordance with TfL guidance) should be submitted to
LPA for approval before commencement of work.

Arboricultural officer; Raised no objections to the principle of the
development although she considered the choice of proposed trees to be
unsatisfactory

Waste Services Officers had concerns about the ability of refuse vehicles to
enter the site and engaged in protracted discussions with the applicants
however in relation to the option of a private provider for waste collection.
Normally a development of this size would have communal refuse facilities.
They would need to provide a very large store if each unit had individual
facilities

POLICY CONTEXT

Page 402



6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6

6.7

6.8

7.

7.1

NPPF (2019). Key sections:
5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes.
12. Achieving well-designed places.

Relevant policies in the London Plan 2016 are; 3.3 (Increasing housing
supply), 3.4 (Optimising housing potential), 3.5 (Quality and design of housing
developments), 5.1 (Climate change mitigation), 5.2 (Minimising carbon
dioxide emissions), 5.3 (Sustainable design and construction), 5.7
(Renewable energy), 5.13 (Sustainable drainage), 5.17 (Waste Capacity), 6.9
(Cycling), 6.13 (Parking), 7.2 (Inclusive environment), 7.3 (Designing out
crime), 7.4 (Local character), 7.5 (Public realm), 7.6 (Architecture),7.8
(Heritage assets and archaeology), 7.21 (Trees and woodlands).

Emerging London Plan 2017 Policy H1 Increasing Housing supply
London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance 2016
GLA Guidance on Preparing Energy Assessments (2018).

DCLG Technical standards 2015

Relevant polices in the Merton Core Strategy 2011 are; CS 9 (Housing
targets), CS 11 (Infrastructure), CS 13 (Open Space, Nature conservation),
CS 14 (Design), CS 15 (Climate change), CS 17 (Waste management), CS 18
(Transport) & CS 20 (Parking, Servicing & delivery).

The relevant policies in the Merton Sites and Policies Plan 2014 are; DM C1
Community facilities, DM D1 (Urban Design and the public realm), DM D2
(Design considerations in all developments), DM D4 (Managing Heritage
assets), DM EP 2 (Reducing and mitigating noise), DM EP4 (Pollutants), DM
H2 (Housing mix), DM 02 (Trees, hedges and landscape features), DM T2
(Transport impacts of development) & DM T3 (Car parking and servicing
standards).

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The key considerations are; The principle of the use of the site for the provision
of dwellings, the standard of accommodation provided, the impact of the
development on the conservation area, the amenity of local residents and
parking and servicing.

7.2 Principle

Page 403


https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/energy_assessment_guidance_2018_-_update.pdf

7.3

7.4

The National Planning Policy Framework 2019, London Plan 2016 policy 3.3
and the Council's Core Strategy policy CS9 all seek to increase sustainable
housing provision where it can be shown that an acceptable standard of
accommodation will also provide a mix of dwelling types. The Council and the
Mayor also have minimum standards for the design of new residential
developments of this nature and these are set out in various SPP and Core
Strategy policies, The London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance
2016, the London Plan 2016 and DCLG Technical housing standards-nationally
described space standards 2015. The proposals meet these standards.

Merton's Core Strategy Policy CS 13 requires that proposals for new dwellings
in back gardens must be justified against the local context and character of the
site. Whilst technically a back garden, the scale of the site is such that officers
consider the site capable of residential redevelopment on a limited scale
without being materially harmful to the context and character with the locality.

Need for additional housing

The emerging London Plan, now accorded moderate weight in recent appeal
decisions issued by the Secretary of State, and anticipated to be adopted in
the coming months, will signal the need for a step change in the delivery of
housing in Merton. While AMR data shows the Council has exceeded its
current 411 target, the target of 918 units per year will prove considerably
more challenging. The relaxation of the earlier target (1300+ units) for Merton
following the Inspector’s finding following the London Plan Examination in
Public Panel Report Appendix: Panel Recommendations October 2019 was
predicated on not adopting a particular GLA formula to delivering significant
new housing on small sites, with larger opportunity sites such as the
application site rising in importance.

The National Planning Policy Framework requires Councils to identify a
supply of specific ‘deliverable’ sites sufficient to provide five years worth of
housing with an additional buffer of 5% to provide choice and competition.

Table 3.1 of the London Plan identifies that LBM has an annual housing
target of 411 units, or 4,107 over the next ten years. However, this minimum
target is set to increase significantly to 918 set out in the ‘London Plan
Examination in Public Panel Report Appendix: Panel Recommendations
October 2019’, and which is expected to be adopted later this year. This
significant increase will require a step change in housing delivery within the
LBM.

Policy H1 ‘Increasing housing supply’ (Draft London Plan Policy) and Table
4.1 of the draft London Plan sets Merton a ten-year housing completion

Page 404



7.5

7.6

target of 13,280 units between 2019/20 and 2028/29 (increased from the
existing 10-year target of 4,107 in the current London Plan). However,
following the Examination in Public this figure of 13,280 has been reduced to
9,180. Page 82 7.4.5 Merton’s overall housing target between 2011 and
2026 is 5,801 dwellings (Authority’s Monitoring Report Draft 2017/19, p12).
The latest (draft) Monitoring report confirms:

All the main housing targets have been met for 2017/18.

665 additional new homes were built during the monitoring period, 254
above Merton’s target of 411 new homes per year (London Plan 2015).

2013-18 provision: 2,686 net units (813 homes above target)

For all the home completions between 2004 and 2017, Merton always
met the London Plan target apart from 2009/10. In total Merton has
exceeded the target by over 2,000 homes since 2004.

Policy H1 of the emerging London Plan sets out that boroughs should
optimise the potential for housing delivery on all suitable and available
brownfield sites through their Development Plans and planning decisions,
especially the following sources of capacity: b) mixed-use redevelopment
of car parks and low-density retail parks.

The proposal to introduce residential use to this under-utilised site
responds positively to London Plan, draft London Plan policies and Core
Strategy planning policies to increase housing supply and optimise sites
and is supported.

Residential density

A number of objections were concerned with the density of development.
Table 3.2 of the London Plan identifies appropriate density ranges based
on a site’s setting and PTAL rating.

The area has a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 3, where 1 is
poor and 6 is excellent. It is considered that the site is located within an
suburban area for the purposes of Table 3.2 of the London Plan, given the
nature of surrounding built form and the criteria set out in the supporting
text to Table 3.2 (density matrix) of the London Plan.

The proposed development would have a density of 90 dwellings per
hectare. With a Ptal of 3 the density of 90u/ha accords with the London
Plan policy 3.4 recommendation of 50-95 u/ha which would be considered
to demonstrate an acceptable level of development of the site.

Design/Bulk and massing/Appearance/Layout.

Page 405



7.6.1

7.6.2

7.6.3

7.6.4

7.6.5

7.6.6

Design of new buildings should ensure appropriate scale, density and
appearance, respecting, complementing and responding to local
characteristics (London Plan policy 7.6, LDF policy CS.14 and SPP policy
DM D2).

Bulk and massing.

London Plan policy 7.4 and SPP policy DM D2 require developments to
relate positively and appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale, density and
proportions of surrounding buildings and the pattern and grain of existing
streets.

Housing in the local area is predominantly low rise in the form of two storey
suburban housing although the adjacent flats are higher at three storeys.

The proposals reflect a reduction in the bulk and massing of previous
iterations of the scheme and now limit the higher three storey element to a
more central position on the site such that for most of the proposals the
lower two storey elements are the closer to the neighbouring occupiers.
The Council’s Conservation Officer raised no objection to the height and
general proportions of the buildings and although the officer was concerned
about the quantum of development Officers consider that the proposals are
optimising the site whilst still being respectful of neighbouring residents and
the wider conservation area.

Design- Appearance.

The proposals are considered to have been attractively designed with a
modern approach whilst retaining a house like quality rather than a more
standard flatted design so that they more closely reflect the predominant
stock of houses in this part of the Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation
Area.

Although brickwork and fenestration is indicated on the accompanying
CGils a condition to have the materials approved is recommended to
ensure a suitable appearance to the development.

Design- layout and standard of accommodation

The proposed units all meet the minimum space standards for GIA and
amenity space, SPP Policy DM D2, Core Strategy 2011 policies CS 9
Housing Provision and CS 14 Design and London Plan policies 3.3
Increasing Housing Supply, 3.4 Optimising Housing Potential, 3.5 Quality
and Design of Housing Developments are all policies that seek to provide

Page 406



additional good quality residential accommodation including the provision
of a safe and secure layout.

Unit No Bed Proposed GIA | Required GIA in
in SQM SQM
1 1B 2P 51.6 50
2 2B 4P 81.5 70
3 2B 4P 78.80 70
4 1B 2P 55.6 50
5 3B 5P 92 86
6 2B 4P 72.2 70
7 3B 4P 91.9 74
8 3B 4P 91.9 74
9 1B 2P 55.3 50

All the proposed units readily exceed the minimum space standards and all
provide sufficient private amenity space and consequently the proposals
are considered to provide a good standard accommodation for future
residents.

7.9 Affordable housing
As the proposal is for less than 10 units there is no longer any requirement
to provide either on site or off site affordable housing contributions.

7.10 Neighbour Amenity.

London Plan policies 7.4 and 7.6 and SPP policy DM D2 relate to amenity
impacts such as loss of light, privacy, overshadowing and visual intrusion
on neighbour amenity and the need for people to feel comfortable with their
surroundings.

7.10.1 Objections were received in relation to the impact of the block on the
amenity of neighbouring residents. Neighbours were concerned in relation
to loss of privacy and overlooking from the new flats and in particular the
upper floors. The layouts were subsequently amended such that through

Page 407



7.10.2

7.11

7.11.1

7.11.2

7.11.3

7.11.4

the use of angled openings and more obscure glazing panels it is
considered that the proposals would not cause material harm to the
amenity of neighbours from overlooking and loss of privacy.

Objections were received raising concerns that the proposals would result
in a loss of light to neighbouring properties. However a combination of the
separation distance and relative positioning of the block to the closest
neighbouring properties means that officers consider that the proposals
would not materially harm the amenity of neighbours from a loss of light.

Parking, servicing and deliveries.

Core Strategy Policy CS 20 requires proposals to have regard to pedestrian

movement, safety, serving and loading facilities for local businesses and
manoeuvring for emergency vehicles as well as refuse storage and
collection.

The vast majority of objections to the proposals related to parking and
access to the site and it is acknowledged that the surrounding roads are
very narrow and congested with on street parking. The site is land that was
the back garden of a house on Preshaw Crescent and access to
this proposal would be via a new access created from Russell Road.

Whilst this access would be sufficient for car access the issue of an access
large enough for a larger vehicles to enter the site without mounting the
kerb does remain and many objections related to the impact on the area
during the construction phase as larger vehicles, even large transit type
vehicles have difficulty using the local roads.

During construction the development would require large vehicle access to
the site and this would require a system to be approved whereby a
combination site marshals and parking restrictions would be
needed in order to ensure adequate space could be provided for access for
construction vehicles. Conditions requiring Construction logistics and
delivery and servicing plans are recommended to address this. A s171
Highways licence on the entrance to the site which will cover the use of the
crossover during construction works and will be used to ensure that the
crossover is put back to its appropriate condition following completion of the
works is recommended. A legal agreement with the highways department
for rectifying any damage to the pavements during construction is also
recommended.

The Council’s transport officer was satisfied that as the proposal provides 6
car parking spaces including one disabled bay with one space provided

Page 408



7.11.5

7.11.6

7.12

8.1

8.2

with active charging facilities, with the remaining five spaces provided with
passive provision, it satisfies the London Plan Standards.

The officer also confirmed that with a total of 18 cycle parking spaces being
provided in sheltered and secure storage within the curtilage of the building
in the form of Josta two-tier racks, the total provision of cycle parking
satisfies the Draft New London Plan minimum parking standards

A flatted development of this size would normally require communal refuse
facilities but these would require a refuse vehicle to enter the site as the
drag distance is too great. If individual facilities were to be provided the
drag distance would be acceptable but a greater area would possibly be
needed to accommodate the higher number of variously assorted waste
receptacles. It is possible that this could be addressed by condition and
given the importance of this issue the condition should be required to be
discharged prior to the commencement of the development and so a
condition to this effect is recommended.

Trees

The applicants did undertake the unauthorised clearance of larger trees
from the site which would be protected by virtue of the site’s location within
a Conservation Area. The proposals do include replacement trees and a
condition requiring details of the replacement trees and confirmation that
they would have a CAVAT rating of at least equal to that of the removed
trees is recommended.

SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
REQUIREMENTS.

The proposal does not constitute Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development.
Accordingly there is no requirement for an EIA submission.

A condition requiring the proposals to comply with current sustainability
criteria for a development of this size is also recommended.

CONCLUSION

The proposals will provide 9 new flats in a policy compliant mix of sizes that
will provide a good standard of accommodation for future residents within
what is considered to be an attractively designed development that will
preserve the appearance and character of the Mitcham Cricket Green
Conservation Area.

Page 409



9.2  The proposals have been designed to mitigate their impact on neighbour
amenity and are not considered materially harmful to the amenity of
neighbours and whilst access to and servicing of the site is relatively
restricted this could be overcome by conditions.

9.3 Therefore, subject to the imposition of suitable planning conditions, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable and in compliance with relevant
planning policy and is therefore recommended for approval.

10. RECOMMENDATION:

The application is subject to appeal for non-determination. Officers recommend
to inform the Planning Inspectorate that the Council would have granted
planning permission subject to conditions

GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions;
A1 Commencement

A7 A165:P:1001, A165:P:1002 Rev A, A165:P:1003, A165:P:1005 & A165:P:1006

B1 Materials to be approved

B4 Surface treatment

B5 Boundary treatment

C5 No cables or flues

C6 Refuse details to be approved
C7 refuse details to be implement
D9 No external lighting

F1 No development shall take place until full details of a landscaping and planting
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The replacement trees shall be of at least equivalent CAVAT rating as
those removed. These works shall be carried out as approved before the
commencement of the use or the occupation of any building hereby approved,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall
include on a plan, full details of the size, species, spacing, quantities and location of
proposed plants, together with any hard surfacing, means of enclosure, and
indications of all existing trees, hedges and any other features to be retained, and
measures for their protection during the course of development.

Page 410



F2 Landscaping implementation

F8 trees site supervision

H1 Details of new vehicle access

H2 vehicle access to be provided

H4 Vehicle parking to be provided

H7 Cycle storage to be implemented

H10 Construction working method statement
H11 Parking management strategy

H12 Delivery and servicing plan

H13 Construction logistics plan

Non standard condition

The applicants shall enter into a s171 highways licence agreement with the
Highways authority to ensure the safe operation of the site access and its restoration
to a suitable standard should any damage occur during the construction process.
Reason to protect the integrity of the public highway and to ensure safe access to
the site.

Non standard condition

No demolition or development shall take place until a stage 1 written scheme of
investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no demolition or
development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, and
the programme and methodology of site evaluation and the nomination of a
competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.

If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for those
parts of the site which have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that
is included within the stage 2 WSI, no demolition/development shall take place other
than in accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI which shall include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and
methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works

B. Where appropriate, details of a programme for delivering related positive public
benefits.

C. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. this part of the

Page 411



condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the stage 2 WSI.

Reason; This pre-commencement condition is necessary to safeguard the
archaeological interest of this site.

No standard Condition: No development approved by this permission shall be
commenced until a final detailed scheme for the provision of surface and foul water
drainage has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The drainage scheme will dispose of surface water by means of a
sustainable drainage system (SuDS) at a restricted runoff rate (no more than 2I/s), in
accordance with drainage hierarchy contained within the London Plan Policy (5.12,
5.13 and SPG) and the advice contained within the National SuDS Standards. A
CCTV will inform the final design to demonstrate the routing (line and level) and
condition of all existing drainage runs. The final drainage scheme will be maintained
in perpetuity by the applicant unless adopted by Thames Water.

Reason: To reduce the risk of surface and foul water flooding to the proposed
development and future users and ensure surface water and foul flood risk does not
increase offsite in accordance with Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan policies CS16,
DMF2 and the London Plan policy 5.13.

Non standard condition No part of the development hereby approved shall be
occupied until evidence has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority confirming that the development has achieved COZ2 reductions of
not less than a 19% improvement on Part L regulations 2013, and internal water
consumption rates of no greater than 105 litres per person per day.’

Reason:To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability
and makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.2 of the London Plan 2016 and Policy CS15 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011

Informative

Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a
suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance
with Historic England’s Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London.
This condition is exempt from deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

An archaeological field evaluation involves exploratory fieldwork to determine if
significant remains are present on a site and if so to define their character, extent,

Page 412



quality and preservation. Field evaluation may involve one or more techniques
depending on the nature of the site and its archaeological potential. It will normally
include excavation of trial trenches. A field evaluation report will usually be used to
inform a planning decision (pre-determination evaluation) but can also be required
by condition to refine a mitigation strategy after permission has been granted.

Page 413



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 415



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 417



This page is intentionally left blank



Living Room
Kitchen

Bedroom

Bathroom / Shower room
Hall

Landing

Storage

Bike Storage

Car Parking

Bin Storage

8 PRESHAW CRESCENT, MITCHAM, SURREY, CR4 3GA
[ —

PO

Page 419



This page is intentionally left blank



Living Room
Kitchen
Bedroom

Bathroom / Shower room
Hall
Landing
07 Storage
08 Bike Storage
Car Parking
Bin Storage

8 PRESHAW CRESCENT, MITCHAM, SURREY, CR4 3GA

First and Socond Fioor Plans
as Proposed

Page 421



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 423



This page is intentionally left blank



8 PRESHAW CRESCENT, MITCHAM, SURREY, CR4 3GA

[rp—

Elovations
a8 Proposed s -

Paing 0w

Page 425



This page is intentionally left blank



Section AA'

3 : la

I
| | had

Section BB'

ssssss

8 PRESHAW CRESCENT, MITCHAM, SURREY, CR4 3GA

[s—

Page 427



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

20t August 2020
Item No:
UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID
20/P1732 01/06/2020
Address/Site: 50 Tybenham Road
Merton Park
SW19 3LA
Ward: Merton Park
Proposal: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING OUTBUILDING IN REAR
GARDEN AND ERECTION OF A REPLACEMENT
OUTBUILDING FOR USE AS GARAGE, GYM AND
WORKSHOP.
Drawing No.s: Sheet numbers 1/8, 2/8, 3/8, 4/8, 5/8, 6/8, 7/8, 8/8.
Contact Officer: Catarina Cheung (020 8545 4747)
RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission subject to conditions

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

Is a screening opinion required: No

Is an Environmental Statement required: No

Has an Environmental Statement been submitted: No
Press notice: No

Design Review Panel consulted: No

Number of neighbours consulted: 3

External consultations: 0

Archaeological Zone: No

Conservation Area: No

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is being brought to Committee Members for determination due to the
number and scope of objections received.

2, SITE AND SURROUNDINGS
2.1 The application site comprises a two storey end of terrace residential dwelling located
on the southern side of Tybenham Road in Merton Park.

Page 429



2.2

3.2

3.3

5.1

The site is not located in a Conservation Area nor is the building listed.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The proposal seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing outbuilding
in the rear garden and erection of a replacement outbuilding for use as a garage, gym
and workshop.

The outbuilding would have the following dimensions:
- 7.1m width;

- 8.5m depth;

- 3.623m maximum height;

- 2.5m eaves height.

The outbuilding seeks full planning permission rather than a certificate of lawfulness
as the structure would be within 2m of the boundary of the curtilage of the
dwellinghouse, and would exceed 2.5m in its total height.

PLANNING HISTORY

11/P0219: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING CONSERVATORY, AND THE
ERECTION OF A REPLACEMENT SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION A
HIP TO GABLE AND REAR ROOF EXTENSION WITH FRONT ROOF
LIGHTS — Granted 18/03/2011

CONSULTATION

External

Public consultation was undertaken by way of letters sent to 3 neighbouring properties.
7 neighbouring representations were received, summary of their concerns as follows:
Size and height of the proposed new structure would be dominant and not in keeping
with the local area;

Increase in roof height is far greater than any other garden building in the area and will
be an imposing sight;

Proposed depth of building would substantially impact on the green space of the
garden;

Building would have the potential to be used as a dwelling;

Would involve the destruction of an attractive tree and loss of wildlife;

Worrying precedent for similar oversized structures which could seriously damage the
appeal of the neighbourhood;

Existing garage door is substantially above the surface of adjoining driveway. Plans do
not show alteration to the level of the door opening which suggests that the garage
many not be usable;

Both existing and proposed garage doors are relatively small, while they could be wide
enough to accommodate a small car, the width of the service road is such that it may
be difficult to turn a vehicle;

No soil drainage in the rear service road. Feared any new connecting drainage would
not have a sufficient fall;

Questions whether existing main dwellinghouse is an HMO. If it is, the addition of the
gym and workshop would represent an intensification of use.

POLICY CONTEXT
National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

Page 430



6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Section 12 — Achieving well-designed places

London Plan (2016)
7.4 Local character
7.6 Architecture

Merton Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2011)
CS 14 Design

Merton Sites and Policies Plan (2014)
DM D2 Design considerations
DM D3 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Material considerations

The planning considerations for the proposed works relate to its impact on the
character and appearance of the host dwelling and the surrounding area, and impact
upon neighbour amenity.

Character and appearance

London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6, Core Strategy Policy CS14 and SPP Policies
DMD2 and DMD3 require well designed proposals that will respect the appearance,
scale, bulk, form, proportions, materials and character of the original building and
their surroundings.

Considered on its own, the proposed outbuilding might be viewed as quite a large
structure. However, given the scale of development at the rear of the properties along
Tybenham Road, when the proposed outbuilding is viewed in relation to the wider
surrounding context and neighbour’s rear structures, it is not considered the
proposed development would be out of character in the area.

Furthermore, the erection of the new outbuilding would maintain ample garden area
for the enjoyment of the occupiers as well as an appropriate separation distance from
the main dwellinghouse.

Therefore, having regard to its local context, being a suitable benchmark against
which to assess such proposals, officers consider the proposed outbuilding to be
acceptable in terms of its scale, form and appearance.

Neighbouring Amenity

SPP Policy DM D2 states that proposals must be designed to ensure that they would
not have an undue negative impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties in
terms of loss of light, quality of living conditions, privacy, visual intrusion and noise.

48 Tybenham Road

At the rear garden of 48 Tybenham Road, there are 2 single storey outbuilding/shed
structures. The larger outbuilding (facing the main garden), displays a depth of 4.4m,
width of around 5m, eaves height of 2m and maximum height of 2.7m. The shed at the
rear of this, set back 0.2m, has a depth of 1.8m, eaves height of 1.8m and maximum
height of 2.5m. The structures total a depth of 6.4m at the rear of the garden.

The proposed outbuilding would be 0.9m taller than the neighbouring structure and

Page 431



7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

8.2

project 2.3m forward of the neighbouring outbuilding’s front building line. So, from
within the neighbour’s outbuilding/standing at the front of this, only partial views would
be visible of the proposed new outbuilding’s sloped roof, around 3m maximum height
and 2.5m at the eaves. Overall, this is not considered to be materially harmful in terms
of outlook or light.

The separation distance between the proposed outbuilding and the rear building line
of number 48’s main dwellinghouse would be around 20m (or if measured from the
rear extension, around 17m separation). This is considered sufficiently set back.

52 Tybenham Road

At the rear garden of 52 Tybenham Road, there is an existing single storey outbuilding
which displays a depth of 6.6m, width of 5.2m, maximum height of 2.5m and an eaves
height of 2.2m. The outbuilding is set back from the boundary by around 1m.

Whilst the proposed outbuilding would have a maximum height of 1.1m taller than the
neighbouring structure, this addition would project only 2m forward of the neighbouring
outbuilding’s front building line. Again, if considering the outlook when stood within the
neighbour’s outbuilding/ stood in front of this, views would show part of the proposed
enlarged sloped roof at a maximum height of 3m and eaves height of 2.5m which is
not considered to be unduly dominant.

Similarly, the separation distance between the proposed outbuilding and the rear
building line of number 54’s main dwellinghouse would be around 20m (or measured
from the rear extension around 17m). This is considered sufficiently set back.

Other considerations

Concerns have been raised in representations relating to the use of the outbuilding as
a separate dwellinghouse. To ensure restriction of this, a suitably worded condition will
be attached to ensure the new outbuilding would be for ancillary use to the main
dwellinghouse. Any intention to use the outbuilding as independent residential
accommaodation would require planning permission.

Issues relating to the drainage details are not within the remit of planning, and will be
reviewed at the Building Regulations stage should the proposal be approved.

There is an existing tree at the rear of the garden which would need to be removed to
allow the construction of the larger outbuilding. The site is not within a Conservation
area nor is there a Tree Preservation order attached to this tree, therefore, there are
no restrictions against removal of this.

CONCLUSION

The scale, form, design, positioning and materials of the proposed outbuilding are not
considered to have an undue detrimental impact toward the character or appearance
of the host dwelling, streetscene or on neighbouring amenity.

The proposal is considered to comply with the principles of policies referred to under

Section 6 and it is recommended to grant planning permission subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION
Grant planning permission subject to conditions. The following conditions are
recommended:

Page 432



PoOb~

o o

A1 Commencement of Development

A7 Approved Plans

B3 External materials as Specified

EO06 Ancillary Residential Accommodation - The development hereby permitted
shall not be occupied at any time other than for purposes ancillary to the residential

use of the dwelling known as 50 Tybenham Road, Merton Park, SW19 3LA.
Informative — party wall

NPPF note to applicant on approved schemes

Page 433



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Maujesty's Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.

Page 435



This page is intentionally left blank



weyu=sgi] 05 a8/l
TBWeus|y | Jaquinu 123ays

0202/S0/0E
aeg

BNy ey
BT

EVD 00111 2[e2s

0oL
2|eag

YIE BLMS

uopusT

peoy weyuaghl og
ISSaIppE 2)S

pasodoig

L1109
BalE 100} [EUIa)XT

S310N

ANIITD IHL WOHL NOISSIWNG3d
HOIMd LNOHLIAM ITOHM

YO 1yvd NI d32Naodd3y

38 LON AVIN ONY

ANIIMD IHL 4O LIHDMHADOD
JHL S1 ONIMWHA SIHL

"Bunsixa YJjew O} UoRoNISuUcD
[ELISIXE L] PASn S[EUIJELW [y
“Al@jeIpaunu) juaip o) papodal
sapuedaiosip yim ‘sysom of Joud
YIS U PayIaYD 2q 0] SUDISUSWIQ
) Woy 3[EDS Jou op ‘BuiMElp S}
woyy suoisuswp painby aye) Alug
"SA0USLLILLOD YIOM

Buipjing a10jaq paubisap ame sueld

SNOILLIONOD

L

(]

Bunsxg

ue|d Joo|} punolg

Page 437



This page is intentionally left blank



Roof plan existing

Mo 48 outbuildings Mo

Existing ground floor plan
Proposed grou

Scale 1:100 @A3

Page 439



This page is intentionally left blank



Roof plan proposed

11 | .| | . | I -
I T T T T T T T T 70

I T T T T T T T T T

I T T T T T T T T T
I N [ N - —

1.1 | .| | - | I -

I T T T T T T T T T
L T L T 1T T 1T T 1

I T T T T T T T T T
L T T T T T T T T T

' T T T T T T T T T
L T T T T T T T T T

I'T T T T T T T T T
I T T T T 0T T T T T

N N N N N RN I -

TrT T T T T T T 1
T T T T T T T T 1

Mo 48 outbuildings

[ T T T T T T T T T

T T T T T T T T T
T T T T T T T T 71

L T 1 | 1 | 1 I
T T T T T T T T T
T T T T T T T T T
| N N N [ - |
L2 L 4 1 1 | i1 1
T T T T T T T T T
C 1T T T T T T T T 1
L T T T T T T T T 1
T T T T T T T T T 71
I T T T T T T T T 1
T T T T T T T T T 71
I T T T T T T T T 1T
N N [ S - -

T T T T T T T T T 1

Mo

Scale 1:100 @A3

Existing ground floor plan

Proposed grou

10 20

Page 441



This page is intentionally left blank



Front elevations

Existing

Proposed

T T T T T T T T N T T T N T T T T T T T T T AT T T AT T T
L LI L L LT L LI L LI I T I I LTI I TT

TTTT I T T T T T A NPT AT T TR T T TTITTT 1T

IEH

Mo 48 outbuildings Mo

Existing ground floor plan
Proposed grou

Scale 1:100 @A3

Page 443



This page is intentionally left blank



Rear elevations

Proposed
III.IIIIIII.IIIIIII.IIIIIII.IIIIIII.IIIIIIIlI.IIIIIII.IIIIIII.IIIIII
T T T T AT T T AT T TN T T T T T AT T AT T TT
| FIEENIEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENEEENEEEEEEN
|I-I|I|I|I-I|I|I|I-I-I|I|I|I-I|I|Iu'-'uluIulululululnlulul|I-I|I|I|I -
_-—'—'_._._._-_-_-_-_-_-_-_'—-_
Mo 52 outbuildings Mo

Existing ground floor plan
Proposed grou

Scale 1:100 @A3

Page 445



This page is intentionally left blank



Side elevations

Existing

Proposed

Mo 48 outbuildings Mo

Existing ground floor plan
Proposed grou

Scale 1:100 @A3

Page 447



This page is intentionally left blank



Sections proposed

v}
M

17 TT

Mo 48 outbuildings Mo

Existing ground floor plan
Proposed grou

Scale 1:100 @A3

Page 449



This page is intentionally left blank



Block plans

B e
- o L
R

Outbuilding

Garden

Extension

Omiginal property

Diriveway

Propo:

Existing

Page 451



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
20t August 2020

Item No:

UPRN APPLICATION NO. DATE VALID

19/P2747 23/07/2019

Site Address: 33-39 Upper Green East
Mitcham
Surrey
CR4 2PF

Ward: Figges Marsh

Proposal: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF
ANEW FOUR STOREY MIXED USE BUILDING COMPRISING
COMMERCIAL UNITS AT THE GROUND FLOOR LEVEL (USE
CLASSES A1, A2, A3, A5, B1 OR D1) AND 20 x SELF-
CONTAINED FLATS ABOVE (USE CLASS C3); WITH
ASSOCIATED LANSCAPING AND BIN AND CYCLE STORE

Drawing No.’s: 718/002 P3 (Proposed Landscape Plan); 718/009 P4
(Existing/Proposed Upper Green East Elevation); 718/010 P4
(Proposed Ground Floor Plan); 718/011 P4 (Proposed First
Floor Plan); 718/012 P4 (Proposed Second Floor Plan); 718/013
P4 (Proposed Third Floor Plan); 718/015 P4 (Proposed Roof
Plan); 718/020 Rev P4 (Proposed Section AA); 718/021 P4
(Proposed Section BB); 718/022 Rev P4 (Proposed Section
CC); 718/023 P2 (Proposed Enlarged Section); 718/025 P4
(Proposed West Elevation); 718/026 P3 (Proposed East
Elevation); 718/027 P4 (Proposed South Elevation); 718/028 P4
(Proposed North Elevation).

Documents: 33-39 Upper Green East Design Statement Issue 5

(07 February 2020); 33-39 Upper Green East Mitcham
Supplementary Design Statement (June 2020).

Contact Officer: Catarina Cheung (020 8545 4747)

RECOMMENDATION

Grant Permission Subject to Section 106 Obligation or any other enabling agreement,
and relevant conditions.

CHECKLIST INFORMATION

* |s a screening opinion required: No

Page 453



23

24

2.5

Is an Environmental Statement required: No

Has an Environmental Statement been submitted: No

Press notice: Yes

Design Review Panel consulted: Reviewed by DRP during pre-application stage, but
not for the main application

Number of neighbours consulted: 77

Controlled Parking Zone: No, but adjacent to Zones MTC and MTC2, and in close
proximity to Zone MTC1

Archaeological Zone: Yes, Tier 2

Conservation Area: No, but in close proximity to Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation
toward the south of the application site

Listed Building: No

Trees: None on the site

INTRODUCTION
The application is being brought to the Planning Applications Committee for
determination due to the nature and number of objections received.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS
The application site, approximately 974sqm, is sited on the eastern side of Upper
Green East in Mitcham.

The site comprises 2 buildings:

33-35 Upper Green East is a three storey flat roof building toward the street elevation.
The ground floor comprising two shops, a ‘PCG Pizza & Chicken Grill’ and barbers
‘New Kutz Barbers’ with residential units on the upper levels accessed from the
side/rear. Toward the rear are two storey buildings, former works building dating from
approximately the 1950s with an open yard to its south, accessed from Upper Green
East through the frontage gap (of around 3.5m) between buildings 33-35 and 37-39. A
bakery occupies the ground floor of the former works building;

The building of 37-39 Upper Green East dates from approximately the 1930s, and is a
two storeys hipped roof building, with accommodation in the roof level. On the ground
floor is a retail unit ‘Ronnie’s Cutter’, with flats above which are accessed from the rear.

The site is within Mitcham Town Centre which is a primary shopping area, the eastern
side of Upper Green East is designated as secondary shopping frontage.

Adjoining north of 33-35 Upper Green East is a three storey flat roof building, on the
ground floor serving Barclays Bank and the upper levels residential units accessed
from the rear of the building. At the rear of number 33-35 is a single storey building of
13m depth. Toward the rear (east) of 37-39 Upper Green East is Regal Court, a small
scale cul-de-sac of social housing, terrace dwellings of two storey (with pitched roof)
height. And toward the south of the application site is a simple two storey flat roof
building currently serving a locksmith’s on the ground floor, with a residential unit
above. Between the site and the locksmiths shop is the vehicular and pedestrian
access path into Regal Court.

The site does not contain a Listed building and is not within a Conservation Area.
Toward the south lies Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation Area. 55 Upper Green

Page 454



26

3.2

3.4

3.5

3.6

East is a Grade Il Listed Building, 49 and 51 Upper Green East are designated as
locally listed buildings. The site is within an Archaeological Priority Zone (Tier 2).

The site has a PTAL rating of 4 (measured on a scale of 0 to 6b, 0 being the worst),
adjacent are Controlled Parking Zones MTC and MTC2.

CURRENT PROPOSAL

The proposal seeks to demolish the existing buildings and to erect a 2-4 storey mixed
use building providing a ground floor commercial premises and 20 self-contained units.
The commercial premises would provide a flexible use class of A1, A2, A3, A5, B1 or
D1. The supporting Design and Access Statement set outs: “The ground floor is
configured so that it could be converted into multiple units if required over the lifetime
of the building. It is hoped that the building will attract one large A1 or A3 tenant, which
would be highly compatible with the town centre location. Over the lifetime of the
building other uses may be required which include A2, A5 or B1. The ground floor can
be subdivided so that some A1 or A3 use can be retained even if there are other uses”.

Entrance to the residential development would be from Upper Green East. The main
entrance to the shops also from Upper Green East. From Montrose Gardens, a
commercial service entrance is provided.

Refuse and cycle storage would be located within the footprint of the building on the
ground floor, a waste drop-off collection point provided toward the commercial service
entrance (within the boundary of the site).

The proposed development would occupy the irregular L-shaped plot. The 4 storey
building toward Upper Green East would have a maximum height of 12.7m, the 3
storey building toward the northern-rear would step down to a height of 10m, and
toward the southern-rear would step down to 2 storeys at 7m height. The total depth
of the building would be 46m with a maximum frontage width of approximately 29m.
The building would be externally finished in brick with zinc roofed elements, recessed
bays throughout the building would be rendered in a lavender colour. Along the front
elevation, the upper brick piers and front entrance to the flats would be decorated with
lavender mosaic panels to distinguish the residential aspect.

The proposed dwelling mix would be as follows:

Level Type Storeys | Proposed GIA | Proposed
(sgm) amenity
(sqm)

Unit 1 First 1b2p 1 51.6 12.9
Unit 2 First 1b2p 1 51 7.6
Unit 3 First 1b2p 1 60 13.7
Unit 4 First 1b2p 1 52 5.6

Unit 5 First 1b2p 1 53 5

Unit 6 First 1b2p 1 53 5

Unit 7 First 2b3p 1 68 6.1

Unit 8 First 1b2p 1 51 7.1

Unit 9 Second | 1b2p 1 51.6 12.9
Unit 10 | Second | 1b2p 1 52 7.6

Unit 11 | Second | 1b2p 1 53 6.2

Unit 12 | Second | 1b2p 1 52 6

Unit 13 | Second | 1b2p 1 53 5.5

Page 455



4.1

4.2

4.3

Unit 14 | Second | 1b2p 1 53 5.5
Unit 15 | Second | 2b3p 1 68 6.3
Unit 16 | Second | 1b1p 1 37.9 15.9
Unit 17 | Third 1b2p 1 52 6
Unit 18 | Third 1b2p 1 53 5.5
Unit 19 | Third 1b2p 1 53 5.5
Unit 20 | Third 2b3p 1 68 6.3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

33 Upper Green East

07/P3858: PROVISION OF AN INDOOR MARKET AT THE REAR OF THE GROUND
FLOOR — Refused 12/02/2008

Reason 1 - The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the vehicle movements
associated with loading/unloading of goods in connection with the indoor
market can be undertaken without compromising highway safety/efficiency, and
would be contrary to Policy RN.7 of the Adopted Merton Unitary Development
Plan (October 2003).

Reason 2 - The proposals would result in the loss of employment land, for which
the applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is no demand, or that it is
unsuitable or financially unviable for any employment or community use, to the
detriment of providing and safeguarding employment opportunities in the
Borough and would be contrary to policy E.6 of the Adopted Unitary
Development Plan (October 2003).

07/P1170: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDING AT THE REAR AND ERECTION
OF A EXTENSION ON FOUR FLOORS COMPRISING 12 X SELF CONTAINED
FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, BIN STORAGE AND CAR/BICYCLE
PARKING — Refused 20/08/2007

Reason 1 - The proposal would result in the unacceptable loss of land for
employment purposes, for which the applicant has failed to demonstrate that
the site is not suitable, and would be contrary to policy E6 of the adopted Merton
Unitary Development Plan (October 2003).

Reason 2 - The development due to its scale, siting and massing would be
incongruous and unduly prominent, detrimental to the existing character, layout
and townscape of the area, and would be contrary to policies HS.1, BE.16 and
BE.22 of the adopted Merton Unitary Development Plan (October 2003).

Reason 3 - The proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory standard of
residential environment for future occupiers arising from a failure to provide
adequate amenity space to meet the needs of future occupiers, and would entail
the daylight and sunlight to habitable rooms being dependent upon light
borrowed from neighbouring sites, which could not reasonably be safeguarded
or maintained, to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers, contrary to
policies HS.1, BE.15 and BE.16 of the adopted Merton Unitary Development Plan
(October 2003).

01/P2658: CHANGE OF USE FROM PRINT WORK SHOP TO HAND CAR WASH
AND CAR VALETING CENTRE - Refused 31/01/2002

Reason 1 - The vehicle flows resulting from the proposed car wash and valeting
centre would be likely to compound existing traffic movement problems in
Montrose Gardens and generate conflict between vehicles and pedestrians at
the point of egress on Upper Green East, detrimental to pedestrian and vehicle
safety and the amenities of nearby residential occupiers, contrary to Policies

Page 456



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

412

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

5.1

5.2

M.28, M.29 and M.43 of the Adopted Unitary Development Plan (April 1996) and
Policies PK.2, PK.3 and LU.3 of the Second Deposit Draft Unitary Development
Plan (October 2000).

Reason 2 - The proposed car wash and valeting centre would result in the loss
of employment land contrary to Policy W.9 of the Adopted Unitary Development
Plan (April 1996) and Policies E.1 and E.9 of the Second Deposit Draft Unitary
Development Plan (October 2000).

MER1079/85: USE OF SITE ADJOINING NO 14 MONTROSE GARDENS TO GIVE
ACCESS TO ADJOINING PRINTERS WORK. — Granted 10/02/1986

MIT3281 & MIT3281A: USE OF SITE FOR ACCESS TO BAKERY - Granted
27/03/1958

Historic permissions granted 1958 in relation to stables, hay loft and stalls (MIT3286 &
MIT3328).

Historic permissions granted in the mid-1950s relating to a covered loading yard,
finishing room and stables (MIT2932, MIT2664, MIT2345)

MIT1235: TWO SHOPS WITH FLATS OVER - Granted 27/05/1949

37-39 Upper Green East

20/P1933: APPLICATION TO DETERMINE WHETHER PRIOR APPROVAL IS
REQUIRED IN RESPECT OF THE PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM CLASS A1
(SHOP) TO CLASS D2 (ASSEMBLY AND LEISURE). — Prior approval refused
06/08/2020

Reason - The cumulative floor space of the existing building changing use under
Class J exceeds 200 square metres. Therefore, the proposal would conflict with
Schedule 2, Part 3, Class J, J.1(b) of the General Permitted Development Order
2015 (as amended), and cannot be considered under the prior approval process.
Planning permission would need to be sought.

16/P4225: RETROSPECITVE CONSENT FOR THE DISPLAY OF INTERNALLY-
ILLUMINATED ATM SURROUND. — Granted advertisement consent 21/12/2016

16/P4222: RETENTION OF ATM — Granted 21/12/2016

87/P0717: ERECTION OF AN INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA SIGN AND TWO
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED PROJECTING BOX SIGNS. — Granted 29/06/1987

87/P0402: INSTALLATION OF ALUMINIUM SHOP FRONT. — Granted 20/05/1987
MER1010/68: ILLUMINATED TRANSCOM SIGN. — Granted 13/12/1968
MER1279/73: Two illuminated signs — Granted 11/04/1974

CONSULTATION

External

Public consultation was undertaken by way of letters sent to 77 neighbouring

properties. Major application site and press notices were displayed and advertised.

6 objections, 2 supports and 1 comment were received to the proposal.

Page 457



5.3

54

Comments

The 1 comment received raised the following:

- Increase the pavement width. To enhance the streetscape and provide improved
pavement width for users. | hope you will take the opportunity of widening the
pavement as much as possible in this area; it is currently quite narrow and is a
pinch point, even if the bus stop is moved. To achieve this the front of the new
building may need to be set back a little further from the road than is indicated on
the proposed plans;

- To reduce the risk of fly tipping and anti-social behaviour. Think carefully about the
line and design of the front of the building. The existing building line seems to
extend beyond the fronts of adjoining buildings which, at the corners, will present
an opportunity for fly tipping etc.

Supports
The 2 supports raised the following:

- The development will provide much need good quality housing within the area and
will replace the poor quality building which currently detracts from the character of
the area;

Councillor Geraldine Stanford writes in support, summary of comments as follows:

e This is a welcome development;

e There is long recognised need to attract more quality retail, restaurants and
businesses to Mitcham. But, they will only come if they perceive the footfall in the
area will ensure they make a reasonable profit, and are reluctant because the sites
available are not of sizes/standards that modern businesses require;

e The Rediscover Mitcham scheme sought to increase footfall around the Fair
Green. Whilst this has improved the situation for local visitors/residents, it hasn’t
brought in visitors from further afield. We are hopeful that the new, modern
retail/restaurant/business premises proposed will attract more quality providers as
it is flexible for use as one large space / adapted to 2 or 3 smaller units;

o Several site visits were held with local councillors, Siobhain McDonagh MP, local
organisations, the site owners and architects -who are well known in the borough
for providing good quality buildings and are particularly sensitive regarding heritage
sites. Following these, the plans have been adjusted: height reduced from 5
storeys to 4, residential units from 28 to 20, design and materials have been slightly
adjusted;

e Standard of accommodation is of good quality. Mitcham in dire need of housing,
as well as across the borough. With the lack of available sites to build on, we have
to look to building up, so | believe the small increase in height proposed is negligible
and therefore acceptable.

e PARKING - in view of this planning application, residents in Montrose Gardens are
considering applying for a CPZ. Given the site’s high PTAL, the development will
be car-free. Should Montrose Gardens become a CPZ in the future, we have
requested that residents in the development will not be eligible for resident parking
permits.

o WASTE COLLECTIONS - proposed to be collected from the rear with access from
Montrose Gardens, as some already is. Montrose Gardens is a very narrow cul-
de-sac and vehicular access is already difficult, but understand discussions have
been held with Veolia and they have assured us that they will not have a problem
with this.

Page 458



e DESIGN AND MATERIALS - Concerns have been expressed that the

development is not sympathetic with the village style characteristics of the area.
But, it is virtually impossible to define any particular characteristic applicable to
Mitcham. It was identified as a settlement long before the Roman occupation, and
Mitcham, as it was known by the 7th century, was the site of a Saxon settlement.
So, the current buildings in the surrounding area reflect a range of styles adopted
through many years: from Georgian, Victorian, Edwardian, Art Deco, Mock Tudor,
post WW2, 1950/60’s Modernism with high-rise blocks, Brutalism, and on to the
latter part of the century where a number of generally unsympathetic developments
have cropped up that don'’t really relate to anything.
The architects have made every effort to use materials sympathetic to the
surrounding area, with stock brick in the main, and simple, clean lines with vertical
lighter stonework connecting balconies and shop fronts. Recessed balcony walls
will be lavender mosaic type tiles to reflect light. | would request shop awnings be
changed to dark green to continue the historic Mitcham colours.

¢ COMMERCIAL UNITS — At site meetings, some of us were concerned that this
space may not be taken up given change in shopping habits, leaving it at risk of
being converted to residential. We therefore ask that some kind of condition, if
approved, that include a future plan of how the space could be changed if
commercial units were not taken up within a certain timescale and they would be
converted to residential units of a policy-compliant standard.

o AFFORDABLE SOCIAL HOUSING - Following receipt of information concluding
that the site would be unable to sustain affordable social housing, whilst
disappointing, in the past we have negotiated an agreement with developers, that
if the financial situation changes and the profit margins increase in the future, they
will offer a “clawback” arrangement to compensate. Request that a similar
arrangement be put in place for this application.

¢ No objections to this planning application, but request that the points made above
be considered — namely —

1. Future residents will not be eligible for residents parking permits if a CPZ is
installed in Montrose Gardens.

2. Change the awnings on the ground floor shop fronts from brown to dark
green.

3. Future plans of the ground floor space to be put forward, in the event of a
change of use to residential being applied for.

4. An agreement that developers will offer a “clawback” arrangement if
circumstances change following completion of the development. As
compensation for not providing affordable social housing on site.

Objections
A number of objections were submitted by the Mitcham Society and Mitcham Heritage

and Cricket Green Community & Heritage group, these respond to the various
amendments of the design, which given their nature were not re-consulted. The
Architects directly consulted these groups. Their comments are summarised below
within paragraphs 5.5 and 5.6.

The Mitcham Society raised the following concerns:

September 2019

- Upper Green East is an important part of the retail centre of Mitcham. Mitcham
Society wishes to see no net loss of retail space in any development in Mitcham.
The proposal includes ground floor retail space, mindful that plans can incorporate

Page 459



5.6

retail at planning stage and later removed in a non-material amendment to replace
space with residential. If development is granted, we would expect Merton Council
to apply conditions requiring a) no loss of any retail space in any amendments
subsequent to planning permission being granted without a full planning application
being submitted b) confirmation of 100% retail occupation before any residential
lettings or sales take place;

The development site borders onto Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation Area. The
proposed development would be visible from Three Kings Pond, and its design and
overbearing size will detract from the Conservation Area. It is an inappropriately
large building for the site, and detrimental to the Conservation Area;

4 storeys is too tall for the mid-parade location and presents frontage far too wide
in the context of other buildings to its left and right. This location cannot
accommodate the proposed height or the proposed wide, unbroken frontage;

The proposed building is taller than any other on Upper Green East and is
completely overbearing in its massing;

Allowing this planning application will likely open the door to further development
proposals being even taller, further degrading Mitcham Town Centre;

The proposal would be contrary to Merton’s draft Local Plan policy N3.2, the
proposal development achieves none of the principles of the policy, is detrimental
to the public realm and streetscape, and is poor urban design inappropriate for the
location;

Development in Mitcham needs to live up to both Merton Council’s aspirations and
our own.

November 2019

Nothing we have seen in the communication with the Architects changes our
opinion of this planning application. We still firmly believe this application is entirely
unfit for Mitcham Village in terms of its height, density, relationship to locally listed
buildings and effect on the adjacent conservation area — which is detrimental;
Mitcham Village requires development which is more village-like and rural in scale
and design, any development on this plot must be subservient to all other buildings
in the same parade;

Development will be visible from Three Kings Pond;

Fair Green has some distinctive Victorian and 1930s buildings, it is disingenuous
and lazy to fall back to playing the ‘Georgian card’. Moreover, a 4 storey block style
building is not compatible Georgian or otherwise;

Lavender motif/mosaic panels, referring to Mitcham’s lavender related history is
too frequently wheeled out, unclear how these details highlight residential and does
not mitigate concerns about height, massing and extensive frontage;

Unsatisfied with the absence of any affordable housing.

February 2020

Unbroken horizontal white band between the retail and residential aspects creates
a new visual intrusion into the streetscape;

Massed mosaic adds to the confusion of materials and colours and bears no
relationship to its surrounds;

Form and massing is unchanged, all comments in 2 previous representations still
stand.

The Mitcham Cricket Green Community & Heritage raised the following concerns:
September 2019

We support representations made by the Mitcham Society;
Redevelopment in central Mitcham should respect its village character and draw
on its rich history, regret that the current proposals do neither;

Page 460



5.7

Object to the planning application because its height and bulk will impact negatively
on the visual relationship between Fair Green and Mitcham Cricket Green
Conservation Area along Upper Green East and Commonside West, including both
the Listed buildings and the open space that begins at Three Kings Pond;
Excessive height, scale and mass that is inappropriate to central Mitcham’s
townscape and lacks nearby precedent;

Proposals present misleading information on the relationship with the height of the
adjacent bank building;

Lack of detail in the proposed retail uses, no guarantee that these will not be
subject to future proposals to convert to residential use;

Lack of attention to the relationship with potential development at the rear of bank;
Proposals fail to resolve the degraded public realm in Regal Court;

Lack of affordable housing.

November 2019

Proposed changes do not address the fundamental issues relating to the new
developments height and bulk;

The development would be visible from Three Kings Pond and would have a
significant negative impact on views from the Conservation Area, presenting a
bland and incongruous elevation;

Concerned by the implication that adding lavender mosaic tiles to “reflect
Mitcham’s history” is an appropriate design response, this design response fails to
draw inspiration of authentic design details in the local area;

January 2020

Do not support the proposed change to the front elevation of the scheme to
introduce a bold, white, horizontal band as a “commercial canopy” above the retail
units. This serves only to emphasise the bulk of the new building and is more
intrusive to the streetscape;

Concerned by the continuing bland and incongruous side elevation toward the
Conservation Area;

Comments in 2 previous representations still stand.

Other objections are summarised as below:

Inappropriate height of the development, adding another floor over and above
anything else in the current streetscene. The solid ‘block’ of the building towards
the rear would be apparent from a distance, adding to its overpowering feel;

No architectural merit in the design shown at all, presents a monolith of an awful
order, drab and boring/uniform in colour which will stick out like a sore thumb;
Mitcham presents a variety and diversity of different architectural styles, the
opportunity here is for striking originality and individuality. Instead, the proposed
replacement building is destroying the fabric of Mitcham;

Lack of affordable housing;

Although welcome to the existing buildings being demolished, 4 storey
replacement is not in keeping with neighbouring buildings and would dominate
Mitcham Town Centre. 2 storeys would be welcome;

Impact light toward residents on Montrose Gardens;

Ugly, far too high and brutalist construction;

The proposal aims to use the historical ambience of the site, but at the same time
destroying it;

Does not object to the principle of the site being redeveloped and recognises the
proposal will contribute provision of housing within the borough and improve the
streetscene, but objects to the current design and layout. The north elevation
contains 2 large openings on the first and second floors, external walkways with

Page 461



5.8

5.9

window openings, these openings would significantly restrict the full development
potential of the adjoining site and viability of any neighbouring redevelopment.

GLAAS. Archaeology — Following review of the archaeological desk-based

assessment (CGMS, June 2019), it is clear that there is some potential for
archaeological remains to survive on the site. An archaeological evaluation is
recommended to test for the survival of archaeological remains.

I have looked at this proposal and at the Greater London Historic Environment Record.
| advise that the development could cause harm to archaeological remains and field
evaluation is needed to determine appropriate mitigation. However, although the NPPF
envisages evaluation being undertaken prior to determination, in this case
consideration of the nature of the development, the archaeological interest and/or
practical constraints are such that | consider a two-stage archaeological condition
could provide an acceptable safeguard. This would comprise firstly, evaluation to
clarify the nature and extend of surviving remains, followed, if necessary, by a full
investigation. | therefore recommend conditions to be attached.

Design Review Panel — During the pre-application stage, the scheme was put forward

to the Design Review Panel on 22" November 2018. Notes from the meeting:

The Panel noted the important and prominent location of the site. In finding an
appropriate contextual cues, it was suggested that the character of the space of Fair
Green was possibly more important than the buildings surrounding it, as most did not
stand out as being of architectural note. It was felt that this character was mostly based
on narrow plot widths and strong vertical frontages. The proposed building did not do
this, being clearly a single building with a stronger horizontal emphasis.

There were a number of aspects of the design that were creating this. This included
the positioning and varied projection of the balconies and not continuing the ground
level vertical columns through the rest of the elevation in some manner. The Panel
recommended that the building needed greater vertical emphasis and that is should
perhaps appear as two or more separate buildings of different heights, but with a strong
vertical form reflecting the four individual plots.

In terms of height the Panel felt that the site was over developed, and particularly at
the rear, where it could prejudice redevelopment of the Barclays Bank site. Building
right to the edge of the site did not help in this. This was particularly evident regarding
the small north-facing light-wells to bedrooms. With further development to the north
would lead to even poorer light levels to bedrooms. A reciprocal development on the
Barclays site needed to be imagined which worked in this respect and it was unlikely
that 5 storeys would work. There was some suggestion that 2 storeys was appropriate
for the rear in order to have an acceptable impact on Regal Court and not prejudice
development of Barclays.

The Panel were concerned about the overbearing effect the building would have on
the already stark space of Regal Court. This also included short distances between
buildings and front/back issues regarding privacy. There was also particular concern
about the quality of the main entrance to the building from the side alley — which felt
like a service yard. It was felt it was not sufficiently prominent or overlooked and was
cramped internally. It was suggested that it form part of an active frontage facing
directly on to Fair Green, which could also help break up this frontage better.

Page 462



5.10

The alley to Regal Court was a general concern, especially that it was unlikely to be
able to gate it. The potential for anti-social behaviour needed to be better designed out
in terms of the elevation as well. The projecting vertical elements dividing up the
ground floor provided places for concealment, as did the kink back to the elevation of
Barclays Bank, and the building should be set back to be in line with it to smoothly
continue the building line. This would also widen the footway and create more ‘dwell
time’ for pedestrians and shoppers.

The Panel felt that putting the bins to the rear was appropriate. The access to the upper
communal terrace could be simplified. The internal communal amenity space was
welcomed in principle but was felt that it was small and would be heavily overshadowed
and might not be a pleasant space. The Panel also noted that the rights of light study
had not yet been done and that this may point towards a different approach for the rear
of the site. The Panel also asked about the ration of unit sizes, how they related to
council policy and whether disabled units required parking spaces.

Verdict: AMBER

Internal

Urban Design officer —

Townscape analysis: There is a distinctive difference between approaches from the
east and west, compared to those from the north and south, when entering Fair Green.

From the north and south — that is, from London Road, the Green is entered abruptly
and a wide, though not long, vista is opened out, creating corners on the built form as
it does so. These are visible across the Green from each side, and these are
appropriate and logical positions to position local landmark buildings. Indeed, this is
where some are found. For example, the Kings Head PH to the north, and Fair Green
Parade to the south. There is scope to improve and strengthen this townscape with
future development, notably at Poundland at Nos. 1-3 Majestic Way and Poundstore
at No. 1 Upper Green East. To the south Sahana at No. 225 London Road turns the
corner positively but has no real flank elevation presenting itself to the Green, which is
partly covered by large advertising hoardings.

From the east and west — the townscape experience is distinctively different, with a
more gentle form. Here the Green opens out gently and gradually, rather than abruptly.
This presents a long view and emerging vista. This is not of landmarks but of rows of
individual buildings making up a collective, linear built form that gives shape, scale and
enclosure to the Green (black zig-zags on plan). The key component of this form is the
small and narrow plot widths that collectively consist of different buildings of slightly
different appearance and heights. It is a canvas of buildings that creates a strong
frontage as one moves through the Green eastwards or westwards (though it is
particularly apparent going eastwards, where the application site is located). These
frontages are complemented on the south side of the green as well, though just less
visible than those on the north side.

Most notably at the eastern end the north and south frontages (or edges) to the Green
narrow back again (having moved through the open space) to a pinch-point near the
junction with Clarendon Grove, before opening out again onto Three Kings Piece
(around the pond) and into Mitcham Common. If there is any justification in townscape
terms in this part of the Green, it is at this pinch point — though this is not necessary —
but certainly not at the location of the application site, as the form itself creates a clear
sense of ‘here and there’.

Page 463



The result of the failure to properly understand the site’s correct place, setting and
purpose in the Green has led to an inappropriate architectural solution. This is shown
by the insistence of the bowed out frontage — like a ‘puffed out’ chest trying to draw
attention to itself, and the mirrored symmetrical form of the building, rather than it
making any attempt to give a visual reference in the elevation of the four historic plots
on which it is situated. Indeed, although the internal arrangement of the ground floor is
loosely divided into four, this is not reflected in the exterior, which is divided up further
and very fragmented in this form.

Frontage analysis: The applicant’s frontage analysis is fundamentally flawed and
simply incorrect. However, what the applicant does is to identify the existing historic
plot widths for the buildings either side of the site, then totally ignore them for the
application site. The drawing for some reason divides the site up into six (red dotted
lines), where there is no precedent for this — the number just seems to be plucked
randomly from mid-air. The analysis of historical maps does not indicate a division into
six (and the plans shown are not sufficiently detailed for this anyway) whichever era is
viewed.

The lower of the two plans shows the applicants proposal superimposed in the frontage
elevation. Here the proposed building is now based on dividing the site up into eight
sections. Furthermore, the building form itself bears no relation to these divisors either.
This begs the question of the purpose of this analysis that seems contrived to justify
the elevation design but yet fails even to do this.

What the analysis should show is the site divided into four, as this, by virtue of the
addresses (which in this case are based on the historic plot divisions — there being no
other historical reference). These notes show this superimposed on the applicant’s
plans — black for those used by the applicant and purple for where the other divisors
should be. The elevation should be based on this fundamental base in order for it to
produce a building that fits into the wider frontage and its importance as demonstrated
by the townscape analysis.

Building design frontage: Based on the analysis above, the approach needs to be of a
built form that ‘fits in’ with the long collective linear frontage. This clearly implies a
simple form of elevation that is based on proportions that emphasise the vertical form
of the four plot widths. It also implies a relatively flat plane of building — similar to
Georgian/early Victorian forms. Too much fragmentation of form will draw attention
unduly to the building and make it stand out. Too many planes of elevation and it will
appear chunky and not human in scale.

Unfortunately, this is exactly what the building form does. Itis composed of large format
protruding and recessed built elements through which an over-chunky and large retail
signage fascia has been overlaid. Balconies need to be dealt with within an overall
building envelope or sited to the rear. They also need to have solid balustrades to hide
personal belongings. Traditional format shop-fronts with appropriate human scale
proportions are also necessary. The resultant effect is a very chunky series of forms
that has no human scale elements. This visually intrudes into Fair Green in an entirely
unacceptable manner and is very unconstrained. A far simpler form is required. The
architecture appears designed to be viewed from a fast moving vehicle from a distance,
rather than having the richness, simplicity and human scale necessary in a small urban
green.

Key guiding elements:
e Divide building clearly into four units

Page 464



5.11

e Strong vertical emphasis by dividing frontage into four, backed up by

window arrangements

Secondary horizontal emphasis

Separate shopfronts

Clear and generous residential entrance with convenient cycle access

Potential for direct access stairs to ‘flats above shops’

Simple built form limiting planes of elevation

Keep balconies within the building envelope to preserve a single plane of

elevation or relocate to rear

e In plan, do not ‘bow out’ elevation but curve gently with four straight
elevations on slightly changing alignments — this will help with the vertical
emphasis

The comments provided above respond to an earlier version of the scheme from

January 2020. Since then, the following amendments have been carried out to address

these comments:

Externally

- Removal of the singular bold, horizontal shop front signage across the front
elevation. Shop fronts divided to provide 4 areas of shop signage;

- 4 brick piers of the upper levels continued through to the ground floor level to
provide vertical emphasis.

Internally
- On the ground floor, the residential cycle store and bin store have been swapped

to group the bins closer to the waste collection point and cycle stores toward the
entrance;

- At the entrance of the residential units, an enlarged ‘matwell’ area proposed
removing the secondary entrance door providing a more spacious entrance area,
would also allow residents to easily manoeuver with bicycles.

More details are provided on the amendments made to the January 2020 scheme
within paragraph 7.3.4, and the impact of these amendments to the design described
from paragraph 7.3.9 onwards.

Transport officer —
The site is not located within a Controlled Parking Zone and consequently the
surrounding streets do not contain parking restrictions.

Access: Development has direct frontage to Upper Green East. The main pedestrian
access will be directly from Upper Green East. The commercial service access will be
directly from Montrose Gardens located north of the development site, which leads to
the bin stores and bicycle stores for the residential and commercial uses (as per the
existing situation).

PTAL: The site is located in an area with a PTAL of 4 which is very good being well
located to all the services and facilities afforded by the district centre.

Trip Generation: Based on the TRICS trip rates the proposed development is predicted
to generate no additional car movements in the morning peak hour and an increase of
9 car movements in the evening peak hour. The low level of trip generation is expected
to result in a negligible effect on the adjoining highway network and will therefore have
no material impact on parking, capacity or safety.

Page 465



The existing development is predicted to generate 4 LGV movement in the morning
peak hour and 2 LGV movements in the evening peak hour, whereas no service vehicle
movements are anticipated for the proposed development in the peak hours.
Therefore there would be no material impact resulting from the vehicle movements
generated by the proposed development, and the applicant has concluded that it is
unnecessary to assess the impact on the road network.

Car Parking: The proposal does not provide on-site parking for the residential units.
Permit free option would be acceptable subject to the applicant enters into a Unilateral
Undertaking, which would restrict future occupiers of the units from obtaining an on-
street residential parking permit to park in the surrounding controlled parking zones to
be secured by via S106 legal agreement.

Disabled Parking Provision — Residential: Policy T6.1 (draft London Plan): Disabled
persons parking should be provided for new residential developments. Residential
development proposals delivering ten or more units must, as a minimum:

1) Ensure that at least one designated disabled persons parking bay per dwelling for
3% of dwellings is available from the outset.

2) Demonstrate on plan and as part of the Car Parking Design and Management
Plan, how the remaining bays to a total of 1% dwelling for 10% of dwellings can be
requested and provided when required as designated disabled persons parking in
the future. If disabled persons parking provision is not sufficient, spaces should be
provided when needed either upon first occupation of the development or in the
future.

Disabled Parking Provision — Commercial: All non-residential elements of a
development should provide at least one on or off-site disabled persons parking bay.
The proposal does not provide off street disabled parking provision.

To satisfy the above disabled parking provision for both Residential and commercial
units the applicant to bear the cost of two of street disabled parking spaces (location
to be decided by the highway authority). The Council will therefore seek a financial
contribution of £20,000 for the provision of 2 disabled persons, which should have
electric charge points.

Cycle Parking Standard: Cycle parking should be installed on site in accordance with
London Plan standards on cycle parking for new residential developments. The
London Plan and London Housing SPG Standard 20 (Policy 6.9) states all
developments should provide dedicated storage space for cycles at the following level:
1 per studio and one bed dwellings and 2 per all other dwellings. The proposed
residential units comprises 17x one bed units and 3 x 2 bed units. In order to meet the
standards, set out in the London Plan, the proposal should provide 23 long term cycle
parking spaces for residential units. The submitted plans show 24 cycle spaces, this
would satisfy the London Plan standards.

Commercial cycle parking: Cycle parking for A3 use should be 1 cycle parking space
per 175m? for long stay purposes and 1 cycle parking space per 40m? for short stay.
This amounts to a need for 2 long stay and 12 short stay cycle spaces for the A3 unit
(463m?). 6 no. cycle spaces are shown next to the staff room behind the lockers. The
12 no. short stay visitor spaces should be located to the front of the Commercial units.

Refuse: Waste collection points should be located within 30 metres of residential units
and within 10 metres of collection vehicles.

Page 466



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Car Club membership: Each residential unit should be provided with a 3 year car club
membership funded by the developer.

Recommendation: The proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
adjoining highway. Therefore, raise no objection subject to:

e Condition requiring cycle parking provision.

e Financial contribution for provision of disabled bays with electric charging
points (£20,000).

e Unilateral undertaking which would restrict future occupiers of the units from
obtaining an on-street residential parking permit to park in the surrounding
controlled parking zones to be secured by via S106 legal agreement”.

e Demolition/Construction Logistic Plan (including a Construction Management
plan in accordance with TfL guidance) should be submitted to LPA for approval
before commencement of work.

Climate Change — Following provision of further information requested by the Council’s
Climate Change officer, the evidence is now considered consistent with meeting the
GLA and Merton’s Climate Change policies.

Pre-occupation conditions have been recommended in relation to the carbon
emissions and internal water consumption of the development, and a S106 agreement
would be required for the carbon offset cash in lieu contribution prior to planning
approval. The cash in lieu contribution will be collected according to the methodology
outlined in the Mayor’s Energy Assessment Guidance 2018.

Environmental Health — No overall objections but would recommend the inclusion of
certain conditions to protect the future and existing residents in the area.

And should the use classes A3 and/or A5 be implemented, additional conditions are
also recommended to ensure the control of odour and drainage serving the
commercial part of the premises.

Waste services — The developer should confirm that measures will be in place to move
the communal bins on collection day to the collection point, and whether the applicant
has permission to store bins at the collection point from 6am on collection day.

The collection crew will only pick up bins from the collection point as stated by the
developer on the collection day and this will include the food waste.

Met Police - Secure by Design — Various security measures recommended to enable
the building to achieve Secure by Design Accreditation. A two part condition has been
recommended by the Designing out Crime officer to be attached to the grant of
planning permission.

POLICY CONTEXT

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework (2019):
Part 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Part 6 Building a strong, competitve economy

Part 7 Ensuring the vitality of town centres

Part 9 Promoting sustainable transport

Part 11 Making effective use of land

Part 12 Achieving well-designed places

Page 467



6.2

6.3

Part 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Part 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

London Plan 2016:

3.3 Increasing housing supply

3.4 Optimising housing potential

3.5 Quality and design of housing developments

3.8 Housing choice

3.9 Mixed and balanced communities

3.10 Definition of affordable housing

3.11 Affordable housing targets

3.12 Negotiating affordable housing

3.13 Affordable housing thresholds

4.1 Developing London’s economy

4.7 Retail and town centre development

4.8 Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector and related facilities and services
5.1 Climate change mitigation

5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

5.3 Sustainable design and construction

5.7 Renewable energy

5.9 Overheating and cooling

5.10 Urban greening

5.13 Sustainable drainage

5.17 Waste Capacity

6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
6.9 Cycling

6.11 Smoothing traffic flow and easing congestion
6.13 Parking

7.2 An Inclusive environment

7.3 Designing out crime

7.4 Local character

7.5 Public realm

7.6 Architecture

7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology

7.15 Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes
8.2 Planning obligations

8.3 Community infrastructure levy

Merton Sites and Policies Plan July 2014 policies:

DM D1 Urban design and the public realm

DM D2 Design considerations in all developments

DM D4 Managing heritage assets

DM D7 Shop front design and signage

EM EP2 Reducing and mitigating noise

DM H2 Housing mix

DM H3 Support for affordable housing

DM R1 Location and scale of development in Merton’s town centres and
neighbourhood parades

DM R4 Protection of shopping facilities within designated shopping frontages
DM T1 Support for sustainable transport and active travel

DM T2 Transport impacts of development

DM T3 Car parking and servicing standards

DM T5 Access to road network

Page 468



6.4

6.5

7.2

7.21

7.2.2

7.2.3

Merton Core Strateqy 2011 policy:

CS 2 Mitcham sub-area

CS 7 Centres

CS 8 Housing choice

CS 9 Housing provision

CS 12 Economic development

CS 14 Design

CS 15 Climate change

CS 17 Waste management

CS 18 Transport

CS 20 Parking servicing and delivery

Supplementary planning documents

Accessible London SPG — October 2014

London Housing SPG 2016

Technical Housing standards — nationally described space standards 2015
Affordable Housing and Viability SPG — August 2017

Merton’s Waste and Recycling Storage Requirements — For Commercial and
Residential Premises in the London Borough of Merton

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The key planning considerations of the proposal are as follows:
- Principle of development

- Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the area
- Impact upon neighbouring amenity

- Standard of accommodation

- Transport, parking and cycle storage

- Refuse

- Sustainability

- Affordable housing

- Other matters

- Developer contributions

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

Increase of residential development

The National Planning Policy Framework, London Plan Policy 3.3 and the Council’s
Core Strategy Policy CS8 and CS9 all seek to increase sustainable housing provision
and access to a mixture of dwelling types for the local community, providing that an
acceptable standard of accommodation would be provided. Policy 3.3 of the London
Plan 2016 also states that boroughs should seek to enable additional development
capacity which includes intensification, developing at higher densities.

The emerging London Plan, now accorded moderate weight in recent appeal decisions
issued by the Secretary of State, and anticipated to be adopted in the coming months,
will signal the need for a step change in the delivery of housing in Merton. Table 3.1 of
the London Plan identifies that LBM has an annual housing target of 411 units, or 4,107
over the next ten years. However, this minimum target is set to increase significantly
to 918 set out in the ‘London Plan Examination in Public Panel Report Appendix: Panel
Recommendations October 2019’, and which is expected to be adopted later this year.

Policy H1 ‘Increasing housing supply’ (Draft London Plan Policy) and Table 4.1 of the
draft London Plan sets Merton a ten-year housing completion target of 13,280 units

Page 469



724

7.2.5

7.2.6

7.2.7

7.2.8

7.2.9

7.2.10

between 2019/20 and 2028/29 (increased from the existing 10-year target of 4,107 in
the current London Plan). However, following the Examination in Public (mentioned
above) this figure of 13,280 has been reduced to 9,180.

Merton’s latest Annual Monitoring Report 2018/19 concludes that:

e In the years 2011-2016, 2,573 new homes were delivered which is 52% over the
target;

o Forthe years 2021-26, the provision of additional homes is projected at 3,269 new
homes, 59% over the target;

¢ All of the home completions this financial year were on small sites of less than 0.25
hectares in size. All of the schemes except one delivered 10 homes or fewer, with
one scheme of 11 homes;

¢ Merton has always exceeded the London Plan housing target, apart from 2009/10
and this year 2018/19.

But, with the anticipated increased annual target of 918 units in the draft London Plan
(paragraph 7.2.3), this will prove considerably more challenging and will require a step
change in housing delivery within Merton. So against this background, officers
consider that an increased number residential dwellings are welcomed.

Town centre uses

Merton Core Strategy Policy CS 2 seeks to improve the overall environment of
Mitcham town centre by providing quality shopping, housing, community facilities and
good transport links. By, creating a viable town centre through improving the quality of
commercial, retail, residential and community uses; improving the quality and mix of
homes including affordable and private housing and enhancing the public realm
through high quality urban design and architecture, improvements to shop fronts,
public spaces and connectivity to the town centre.

Policy DM R1 seeks to protect the viability and character of Merton’s town centres and
neighbourhood parades whilst ensuring that there are a wide range of town centre type
uses to meet the everyday needs of Merton’s residents.

Whilst the proposal would entail demolition of the existing 2 buildings and removal of
their commercial premises, the replacement mixed used building will propose similarly
appropriate uses reflecting the above policy objectives of retaining commercial viability
and vitality of the Town Centre and its shopping frontages. The enlarged ground floor
commercial premises will provide a unit of flexible use (A1, A2, A3, A5, B1 or D1), to
hopefully be occupied by a single retail user but with potential of splitting into smaller
units if required to allow for multiple occupiers.

The proposed use of the development will continue to deliver a commercial space
within the building to offer services and shopping opportunities for Mitcham while also
responding to the need for increased housing delivery through the intensification of the
site.

However, whilst the proposed re-development of the site is considered acceptable with
its increased intensification to introduce a larger commercial premises and increased
number of residential units, the development scheme is also subject to all other
planning considerations being equally fulfilled and compliant with the policies referred
to in Section 6.

Page 470



Housing mix

7.2.11 Policy DM H2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan requires development to create
socially mixed communities, catering for all sectors of the community by providing a
choice of housing with respect to dwelling size and type in the borough. Residential
development proposals will be considered favourably where they contribute to meeting
the needs of different households such as families with children, single person
households and older people by providing a mix of dwelling sizes, taking account of
the borough level indicative proportions concerning housing mix. Policy 3.8 of the
London Plan requires new developments offer a genuine choice of homes that
Londoners can afford and which meet their requirements for different sizes and types
of dwellings in the highest quality environment.

7.2.12 The scheme provides the following unit mix:
- 17 x 1-bed units (85%)
- 3 x 2-bed units (15%)

7.2.13 The proposals would deviate from the indicative housing mix set out in the Sites and
Policies Plan which envisages a broadly equal split between 1, 2 and 3 bedroom (and
larger) units. This mix is informed by a number of factors, including Merton’s
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA 2010). Further work is being
undertaken as part of the preparation of a new local plan. Merton’s Strategic Housing
Needs (Market) Assessment was published in July 2019.

7.2.14 Mitcham has the highest percentage of 3 bedroom houses than the borough average
(based on 2011 census data) and so, an assessment is required as to whether a focus
on smaller units would be harmful to the area and whether by focusing on smaller units
the development fulfils other planning objectives such as optimising housing output.

7.2.15 The site is within the centre of the Mitcham Town Centre, an area of high public
transport accessibility, so greatly attractive to those needing to regularly commute and
can rely less on the use of cars. Furthermore, the site fronts onto the high street with
limited space to deliver gardens which would be expected for a more traditional family
dwelling setting, accommodation for families are also more attractive with the provision
of car parking facilities.

7.2.16 So, whilst the proposal of only smaller units would not strictly adhere to the indicative
borough mix set out above, the proposed housing mix would in fact respond realistically
to the characteristics of the site and its location whilst still promoting policy objectives
of Policies 3.8 and 3.9 of the London Plan. Therefore, officers consider that the
proposed housing mix would be acceptable in this instance.

7.3 CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE

7.3.1 The NPPF states that developments should function well and add to the overall quality
of the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development.
Developments should ensure that they are visually attractive as a result of good
architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping and are sympathetic to
local character and history, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation
or change (such as increased densities).

7.3.2 Policies CS14, DMD1 & DMD2 require that new development reflect the best elements
of the character of the surrounding area, or have sufficient distinctive merit so that the
development would contribute positively to the character and appearance of the built
environment. Policy DM D2 of Merton’s Sites and Policies Plan requires development

Page 471



7.3.3

7.34

7.3.5

7.3.6

to relate positively and appropriately to the siting, rhythm, scale, density, proportions,
height, materials and massing of surrounding buildings and existing street patterns,
historic context, urban layout and landscape features of the surrounding area and to
use appropriate architectural forms, language, detailing and materials which
complement and enhance the character of the wider setting. The requirement for good
quality design is further supported by the London Plan London Plan Policies 7.4 and
7.6.

Alterations from the initially submitted scheme to the present proposal:

- Communal amenity area and external walkway opened up on the first floor to
provide clear access between the spaces;

- Flat 1 and 2’s terraces separated to provide better privacy, and an increased green
roof area provided;

- External walkways on second and third floor to reduce conflict with planters and to
provide improved accessible access;

- Plant room introduced to third floor, accessed from the lobby/lift area.

Comments set out in Section 5 by the Urban Design officer relate to an earlier version

of the scheme from January 2020. Since then, the following amendments have also

been carried out to address comments by officers:

Externally

- Removal of the singular bold, horizontal shop front signage across the front
elevation. Shop fronts divided to provide 4 areas of shop signage;

- 4 brick piers of the upper levels continued through to the ground floor level to
provide vertical emphasis.

Internally
- On the ground floor, the residential cycle store and bin store have been swapped

to group the bins closer to the waste collection point, and provide a doorway
between the refuse and cycle areas which would also assist with better containing
i.e. smells;

- At the entrance of the residential units, an enlarged ‘matwell’ area proposed
removing the secondary entrance door providing a more spacious entrance area,
would also allow residents to easily manoeuver with bicycles;

- Increased planters outside the kitchen windows of the flats toward the western end
of the building, providing an increased defensible space from the communal
amenity area/walkways;

- Terrace of Flat 1. Reduced balustrade on southern end to provide better light and
outlook;

- Terrace of Flats 2 and 10. Increased depth and reduced balustrade on southern
end to provide better light and outlook;

- Terrace and bedroom window of Flat 3 amended to provide better privacy.

The existing buildings are not identified as those of particular architectural or historical
interest within the Town Centre and the quality of the buildings are also noticeably in
poor condition, therefore their loss is not considered to be detrimental to the Town
Centre or Upper Green East streetscene.

The comments provided by the Design Review Panel in paragraph 5.9 relate to a
building of 5 storeys toward the front and rear. The design has since evolved, the
proposed height toward the streetscene would exhibit 4 storeys stepping down to 2
and 3 storeys at the rear. The variation in height is considered acceptable as this
fragments the building form so that it better responds to its surrounding dwellings,
rather than being viewed as a singular building block.

Page 472



7.3.7

7.3.8

7.3.9

7.3.10

7.3.11

7.3.12

7.3.13

Viewed from the streetscene, the 1 storey increase from adjoining 29-31 Upper Green
East is not considered dominant nor the 2 storey increase from number 41 — which is
set back by around 4m. The rear would step down to 3 storeys, matching the roof ridge
of the Regal Court buildings, and toward the southern boundary steps down to 2
storeys responding to 41 Upper Green East.

Toward the adjoining site, the design at the pre-application stage proposed a number
of north-facing lightwells serving bedrooms (as mentioned in paragraph 5.9), therefore,
it was considered future development would lead to even poorer light levels and
outlook to the bedrooms if it enclosed these lightwells. Here, the design has been re-
configured to feature external walkways along the boundary elevation. If future
development were to build along the boundary (though noted not currently any
intentions to do so), it is not considered the flats accessed from the external walkway
would be negatively impacted. The windows of these 4 flats serve bathrooms and
secondary bedroom windows, but toward the south these bedrooms would benefit from
a larger window with access to an external terrace.

The Urban Design officer's comments set out that the applicant has identified the
existing historical plot widths for the buildings either side of the site, but this is not
clearly shown in the proposed design on the application site. The design presented at
the pre-application stage also failed to correctly identify this, “being clearly a single
building with a stronger horizontal emphasis”.

Initially submitted, the design of the vertical columns and shop fronts retained the idea
of presenting a singular building form. With the shopping frontage clearly presented for
a single retail user rather than one which reflected the plot widths of area and where
potential division could be accommodated if occupied by multiple users. The design
which the Urban Design officer commented presented a scheme with a bold single
horizontal panel tying all the shop fronts and breaking the connection of the ground
floor with the upper levels, thereby losing any sense of verticality and departing from
the surrounding shopping frontage and sense of narrower plot widths.

However, the design has been amended since, with a further supplementary Design

and Access statement submitted setting out:

“It is important that the ground floor has symmetry and unity for the following reasons:

e The ground floor commercial use is intended to be let to a single, key anchor
operator who can help revitalise Mitcham Town Centre. A commercial operator will
want a good presence on the Green and maximum visibility.

e Although, over the lifetime of the building, the frontage could still be let as three
separate shops, this is a not the primary intention, but a fall back position to
increase the economic sustainability and robustness of the development”.

Officers consider the site should not present a singular building toward the streetscene
in order to respect the existing plot widths and continue the rhythm of frontages along
the Town Centre. It is noted that the proposed building design has intentions of creating
a commercial premises to accommodate and attract a large single retail user, but,
whilst this may be the intention of the future shop use, the external design needs to
be better executed to ensure whilst it delivers the architect’s vision of symmetry, this
should not be its central focus as it wrongly steers the building to be viewed as a
singular form which detaches itself from the pattern of the neighbouring buildings and
frontages.

Therefore, the amended design has removed the single horizontal signage band,
which was shown in the January 2020 plans and was described as “over-chunky”, and

Page 473



7.3.14

7.3.15

7.3.16

7.4

741

7.4.2

743

divides the elevation into 4 potential frontages by re-connecting the vertical piers with
those on the ground floor, carefully selecting those equidistance from each other. The
pattern of vertical columns currently proposed also differ from those in the original
design submitted in 2019, those vertical columns were more consistent throughout the
frontage and designed to emphasise symmetry, and created more fragmented signage
areas which strongly highlighted a central entrance feature for a single shop.

The vertical columns in the current proposal are more prominently 4 piers, showing 4
potential shop frontages. So, whilst the design remains with a slight bowed projection
and a central entrance door, the division of the front elevation with 4 regular brick piers
ensures there is appropriate verticality which allows viewing of the building as different
columned elements — a darker engineering brick between the more prominent main
brick piers subtly sets itself apart from the dividing columns so that it would be viewed
as 4 parts. As justified in the applicant’s supplementary design and access statement:
“The vertical division of the frontage into four, and mirror-imaging balcony positions
means that the building will be read as four distinct vertical elements and at the same
time have a sense of unity, especially at ground level, to enhance the prominence of
the commercial use and contribute to economic sustainability”.

The materials and colours introduced, through lavender render, lavender mosaic tiles
and variations of brick throughout the building assist to create depth and animation,
and the render and tiles assist to emphasise the vertical elements.

The proposed building would be visible approaching from the south-east, Three Kings
Pond within Mitcham Cricket Green Conservation Area. Whilst the building presents
some bow forward at its centre, it is noted the existing building does step forward from
its neighbouring buildings lines, but the proposal has reduced this - thereby providing
a public benefit of an increased pedestrian pathway. The side elevation stepping
forward of 41 Upper Green East and 2 storey flank elevation projecting above 41 (as
seen in proposed visualisation 718/ 051 P4) would not be so visually dominant so as
to negatively impact views from or toward the Conservation area. The impact would be
considered neutral as the building is adequately set back from the border of Mitcham
Cricket Green, and the step up is a natural incline as well as being predominantly
screened by its foreground buildings so as to preserve the appearance of the
Conservation Area.

NEIGHBOURING AMENITY

SPP Policy DM D2 states that proposals must be designed to ensure that they would
not have an undue negative impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties in
terms of loss of light, quality of living conditions, privacy, visual intrusion and noise.

29-31 Upper Green East

Adjoining north of the application site is 29-31 Upper Green East, a flat roof building of
3 storeys toward the streetscene and a flat roof single storey element toward the rear
(around 13m in depth) with a hard standing car park area. The ground floor premises
serves as Barclays bank, and the upper levels contain 3 residential units. The height
of the building is 10.5m, there is a staircore projection on the roof at a further 2m height.

From the streetscene, the proposed building would be a storey taller than the adjoining
building at 12.8m, so 2.3m higher (0.8m measured from the neighbour’s staircore
projection). At the rear, the proposed building would project the depth of the site. Whilst
it is noted the rear windows of the adjoining building would experience screening of
view and light from the southern direction, the proposed building would exhibit a

Page 474



744

7.4.5

7.4.6

747

7.4.8

749

variation of heights (around 6-9m, measured above the neighbour’s single storey
element) as it steps down to 3 storeys at the rear, and at 13.1m depth (the depth of
the neighbour’s single storey element), the building would exhibit openings for the
external walkways of the first and second floor levels.

Given the positioning of the adjoining neighbour’s building being at the end of the
terrace, the rear windows would still benefit from adequate outlook and light from the
north — and, whilst not currently proposed, the potential of future development at the
rear of the adjoining property would benefit from attaching to the areas of plain
elevations of the proposed building, and as mentioned under paragraph 7.3.8, the
closing of the neighbouring external walkways would not be considered harmful to the
amenity of those affected flats.

41 Upper Green East

The southern adjacent building is a 2 storey flat roof building with a single storey
ground floor extension, the existing building and rear extension cover the entirety of
the site. On the side elevation, there is one upper window present serving a kitchen
(shown on dwg 718/011 P4), the ground floor comprises a window display for the
ground floor retail area and an access door. The building is 6.9m tall.

The proposed 4 storey building would project around 3.5m deeper than the rear
building line of number 41’s main 2 storey building, before stepping down to a 2 storey
height. However, given the neighbour’s buildings cover the entirety of their site with no
habitable windows on their northern elevation, it is not considered the proposed
building would negatively impact number 41’s amenity. The introduction of windows on
the southern elevation of the proposed building would not invite overlooking toward
number 41, but would increase natural surveillance over the access path which is
considered beneficial for the safety and security of residents walking into Regal Court.

Regal Court

1-4 Regal Court (western side)

Whilst there would be a vehicular access path, around 3.5 distance, separating the
Flat 8’s first floor bedroom window and Flat 16’s second floor terrace, it is noted there
would be some experience of overlooking toward the gardens of 1 and 2 Regal Court.
Therefore, to fully ensure privacy of these gardens, a condition would be attached to
ensure the window would be obscure glazed up to 1.7m from the internal floor level
and increased height of the part of the terrace balustrade on the southern elevation to
also mitigate overlooking.

Given the orientation of the buildings, the existing gardens of 1 and 2 Regal Court
receive little sunlight in the early mornings and mostly sit in shade in the afternoons.
And, given the proximity of the extension at the rear of 41 Upper Green East (built up
to the boundary), the gardens of numbers 1 and 2 Regal Court also currently
experience limited outlook.

Toward the southern rear elevation of the proposed development, it is noted the
building adjacent to the western Regal Court terraces would step down from 4 storeys
to 2 —noted this would be an addition of 1 storey from the existing situation, around 4m
increase in height. However, it is not considered the proposed 2 storey building height
toward these rear gardens would increase the shading of light or screening of outlook
to such a degree which to warrant refusal given there is some appropriate separation
provided by the vehicular access path and their garden positions south of the proposed
development.

5-10 Regal Court (eastern side)

Page 475



7.4.10

7.4.11

7.4.12

7.4.13

7.4.14

7.4.15

7.5

7.5.1

Toward the northern rear end, the proposed building would step down to a 3 storey
height of 10m — 0.25m shorter than the ridge height of the buildings on Regal Court or
4m higher the eaves height of the Regal Court buildings. The first and second floor
levels of the building toward the rear south-eastern corner (Flats 1,2/ 9,10), adjacent
to 10 Regal court, the side elevation of the building would be set back 5.6m from 10
Regal Court, and the eastern elevation approximately 7m from the front elevation of
10 Regal Court.

The terrace of Flats 1 and 2 would be set back approximately 6m from the closest first
floor window of 10 Regal Court, Flat 2 would also exhibit a 1.8m obscure screen toward
the rear elevation to mitigate overlooking. The terraces of Flats 9 and 10 would be at
a storey higher than 10 Regal Court so there would unlikely be potential of views into
the neighbouring dwelling — though a 1.8m obscure screen has been proposed toward
the rear elevation of Flat’s 10 terrace.

The communal amenity area would be set back around 19m from the front building line
of the properties on Regal Court. A 1.8m obscure screen would also border the rear of
the amenity area to prevent views.

Montrose Gardens

Currently, toward the western boundary of the application site facing 14 Montrose
Gardens are the two storey former works buildings, and immediately along the
boundary a full depth single storey structure with a corrugated metal roof.

The proposed development would remove the single storey building along the
boundary and introduce a visible separation between Montrose Gardens and the
application site. Therefore, the proposed 3 storey building would be set back from the
neighbouring dwelling by approximately 3m, and the proposed building would be 1.4m
taller than the terrace buildings on Montrose Gardens. Impact in terms of light and
outlook would not be considered significantly harmful.

The bedrooms windows on the rear elevation serving Flats 1 and 9 would be orientated
looking over the rear extensions of the properties on Montrose Gardens, and the
terraces of Flats 1 and 9 would be set back 5.4m from 14 Montrose Gardens. Given
these setbacks and the window orientation, it is not considered these would have a
detrimental impact in terms of overlooking.

STANDARD OF ACCOMODATION

Internal

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016 requires housing development to be of the highest
quality internally and externally, and should satisfy the minimum internal space
standards (specified as Gross Internal Areas —GIA) as set out in Table 3.3 of the
London Plan. Table 3.3 provides comprehensive detail of minimum space standards
for new development; which the proposal would be expected to comply with. Policy
DMD2 of the Adopted Sites and Policies Plan (2014) also states that developments
should provide suitable levels of sunlight and daylight and quality of living conditions
for future occupants.

Level Type Storeys Proposed GIA | Required GIA | Complaint
(sqm) (sqm)

Page 476



Unit 1 | First 1b2p 1 51.6 50 Yes
Unit2 | First 1b2p 1 51 50 Yes
Unit 3 | First 1b2p 1 60 50 Yes
Unit4 | First 1b2p 1 52 50 Yes
Unit5 | First 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit6 | First 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit 7 | First 2b3p 1 68 61 Yes
Unit 8 | First 1b2p 1 51 50 Yes
Unit9 | Second | 1b2p 1 51.6 50 Yes
Unit 10 | Second | 1b2p 1 52 50 Yes
Unit11 | Second | 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit12 | Second | 1b2p 1 52 50 Yes
Unit13 | Second | 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit 14 | Second | 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit 15 | Second | 2b3p 1 68 61 Yes
Unit 16 | Second | 1b1p 1 37.9 37 Yes
Unit 17 | Third 1b2p 1 52 50 Yes
Unit 18 | Third 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit 19 | Third 1b2p 1 53 50 Yes
Unit 20 | Third 2b3p 1 68 61 Yes
7.5.2 As demonstrated by the table above, all the units would comply with the minimum

space standards.

7.5.3

External

754

The design achieves dual aspects for all the residential units.

For flatted dwellings, a minimum of 5sqm of private outdoor space should be provided
for 1-2 person flatted dwellings, specified in the Mayor's Housing Supplementary
Planning Guidance, and an extra 1 sqm should be provided for each additional

occupant.
Type Proposed Required amenity | Compliant
amenity (sgqm) | (sgm)

Unit 1 1b2p 12.9 5 Yes
Unit 2 1b2p 7.6 5 Yes
Unit 3 1b2p 13.7 5 Yes
Unit 4 1b2p 5.6 5 Yes
Unit 5 1b2p 5 5 Yes
Unit 6 1b2p 5 5 Yes
Unit 7 2b3p 6.1 6 Yes
Unit 8 1b2p 7.1 5 Yes
Unit 9 1b2p 12.9 5 Yes
Unit 10 1b2p 7.6 5 Yes
Unit 11 1b2p 6.2 5 Yes
Unit 12 1b2p 6 5 Yes
Unit 13 1b2p 5.5 5 Yes
Unit 14 1b2p 5.5 5 Yes
Unit 15 2b3p 6.3 6 Yes
Unit 16 1b1p 15.9 5 Yes
Unit 17 1b2p 6 5 Yes
Unit 18 1b2p 5.5 5 Yes
Unit 19 1b2p 5.5 5 Yes

Page 477




7.5.5

7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

7.6.3

7.6.4

7.6.5

7.6.5

7.6.6

| Unit20 | 2b3p | 6.3 | 6 | Yes |

As demonstrated by the table above, all the units would provide sufficient external
amenity areas.

TRANSPORT, PARKING AND CYCLE STORAGE

Core Strategy Policy CS20 requires that development would not adversely affect
pedestrian or cycle movements, safety, the convenience of local residents, street
parking or traffic management. Cycle storage is required for all new development in
accordance with London Plan Policy 6.9 and Core Strategy Policy CS18. It should be
secure, sheltered and adequately lit and Table 6.3 under Policy 6.13 of the London
Plan stipulates that 1 cycle parking space should be provided for a studio/1 bedroom
unit and 2 spaces for all other dwellings.

The site is located in an area with a PTAL of 4 which is very good being well located
to all the services and facilities. The site is not located in a Controlled Parking Zone,
but immediately adjacent are Controlled Parking Zones MTC and MTC2.

However, the proposed development would be wholly car-free as set out in the
applicant’s submitted Transport Statement.

The Transport officer considers the applicant’s proposal of a car-free development is
acceptable and advises that the applicant enter into a suitable legal undertaking which
would restrict future occupiers of the commercial and residential units from obtaining
an on-street residential parking permit to park in the surrounding controlled parking
zones, and any future Controlled Parking zones abutting the site.

The development proposal does not provide off-street disabled parking provision as
set out in the London Plan’s Parking addendum - Car Parking Standards, and Policy
T6.1 (draft London Plan) (policies set out in the Transport officer's comments within
paragraph 5.11). Therefore, the Transport officer considers in order to satisfy disabled
parking provision for both Residential and Commercial units, the applicant should bear
the cost of two street disabled parking spaces (location to be decided by the Highway
authority). The Council will therefore seek a financial contribution of £20,000 for the
provision of 2 disabled parking spaces, which should have electric charge points.

In relation to cycle storage, the London Plan and London Housing SPG Standard 20
(Policy 6.9) states all developments should provide dedicated storage space for cycles:
1 per studio and one bed dwellings; and 2 per all other dwellings. The proposed
development would provide a residential cycle store containing 24 cycle spaces. The
number of units indicate that 23 cycle spaces would be required. Therefore, the
proposed provision is considered acceptable.

Cycle parking for A3 use should be 1 cycle parking space per 175m? for long stay
purposes and 1 cycle parking space per 40m? for short stay. This amounts to a need
for 2 long stay and 12 short stay cycle spaces for A3 premises (463m?). 6 cycle spaces
are shown next to the staff room behind the lockers, and 12 short stay visitor spaces
should be located to the front of the commercial units. Shown on dwg 718/010 P4,
short stay cycle parking stands are proposed on the public highway, however this
arrangement has not been agreed by the Council’s Highways team. Given the
proposed use class of the site is not yet established, currently proposing a flexible use,
a condition will be attached to any grant of permission to ensure before occupation of

Page 478



7.6.7

7.6.8

7.7

7.71

7.7.2

7.7.3

7.74

7.7.5

the commercial premises, when there is better knowledge of the new business user,
revised details of commercial cycle provision prior to occupation shall be submitted to
the Council for approval.

In addition, the Transport officer recommends that each residential unit should be
provided with a 3 year car club membership to be funded by the developer.

Overall, the Transport officer considers that the proposal is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the adjoining highway, and raises no objection subject to
conditions requiring cycle storage and a demolition/construction logistics plan,
unilateral undertaking to restrict future occupiers from obtaining parking permits and a
financial contribution of £20,000 for the provision of disabled parking bays.

REFUSE

The London Plan Policy 5.17 and Merton Core Strategy Policy CS17 require new
developments to show capacity to provide waste and recycling storage facilities.

Merton’s Waste and Recycling Storage Requirements states that:

- For domestic developments with more than 10 units, all containers should be
located within the property boundary, in suitably screened, dedicated positions
stored on a hard surface, and container storage areas should be in a position that
means residents do not have to walk more than 30 metres to dispose of their waste
and recycling in accordance to Building Regulations 2002, Part H. Collection crew
will empty waste containers stored within the storage area/ an agreed collection
point, providing the cleaning or management staff move the containers to this
location on an agreed day by 6am. The collection vehicle shall be able to approach
the container store or collection point within a maximum distance of 10 metres -
there must not be any obstacles between the storage area and the collection
vehicle;

- For commercial waste: staff and other property users should not have to carry
waste more than 30 meters to the store. Commercial producers of waste have a
legal duty to make their own proper and environmentally sound arrangements for
the storage, collection and disposal of their waste;

- In mixed use developments, separate stores for residual and recycling containers
must be provided for the domestic and commercial aspects of the development.
Domestic and commercial waste must not be mixed together.

As per Merton’s requirements, the bin stores for the commercial and residential units
would be separate and not mixed.

Occupiers of Flats 7, 15 and 20, furthest south of the building (so furthest away from
the bins), would be required to walk 18m to the lobby/lift then 12m distance through
the corridor to the bins, totalling 30m which is considered acceptable.

Waste Services have also been consulted and require the developer to confirm that
measures will be in place to move the communal bins on collection day to the collection
point, and whether the applicant has permission to store bins at the collection point
from 6am on collection day. The applicant's design and access statement has
confirmed that the refuse will be wheeled to the waste drop-off point (accessed from
Montrose Gardens) by management on collection day, furthermore, it is noted the
waste-drop off point is within the property boundary which is sited around 2m from the
highway.

Page 479



7.7.6

7.8

7.8.1

7.8.2

Therefore, the refuse arrangement is considered acceptable.

SUSTAINABILITY

All major residential development proposals will need to demonstrate:

a) Compliance with Merton’s Core Planning Strategy Policy CS15 Climate Change
(parts a-d) and the Policies in outlined in Chapter 5 of the London Plan (2016)
through submission of a detailed energy strategy.

Proposals will need to demonstrate compliance with zero emissions target outlined
in Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (2016):

b)

Development proposals must achieve a minimum on-site emissions
reduction target of a 35% improvement against Part L 2013, with the
remaining regulated emissions (to 100% improvement against Part L 2013)
to be offset through cash in lieu contribution, and secured via Section 106
agreement. The contribution will be used to enable the delivery of carbon
dioxide savings elsewhere in the borough;

The cash in lieu contribution will be collected according to the methodology
outlined in the Mayor's Energy Assessment Guidance 2018. This will
require each tonne of CO2 shortfall to be offset at a cost of £95 per tonne
for a period of 30 years;

Major residential developments will be expected to calculate and
demonstrate the cumulative CO2 emissions savings to be offset through
cash in lieu contribution (in accordance with the above approved
methodology, and in line with the Mayor’s guidance on preparing energy
assessments as part of their submitted energy strategy.

c) Achieve wholesome water consumption rates not in excess of 105 litres per person
per day.

All major non-domestic development proposals, providing a GIA of more than 500sgm
will need to demonstrate:

a) The development should be designed in accordance with Policy CS15 of Merton’s
Core Planning Strategy 2011 (parts a- d and f) and the Policies in outlined in
Chapter 5 of the London Plan (2016). The development should:

Achieve a high standard of sustainability and make efficient use of
resources and material and minimise water use and CO2 emissions;

As a major development proposal, outline how the development will
achieve a 35% improvement on Buildings Regulations 2013 Part L and
submit BRUKL output documentation as evidence of policy compliance;
Through submission of a detailed energy strategy, demonstrate how the
above sustainability policy objectives will be met;

Be sited and designed to withstand the long term impacts of climate
change.

b) All non-domestic development over 500m2 will be expected to be built to a
minimum of BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Assessment Method)
‘Very Good’ standard and meet COZ2 reduction targets in line with Policy 5.2 of the
London Plan 2016.

Page 480



7.8.3

7.8.4

7.8.5

7.8.6

7.8.7

7.8.8

7.9

7.91

7.9.2

7.9.3

c) The applicant should investigate opportunities for connection to nearby district
heating networks and should commit to providing a site wide heating network,
suitable for connection to wider district networks now or in the future. In accordance
with Policy 5.6 of the London Plan 2016.

Following request of further information, the Climate Change officer considers the
submitted energy statement SAP and BRLUK calculations indicate that the proposed
development has been designed to meet the minimum sustainability requirements of
Merton’s Core Planning Strategy Policy CS15 (2011) and Policy 5.2 of the London
Plan.

For the non-domestic area, a BREEAM design stage assessment provided by the
applicant indicates that it meets the minimum requirements to achieve BREEAM ‘Very
Good’, in accordance with Merton’s Core Planning Strategy Policy CS15.

Whilst there is no current decentralised heat network in Merton, the Council is keen to
ensure that new developments are designed in such a way as to enable future
connection to a decentralised heat network.

The cash in lieu contribution will be collected according to the methodology outlined in
the Mayor’s Energy Assessment Guidance 2018. This will require each tonne of CO2
shortfall from the target saving to be offset at a cost of £95 per tonne for a period of 30
years (i.e. £1800 per tonne CO2). A S.106 agreement for the carbon offset cash in
lieu contribution will need to be finalised prior to planning approval:

Carbon shortfall (tonnes of CO2e) X £95 per Tonne CO2e X 30 years = Offset
Payment

26.1tCO2 X £95 Per Tonne CO2e X 30 years = £74,371

The internal water consumption calculations submitted for the development indicates
that internal water consumption should be less than 105 litres per person per day.

Overall, the Council’s Climate Change officer is content that the proposed energy
approach to the development is policy compliant and recommends that Merton’s
Standard Pre-Occupation Conditions are applied to the development, and a S106
agreement for carbon offset contributions will need to be finalised (calculation as
above).

AFFORDABLE HOUSING

London Plan Policy 3.11 states that the Mayor and boroughs should seek to maximise
affordable housing provision and ensure an average of at least 17,000 more affordable
homes per year in London over the term of this Plan. In order to give impetus to a
strong and diverse intermediate housing sector, 60% of the affordable housing
provision should be for social and affordable rent and 40% for intermediate rent or
sale.

Merton Sites and Policies Plan Policy DM H3 seeks to secure affordable housing in
accordance with Core Planning Strategy Policy CS 8, with a tenure split of 60% social
and affordable rent and 40% intermediate rent or sale.

The proposal was initially submitted with an Affordable Housing Viability Report, this
has been independently reviewed with various figure inputs requiring clarification

Page 481



7.94

7.9.5

7.10

7.101

7.10.2

7.10.3

8.2

following the independent assessor’s initial output which was disputed by the applicant,
namely the quantum of affordable housing.

With more detailed information provided during the cycle of the application, the
independent assessor has confirmed:

The commercial value was critical in underpinning the viability and it was sensitive to
a number of factors which the applicant has now clarified and provided further
evidence. Based on the information we have provided as part of our original viability
submission and the update from the applicant, we agree, subject to Council review,
with the viability position outlined by the client that no affordable housing provision can
be provided as part of the application, albeit our appraisal conclusions differ in terms
of the inputs.

The assessor recommends that the Council applies the viability review mechanisms at
early and late stages of development as outlined within the Draft London Plan and
Mayors Affordable Housing and Viability SPG based on the conclusions of the
appraisal.

OTHER MATTERS

Archaeology

GLAAS were consulted on the archaeological desk-based assessment and following
review of the assessment (CGMS, June 2019), states it is clear that there is some
potential for archaeological remains to survive on the site. An archaeological
evaluation is therefore recommended to test for the survival of archaeological remains.

Having looked at this proposal and at the Greater London Historic Environment
Record, GLAAS advise that the development could cause harm to archaeological
remains and field evaluation is needed to determine appropriate mitigation. However,
although the NPPF envisages evaluation being undertaken prior to determination, in
this case consideration of the nature of the development, the archaeological interest
and/or practical constraints are such that a two-stage archaeological condition could
provide an acceptable safeguard. This would comprise firstly, evaluation to clarify the
nature and extend of surviving remains, followed, if necessary, by a full investigation.

A suitably worded condition describing the above shall be attached should permission
be granted.

CONCLUSION

The redevelopment of the site would allow for appropriate intensification of the land in
the heart of Mitcham Town Centre to deliver further housing and an enlarged
commercial premises with potential to regenerate the shopping frontage of this part of
Upper Green East, creating more attractive shopping opportunities for local residents
and to replace the lower quality buildings currently on site.

The design of the development has responded to officer’'s comments and has greatly
evolved from its pre-application stages to its current design form. The amended
building design has replicated the rhythm of smaller shop frontages through its
amendment of introducing 4 distinct piers and more regular signage areas to
emphasise some prominent verticality in the design; but at the same time promoting a
sense of unity, especially at the ground level, to enhance the commercial use in order
to hopefully attract attention of a large retail user into Mitcham. The proposed heights

Page 482



8.3

8.4

are considered appropriate, viewed from the streetscene, the 4 storey building would
not be considered a prominent increase or overly dominant, and at the rear it would
step down to respond to the residential buildings in its context.

The proposed building would respect the context of the site and its wider area, and
preserve the setting of the neighbouring Conservation Area. The building would also
not have a harmful impact toward the amenity of neighbouring properties.

The proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions, and S106
agreement requiring the development to be permit free, provide carbon
offset contributions, viability review mechanisms at early and late stage stages of
development (including review of viability if future permission is sought for change of
use of ground floor commercial premises to residential) and financial contribution for
provision of disabled parking bays.

RECOMMENDATION
Grant planning permission subject to the completion of a S106 agreement to deliver
the following:

e Restrictions on parking permit eligibility;

e Carbon offset financial contributions (£74,371);

o Affordable housing — viability review mechanisms at early and late stage stages
of development, including review of viability if future permission is sought for
change of use of ground floor commercial premises to residential;

e Car club membership (3 year car club membership);

Financial contribution for provision of disabled bays with electric charge points
(£20,000).

And the following conditions:

1. A1 Commencement of Development

2. A7 Approved Plans

3. B1 External Materials to be approved — prior to commencement of development
(other than demolition)

4. B4 Details of surface treatment — Prior to occupation of development, details of
the surfacing of all those parts of the site not covered by buildings or soft
landscaping, including any parking, service areas or roads, footpaths, hard and
soft shall be submitted in writing for approval by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall not be occupied until the details have been approved and
works to which this condition relates have been carried out in accordance with
the approved details.

5. CO03 Obscured glazing — Before the development hereby permitted is first
occupied, the side (southern) window of Flat 8 shall be glazed with obscure glass
and non-opening up to 1.7m measured from the internal floor level and shall
permanently maintained as such thereafter.

6. CO07 Refuse & Recycling (implementation) — The development hereby approved
shall not be occupied until the refuse and recycling storage facilities shown on the
approved plans have been fully implemented and made available for use. These
facilities shall thereafter be retained for use at all times.

7. CO09 Balcony/Terrace (screening) — Details of the terraces’ balustrade/screening

Page 483



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

shall be submitted to the Local Authority for approval prior to occupation of the
development, including details of the 1.8m obscure screens for Flats 2, 3, 10 and
16 and the 1.8m screen for the communal amenity area on the first floor.
Approved details of the balustrade/ screening to the terraces shall be
implemented before the development is first occupied and retained permanently
thereafter.

D10 External Lighting — Any external lighting shall be positioned and angled to
prevent any light spillage or glare beyond the site boundary.

D11 Construction Times — No demolition or construction work or ancillary
activities such as deliveries shall take place before 8am or after 6pm Mondays -
Fridays inclusive, before 8am or after 1pm on Saturdays or at any time on
Sundays or Bank Holidays.

HO3 Redundant Crossovers — The development shall not be occupied until the
redundant crossover/s have been be removed by raising the kerb and reinstating
the footway in accordance with the requirements of the Highway Authority.

Cycle Parking (Residential) — The development hereby permitted shall not be
occupied until the residential cycle parking shown on the plans hereby approved
has been provided and made available for use. These facilities shall be retained
for the occupants of and visitors to the development at all times.

Cycle Parking (Commercial) — Notwithstanding the commercial cycle parking
provision (long and short term) shown on the approved plan 718/010 P4, prior to
occupation of the commercial unit/s, revised details of secure cycle parking
facilities for the occupants of, and visitors to, the development shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved facilities
shall be fully implemented and made available for use prior to the first occupation
of the commercial premises and thereafter retained for use at all times.

Non-standard condition (sustainability) — No part of the development hereby
approved shall be occupied until evidence has been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority confirming that the development has achieved CO2 reductions
of not less than a 35% improvement on Part L regulations 2013, and wholesome
water consumption rates of no greater than 105 litres per person per day. Reason:
To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of sustainability and
makes efficient use of resources and to comply with the following Development
Plan policies for Merton: Policy 5.2 of the London Plan 2016 and Policy CS15 of
Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

Non-standard condition (sustainability) — No development, other than demolition,
shall commence until the applicant submits to, and has secured written approval
from, the Local Planning Authority evidence demonstrating that the development
has been designed to enable connection of the site to an existing or future district
heating network, in accordance with the Technical Standards of the London Heat
Network Manual (2014). Reason: To demonstrate that the site heat network has
been designed to link all building uses on site (domestic and non-domestic), and
to demonstrate that sufficient space has been allocated in the plant room for future
connection to wider district heating, in accordance with London Plan policies 5.5
and 5.6.

Non-standard condition (sustainability) — Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, no part of the development hereby approved shall be

Page 484



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

used or occupied until a Post-Construction Review Certificate issued by the
Building Research Establishment or other equivalent assessors confirming that the
non-residential development has achieved a BREEAM rating of not less than the
standards equivalent to ‘Very Good’, has been submitted to and acknowledged in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To ensure that the development
achieves a high standard of sustainability and makes efficient use of resources and
to comply the following Development Plan policies for Merton: policy 5.2 of the
London Plan 2016 and policy CS15 of Merton's Core Planning Strategy 2011.

Non-standard condition (Noise) — Due to the potential impact of the surrounding
locality on the development the recommendations to protect noise intrusion into
the dwellings as specified in the Hawkins Environmental, Noise Assessment
Report No.H2843 dated 4t June 2019 shall be implemented as a minimum
standard and with mechanical ventilation incorporated. Details of the final scheme
shall be submitted for approval to the Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development.

Non-standard condition (Noise) — Noise levels, (expressed as the equivalent
continuous sound level) LAeq (10 minutes), from any new plant/machinery from
the commercial use shall not exceed LA90-10dB at the boundary with any noise
sensitive property. A post completion noise survey shall be submitted and
approved by the LPA to demonstrate compliance with the noise criteria, thereafter
the noise criteria shall be maintained.

Non-standard condition — In the event that contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified it must
be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance in accordance with
DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model Procedures for the Management of
Land Contamination, CLR 11’ and where remediation is necessary a remediation
scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.

H13 Demolition/Construction Logistics Plan — Prior to the commencement of the
development hereby permitted, a Demolition/Construction Logistics Plan (including
a Construction Management plan in accordance with TfL guidance) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the demolition and
construction period unless the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority
is first obtained to any variation.

Non-standard condition — Should the ground floor commercial premises be
occupied by Use Classes A3 and/or A5, a written scheme to manage the control
of odour from cooking shall be submitted and approved in writing by the LPA. The
approved scheme shall be fully installed, maintained and serviced in accordance
with the manufacturers’ instructions or requirements, whilst the premises is open
to serve food. The scheme submitted, including an odour risk assessment shall
have regard to the technical requirements of the document ‘Control of Odour and
Noise from Commercial Kitchen Extract Systems as produced by EMAQ dated
2018. Should the type of cooking change a further assessment shall be submitted
in accordance with the above.

Non-standard condition — Should the ground floor commercial premises be

occupied by Use Classes A3 and/or A5, drainage serving the proposed kitchen of
the premises shall be fitted with an adequate grease separator.

Page 485



22. D02 Hours of Opening/Use (A3, A5) — The use hereby permitted shall not be open
to customers except between the hours of 07.00 and 23.00 on any day and no staff
shall be present at the premises one hour after the closing time.

23. Non-standard condition (Archaeology) — No demolition or development shall take
place until a stage 1 written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been submitted to
and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included
within the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in
accordance with the agreed WSI, and the programme and methodology of site
evaluation and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to
undertake the agreed works.

24. Non-standard condition (Archaeology) — If heritage assets of archaeological
interest are identified by stage 1 then for those parts of the site which have
archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted to and approved by the
local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the stage 2 WSI,
no demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the
agreed stage 2 WSI which shall include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and
methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.

B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the stage 2 WSI.

25. Non-standard condition (Secure by Design) —

A. The development hereby permitted shall incorporate security measures to
minimise the risk of crime and to meet the specific security needs of the
development in accordance with the principles and objectives of Secured by
Design. Details of these measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority prior to occupation of the development and shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to occupation. Reason:
In order to achieve the principles and objectives of Secured by Design to improve
community safety and crime prevention in accordance with Policy 14 (22.17) of
Merton Core Strategy: Design, and Strategic Objectives 2 (b) and 5 (f); and Policy
7.3 Designing out Crime of the London Plan.

B. Prior to occupation a Secured by Design final certificate shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: In order to achieve the
principles and objectives of Secured by Design to improve community safety and
crime prevention in accordance with Policy 14 (22.17) of Merton Core Strategy:
Design, and Strategic Objectives 2 (b) and 5 (f); and Policy 7.3 Designing out Crime
of the London Plan.

Informatives
1. INF 01 Party Walls Act
2. INF 09 Works on Public Highway
3. INF 12 Works affecting the public highway
4. INF 20 Street naming and numbering
5. INF Sustainability

Page 486



6. INF GLAAS — Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and
implemented by a suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological
practice in accordance with Historic England’s Guidelines for Archaeological
Projects in Greater London. This condition is exempt from deemed discharge
under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure)(England) Order 2015.

7. Note to Applicant — approved schemes

Page 487



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHGATE SE GIS Print Template

This matenal has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permassion of the controller of Her
Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright

Page 489



This page is intentionally left blank



G ‘

= 718 /LOC P1

é
280 & 169092m

T_ﬂ\\\(\//{

R \
\\

ot~
d""‘st\\ *
>

33 - 38 UPPER GREE
. |LOCATION PLAN

@©
-
(3]
w
L
m
T
L]
L
P
"z}
[=1]
=
=
E
E
£
un
[=]
1
m
8
m
& &
o] w
E
- =
E
WGPo.2S 3
-
5 £ 2
- 5 4
w
-]
= e
u
]
o
2
=

Page 491



This page is intentionally left blank



Id £00/ 812 ES.WM
ENILSIKZ
N¥71d HOO7d ANNOYD

3dE HO WYHILUW 15v3 NI3HD H3ddn 68 -

AoTemegsnamuw Mm% 1
HTOS BERG-SNUTLI S EGW (R >
B6ZZ Y08 OZ (D) pirt ¥ed |
Vi 5908 0Z (0l Fire suoud
WL BLAMS UOPUDT] ‘LOpBTWIM M 2%
Prok uodwoD | VAN 1
-

Eurumy ot peeny LTSS

e
[

L3

oL

0Lz
a3aHs
ERl]

ZLWE

m SNIAHYD IS0ULNON

LZHE

L~

Page 493



This page is intentionally left blank



O T — e

Id 800/ BLL =5

45 rmonzit oD BjEng SN TQW R r .
== — [ uaM__.o_ it wEd o .

iy 5908 0T Liad ]

NSNS — SLIALIHIHY R s

oLLD3S ENEL] uopuy ‘uopor
4dE PHD WVHDLIW 1S3 NISHD Hiddn 66 - £8 SNIEVIN Pt S 1A
¥ |
Sy ot e piomioRa 14

—_—
—

T oy |
I I I b I
| | | LUl :

Page 495




This page is intentionally left blank



o R [ — TWOS 0054

vd 600/ BLL == =

38 L il b Ll r .
G AT L i A
Lty (4
O35040H4DNILENI SIDILHINY ]
NOILYAITI LSV NIIHD H3ddn Fw3d WOL LM UOpUD] LopelquiM

442 PHO WYHOLIW 153 NI3HD H3ddn 68 - €8 SNOUVW PRy e § VBN

e |

gl oy sumva ubuny  peseeasz W

Page 497




This page is intentionally left blank



o s102 4307
| g

vd 010/ 8L 1=

I Wm0 L

e =
Q350400 SLOALHDEY
NY71d HOOT7d ANNOHD Iw3d
44 PHD WYHDLW 15¥3 NIITHD H3ddn 68 - 8 SNIEYW

WO BEeG-SNaRLY M

D0 B{EDG- SN2 TG RS
BOZE 6908 OF (0 wirt wed

Vi 5966 0Z (0] Fire Suoud

WO 51T UDPUDT ‘LOPSITWIA
PRl uopdwe]) | WEN

iy Py o v

LR PR 1 D]

T

Page 499



This page is intentionally left blank



an oz anr PR — " IWIS 0021
oy =g
vd LLOS 8LL = o apeng s v s \ I ;
mag] - GOZZ S¥06 OF (0 rir+ ¥od e woZE (13 o
QIS0d0Hd SIDILHINY [ty w-.uwuwnﬁ_.:l!..o,t - r . A
NVTd HOOTd LSHId Iw3d Y ! %
44 PHD WYHDLW 15¥3 NITHD H3ddn 68 - &8 SNaEvW = 2

g
Bipiet ot et e 93 |

| R

[
AT |_uqu !

Page 501

e ERIKE Won Bd e SR es B |
sl 38 CEEE e |

MHM mmm 1DJ o] i ...Hu.ﬂ__w_lf E- = m.. 25 8L “

S <7 0y rl\_ - i AN !

AP EE SR S LI (=] i

u =9 Sh: e [P OSE |
SRRl —

ettt

‘SHNICHVD IETHANN _ "



This page is intentionally left blank



el
o 102 4900
-

,4 \
il R—— Y = ﬁ.ﬁe ,,,__/\ A
vd ClO/ 8HL 2L vmoosiL A0 DEDG-SNUTW K TgW R | /u... =
== — GOZZ S¥06 OF (0 rir+ ¥od :
Q35040Hd SITALHIHY il G908 O 0l pire suoud oy
N¥7d HOO074 ANOD3S ELLEL]

WOUL GILMS UDDUDT ‘UOPSIWIW
3 PHO IVHDLIW 1S3 NIIHD H3den 68 - 68 SNIUYA el Sl LAY

&
e |
s oy pmval bvng ozsze0sz b

= ___||
| A

| M= e o <
kr __ m I s wEEs . b
| =

. “ ‘ 50 R o TR\ Y
arm azis __ —= ViR s s p, \
: W ! 2 %
3 __ m \
_ — 5 =l
v | m

L

i

|

spmEr wy

T ,_
- — ==L, | UL 7Y ,_
- Ho | PR e g o ﬂ__

WHM [ EJ relh B

a

2 |
|
T | = |
] m_ o EH \_|_ | gl a __
" - LR = 1 |
,_ g3 BBl IR L |
__ H. e R et Wi ﬂ
| e AT TR T TN e (LT OO N
] . | BEamaemnE e i
R o o a | el =2
[ | —_—
__ | wags droa | "
| _ | —
___ “ _ NONBALE ULy Trinagog — ..II
|
|1 —
F_ “ ,x.:nwm.__unﬁ i
| =
|
— \ _ ] =
. |
_ 7 / T —
= e e T = % —
! ST ;

EHITVD FFOULNON

Page 503



This page is intentionally left blank



ey uowdeed) § VBN

1
o a0 Ao eEegsnamw Mm% - =3
vd €10/ 8LL [mo——= —————— |
| e BBZT w-.uw_uaﬁﬂ__o_ it g s
iy BY0E 0T Liad ="
03500 SLDALIHOHY ) g \ A
NV1d H0O74 QdIHL Iw3d Letat—rmd B e 1 '
44 PHD WYHDLW 15¥3 NIFHD H3ddn 68 - 8 SNaEvW =

o
Bipiet ot et e 93 |

ettt

EHITVD FFOULNON

Page 505



This page is intentionally left blank



w10z 00
-

1
- amoTemegsnamurmms S
e
vd 510/ 8LL rmoos L o DfEDg-STaTW g TGW e |
ot = B6ZZ SY0E OF (0] it wed
Q35040 4 i SIDILHINY tnwlﬁuwﬁs_.!&?”“ % __
NY1d 400 ENEE] uopuT ‘opok
34 PHO IVHDLIW 1S3 NSSHD H3ddn 68 - 68 SNIUYA el Sl LAY &

e
By oy sl bng  zmvasE b

|

Page 507

frrrrernnrntld

Bl



This page is intentionally left blank



Ia_ u

o
g
W_ vt
=

YV NOLLO3S

3dE HO WYHILW 15v3 NI3HD H3ddn 68 - €

L S —— |

L E—— =

FWOIS5 0021

f

STALXMINVHIVIEI VI

LoV

10 WEEH

4

H 5
=ml==l=xl===N
.

=
I

:

e R ._._._._._._._._._i._!_

1EW3 N3IHD H3ddn ]

Page 509



This page is intentionally left blank



om w0z 407 _ A TWOS 0021
vd 120/ 81L =5 = .

Vi 5908 0Z (0l Fire suoud
Q3504084 | goan MY

=

L]
R |

Page 511



This page is intentionally left blank



o oz onr W03 RG-SO WA S s
v g
vd 220/ B1L - o T D S
sz s BOZZ Se0E oz
ol i+ ol
Q3504044 e1931 iy 5908 0T
29 NOLLD3S I1vaa O R dar BN
34 PHD WYHDLW 15¥3 NIIHD H3ddn 68 - &8 SNIEVW

—al
Busrepd o mvas ubmagy ooz P

[ 19 WeI

153 NISHD H3ddn

Page 513



This page is intentionally left blank



B ) o emec snarur

ed €20/ 8LL 48 TR L AT DEDG- SNATL SEGU (RS

== — B6ZZ BP0 OF (0] pirt ¥ud

Q35040Hd SITALHIHY il G908 O 0l pire suoud
NOLLD3S a3DHVING L] DL 81 M UopUDT UopeRuIM,

4 PHD WVHDLIW 1S3 NISHD Hiddr 66 - £8 SNIEVIN el Sl LAY

e
RS R M -]

¥ouq Buussubuz jlem 49

olesopy sjaued |jem Jasu|

13pUal JapUSAET ||BA PRSSa2aY

}oUg ¥00IS uopuo jlem

ouiz Buyooy :

IT¥DS 0021

Page 515



This page is intentionally left blank



0 102 5300
—g

il Aoz emeg-snamur mm L
vm mNcn\ m Wh 45 o L WTOD RS- SNUTW @ EQW [Rwg T |
== — B6ZZ BP0 OF (0] pirt ¥ud o .
Q35040 SITALHIHY iy BY0E 02 (0l pire sucd woz
NOLLYAZT3 1S3M I1vId WOL 6LMS UOpUT' ‘UOpeRLIM
4 PHD WVHDLIW 1S3 NISHD H3ddn 66 - £8 SNIEVIN Pt S 1A
Euarpd oy munmva ubnng  CezESE m ]| o »

3 [

Page 517

()



This page is intentionally left blank



o
€d 920/ 81L [

e P—— oS o0zt

CmanzL WO DEDG- SNATW A TW ReE
mnan) =

350406 SLOALHDEY
NOILVAZT3 LSV3 Iw3d
34 PHD WYHDLW 15¥3 NIFHD H3ddn 68 - &8 SNIEVW

]|

L R ——— |

LI
i

Page 519



This page is intentionally left blank



o oz »H A0S SEeG-SnaRT FWOS 0021
vd £20/ 81L .Le — S ———
g B6ZT S¥08 O (0} vt ¥ud
T3504 | Il BB 0 0] pire Buouy
EalE:] WOUL BLMS ‘USRI
. IO_._.zd._?muﬂ I._._._O.m el oot uosdans § vaN

FERCEE]

Page 521



This page is intentionally left blank



vd 8€0/ 8L @

w10z 000
g

vz

Q5040

3dE e

NOILLYAIT3 HLHON

15v3 NIFHD

BOZE 6908 OF (0 wirt wed

Eunamp oy ruma) g RIS

]
]

FWOIS5 0021

Page 523



This page is intentionally left blank



m| e
€d 200/ 8LL = =

45 oz WO BIEBG-SNAUTL B |Ra IWIS 0sEL°1
e g 60ZE 508 _ﬂ_ﬁ_..-i wed _
Lyl B90B 02 B
a3500Hd = fagany e ] 4 :
22 PHD WYHDLW L5¥3 NIFHD H3ddn 68 - £8 SNV il i fepunog a)g  —————

Page 525



This page is intentionally left blank



td 150 /BLL - 0208 INNM 62 - LSV NIIHD H3ddN WOHL M3IIA - LSY3 NIIHD H3ddn ._ﬂ@

I

Page 527



This page is intentionally left blank



trd 250 /BLL - 020E INNC 62 - IAVHY.D ITYODNYT WOHA MIIA - 1S3 NIFHD H3ddN .:@
-

i
i
§
f
§
i
i
i
}

Page 529



This page is intentionally left blank



d £50 /814 - 0202 NN 62 - HIMOL ¥O0TD WOHA MIIA - LSV NIIHD H3ddn

Page 531



This page is intentionally left blank



¥d 950 /8LL - 0202 INMM 62 - MIIA TIATT LI3HIS - 1SVI NIIHD H3ddN @
T

Page 533



This page is intentionally left blank



-
o
-
8
@
-
=1
o
o
)
w
Z
=2
=
@
o
2
[5]
)
o
a
W
[
=
Q
e
w
=
z
w
w
@
a
o
w
o
o
=2

Page 535



This page is intentionally left blank



Ld £50 /BLL - 0208 INNC 62 - ALINTINY TVNMINNOD 40 M3IA - LSY3 N33HD H3ddn E@
==

Page 537



This page is intentionally left blank



¥d 050 /BLL - D202 INMM 62 - LSIM NIIHD HIAN WOHS MIIA - 1SV NIIHO H3ddN | @

a350d0Hd

DNLLSIX3

Page 539



This page is intentionally left blank



¥d S50 /BLL - 0202 INNM 62 - SNIAHVD ISOHLNOW WOHS MIIA - 1SV NIIHD H3ddn | @

a350d0Hd DNLLSIX3

Page 541



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 543



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 545



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 547



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 549



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 14

Committee: Planning Applications Committee

Date: 20" August 2020

Agenda item:

Wards: All

Subject: PLANNING ENFORCEMENT - SUMMARY OF CURRENT CASES

Lead officer: HEAD OF SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES

Lead member: CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION, HOUSING AND
TRANSPORT COUNCILLOR MARTIN WHELTON

COUNCILLOR LINDA KIRBY, CHAIR, PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Contact Officer  Ray Littlefield: 0208 545 3911
Ray.Littlefield@merton.gov.uk

Recommendation:

That Members note the contents of the report.

1. Purpose of report and executive summary

This report details a summary of casework being dealt with by the Planning
Enforcement Team and contains figures of the number of different types of cases
being progressed, with brief summaries of all new enforcement notices and the
progress of all enforcement appeals.

WWW, pg@e.@s.yk


http://www.merton.gov.uk/

Current Enforcement Cases: 432 '(401) New Appeals: 0) (0)

New Complaints 69 (23) Instructions to Legal 0 (0)
Cases Closed 38 Existing Appeals 2 (6)
No Breach: 29
Breach Ceased:
NFAZ (see below): 0 TREE ISSUES

Tree Applications Received 233 (3)
Total 38

% Determined within time limits: 45%
New Enforcement Notices Issued High Hedges Complaint 3 (0
Breach of Condition Notice: 0 New Tree Preservation Orders (TPO) 0 (3)
New Enforcement Notice issued 0  (0) Tree Replacement Notice 0
S.215:3 0 Tree/High Hedge Appeal 0 (0)
Others (PCN, TSN) 0 (0)
Total 0 (0)
Prosecutions: (instructed) 0 (0

Note (figures are for the period from (16" May 2020 to 11t August 2020). The figure for current
enforcement cases was taken directly from M3 crystal report.

" Totals in brackets are previous month’s figures
2 confirmed breach but not expedient to take further action.

38215 Notice: Land Adversely Affecting Amenity of Neighbourhood.

2.0 New Enforcement Actions

283 Galpins Road CR7 6EY. This is concerning a s215 notice served on untidy land.
A s215 notice was issued on 23 December 2019. This notice required compliance at
the end of February 2020 requiring the Land to be tided up / cleared.

31 Edgehill Road, Mitcham, CR4 2HY. This is concerning a raised platform/garden
that has been raised by approximately 90cm. An enforcement notice has been served
to remove the raised platform and reduce the garden level by 90cm. The notice would
have taken effect on 18/12/19, with a compliance date of 18/03/20, however an appeal
has been submitted and is underway.

Wp\&g‘@I’BSQOV. uk


http://www.merton.gov.uk/

193 London Road CR4 2TJ. This is concerning untidy land to the side and rear of 193
London Road. An initial site visit was carried out, multiple letters have been sent to the
property asking for compliance and for them to contact the Council to confirm a
compliance schedule of works. Correspondence from the owner has been received. A
further visit was made to confirm the site has not been tidied. A s215 enforcement
Notice for untidy land has been drafted and is due to be reviewed and signed off by a
manger authorising the service of a s215 Notice.

155 Canterbury Road, Morden, SM4 6QG. This is concerning an outbuilding in the
rear garden that has had a retrospective planning application refused. An enforcement
notice has been served on the property for the outbuilding to be demolished, the notice
would have taken effect on 9th December 2019 and the compliance period would have
been two months. However it has now been appealed to the Planning Inspectorate.
The appeal is now ongoing.

208 Bishopsford Road, Morden, SM4 6DA. This is concerning the erection of a
single storey rear extension onto an existing extension on the ground floor. A Planning
Enforcement Notice has been issued requiring the demolition of the Extension. The
Notice was issued on 4t October 2019, the Notice came into effect on 10" November
2019 with a compliance period of 3 months, unless an appeal was made before 10t
November 2019. An appeal was submitted but rejected by the Planning Inspectorate
as it was received by The Planning Inspectorate one day late. Compliance date was
10t February 2020. Further action is under consideration

The former laundry site, 1 Caxton Road, Wimbledon SW19 8SJ. Planning
Permission was granted for 9 flats, with 609square metres of (Class B1) office units.
22 flats have been created. A Planning Enforcement Notice was issued on 11th
October 2018 requiring either the demolition of the development or building to the
approved scheme. The Notice took effect on 18th November 2018 with a compliance
period of 12 calendar months. An appeal was made but subsequently withdrawn the
following day. The owner decided to comply with the approved permission and is in
the process of returning some the residential units back to their authorised office use.
Bath and shower units have been removed; the office units are currently being
advertised for let. The garage flat is no longer being used for residential and is in the
process of being returned to a garage. Planning Application 19/P1527 for Discharge of
Conditions has been submitted and is currently being considered. Revised scheme re-
sub-mitted and is currently under consideration.

Works are underway to expose the depth and boundary of the foundations in order to
confirm an alternative landscaping scheme is feasible.

6 CARTMEL GARDENS, MORDEN SM4 6QN: (Notice 2) This is regarding a side
extension not built in accordance with approved plans and being used as a self
contained unit of accommodation. A planning Enforcement Notice was subsequently
issued on 24th September 2019 and took effect on 24th October 2019. The Notice
requires the cessation of the use of side extension as separate self-contained unit, and
the removal of all those fixtures and fittings that facilitate the unauthorised use of the
extension including the permanent removal of the facilities in use for cooking facilities,

WWW, pg@e.@s.gk


http://www.merton.gov.uk/

kitchen unit, sink, worktop, appliances, and food preparation areas. This Notice has a
compliance period of 3 calendar months. An appeal was submitted but subsequently
withdrawn. A second Notice is subject of an appeal now determined.

Some Recent Enforcement Actions

7 Streatham Road, Mitcham, CR4 2AD

The Council served two enforcement notices on 6" June 2019, requiring the
outbuilding to be demolished and to clear debris and all other related materials.

The second enforcement notice is for an unauthorised front, side and rear (adjacent to
Graham Road) dormer roof extensions. An appeal was lost for the dormers to be
considered permitted development, the notice requires the owner to demolish the
unauthorised front, side and rear roof dormer extensions (adjacent to Graham Road)
and to clear debris and all other related materials. Both Notices came into effect on 8"
July 2019 unless appeals were made before this date. No appeals were lodged.

The compliance date of the Enforcement Notice relating to the outbuilding to be
demolished and to clear debris and all other related materials has now passed without
compliance. The second enforcement notice was not complied with and now
prosecution proceedings are being undertaken.

The plea hearing has now taken place at Lavender Hill Magistrates Court, where the
defendant pleaded not guilty and the second hearing is due on the 14th January 2020.

A second hearing was held on 14t January 2020, and adjourned until 4" February
2020 in order for the defendant to seek further legal advice.

The defendant again appeared in court and pleaded not guilty, a trial date was set for
215t May 2020. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic this has been postponed. The case has
been listed for a ‘non-effective’ hearing on Tuesday 14 July 2020, where a new trial
date will be set.

This was postponed until another date yet to be given. The Council has now instructed
external Counsel to prosecute in these matters.

3.00 New Enforcement Appeals

wp\&g@rgg,g_ov. uk


http://www.merton.gov.uk/

6 CARTMEL GARDENS, MORDEN SM4 6QN: (Notice 1) This is regarding a side
extension not built in accordance with approved plans. A planning Enforcement Notice
was subsequently issued on 24th September 2019 and would have taken effect on
24th October 2019. The notice requires the demolition of the rear extension. This
Notice has a compliance period of 3 calendar months. An Appeal was electronically
submitted. This Appeal has now been determined by Decision letter dated 23 June
2020. The Appeal was dismissed and the Enforcement Notice upheld. The compliance
period is 3 months from the date of the Decision letter.

183A Streatham Road CR4 2AG. An Enforcement Notice was issued on 1st May 2019
relating to the erection of a rear balcony to the existing rear roof dormer of the
property. The Notice requires demolishing the rear balcony to the existing rear roof
dormer and restoring the property to that prior to the breach. The Notice would have
taken effect on 4t June 2019, with a compliance period of 2 months. An Appeal to The
Planning Inspectorate has been made. The appeal was determined by Decision letter
dated 18" March 2020. The appeal was dismissed with a slight variation of the wording
of the enforcement Notice. The Enforcement Notice had a 2 months compliance
period. A site inspection is to be arranged.

47 Edgehill Road CR4 2HY. This is concerning a rear extension not being built to the
dimensions provided on the prior approval application. A Planning Enforcement Notice
was subsequently issued requiring the demolition of the single storey rear extension.
The Notice would have taken effect took effect on 16th September 2019, with a
compliance period of 3 calendar months. An Appeal has started. This Appeal has now
been determined by Decision letter dated 16" July 2020. The appeal was allowed and
the Enforcement Notice quashed.

33 HASSOCKS ROAD, LONDON. SW16 5EU: This was regarding the unauthorised
conversion from a single dwelling into 2 x self contained flats against a refusal planning
permission. A planning Enforcement Notice was subsequently issued on 10th
September 2019 and would have taken effect on 15th October 2019. This Notice has a
compliance period of 3 calendar months, unless an appeal is made to the Planning
Inspectorate before the Notice takes effect. An Appeal has been submitted, and has
started. The appeal site visit was postponed, by The Planning Inspectorate. This
Appeal has now been determined by Decision letter dated 17t July 2020. The Appeal
was dismissed and the Enforcement Notice upheld. The Notice was varied and the
time for compliance extended from 3 months to 6 months from the date of the Appeal
Decision letter. However, minor costs were awarded to the appellant for extra work and
or time that had been spent on the appeal that were not needed.

76 Shaldon Drive, Morden, SM4 4BH. An enforcement notice was served on 14th
August 2019 relating to an outbuilding being used as a self-contained unit. The notice
requires the removal of all kitchen facilities, fixtures, fittings, cooker, worktops, kitchen
units. The notice takes effect on 16th September 2019, with a compliance period of 1
month. An Appeal has been electronically submitted, This Appeal has now started.

WWW, pg@e. %Bk


http://www.merton.gov.uk/

1.1.1.

3.4

10.

11.

12.

Existing enforcement appeals
2

Appeals determined

4

Requested update from PAC

None

Consultation undertaken or proposed
None required for the purposes of this report

Timetable
N/A

Financial, resource and property implications
N/A

Legal and statutory implications
N/A

Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications
N/A

Crime and disorder implications
N/A

Risk Management and Health and Safety implications.
N/A

Appendices — the following documents are to be published with this
report and form part of the report Background Papers

N/A

Background Papers

wp\&g@rgg,gov. uk


http://www.merton.gov.uk/

Agenda Iltem 15

Committee: Planning Applications Committee

Date: 20t August 2020
Wards: All

Subject: Reviews of recent changes to Town Planning legislation, and
current consultation by the MHCLG

Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration
Lead member: Councillor Linda Kirby
Contact officer: Jonathan Lewis (020 8545 3287)

Recommendations:

A. That the recent changes to Town Planning legislation, including those pertaining to
permitted development rights and the Use Classes Order, are noted for the
purposes of decision making.

B. That officers review the current Scheme of Management so as to ensure the
current delegation arrangements are aligned to reflect the extension of permitted
development rights through new “prior approval” planning submissions.

C. That suitable Council protocols are adopted and publicised so as to ensure new
prior approval assessment criteria are applied fairly and consistently in decision
making.

D. That the recent White Paper and associated interim measures consultation paper
along with the proposals contained in both documents are noted.

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. To provide an update to members of recent changes to planning legislation
along with their implications for decision making and to alert members to on-
going consultations to initiate further interim changes along with more
wholesale changes to plan preparation and decision making.

1.2. The report is structured into 4 parts:
Part A - changes to primary legislation;
Part A - changes to secondary legislation.
Part B Consultation - The Future of Planning. (MHCLG August 2020).

Part B Consultation - Changes to the current planning system: (MHCLG
August 2020).

Part A — Changes to primary legislation.
DETAILS

21. On 22 July 2020 the Planning and Business Bill received Royal Assent.
The Bill is now an Act of Parliament. In planning terms, the Act (which only
applies to England) does three main things:

Page 557



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

e Introduces a fast track application procedure for varying construction
hours;

e Extends the life of planning permissions which are due to expire this
year; and

e Changes the rules for planning appeals, to allow them to mix and
match their appeal procedures.

Officers note that the provision of the Act will ensure the planning system in
England can continue to operate effectively and proactively support the
planning and safe construction of new development following the impact of
Covid-19. The Act introduces a new route for developers to seek to amend
planning restrictions on construction site working hours to temporarily allow
extended working hours, for example work during the evening and at
weekends. This is to ensure that, where appropriate, planning conditions
are not a barrier to allowing developers the flexibility necessary to facilitate
the safe operation of construction sites during the response to the Covid19
pandemic and to proceed at pace with work otherwise delayed as a result of
Covid-19.

The Act extends the expiration of certain planning permissions and listed
building consents, providing certainty to the development industry where
developments are delayed due to Covid-19. Government notes on the Act
explain; “There is a strong consensus across the industry and local planning
authorities that unimplemented planning permissions should be extended to
enable planned developments to be commenced over the next year. The
MHCLG'’s construction market analysts, show that at the end of March there
were 1,178 major residential planning permissions with capacity to deliver
over 60,000 homes due to lapse this calendar year.

The changes provide for an extension to planning permissions and listed
building consents which have lapsed or are due to lapse between 23 March
and 31 December 2020. This extension will be to 1 May 2021.

The extension will apply automatically for permissions and consents which
are extant in between the measures coming into force on 19 August 2020
and 31 December 2020. Any planning permissions which have lapsed since
23 March 2020 can be reinstated.

The Act also provides the Planning Inspectorate with the flexibility to use
more than one procedure type when dealing with a planning appeal (local
inquiry, hearing, and/or written representations), enabling appeals to
progress at a faster pace.

Part A — Changes to secondary legislation — The Use Classes Order.

The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England)
Regulations 2020 (S| 2020 No.757), were made on 20 July and take effect
on 1 September 2020. The legislation makes important changes to the 1987
Use Classes Order. The changes are complex, because of the need to take
account of various knock-on effects and the consequent requirement to
include various transitional provisions to ensure a reasonably smooth move
to the new and revised Use Classes.

Page 558



2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

The changes puts an end to Use Classes A1, A2, A3, A4 and A5, and
Classes D1 and D2. These may routinely be viewed as town centre and
associated community uses. A change of use between a retail shop and a
restaurant, a bank or building society (or any other kind of office, whether it
was formerly in Use Classes A2 or B1(a)), a doctor’s or dentist’s surgery, a
light industrial use or a créche, day nursery or day centre, which are all now
with Use Class E, will not constitute development and will not therefore
require planning permission.

The changes to the Classes are diverse and wide ranging but appear
focused on facilitating changes in the uses of buildings to assist the
economy.

Officers note that notwithstanding the transitional arrangements that the
regulations puts in place, the new Use Class arrangements will impact on
the manner in which adopted planning policies that seek to exercise control
over changes of use in town centre may reasonably be applied and their
relevance.

Part A — Changes to secondary legislation — Changes to the General
Permitted development Order.

The Town and Country Planning (Permitted Development and
Miscellaneous Amendments) (England) Regulations 2020 was made on 23
June 2020 and is now in force.

The changes to planning controls introduce further “light touch” planning
submissions - routinely referred to as prior approvals - enabling building up
to 2 extra floors over mid-rise blocks of flats. The changes also introduce
additional criteria for the assessment of prior approval submissions to
dwellings enabling consideration of natural light.

Two further sets of changes to the GPDO will come into effect at the end of
August. The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) (Amendment) (No. 2) Order 2020 and (Amendment No. 3) Order
2020.

The changes provide for the demolition of redundant office and business
buildings and blocks of flats and their replacement with flats on the same
footprint with an additional two floors, the provision of two extra floors of
dwellings over certain blocks of flats, erecting additional storeys to dwellings
and over certain commercial buildings including shops.

The new permitted development provisions would be to allow extra floors to
be added to bungalows to turn them into houses.

The new arrangements do not give carte blanche to developers as the “prior
approval” regime still requires Council’s to assess key planning criteria
including traffic, visual impact, flood risk and contamination.

Daylighting to new dwellings is introduced into the assessment criteria
however, floorspace standards are not an assessment criteria nor is the
provision of affordable housing or criteria on reducing carbon emissions.

The Government (MHCLG) is at the same time looking to make
amendments to the Building Regulations including Part L which covers
energy efficiency. Changes are anticipated before the end of the year.

Page 559



2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

It remains to be seen whether the Government intends to push the
emphasis on energy matters and reducing CO2 emissions over to the
Building Regulations and away from Town Planning control.

Officers note the Regulations governing fees are also to be amended so
fees for the schemes delivering new units will be similar to comparable
planning applications.

Part B - Consultation "Planning for the future" - MHCLG (August 2020)

Officers are bringing to the attention of members of the Planning
Applications Committee the Government's white paper published on 6th
August which initiates a 12 week consultation on the reform of the Planning
system in England. The White paper is being brought to members attention
given its significance as it advocates a major reworking on the current
planning system in England

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads
/attachment_data/file/907647/MHCLG-Planning-Consultation.pdf

The paper seeks views on each part of a package of proposals for reform of
the planning system in England to streamline and modernise the planning
process, improve outcomes on design and sustainability, reform developer
contributions and ensure more land is available for development where it is
needed

The consultation sets out proposals for reform of the planning system in
England, covering plan-making, development management, development
contributions, and other related policy proposals.

The paper poses a number of questions which, in the event of primary
legislation coming forward, would have significant implications for not only
the way decisions pertaining to development are made at a local level in
Merton and elsewhere in England, but how local infrastructure is secured
and funded, how affordable housing is provided, how the resourcing of local
authority planning services are configured including ensuring there are the
right skills and training and also the manner in which modern modes of
communication are harnessed in its delivery.

This report provides a summary of the key points in the White Paper for
information purposes, and as a stimulus for informed discussion.

The foreword to the White Paper sets, what might be considered, the radical
tone of the document.

The foreword by the Prime Minister states:

Thanks to our planning system, we have nowhere near enough homes in
the right places. People cannot afford to move to where their talents can be
matched with opportunity. Businesses cannot afford to grow and create
Jjobs. The whole thing is beginning to crumble and the time has come to do
what too many have for too long lacked the courage to do — tear it down and
start again. That is what this paper proposes. Radical reform unlike anything
we have seen since the Second World War.

The Secretary of State adds:
Our proposals seek a significantly simpler, faster and more predictable
system. These proposals will help us to build the homes our country needs,

Page 560


https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__assets.publishing.service.gov.uk_government_uploads_system_uploads_attachment-5Fdata_file_907647_MHCLG-2DPlanning-2DConsultation.pdf&d=DwMDaQ&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=J638hTbUV5_W2WKaDwxg9ZbmbEmCjBb2Sgs2oBNoQaw&m=rA79PbrIuv65CJhUYv0NyyBaKv8q3cw-eoThgkk1MWE&s=FMVEeQS9pn1sjBx7_Grvtw_SI66F73WwJqpBgK3LFc4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__assets.publishing.service.gov.uk_government_uploads_system_uploads_attachment-5Fdata_file_907647_MHCLG-2DPlanning-2DConsultation.pdf&d=DwMDaQ&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=J638hTbUV5_W2WKaDwxg9ZbmbEmCjBb2Sgs2oBNoQaw&m=rA79PbrIuv65CJhUYv0NyyBaKv8q3cw-eoThgkk1MWE&s=FMVEeQS9pn1sjBx7_Grvtw_SI66F73WwJqpBgK3LFc4&e=

2.29

2.30

2.31

Our reformed system places a higher regard on quality, design and local
vernacular than ever before, and draws inspiration from the idea of design
codes" and asserts that "We will build environmentally friendly homes that
will not need to be expensively retrofitted in the future, homes with green
spaces and new parks at close hand".

The Secretary of State seeks to reconfigure the planning system so that it is
fit for the 21st Century embracing the use of new technology and
introducing simplified process so as to garner greater community
involvement.

Challenges.

The White Paper examines the perceived challenges presented by the
planning system as presently configured which are summarized below:

e |tistoo complex ;
e Planning decisions are discretionary rather than rules-base;
o |t takes too long to adopt a Local Plan;

o Assessments of housing need, viability and environmental impacts are
too complex and opaque;

« It has lost public trust with, for example, a recent poll finding that only
seven per cent trusted their local council to make decisions about large
scale development that will be good for their locality are;

« Consultation is dominated by the few willing and able to navigate the
process;

o Itis based on 20th-century technology;

o The process for negotiating developer contributions to affordable housing
and infrastructure is complex, protracted and unclear;

e There is not enough focus on design, and little incentive for high quality
new homes and places;

o |t simply does not lead to enough homes being built, especially in those
places where the need for new homes is the highest.

The White Paper asserts that "decades of complexity and political argument
have resulted in a system which is providing neither sufficient homes nor
good enough new places. Nor is it fairly using the talents and passions of
public sector planners".

Objectives.

The White Paper's five key objectives set the scene for a more detailed
examination of the planning process from plan making to decisions making,
infrastructure funding, resources and training. They are:

o To streamline the planning process with more democracy taking place
more effectively at the plan-making stage, and ...replace the entire corpus of
plan-making law in England to achieve this - simplifying the role of Local
Plans, to be a more rules based document focusing on sites and design
codes;

Page 561



2.32

2.33

« Aradical, digital-first approach to modernise the planning process -
moving from a process based on documents to a process driven by data;

e To bring a new focus on design and sustainability; to be supported by a
greater focus on ‘placemaking’ in the NPPF and by ensuring it targets those
areas where a reformed planning system can most effectively address
climate change mitigation and adaptation and facilitate environmental
improvements.

e To improve infrastructure delivery in all parts of the country and ensure
developers play their part, through reform of developer contributions; The
Community Infrastructure Levy and the current system of planning
obligations will be reformed as a nationally set, value-based flat rate charge
(the ‘Infrastructure Levy’). A single rate or varied rates could be set. Ideas
include ensuring that the new Infrastructure Levy allows local planning
authorities to secure more on-site affordable housing provision.

e To ensure more land is available for the homes and development people
and communities need, and to support renewal of our town and city centres.
To deliver on this objective there would be a new nationally determined,
binding housing requirement that local planning authorities would have to
deliver through their Local Plans. This would be focused on areas where
affordability pressure is highest to stop land supply being a barrier to
enough homes being built.

The format of the paper then examines what it describes as the pillars of
planning setting out key topics for reform along with its proposals which
form the basis of the Government's consultation and a summary is set out
below.

Pillar One - Planning for development
A NEW APPROACH TO PLAN-MAKING

Plan making is seen as slow cumbersome, and the White Paper promotes a
more rules based approach with local plans focused more on zoning and
design codes rather than a site by site application of planning policies
leading to shortcomings in the present system i.e less certainty rather than
greater certainty to both local communities and those seeking to

develop. Under this topic heading the White paper sets out the following
proposals:

Proposal 1: The role of land use plans should be simplified. We propose
that Local Plans should identify three types of land — Growth areas suitable
for substantial development, Renewal areas suitable for development, and
areas that are Protected.

Proposal 2: Development management policies established at national scale
and an altered role for Local Plans.

Proposal 3: Local Plans should be subject to a single statutory “sustainable
development” test, replacing the existing tests of soundness

Proposal 4: A standard method for establishing housing requirement figures
which ensures enough land is released in the areas where affordability is
worst, to stop land supply being a barrier to enough homes being built. The
housing requirement would factor in land constraints and opportunities to

Page 562



2.34

2.35

2.36

more effectively use land, including through densification where appropriate,
to ensure that the land is identified in the most appropriate areas and
housing targets are met.

A STREAMLINED DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCESS WITH
AUTOMATIC PLANNING PERMISSION FOR SCHEMES IN LINE WITH
PLANS

In tandem with the proposed wholesale reform of plan making is a similar
reform of decision making of proposals for individual sites. The new plan
process would shift the emphasis more towards determining what is
acceptable, akin to the already available planning in principle, at the
planning making stage. The implementation of development proposals
would be dependent upon securing a new form of “reserved matters”
submission which would need to follow locally prepared design codes rather
than the current wholesale assessment of proposals against the gamut of
local planning policies. Under this topic heading the White paper sets out
the following proposals:

Proposal 5: Areas identified as Growth areas (suitable for substantial
development) would automatically be granted outline planning permission for
the principle of development, while automatic approvals would also be
available for pre-established development types in other areas suitable for
building.

Proposal 6: Decision-making should be faster and more certain, with firm
deadlines, and make greater use of digital technology.

A NEW INTERACTIVE, WEB-BASED MAP STANDARD FOR PLANNING
DOCUMENTS.

The White paper advocates a more standardised web based approach for
planning documents:

Proposal 7: Local Plans should be visual and map-based, standardised,
based on the latest digital technology, and supported by a new template.

A STREAMLINED, MORE ENGAGING PLAN-MAKING PROCESS

The White paper is critical of the time taken to prepare plans, with evidence
sometimes out of date once a plan is adopted and what is sees as a lot of
duplication across authorities in terms of detailed planning policies.
Proposal 8: Local authorities and the Planning Inspectorate will be required
through legislation to meet a statutory timetable for key stages of the
process, and we will consider what sanctions there would be for those who
fail to do so.

Proposal 9: Neighbourhood Plans should be retained as an important
means of community input, and we will support communities to make better
use of digital tools

Page 563



2.37

2.38

2.39

2.40

SPEEDING UP THE DELIVERY OF DEVELOPMENT.

The reforms proposed the paper suggests would give greater certainty to
delivering development.
Proposal 10: A stronger emphasis on build out through planning.

Pillar Two — Planning for beautiful and sustainable places.

CREATING FRAMEWORKS FOR QUALITY

The paper notes that “This autumn (The Government) will publish a National
Model Design Code to supplement the guide, setting out more detailed
parameters for development in different types of location: issues such as the
arrangement and proportions of streets and urban blocks, positioning and
hierarchy of public spaces, successful parking arrangements, placement of
street trees, and high quality cycling and walking provision, in line with our
wider vision for cycling and walking in England. It will be accompanied by
worked examples, and complement a revised and consolidated Manual for
Streets”.

Integral to the overall reform of plan making and decision making is the
increased emphasis on the use of design codes to guide development.
Alongside this is a recognition of the need for increased and enhanced skills
capacity within planning sections and the designation of a relevant “Chief
Officer”. The White paper notes “The vision which we have set out will
require a step-change in the design skills available to many local planning
authorities, as well as the right prioritisation and leadership across the
sector”.

Proposal 11: To make design expectations more visual and predictable, we
will expect design guidance and codes to be prepared locally with
community involvement, and ensure that codes are more binding on
decisions about development.

Proposal 12: To support the transition to a planning system which is more
visual and rooted in local preferences and character, we will set up a body to
support the delivery of provably locally-popular design codes, and propose
that each authority should have a chief officer for design and place-making

Proposal 13: To further embed national leadership on delivering better
places, we will consider how Homes England’s strategic objectives can give
greater emphasis to delivering beautiful places

A FAST-TRACK FOR BEAUTY

While containing noble and worthy aspirations this section of the white paper
offers less clarity on the mechanism for delivery.

Proposal 14: We intend to introduce a fast-track for beauty through changes
to national policy and legislation, to incentivise and accelerate high quality
development which reflects local character and preferences.

Page 564



2.41

2.42

2.42

EFFECTIVE STEWARDSHIP AND ENHANCEMENT OF OUR NATURAL
AND HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT

The paper displays a continued commitment to climate change mitigation.
Members should be aware that in tandem with the review of planning
controls the Government is also engaged in consultation on a review of the
Building Regulations and in particular Part L (Conservation of Fuel and
Power). Reference is made to changes that will complement planning
reforms - whether this will precipitate a shift away from town planning and
towards Building Control for the delivery of improved performance standards
for new buildings remains to be seen.

With regards to environmental impacts the EIA Regs have EU directives as
their underpinning with potential for change in the coming year.

Proposal 15: We intend to amend the National Planning Policy Framework to
ensure that it targets those areas where a reformed planning system can
most effectively play a role in mitigating and adapting to climate change and
maximising environmental benefits.

Proposal 16: We intend to design a quicker, simpler framework for assessing
environmental impacts and enhancement opportunities that speeds up the
process while protecting and enhancing the most valuable and important
habitats and species in England.

Proposal 17: Conserving and enhancing our historic buildings and areas in
the 21st century.

Proposal 18: To complement our planning reforms, we will facilitate
ambitious improvements in the energy efficiency standards for buildings to
help deliver our world-leading commitment to net-zero by 2050.

Pillar Three — Planning for infrastructure and connected places.

Both S106 agreements and the benefits derived from them along with local
CIL regimes come in for scrutiny and recommendations to reform.

A CONSOLIDATED INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

Proposal 19: The Community Infrastructure Levy should be reformed to be
charged as a fixed proportion of the development value above a threshold,
with a mandatory nationally-set rate or rates and the current system of
planning obligations abolished.

Proposal 20: The scope of the Infrastructure Levy could be extended to
capture changes of use through permitted development rights.

Proposal 21: The reformed Infrastructure Levy should deliver affordable
housing provision.

Proposal 22: More freedom could be given to local authorities over how they
spend the Infrastructure Levy.

Page 565



2.43

2.44

2.45

2.46

Delivering change.

Under this topic the paper asserts the need to ensure planning departments
have the correct skills and that planners are engaged in proactive plan-
making, rather than reactive development management.

Proposal 23: As we develop our final proposals for this new planning
system, we will develop a comprehensive resources and skills strategy for
the planning sector to support the implementation of our reforms. In doing
so, we propose this strategy will be developed including the following key
elements:The cost of operating the new planning system should be
principally funded by the beneficiaries of planning gain — landowners and
developers — rather than the national or local taxpayer.

The paper notes that Planning fees should continue to be set on a national
basis and cover at least the full cost of processing the application type
based on clear national benchmarking. This should involve the greater
regulation of discretionary pre-application charging to ensure it is fair and
proportionate. Proposals for Local Plan reform, changes to developer
contributions and development management would require primary
legislation followed by secondary legislation.

Part B - Changes to the current planning system: Consultation on
changes to planning policy and regulations (MHCLG August 2020).

Officers are bringing to the attention of members of the Planning
Applications Committee the Government's consultation paper published on
6th August which initiates an 8 week consultation in connection with shorter
term measures to amend current controls.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/upload
s/attachment_data/file/907215/200805 Changes_to_the current_planning_
system_FINAL_version.pdf

The consultation document explains the changes as follows:

Planning for the Future sets out plans to undertake a fundamental reform of
the planning system and explains that this would be accompanied by
shorter-term measures. This consultation sets out proposals for measures
to improve the effectiveness of the current system.

The four main proposals are:

*changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need, which as
well as being a proposal to change guidance in the short term has relevance
to proposals for land supply reforms set out in Planning for the Future;
*securing of First Homes, sold at a discount to market price for first time
buyers, including key workers, through developer contributions in the short
term until the transition to a new system;

«temporarily lifting the small sites threshold below which developers do not
need to contribute to affordable housing, to up to 40 or 50 units to support
SME builders as the economy recovers from the impact of Covid-19;

Page 566


https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__assets.publishing.service.gov.uk_government_uploads_system_uploads_attachment-5Fdata_file_907215_200805-5FChanges-5Fto-5Fthe-5Fcurrent-5Fplanning-5Fsystem-5FFINAL-5Fversion.pdf&d=DwMDaQ&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=J638hTbUV5_W2WKaDwxg9ZbmbEmCjBb2Sgs2oBNoQaw&m=rA79PbrIuv65CJhUYv0NyyBaKv8q3cw-eoThgkk1MWE&s=3drpY6io8imP6X00gwVDZbw7PQbqk3HjaGGfkzwFVuY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__assets.publishing.service.gov.uk_government_uploads_system_uploads_attachment-5Fdata_file_907215_200805-5FChanges-5Fto-5Fthe-5Fcurrent-5Fplanning-5Fsystem-5FFINAL-5Fversion.pdf&d=DwMDaQ&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=J638hTbUV5_W2WKaDwxg9ZbmbEmCjBb2Sgs2oBNoQaw&m=rA79PbrIuv65CJhUYv0NyyBaKv8q3cw-eoThgkk1MWE&s=3drpY6io8imP6X00gwVDZbw7PQbqk3HjaGGfkzwFVuY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__assets.publishing.service.gov.uk_government_uploads_system_uploads_attachment-5Fdata_file_907215_200805-5FChanges-5Fto-5Fthe-5Fcurrent-5Fplanning-5Fsystem-5FFINAL-5Fversion.pdf&d=DwMDaQ&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=J638hTbUV5_W2WKaDwxg9ZbmbEmCjBb2Sgs2oBNoQaw&m=rA79PbrIuv65CJhUYv0NyyBaKv8q3cw-eoThgkk1MWE&s=3drpY6io8imP6X00gwVDZbw7PQbqk3HjaGGfkzwFVuY&e=

2.47

2.48

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.2

*extending the current Permission in Principle to major development so
landowners and developers now have a fast route to secure the principle of
development for housing on sites without having to work up detailed plans
first.

Permission in Principle is designed to separate decision making on ‘in
principle’ issues addressing land use, location, and scale of development
from matters of technical detail, such as the design of buildings, tenure mix,
transport and environmental matters. The aim is to give up-front certainty
that the fundamental principles of development are acceptable before
developers need to work up detailed plans and commission technical
studies. It also ensures that the principle of development only needs to be
established once.

The consultation paper sets out in more detail various scenarios that may be
explored and may form the basis of changes that will impact on the
interlinked aspects of planning policy and decision making

Financial, resource and property implications.

Officers note that there will be some unimplemented permissions that will
benefit from the extension to implement and for which a further fee in
connection with a planning application will not be received. Lost income
from such applications to the Planning budget should however be viewed
more widely in terms of the income to the Council derived from facilitating
new dwellings and other development coming forward.

Changes to the use classes order may also result in some marginal loss of
fee income from changes of use no longer requiring permission.

Subject to the introduction of amendments to the fees regulations the
creation of new dwellings over and in place of existing buildings may have a
neutral impact.

The introduction of various new “prior approval” submissions will require
decision letter template amendments although this would be a one off
exercise.

With regards to the two consultation papers it would be inappropriate at this
stage to speculate on the format of changes that may eventually come
forward. Officers do however consider it prudent to maintain close scrutiny
in order to react and plan effectively as proposals take shape.

Legal and statutory implications

Decision making on submissions made under Town and Country Planning
legislation is regulated at Merton by its Scheme of Management. The
proposals while making provision for the extension of time to implement
planning permissions do not alter the application of the Scheme to the
assessment of planning applications.

Officers note the Government’s objective to assist contractors to implement
development. This will require a speedy and often pragmatic approach to
applications to vary construction hours conditions and would recommend
that this is factored into assessment of applications by PAC where
construction hours conditions may be absent or increasingly flexible.

Page 567



The Scheme of management makes specific reference to types of planning
applications. The new prior approval provisions may result in submissions
generating sufficient local interest as to warrant consideration by PAC and it
would be appropriate to revisit the wording of the scheme of management to

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

align it with the expanded prior approval provisions.
Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implication.

Not applicable.

Crime and Disorder implications

Not applicable.

Risk management and health and safety implications
Not applicable.

Appendices.

None

Background DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO:

Planning and Business Act 2020

Statutory Instruments pertaining to the General Permitted Development
order

MHCLG letter to Chief Planning Officers (July 2020)

MHCLG Consultations Paper - The Future of Planning. (MHCLG August
2020).

MHCLG Consultation Paper - Changes to the current planning system:
(MHCLG August 2020).

Page 568



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 3 Alan Road, Wimbledon, SW19 7PT
	02) Site Plan
	03) Site Location Plan
	04) Proposed Basement
	05) Proposed Ground Floor - Flattened
	06) Proposed 1st Floor - Flattened
	07) Proposed 2nd Floor - Flattened
	08) Proposed Front Elevation - Flattened
	09) Proposed Rear Elevation - Flattened
	10) Proposed West Elevation
	11) Proposed East Elevation 01
	12) Proposed East Elevation 02

	6 Tooting & Mitcham FC, Bishopsford Road, SM4 6BF
	02) Site Plan - Flattened
	03) Proposed Site Location Plan - Flattened
	04) Proposed Site_Amended 27.05.20 - Flattened
	05) Proposed Ground Floor Amended 18.04.20 - Flattened
	06) Proposed 1st Floor Amended 18.04.20 - Flattened
	08) Proposed 2nd Floor Amended 18.04.20 - Flattened
	09) Proposed 3rd Floor - Flattened
	10) Proposed 4th Floor - Flattened
	11) Proposed 5th Floor - Flattened
	12) Proposed Roof Amended 18.04.20 - Flattened
	14) Coloured Front Elevation - Flattened
	15) Proposed Front Elevation - Flattened
	16) Proposed Rear Elevation - Flattened
	17) Coloured Side Elevation - Flattened
	18) Proposed Side Elevation 01 - Flattened
	19) Proposed Side Elevation 02 - Flattened
	20) Proposed Section Amended 12.12.19 - Flattened

	7 159 Commonside East, Mitcham, CR4 2QB
	02) Site Plan - Flattened
	03) Proposed Site Location Plan - Flattened
	04) Proposed Site_Amended 27.05.20 - Flattened
	05) Proposed Ground Floor Plans Amended_30.06.2020 - Flattened
	06) Proposed First Floor Plans Amended_30.06.2020 - Flattened
	07) Proposed Second Floor Plans Amended_30.06.2020 - Flattened
	08) Proposed 3rd Floor - Flattened
	8a) Proposed Roof - Flattened
	09) Proposed West & North Elevations Amended_23.06.2020 - Flattened
	10) Proposed East & South Elevations Amended_30.06.2020 - Flattened
	11) Proposed Sections Amended_23.06.2020 - Flattened
	11a) Bay Study Amended_30.06.2020 - Flattened
	12) Rear Axonometric Amended_23.06.2020 - Flattened
	13) Front Axonometric - Flattened

	8 37-39 Cottenham Park Road, West Wimbledon, SW20 0SB
	02) Site Plan - Flattened
	02a) Existing Plans_001
	02a) Existing Plans_002
	02a) Existing Plans_003
	02a) Existing Plans_004
	02a) Existing Plans_005
	02a) Existing Plans_006
	03) Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plans . Amended 05.08.2020_001
	04) Proposed Ground Floor Plan. Amended 05.08.2020_001
	05) Proposed 1st Floor Plans . Amended 05.08 (2)_001
	06) Proposed Second Floor Plans . Amended 05.08 (1)_001
	07) Proposed Plans Houses_001
	07) Proposed Plans Houses_002
	07) Proposed Plans Houses_003
	07) Proposed Plans Houses_004
	08) Proposed Flats East Boundary Elevation . Amended 05.08.2020_001
	09) Proposed Flats Front & Rear Elevations . Amended 05.08.2020_001
	10) Proposed Flats Section AA . Amended 05.08.2020_001
	11) Proposed Street Elevation . Amended 05.08.2020_001
	12) Design & Access Statement_001
	12) Design & Access Statement_002
	12) Design & Access Statement_003
	12) Design & Access Statement_004
	12) Design & Access Statement_005
	12) Design & Access Statement_006
	12) Design & Access Statement_007
	12) Design & Access Statement_008
	13) Photo 01
	14) Photo 02
	15) Photo 03
	16) Photo 04
	17) Photo 05
	18) Photo 06

	9 115 Graham Road, Wimbledon, SW19 3SP
	02) Site Plan_001
	03) Proposed Site Plan Amended 21.07.2020_001
	04) Proposed 3rd Floor Amended 21.07.2020_001
	05) Proposed Elevation Side NE Amended 21.07.2020_001
	06) Proposed Elevation Side SW Amended 21.07.2020_001
	07) Proposed Front Elevation Amended 21.07.2020_001
	08) Proposed Rear Elevation Amended 21.07.2020_001
	09) Proposed Section AA Amended 21.07.2020_001
	10) Site Section Amended 21.07.2020_001

	10 64-76 Kingston Road, Wimbledon, SW19 1LA
	02) Site Plan_001
	03) Site Location Plan_001
	04) Proposed Block Plans & 3d Views Amended 26.06.2020_001
	04) Proposed Block Plans & 3d Views Amended 26.06.2020_002
	04) Proposed Block Plans & 3d Views Amended 26.06.2020_003
	04) Proposed Block Plans & 3d Views Amended 26.06.2020_004
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_001
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_002
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_003
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_004
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_005
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_006
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_007
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_008
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_009
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_010
	05) Amended Proposed Plans Block A_14.05.2020_011
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_001
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_002
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_003
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_004
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_005
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_006
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_007
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_008
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_009
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_010
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_011
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_012
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_013
	06) Proposed Plans Block B & Materials Schedule Amended 26.06.2020_014

	11 8 Preshaw Crescent, Mitcham, CR4 3GA
	02) Site Plan_001
	03) Site & Location Plan_001
	04) Proposed Ground floor_001
	05) Proposed 1st & 2nd Floors Amended 27.02.2020_001
	06) Proposed Roof Plan_001
	07) Proposed Elevations_001
	08) Proposed Sections_001

	12 50 Tybenham Road, Merton Park, SW19 3LA
	02) Site Plan_001
	03) Plans_001
	03) Plans_002
	03) Plans_003
	03) Plans_004
	03) Plans_005
	03) Plans_006
	03) Plans_007
	03) Plans_008

	13 33-39 Upper Green East, Mitcham, CR4 2PF
	02) Site Plan_001
	03) Existing Plans_001
	03) Existing Plans_002
	03) Existing Plans_003
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_001
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_002
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_003
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_004
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_005
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_006
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_007
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_008
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_009
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_010
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_011
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_012
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_013
	04) Proposed Plans_Amended 26.06.20_014
	05) Landscape Plan_Amended 26.06.20_001
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_001
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_002
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_003
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_004
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_005
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_006
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_007
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_008
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_009
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_010
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_011
	06) Proposed Visualisations_Amended 30.06.20_012

	14 Planning Enforcement - Summary of Current Cases
	15 Reviews of recent changes to Town Planning legislation, and current MHCLG consultation

